Public Document Pack

CYNGOR
Gareth Owens LL.B Barrister/Bargyfreithiwr Sir Fflint
Chief Officer (Governance) - . .
Prif Swyddog (Llywodraethu) Flintshire
COUNTY COUNCII

To: Clir Aaron Shotton (Leader)

. . . . CS/ING
Councillors: Bernie Attridge, Chris Bithell,

Helen Brown, Derek Butler, Christine Jones, 15 April 2015
Kevin Jones and Billy Mullin

Nicola Gittins 01352 702345
nicola.gittins@flintshire.gov.uk

Dear Sir / Madam

A meeting of the CABINET will be held in the CLWYD COMMITTEE ROOM,
COUNTY HALL, MOLD CH7 6NA on TUESDAY, 21ST APRIL, 2015 at 9.30 AM to
consider the following items.

Yours faithfully

e

T

Democracy & Governance Manager

AGENDA

1 APOLOGIES

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

3 MINUTES (Pages 7 - 18)
To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the last meeting.



10

TO CONSIDER THE FOLLOWING REPORTS

STRATEGIC REPORTS

NEW CUSTOMER SERVICES POLICY (Pages 19 - 36)

Report of Chief Officer (Governance) - Cabinet Member for Corporate
Management

FLINTSHIRE PARKING STRATEGIES (Pages 37 - 196)

Report of Chief Officer (Streetscene and Transportation) - Deputy Leader of
the Council and Cabinet Member for Environment

WASTE COLLECTION POLICY (Pages 197 - 222)

Report of Chief Officer (Streetscene and Transportation) - Cabinet Member for
Waste Strategy, Public Protection and Leisure

STREETLIGHTING POLICY (Pages 223 - 240)

Report of Chief Officer (Streetscene and Transportation) - Deputy Leader of
the Council and Cabinet Member for Environment

GRASS CUTTING POLICY (Pages 241 - 250)

Report of Chief Officer (Streetscene and Transportation) - Deputy Leader of
the Council and Cabinet Member for Environment

SCHOOL STANDARDS & ORGANISATION ACT 2013 (Pages 251 - 254)

Report of Chief Officer (Education and Youth) - Cabinet Member for Education

OPERATIONAL REPORTS

REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2014/15 (MONTH 10) (Pages 255 - 284)

Report of Corporate Finance Manager - Leader of the Council and Cabinet
Member for Finance



11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

HOUSING BENEFIT OVERPAYMENT POLICY (Pages 285 - 302)

Report of Chief Officer (Community and Enterprise) - Cabinet Member for
Corporate Management

DISCRETIONARY HOUSING PAYMENT POLICY (Pages 303 - 314)

Report of Chief Officer (Community and Enterprise) - Cabinet Member for
Corporate Management

MOBILE HOMES SITE (WALES) ACT 2013 (Pages 315 - 318)

Report of Chief Officer (Planning and Environment) - Cabinet Member for
Waste Strategy, Public Protection and Leisure

WASTE TRANSFER STATION AND BIOMASS PRODUCTION/STORAGE
AREA IN GREENFIELD (Pages 319 - 324)

Report of Chief Officer (Streetscene and Transportation) - Cabinet Member for
Waste Strategy, Public Protection and Leisure

NORTH WALES REGIONAL SCHOOL IMPROVEMENT SERVICE (GWE) -
CHANGES TO CONSTITUTIONAL ARRANGEMENTS (Pages 325 - 334)

Report of Chief Officer (Education and Youth) - Cabinet Member for Education

COMMUNITY REVIEW - FLINT MOUNTAIN (Pages 335 - 352)

Report of Chief Officer (Governance) - Cabinet Member for Corporate
Management

WEBCASTING OF MEMBER MEETINGS (Pages 353 - 374)

Report of Chief Officer (Governance) - Cabinet Member for Corporate
Management

TWELFTH ANNUAL REPORT OF THE FLINTSHIRE LOCAL ACCESS
FORUM - 2013/14 (Pages 375 - 392)

Report of Chief Officer (Governance) - Leader of the Council and Cabinet
Member for Finance



19

20

EXERCISE OF DELEGATED POWERS (Pages 393 - 396)
Report of the Chief Executive enclosed.

FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME - COUNTY COUNCIL, CABINET, AUDIT
AND OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY - FOR INFORMATION

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 -TO
CONSIDER THE EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

The following item is considered to be exempt by virtue of Paragraph(s) 14 of
Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended).

The report contains exempt information under paragraph 14 of Part 4 of
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 as it contains financial or
business affairs of Euticals. The public interest in maintaining the exemption
outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.

FORMER EUTICALS SITE, SANDYCROFT (Pages 427 - 448)

Report of Chief Executive - Cabinet Member for Waste Strategy, Public
Protection and Leisure






This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 3

CABINET
17 MARCH 2015

Minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet of Flintshire County Council held at County
Hall, Mold on Tuesday, 17 March 2015

PRESENT: Councillor Aaron Shotton (Chair)
Councillors: Bernie Attridge, Chris Bithell, Helen Brown, Derek Butler, Christine
Jones and Kevin Jones

APOLOGY:
Councillor: Billy Mullin

IN ATTENDANCE:

Chief Executive, Chief Officer (Community and Enterprise), Chief Officer (Education
and Youth), Chief Officer (Governance), Chief Officer (Organisational Change), Chief
Officer (Planning and Environment), Chief Officer (Streetscene and Transportation),
Corporate Finance Manager and Team Manager — Committee Services

ALSO PRESENT:
Councillors: Veronica Gay, Ron Hampson, Dave Mackie, Tim Newhouse and David
Roney

132. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillors Helen Brown, Kevin Jones, Derek Butler, Aaron Shotton and
Christine Jones declared personal interests in agenda item number 17 — School
Admission Arrangements, as they were school governors.
133. MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting held on 17 February 2015 had been circulated
with the agenda.

RESOLVED:
That the minutes be approved as a correct record.

134. VARIATION IN ORDER OF BUSINESS

The Leader and Cabinet Member for Finance explained that agenda item
number 5, Annual Improvement Report and the Corporate Assessment Report of the
Auditor General for Wales for Flintshire, would be considered first.

135. ANNUAL IMPROVEMENT REPORT AND THE CORPORATE ASSESSMENT
REPORT OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL FOR WALES FOR FLINTSHIRE

The Leader and Cabinet Member for Finance introduced the Annual
Improvement Report of the Auditor General which incorporated the first Corporate
Assessment, and the Council’'s executive response.

Page 7



136.

The Chief Executive explained that the report would be considered by the
Audit Committee the following day and Corporate Resources Overview and Scrutiny
Committee on 16 April 2015.

Mr Huw Lloyd-Jones from the Wales Audit Office (WAQO) was welcomed to the
meeting and was invited to provide an overview of the key points detailed in the
Annual Improvement Report and the Corporate Assessment.

It was noted overall that the Auditor General concluded that the Council’s track
record suggested that it was likely to respond positively to the internal and external
challenges it faced and make arrangements to secure continuous improvement for
2015-16.

The Auditor General had not made any statutory recommendations with which
the Council must comply. Instead, seven advisory proposals for improvement were
made, which were detailed in the report.

The Cabinet Member for Waste Strategy, Public Protection and Leisure asked
if levels of ambition were reduced due to the financial pressures on local government,
would that be considered as negative by the WAO. Mr Lloyd-Jones said if the
Council provided details on the decision making that had taken place, and the
reasons why a target could not be bet, it would not be.

The Cabinet Member for Education commented on the reference to budgetary
control for out-of-county placements and said this was a volatile area and new
placements into the County could not be predicted.

The Chief Executive re-iterated that there were no new statutory
recommendations. The seven advisory proposals for improvement were already well
advanced and he presented the detailed action plan for adoption.

The Leader and Cabinet Member for Finance said the Council was proud to
receive a positive Annual Improvement Report and Corporate Assessment Report,
particularly following the challenges the organisation had faced.

RESOLVED:

That the Annual Improvement Report be accepted and the response attached for
consideration with the Audit Committee and the Corporate Resources Overview and
Scrutiny Committee be adopted.

WELSH GOVERNMENT WHITE PAPER: DEVOLUTION, DEMOCRACY AND
DELIVERY — REFORMING LOCAL GOVERNMENT: POWER TO THE PEOPLE

The Leader and Cabinet Member for Finance introduced the report and invited
an outline Cabinet response to the Welsh Government (WG) White Paper to inform
the debate at County Council on 14 April 2015.

Page 8



137.

138.

The report provided and initial commentary on the White Paper and Cabinet
Members agreed that the debate should take place at County Council, based on that
initial commentary.

RESOLVED:
That an outline response, based on the points made in 3.01 of the report, be
provided to Council on 14 April 2015 for debate. Council will then pass a resolution

on the formal consultation response to be made to Welsh Government.

QUARTER 3 IMPROVEMENT PLAN MONITORING REPORT

The Leader and Cabinet Member for Finance introduced the Quarter 3
Improvement Plan monitoring reports for the period October to December 2014.

The Chief Executive explained that the monitoring reports gave an explanation
of the progress being made towards the delivery of the impacts set out in the
Improvement Plan, with narrative supported by measures which evidenced
achievement.

RESOLVED:

(a)  That the action taken to manage delivery of the Improvement Priority impacts
be noted; and

(b)  That the following be noted:
e The levels of progress and confidence in the achievement of key
activities which seek to deliver the impacts of the Improvement Plan;
e The performance against improvement plan measures and the
predicted level of performance for year end; and
e The current (net) risk levels and trend for the risks identified in the
Improvement Plan and the arrangements to control them.

MEDIUM TERM PLANS FOR LIBRARY AND CONNECTS SERVICES

The Cabinet Member for Education provided details of the future plans for
library and Connects Services which included proposals for the development of a
new library and Connects in two new locations.

The Council was facing the challenge of delivering services within reduced
resources and plans of how to ensure an effective and sustainable network, with a
maximum of 70% of current resources, was being considered. The report outlined the
significant proposals to change the library network that would provide the best
chance of ensuring an effective and sustainable network of library services.

There was a recognition that modern libraries needed to be situated in places
that would have maximum footfall and the main library hubs for the future were
proposed to be situated in Connah’s Quay, Mold, Buckley, Flint and Holywell. In
addition, the major attraction of Deeside Leisure Centre provided an opportunity for
co-locating a library in a facility with major footfall that could serve three communities:

Page 9



Queensferry, Mancot and Hawarden. The demand for the smaller libraries in
Mynydd Isa, Saltney and Hope had reduced significantly and the management of the
library buildings and provision of services in those locations was not sustainable.
However, the community asset transfer scheme, developed by the Council, gave
communities an opportunity to take on those assets.

It was proposed that plans for linking library and Connects developments be
made at Mold and Buckley.

Broughton was a community with a growing population and there was a
potential to provide some library services if integrated with another provision, such as
Connects and it was proposed that a Connects Lite Service be developed.

The table in the report provided details of a medium term plan for library and
Connects provision that had the best chance of providing effective and sustainable
provision. The plan could be implemented in stages and at each stage it was critical
to consult with communities prior to final consideration of any proposal, with details of
the dates and key stages being outlined.

The Leader and Cabinet Member for Finance highlighted the budget savings
local authorities were required to make and this report provided a statement of intent,
with a formal decision to be taken by Cabinet following consultation with local
communities and Overview and Scrutiny.

The Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Environment expressed the
importance of communication with local Members during the consideration of plans
such as this, which was accepted.

The Cabinet Member for Housing welcomed the report and said it was about
saving services for local communities through alternative delivery.

RESOLVED:

(@) That developing an effective and sustainable network of libraries and
Connects Services based on 6 hub locations in Connah’s Quay, Mold, Flint,
Buckley, Holywell and Deeside Leisure Centre be committed to;

(b)  That the proposals for the development of a new hub library at Deeside
Leisure Centre with services from Hawarden, Mancot and Queensferry
libraries being re-located to the new library, as outlined in the report, be
consulted on;

(c) That new Connects services in Mold and Buckley located within the libraries
be developed; and

(d)  That specific communities during 2015 be engaged with to:
e Assess the feasibility of a community asset transfer in Mynydd lIsa,
Saltney and Hope libraries; and
e Explore the potential of a community library and some Connects
service provision in a community managed building in Broughton

Page 10



139.

140.

FLINTSHIRE’'S STRATEGIC HOUSING AND REGENERATION PROGRAMME
(SHARP) UPDATE

The Cabinet Member for Housing provided an update on Flintshire’s Strategic
Housing and Regeneration Programme (SHARP), which sought approval to progress
the next key stages of the procurement to appoint a development partner.

Six potential bidders completed and returned a Pre-Qualification
Questionnaire (PQQ), with four bidders being invited to participate in the tender
process. Details of those bidders were provided in the report, with Cabinet
considering a report on 19 May to select the preferred bidder.

Full details of the housing delivery programme, funding solutions, community
benefits and proposed timetable revisions were contained in the report.

RESOLVED:

That the following be approved:

e Inclusion of new indicative sites as part of the Programme and further
prioritisation;

e Prudential borrowing as the ‘preferred approach’ for Council units;

e Leaseback as the ‘preferred approach’ for funding affordable to rent units in
Chapel Street, Flint;

e Incorporation of the CITB for the Council to achieve CITB accredited employer
status; and

e The new timescale to allow incorporation of the above elements

RENEWABLE ENERGY 10 YEAR ACTION PLAN

The Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Environment provided an update
on the development of a 10 year Renewable Energy action plan, the reasoning for
the plan and specific actions to commence the process of identifying and
subsequently developing suitable sites, where approved by Cabinet.

The County owned a number of “brownfield” sites and once identified, these
would be among the first to be assessed for their suitability for renewable energy
generation. One of the most promising being the opportunity to identify suitable land
holdings to plant trees which would provide an ongoing supply of biomass for as long
as the woodland was maintained and looked after.

There were also large amounts of waste wood collected at Council Civil
Amenity Sites which had the potential to be used to provide power generation and be
used to heat and light County buildings.

Timing was critical to maximise the financial benefits to the Council. Approval
of the Renewable Energy action plan would be a good step in the right direction and
would enable suitable sites to be identified and submitted to future Cabinet meetings
for approval. It was anticipated that proposals for some potential schemes may be
sufficiently developed to be submitted to Cabinet in April 2015 for consideration.

Page 11



141.

142.

Cabinet Members welcomed the report which would see an enhanced
environment and a reduction in fossil fuels and carbon emissions. They also
welcomed future reports to Cabinet with the identification of possible sites.

RESOLVED:

(@) That the “Large Scale Renewable Energy Action Plan” attached to the report
be approved;

(b) That the undertaking of a public consultation exercise, to gain public
support/comment to the aims and objectives and to provide feedback that can
help shape the Renewable Energy Action plan in future be approved; and

(c) That investigating ways of utilising the waste wood collected at Flintshire
County Council C.A. sites, as a potential fuel, be approved.

FORMAL RESPONSE TO THE DRAFT NATIONAL TRANSPORT PLAN

The Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Environment provided details of
the Council’s response to the Welsh Government’s (WG) consultation documentation
for the Draft National Transport Plan (NTP).

The Taith Board had agreed to provide a regional response to the Draft NTP
which was agreed at a meeting on 13 February 2015. In addition to the regional
response, Flintshire County Council had prepared an individual County response,
given its geographical position as one of the gateway authorities to North Wales.

The response detailed the Councils view on the national transport priorities
required to address the increasing local demands brought about by large scale
development and the future proposed economic growth in the County and the North
Wales region. A summary of the key issues and transport priorities Flintshire
provided in its consultation response were detailed in the report.

Members commented on the importance of the responses made by the
Council, in particular the need for an upgraded interchange at Broughton to serve
Broughton Retail Park and Airbus and to provide access to the Trunk Road Network,
and the potential trunking of the A548.

RESOLVED:

That Flintshire County Council’s response to the Draft National Transport Plan be
noted.

REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2014/15 (MONTH 9)

The Leader and Cabinet Member for Finance introduced the latest revenue
budget monitoring information for 2014/15 for the Council Fund and Housing
Revenue Account based on actual income and expenditure as at Month 9 and
projected forward to year-end based on the most up to date information available.

Page 12



143.

The Corporate Finance Manager explained that the year-end position, as
estimated at Month 9 was:

Council Fund
e Net in year expenditure forecast to be £1.978m lower than budget
e Projected contingency reserve balance at 31 March of £4.919m
Housing Revenue Account
e Netin year expenditure forecast to be £0.304m less than budget
e Projected closing balance as at 31 March 2015 of £1.470m

The table in the report showed the projected position by portfolio which
reflected the Council’s new Operating Model, and showed a projected in year
expenditure to be £1.978m less than budget.

The report provided details on the significant budget movement between
Month 8 and Month 9, corporate and functional efficiencies, workforce efficiencies,
inflation, monitoring budget assumptions and risks and changes to previously
reported risks.

On un-earmarked reserves and current projected outturn, the projected
balance on the contingency reserve at 31 March 2015 was £4.919m, full details of
which were contained in Appendix 4 to the report.

The position at Month 9 on the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) was an
overall projected underspend of £0.304m and a projected closing balance of
£1.470m, which at 4.89% of total expenditure satisfied the prudent approach of
ensuring a minimum level of 3%. Appendix 5 to the report provided details of the
reasons for significant variances.

RESOLVED:
(@)  That the report be noted;

(b)  That the projected Council Fund contingency sum as at 31 March 2015 be
noted; and

(c) Note the projected final level of balances on the Housing Revenue Account.

CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2014/15 (MONTH 9)

The Corporate Finance Manager provided Members with the Month 9 (end of
December) capital programme information for 2014/15.

Changes to the programme since approval of the budget, with cumulative
information relating to each programme area, was provided in Appendix A and
summarised in the report.

Early Identified Rollover of £2.225m had been identified which reflected

reviewed spending plan across all programme areas and those committed amounts

Page 13



144.

145.

had been identified as now required to meet the cost of programme works in
2015/16.

Actual expenditure at the end of September (Month 9) across the whole of the
programme was £23.037m. The breakdown of expenditure was analysed in the table
in the report, along with the percentage spend against budget, which showed that
54.04% of the budget had been spent across the programme (County Fund 51.84%
and Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 64.58%).

RESOLVED:
(@)  That the report be noted and approved; and
(b)  That the rollover adjustments in paragraph 3.05.2 of the report be approved.

COMMUNITY CHEST GRANT FUNDING

The Leader and Cabinet Member for Finance provided details of the new
procedures for payment of Grants to Third Sector Organisations from the Council’s
Community Chest Fund.

Members of the Voluntary Sector Grants Panel had agreed that in future its
role would be transferred to the Flintshire Local Voluntary Council (FLVC) who with
one Councillor and one Officer would make recommendations on Grants to the Chief
Executive.

The Leader's Scheme of Delegation of Executive Functions contained in the
Constitution would need to be updated to reflect transferring the work of the
Voluntary Sector Grants Panel to the FLVC supported by one Member and one
Officer and there was also a need for the Leader or Cabinet to appoint the Flintshire
Member to form part of the new arrangements. The Leader and Cabinet Member for
Finance suggested Councillor David Wisinger, who was Chair of the existing Panel,
as the Member to serve on the Panel which was supported.

RESOLVED:

(@) That the applications for funding by Third Sector Organisations from the
Council’'s Community Chest Fund be processed by Flintshire Local Voluntary
Council (FLVC);

(b)  That decisions on funding be made by the Chief Executive after considering
recommendations from a Panel comprising two representatives of FLVC
together with a Member and an Officer of the Council; and

(c) That Councillor David Wisinger be the Member to serve on the new Panel.

THE FUTURE OF THE RIGHT TO BUY AND RIGHT TO ACQUIRE

The Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Environment provided details on
the Welsh Government (WG) consultation currently open concerning the Right to Buy

Page 14



146.

and Right to Acquire and sought support for the proposed response to the
consultation.

Social housing tenants had the ability to purchase their homes under the Right
to Buy for Council tenants, or the Right to Acquire for tenants of a Registered Social
Landlord (RSL).

The Right to Buy Scheme in Wales gave tenants a discount of up to £16,000
on the market value of their home and the longer the person had been a tenant, the
greater discount they could receive up to the maximum limit.

During the last 5 years the Council had sold 33 properties under the Right to
Buy, generating a capital receipt of £549,325 from the 25% it was permitted to retain
once the remainder had been returned to the treasury. The capital receipt was a one
off payment the Council received. By comparison the 33 sold properties reduced
income to the Council by £132,000 each year.

There was currently a provision for councils to apply to WG to suspend the
Right to Buy in specific areas for an initial five years and an application would be
submitted over the coming months for that suspension, given that there was an
intention to build 200 new Council homes over the next 5 years.

RESOLVED:

(@) That the Welsh Government consultation currently open concerning the Right
to Buy and the Right to Acquire be noted; and

(b)  That Flintshire County Council respond positively to the consultation and
supports early implementation of the reduction to the discount, followed by the
ending of the Right to Buy and Right to Acquire.

HOUSING ACT 2014 (WALES) — HOMELESSNESS AND POWER TO APPLY THE
TEST OF INTENTIONALITY

The Cabinet Member for Housing introduced the report which explained the
powers of applying the test of intentionality.

From April 2015 local housing authorities would be able to disregard the
assessment of whether an applicant, approaching the authority as homeless, had
been responsible for the actions that resulted in the loss of their previous
accommodation.

Under regulation 78 of the Housing (Wales) Act 2014, rather than be under a
legal duty to do an assessment, the Council would have the power to decide whether
it applied the intentionality test for any category of homeless applicant.

The Welsh Government (WG) had recognised that disregarding the
homelessness intentionality test was a significant decision for a local housing
authority to take and could have financial implications. Therefore, it would be
prudent for the authority to maintain the use of the homelessness intentionality test.

Page 15



147.

RESOLVED:

That following implementation of the Housing Act 2014 (Wales), the Authority should
still have regard to the homelessness intentionality test and this will be reviewed
regularly.

ENFORCEMENT OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL POWERS UNDER THE ANTI-

SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR, CRIME AND POLICING ACT 2014

The Cabinet Member for Waste Strategy, Public Protection and Leisure
introduced the report which provided details on the enforcement of the environmental
powers under the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014.

The implications of the new legislation has been considered by the
Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee in January 2015 and as a result, the
Housing Department's Anti-Social Behaviour Policy had been amended to
accommodate those changes.

The reforms set out in Parts 1-6 of the Act were intended to ensure that
officers had effective powers that were quick, practical and easy to use to provide
better protection to victims and communities and act as a deterrent to perpetrators.
19 existing powers were replaced with six more flexible ones.

Two of the new powers that had been conferred upon local authorities were
the Community Protection Notice and the Public Space Protection Order (PSPO).
Full details of both powers were provided in the report.

In order that the powers were exercised it was recommended that the Chief
Officer (Planning and Environment) and the Chief Officer (Community and
Enterprise) be given delegated authority to authorise the appropriate officers to
undertake those duties.

Also, as the PSPO was solely a local authority power, delegated authority was
recommended for the Chief Constable of North Wales Police to discharge the
enforcement powers to police officers.

RESOLVED:

(@) That the Chief Officer (Planning and Environment) and the Chief Officer
(Community and Enterprise) be given delegated authority to authorise officers
to serve Community Protection Notices and Fixed Penalty Notices in the event
of a breach, in accordance with the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing
Act 2014;

(b) That the Chief Officer (Planning and Environment) be given delegated
authority to designate and approve Public Space Protection Orders on behalf
of Flintshire County Council, and authorise officers to enforce identified
prohibited activities in areas designated by such orders, in accordance with
the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014;

Page 16



148.

149.

150.

(c) That power to enforce PSPO’s be delegated to the Chief Constable of North
Wales Police to discharge the enforcement powers to police officers; and

(d) That the new tools and powers available to social landlords, and the
amendments made to the Housing Anti-Social Behaviour Policy to enable the
Council to make effective use of legislation, be supported.

SCHOOL ADMISSION ARRANGEMENTS 2016/17

The Cabinet Member for Education provided details of the outcome of the
statutory consultation exercise on the school admission arrangements for September
2016.

There were no changes proposed to the current admissions policy or
oversubscription criteria. The policy supported the principle of pupils attending their
nearest school and following consultation with Headteachers, there were also no
changes proposed to any admission numbers.

RESOLVED:

That the admission arrangements for 2016/17 be approved.

WORKFORCE INFORMATION REPORT — QUARTER 3 2014/15

The Leader and Cabinet Member for Finance introduced the report which
provided an update on the third quarter for 2014/15 and covered the following areas:

Headcount and full time equivalent
Organisational age profile

Employee turnover and stability
Attendance

Performance appraisals and development
Resource management

Equality and diversity

The Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Environment said the new
dashboard style of reporting had been well received at Corporate Resources
Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

RESOLVED:

That the Workforce Information Report for Quarter 3 be noted.

EXERCISE OF DELEGATED POWERS

An information report on the actions taken under delegated powers was
submitted. The actions were as set out below:-

Page 17



151.

Organisational Change

Alternative Delivery Models — Investment Requirements

The provision of specialist commercial and technical support to assist in the
delivery of Alternative Delivery Models (ADM). Essentially the delivery of
commercial and cultural change support such as finance, human resources,
procurement, legal and governance

Children’s Services

Action for Children Exemption

To advise Members of the intention to exempt Action for Children from the
formal OJEU procurement rules. To request Members support for this action
to be taken forward. Action for Children are a well-respected National Charity
who have been providing services in Flintshire for over 10 years. They
provide two main services to vulnerable children and young people and their
families living in Flintshire.

Flintshire is required to ensure that we are fair and equitable in carrying out
the procurement process. The current value of the two contracts with Action
for Children is £517,206. Due to this high value the OJEU procurement rules
would be followed. However these services fall within Part B social care
exemption category of the procurement rules which enables us to negotiate
with the current provider for efficiencies to be saved over the next 3-5 years
during the lifetime of a further contract.

MEMBERS OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC IN ATTENDANCE

There was one member of the press in attendance.

(The meeting commenced at 9.30am and ended at 12.15am)

Chairman

Page 18



Agenda Item 4

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY, 21 APRIL 2015

REPORT BY: CHIEF OFFICER (COMMUNITY & ENTERPRISE)
SUBJECT: NEW CUSTOMER SERVICE POLICY

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  To seek Member approval for the introduction of a new Customer
Service policy.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 The Council is committed to ensuring that customer service
excellence is an integral part of the planning, resourcing, and delivery
of all services. A Customer Service policy has been produced with
the underlying principle that the Council is here when customers need
us.

2.02 The new policy provides a commitment to customers that when they
access Council services they will receive consistently excellent
standards of customer service. The policy has been designed in three
parts which cover customer expectations, the workforce and customer
service standards.

2.03 Although the policy has been revised and some standards are similar
to those in the previous policy, there is an emphasis on digital,
reflecting the change in the way that customers deal with the Council
and recognising the advances in technology.

2.04 The standards set out in the policy are the minimum that customers
can expect from the Council; individual services may produce
additional service specific standards or targets that are more relevant
to the service they provide or the customers they serve.

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

3.01 A draft Customer Service policy was considered by the Corporate
Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 11 December, 2014
and no issues were raised except for minor changes which were taken
in to consideration and the draft policy amended.

Page 19



3.02

3.03

4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

9.02

A four week public consultation followed between February — March,
2015 but take-up was disappointing (only 19 responses were
received). However, from this feedback the policy is well received
with a few suggestions on how we can enhance the guiding principles
set out in the policy:

e Taking ownership; customers should not be passed around
individuals, enquiry details should be recorded and a response
provided when the answer is known.

e Acting promptly; employees should be effective in listening,
acting and responding to enquiries thus avoiding customers
having to make repeated telephone calls.

e Taking action; enquiries should be followed up and customers
should receive a response (email to reduce costs).

e Welsh language; the quality of services should be the same in
both English and Welsh.

Customer Services will be responsible for monitoring implementation
of the new Customer Service policy and reporting to Chief Officers in
relation to portfolio performance.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Cabinet is asked to approve the revised Customer Services policy

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

None.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

None.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

Internal consultation has been undertaken via InfoNet.
The new Customer Service policy will be published on InfoNet and all

relevant training will be reviewed and updated e.g. Corporate
Induction, Complaints Awareness training.

Page 20



10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

11.02

12.00

12.01

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

None.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

The new policy has been considered by Chief Officers followed by
consultation at Corporate Resources Overview
and Scrutiny Committee on 11 December 2014.

During a four week public consultation period between February —
March, 2015 employees were also invited to provide their feedback on
the new policy.

APPENDICES

The final Customer Service policy.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer: Denise Naylor

Customer Services Manager
Telephone: 70 2421
Email: denise.naylor@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



Sir y Fflint
"' Hlintshire

Customer Service Policy

A Modern & Efficient Council: Improving Customer Service

Customer Service Policy May 2015Page 23



Preface

This policy consists of three parts:

Part 1 —- Commitment to Customers

The first part of this policy is designed for customers. It advises customers
what to expect when contacting Flintshire County Council and the standard of
customer service they can expect to receive.

Part 2 — Guidance for our Workforce

The second part of this policy is designed for the workforce and describes
how employees can contribute to delivering consistently excellent standards
of customer service across all sections of our diverse community.

Part 3 — Customer Service Standards

The final part of this policy sets out Flintshire County Council’s customer

services standards which are promoted throughout the organisation e.g. at

Flintshire Connects Centres, libraries, receptions, online.

Customer Service Policy May 20ffRige 24



1.0

11

Customer Service Policy - Part One
Commitment to customers

Policy Statement

Flintshire County Council is committed to ensuring that customer
service excellence is an integral part of the planning, resourcing, and
delivery of all services. When customers access Council services they
will receive consistently excellent standards of customer service and
this policy will ensure that all sections of our diverse community are
able to access services. The policy recognises development in
technology and the opportunities for customers to contact the Council

and access services digitally.

Whilst this policy is concerned with service standards the Council has a
specific policy for dealing with compliments, concerns and complaints

which is available via the website www.flintshire.gov.uk or from the

Customer Services Team (contact details included in this document).
The Compliments, Concerns and Complaints Policy guides customers
through the processes for passing on a compliment about a service,
expressing a concern or suggestion about a service and when a
customer is dissatisfied with a service, the process to follow to make a

complaint.

Guiding principles

When customers contact the Council, we will:

e Identify ourselves;

e Be helpful and courteous;

e Be professional and positive;

e Be well informed, so that we are able to help;
e Be effective in listening and responding;

e Be fair and support individual needs.

Customer Service Policy May 2015Page 25


http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/

1.2

1.3

Why we need customer service standards

This policy outlines the Council’s approach to customer service and
related issues. The standards set out in this policy are the minimum
that customers can expect from the Council as a starting point;
individual services may produce additional service specific standards or
targets that are more relevant to the services they provide or the

customers they serve.

Wherever possible the Council will respond to customer enquiries at
the first point of contact. Individual service areas will develop
mechanisms for monitoring and reporting performance to ensure this is

achieved.

Customer service standards set out the Council’'s expectations for its
employees to ensure that the Council remains a modern and efficient
customer-focussed organisation. In particular, these standards define a
corporate framework for the achievement of excellent customer service

which will:

e Ensure that all customers, whether they are residents or visitors
receive the same consistent, high standards of customer service;

e Ensure that customer service is an integral part of the planning,
resourcing, and delivery of all Council services;

e Enable the Council to achieve its corporate key priorities, as set out

in the Council’s Improvement Plan 2012 - 2017.

Contacting Flintshire County Council

The Council encourages customers to contact the Council through
digital channels such as the website and mobile app. These access
channels continue to develop, and will make contact with the Council
simple and efficient. The Council recognises that digital access does
not suit everyone so customers can contact the Council through

various channels.

Customer Service Policy May 20ff®ige 26



Digital

v' We will acknowledge correspondence (e.g. e-mails, website
enquiries and Tweets) within 24 hours (Monday — Friday);

v" We will respond to digital correspondence as quickly as possible;

v' We will guarantee a response within 10 working days;

v' We will respond in the language and format of the original

communication

Telephone

v We will answer telephone calls within 30 seconds;

v We will deal with telephone calls in English or Welsh. Where there
is no Welsh speaker available appropriate arrangements will be
put in place to enable customers to deal with the Council in the
Welsh language;

v" We will offer access to an alternative system (e.g. language

translation services) if customers have additional requirements

Face to Face

v' We will greet customers within 5 minutes of their arrival at a
council building / event;

v We welcome customers to speak in English or Welsh and where
there is no Welsh speaker available we will make alternative
arrangements.

v We will offer an appointment where this may be more appropriate,
responsive or efficient;

v" We will make arrangements for customers who have specific

requirements e.g. interpretation service, British Sign Language.

Letter
v' We will respond to letters within 10 working days of receipt;
v We will respond to the correspondence in the language of the

original communication;

Customer Service Policy May 2015Page 27



1.4

1.5

v' We will meet the needs of customers with visual impairment,

through the use of Braille, large print or other specialist services.

Measuring success

This policy is backed up by Customer Service Standards (Part Three);
over time, customers will be involved in setting and monitoring these
standards. The Council, will develop ways of engaging with customers
and encouraging customer feedback. Performance will be monitored
through self-assessment, comparison with other organisations,
customer satisfaction rating and feedback and recommendations
following external inspections. This wealth of customer insight will help
to establish what the Council is doing well and what it can do to

improve.

Reports showing performance against the targets set for each standard
will be reported to the Council’s Cabinet and Scrutiny Committees for

their consideration.

What we expect from our customers

In times of trouble or distress, some people may act out of character
when accessing Council services. There may have been upsetting or
distressing circumstances leading up to a customer contacting the
Council. The Council believes that all customers have the right to be
heard, understood and respected. However, the Council also believes
that employees have the same rights. We, therefore, expect
customers to be polite and courteous in all dealings with the Council.
The Council will not tolerate aggressive or abusive behaviour,
unreasonable demands or unreasonable persistence; this includes any
threat, abuse or harassment towards employees on social media (e.g.
Facebook, Twitter) which will be reported to the police. Any threat of

physical violence will always be reported to the police.

Customer Service Policy May 20ff®ige 28



Customer Service Policy — Part 2

Guidance for our workforce

2.0 Development of the Customer Service policy

In developing the Customer Service policy the Council has sought to:

e Set standards which are user friendly, customer focused and
measurable;

e Clearly state how employees should behave when dealing with
customers;

e Set performance targets which can be reviewed regularly;

e Give consideration to legislation, good practice and national
standards;

e Ensure employees are equipped to deliver services taking into
account equality and diversity so that all members of our diverse

community can access services in their preferred way e.g.

- A service can be delivered in Welsh or English according to
the customer’s preference;

- Translation/interpretation can be arranged when languages
other than Welsh or English are used;

- Customers with sensory impairments can be assisted
through their chosen medium, such as Braille or British Sign
Language,;

- Customers with a learning disability will be offered clear and

simple advice and instructions, sensitively provided.

21 Customers
Our customers are all the people we come into contact with in
connection with the Council’s work; this includes people who live in,
work in or visit the area, and people acting on behalf of people who live

in the area. The customers of some services will be employees, local

Customer Service Policy May 2015Page 29



2.2

2.3

businesses and partner organisations. Many customers of the Council
receive their service from other providers on behalf of the Council.
Where services are procured and funded by the Council, those
commissioning the service must ensure that the provider can deliver

customer service which is broadly in line with this policy.

What customers want

Customers access Council services through various channels including
digital (e.g. website, e-mail, social media) telephone, face to face,
letter, application forms, etc. Whatever the channel, customers want
accessible, efficient and responsive services and the Council must
strive to meet these demands. The Council, will respond to the needs
of customers in terms of access and recognise that one method will not

suit everyone.

Customers want their dealings with the council to be efficient and that
they receive their desired outcome. To meet this the Council must
attempt to deal with customer enquiries at the first point of contact and
ensure mechanisms are in place for monitoring and measuring

performance against desired outcomes.

Customer service and its importance

Improving customer service is a key priority for the Council and means:

e Providing quality services in a friendly, efficient and helpful
way; we will continually strive to improve services by ensuring
excellent communication and a positive attitude towards
customers;

e Treating each person as an individual — respect for diversity
and, in turn, having the flexibility to adapt behaviour and actions in
a way that is appropriate for the individual;

e Treating people with dignity, respect and courtesy; generally

customers will request a service from the Council but in some

Customer Service Policy May 20ff®ige 30



instances the Council may need to be involved with people when
this is not welcomed; in all cases, customers have a right to be
treated with dignity, respect and courtesy;

Offering choices where possible;

Giving information about what is available, and providing an

explanation if a service is not available.

2.4 General principles when dealing with customers

When dealing with customers, whether using the telephone, digital

services (e.g. e-mail, Twitter, Facebook), face to face or via letter:

Identify and address any specific requirements with sensitivity, tact
and diplomacy;

Record customer contact details accurately;

Ensure that the nature of the customer’'s enquiry is understood
clearly;

Resolve enquiries at first contact where possible;

Respond to the correspondence in English or Welsh to match the
original communication;

Keep the lines of communication open with customers and keep

them informed.

2.5 Digital

Acknowledge digital correspondence (e.g. e-mails, website
enquiries and Tweets) within 24 hours (Monday — Friday);

Respond to digital correspondence as soon as possible but no
longer than 10 working days of receipt;

Respond to the correspondence in English or Welsh to match the
original communication;

All outgoing council e-mails will include the standard bilingual
signatory template giving contact details of the author;

E-mail ‘Out of Office” messages will be enabled at times of

absence giving return dates and alternative contact details;

Customer Service Policy May 2015Page 31



Encourage customers to deal with the Council through the use of

digital services.

2.6 Telephone

Answer the telephone within 30 seconds;

Greet the customer in a polite and courteous manner, giving your
name;

Give a bi-lingual greeting to external callers;

Welcome customers to speak in English or Welsh and where there
is no Welsh speaker available make alternative arrangements (e.g.
transfer to a Welsh speaking colleague);

Where a customer has a hearing impairment offer access to an
alternative system e.g. SMS text, BT Text Relay;

Give your full attention to the customer;

Take ownership of the call, resolving the customer's enquiry
wherever possible;

When taking a call for a colleague, use an effective message
taking system and make sure the customer is called back;

End the call with a thank you and confirm with the customer the

outcome.

2.7 Use of Voicemail

Only use voicemail to ensure that telephone calls do not go
unanswered,

Use voicemail only for short periods or specific purposes;

Ensure recorded messages are audible, accurate, and appropriate
and where possible, provide alternative contact details;

Give the caller an option to leave a message in English or Welsh;
Respond to all messages within 24 hours or the next working day if
the message is left over a weekend or Bank Holiday (this includes
messages referred to you from colleagues);

Regularly check for messages and update your voicemail

message,

Customer Service Policy May 20fPage 32



2.8

2.9

Face to Face contact — this covers personal callers with or without

appointments, contact with customers at events, meetings out and

about and site visits.

Give clear instructions about the location of the face to face
contact;

Greet customers within 5 minutes of their arrival at a council
building / event;

Greet the customer in a polite and courteous manner;

Give your full attention to the customer;

In designated customer access areas, provide a bilingual service
or clearly indicate access to a Welsh speaking colleague;

Keep the customer informed of the length of time they are likely to
wait to see the person they need;

Offer an appointment where this may be more appropriate,
responsive or efficient;

When a customer has specific requirements, find out what they
need and aim to provide it;

When a customer needs to communicate in a language other than
English or Welsh, make arrangements to provide an interpretation
service;

When discussing personal information, always arrange to do so in

a confidential environment.

Personal calls to customers — this covers visits to customers’ homes

|/ properties.

Wherever possible or appropriate make visits by prior arrangement
with the customer, clearly stating the purpose of the visit;

Keep customers informed of any changes to the Vvisit
arrangements;

Establish the customer’s language, communication and other
specific requirements prior to the visit and make arrangements to

meet these;

Customer Service Policy May 2015Page 33



2.10

Carry your identify card at all times and show it to each customer
before entering the property;

Encourage customers to check your identity with the Council, for
example by telephoning;

Follow policies and guidelines on Lone Working for your safety;
Use tact and courtesy as a visitor in another person’s home,
treating their property with respect;

Close the visit by explaining the next steps, and leave written
information where possible;

Follow up your commitment to the customer with action.

Written communication

Respond to all written communication within 10 working days of
receipt;

Respond to the correspondence in English or Welsh to match the
original communication;

There may be occasions when a full response cannot be given
within the timescale. This is unavoidable but there is still a
requirement to keep the customer informed by making contact or
sending a holding response. This can give an expected date for a
full response or give the reason why a full response cannot be
given;

Ensure the presentation of all written correspondence is easy to
understand (plain English, Cymraeg Clir), professional and
accurate;

Include a contact name and telephone number, together with any
other information needed (e.g. reference number) to assist the
customer;

Meet the needs of people with visual impairment, through the use

of Braille, large print or other specialist services.

Customer Service Policy May 20fPge 34



211 Compliments, concerns and complaints

Be open to receiving feedback from customers and where
appropriate use this feedback to improve services;

Pass comments and suggestions on to your manager, if they may
improve the service;

Ensure compliments are recorded and shared with colleagues;

Be aware of the Council’s procedure for dealing with compliments,
concerns and complaints;

Aim to resolve all concerns raised by customers immediately and
informally wherever possible;

If informal resolution is not successful, tell the customer they can
make a formal complaint, and help them to do so;

In the case of a serious complaint, tell your manager.

2.12 Service Standards

Most Flintshire County Council services have established standards

and regularly report on these. This Customer Service Policy document

provides the guiding principles for setting these standards to assist in

establishing a consistent approach to customer service across the

organisation.

213 Performance Management

The delivery of excellent customer service and application of these

standards rests with council employees and performance against these

standards will be assessed through annual employee appraisals.

2.14 Further information

Customer Services Team, Flintshire County Council, County Hall,
Mold, Flintshire CH7 6NG.

www.flintshire.gov.uk or www.siryfflint.gov.uk

e-mail: customerservices@flintshire.gov.uk
tel: 01352 703020

Customer Service Policy May 2015Page 35


http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/
http://www.siryfflint.gov.uk/
mailto:customerservices@flintshire.gov.uk

Customer Service Policy — Part 3

Customer Service Standards

Sir y Fflint
-Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

Customer Service Standards; Our Commitment to You

We will:

v

SRR NN

Identify ourselves, be helpful and courteous

Be professional and positive

Be well informed, so that we are able to help you
Be effective in listening and responding to you

Be fair and support your individual needs

We will set targets to ensure that we...

v
v
v

Acknowledge digital enquiries within 24 hours*

Answer your telephone call within 30 seconds

Answer your query at the first point of contact and if this is not possible
arrange for someone who can help to contact you promptly

Respond to your enquiry within 10 working days of receipt

We also...

v

Expect you to continue to treat our workforce with respect and

consideration

v’ Welcome your feedback to help improve our services

*Monday — Friday

Customer Service Policy May 20ff®ige 36




Agenda Iltem 5

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY, 21 APRIL 2015

REPORT BY: CHIEF OFFICER (STREETSCENE AND
TRANSPORTATION)

SUBJECT: FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCILS CAR PARKING
STRATEGY

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  To seek Cabinet approval of the Councils Car Parking Strategy and
the introduction of parking charges at all viable town car parks within
the ownership of the Council.

1.02 To seek Cabinet approval to introduce a workplace and visitor parking
permit scheme at specific Council office facilities where staff parking
overlaps with the local parking strategy.

1.08 To seek Cabinet approval on the level of charge for the issue of
residents parking permits associated with local residents parking
schemes

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 Parking management and appropriate enforcement are key tools in
managing the highway network and supporting the effective
movement of traffic. There are numerous examples of conflict
between town centre visitors and residential parking areas where
previously ineffective management has led to congestion and
consequential delays to road users

2.02 Council Civil Parking Enforcement was introduced in Flintshire in
October 2013 and through effective on-street enforcement many
vehicles have now been displaced to off street car parks. In order to
maintain the vibrancy and vitality of the towns in Flintshire, it is
essential to also effectively manage off street parking.

203 In addition, a number of Council car parks in local towns are utilised
by car sharing groups, with vehicles being left for long periods whilst
the owners commute to other areas of the North West of England.
This activity utilises available capacity and results in a lack of space
for shoppers and visitors to the towns. Car park charging has proved
to be an effective mechanism elsewhere to encourage commuters to
utilise the car parks on the periphery of the town, leaving town centre
proximity spaces for short stay shoppers and visitors.

Page 37



2.04

3.00

3.01

3.02

3.03

3.04

3.05

3.06

Staff and visitors parking in Mold (County Hall) and Flint offices
currently utilise car parks which are designated within the local car
park management areas and therefore parking permits will be require
by both staff and Council members who work or regularly visit these
buildings.

CONSIDERATIONS

After considering the feedback received during the open public
consultation period and at the member workshops, the proposed
parking management arrangements will be applied only in towns
where the total number of available Council owned parking spaces
exceeds 50 spaces

Parking charges will therefore apply in the following towns across the
County

Flint

Holywell

Mold

Buckley
Connah’s Quay
Queensferry
Shotton

Talacre will also be included in the car park management
arrangements because of local concerns regarding parking and the
impact it has on the local community and businesses.

An overarching Council Parking Strategy has been developed to
capture the fundamental principles that will be applied in the individual
town parking strategies. Appendix 1.

Where possible a single and consistent charging level will apply at
each car park and a Council wide summary charging sheet lists the
charging bands that will apply in each town, depending on the nature
and classification of the car parks available there — Appendix 2. The
charges will be reviewed annually by the Chief Officer (Streetscene
and Transportation) after consultation with the Cabinet Member for
Environment

In order to develop local parking strategies, a full assessment of the
current parking availability (within the ownership of the County)
compared to the local demand for parking has been completed for
each town. Each study considered the levels of demand and the
optimum car parking provision to be provided i.e. Short stay or Long
stay provision. It also defines the status (and therefore the
appropriate charging regime) for each car park. The local parking
strategies are shown in Appendix 3, 4 and 5.

Page 38



3.07

3.08

3.09

3.10

3.11

3.12

3.13

The proposed car parking charges will be introduced in a phased
manner in each town across the County as detailed on the attached
programme. Appendix 6.

An integral part of introducing off street parking charges is a review of
the existing highway Traffic Regulation Orders (TRO’s) to ensure the
consequences of vehicle displacement within the local community are
considered. Any additions or extensions to existing TRO’s, required as
a result of the introduction of parking charges, will be detailed within
each of the local parking strategies.

In addition, the introduction of car park charges will impact on the
availability of local on-road parking spaces for residents. To overcome
this issue, effective residents parking schemes will be required in
some areas of the County. Each local parking strategy will therefore
contain details of any local resident parking schemes which may be
required as a result of the new proposals.

The programme to introduce both the revised TRO’s and the resident
parking schemes will be prioritised and delivered to coincide with the
introduction of parking charges, if necessary in a particular town. The
outcomes to the pilot residents parking scheme (which is currently
being trialled in the Mold area), will also be taken into account in the
introduction of any of the proposed residents parking schemes.

Based on the information gained from the pilot it has been assessed
that the cost of delivering the residents parking scheme can be
recovered through a charge for each residents parking permit of £25
per annum (per car) in 2015 — 16. Second and subsequent permits
can be purchased at the same rate, for use in restricted on-street
parking areas (subject to availability) and for use in named off street
parking facilities, subject to the vehicle being registered to properties
within the affected area. The charge will be reviewed annually by the
Chief Officer (Streetscene and Transportation) after consultation with
the Cabinet Member for Environment.

As previously stated the introduction of the parking charges in both
Flint and Mold will require that the associated staff and visitor car
parks in those areas are considered under the umbrella of the local
parking strategy. This will therefore necessitate the introduction of an
affordable and equitable parking permit scheme for the staff that work
at these facilities and use the Council car parks.

Following a period of staff consultation and discussions with the
Trades Unions, the original proposed charging arrangements for
parking permits have been modified to provide parity with the town
centre car parks and to take account of the main concerns raised by
both parties.

Page 39



3.14

3.15

3.16

3.17

3.18

3.19

3.20

3.21

The cost of a parking permit will be equivalent to that provided to non
Council staff at the public commuter car parks (currently £100 per
annum) with a zero permit charge applying to those staff employed on
salaries at or below the nationally recognised living wage and to any
modern apprentices employed by the Council. Senior staff would
continue to be offered designated spaces at a premium rate and in
line with current charging arrangements.

In common with other town car parks there will be no charge for
evening parking in Mold however a contribution towards the cost of
car park maintenance will be raised through a levy applied to all
theatre tickets sales in Clwyd Theatr Cymru.

Where car parking charges are introduced in a town or area that are
above the County wide base level, a contribution to the local T&CC
equivalent to 10% of the net difference between base level and actual
charge level will be provided to the T&CC to invest in the community —
subject to the national guidelines for the expenditure of car parking
income by a public body.

Enforcement of the new arrangements will be carried out by officers
based in the Streetscene and Transportation portfolio. The new
officers will take on the combined enforcement role including enforcing
any environmental issues (dog fouling and littering etc) which may
occur across the County.

Two all Member workshops were held in March 2015 in order to
consider the car parking management proposals and make
recommendations to the appropriate Scrutiny Committee. Where it
has been possible and affordable within the business case, the
feedback from the workshops have been included into the final
proposals and a full list of the comments made and the action
identified are included as the attachments to this report - Appendix 7

The workshops particularly considered the following aspects of the proposals
and the new Policy reflects the majority recommendations and comments
received at the workshops

Application of charges on Sunday and Bank Holidays
Charges and provision for motorcycles

Daily charging periods

T&CC contribution levels

An open public consultation exercise has been undertaken on the
proposals and a summary of the feedback received is shown in
Appendix 8.

The Environment and Overview Scrutiny Committee considered the

new Policy at a committee meeting held in April 2015. A verbal report
on the outcome from the committee meeting will be supplied at the

Page 40



4.00

4.01

4.02

4.03

4.04

4.05

4.06

5.00

5.01

5.02

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

Cabinet meeting

RECOMMENDATIONS

That Cabinet approves the County Parking Strategy - Appendix 1.

That Cabinet approves the Council wide charging sheet which lists the
proposed charging bands (Appendix 2) and provides delegated
authority to the Chief Officer (Streetscene and Transportation)
following consultation with the Cabinet Member for Environment, to
review the charging arrangements applied at each car park on an
annual basis.

That Cabinet approves the introduction of car parking permit schemes
at County Hall and Flint to allow staff to utilise the car parks within the
local parking strategies

That Cabinet approves the proposals to make a contribution to any
T&CC with car parking charges above the base rate as highlighted in
the Council wide summary charging sheet - detailed in paragraph 3.16
of this report

That Cabinet approves the proposed charge for the residents parking
permit and the continued rollout of the residents parking scheme if
required by the local parking strategy.

That Cabinet grants delegated authority to the Chief Officer
(Streetscene and Transportation), following consultation with the
Cabinet Member for Environment, to review the proposed charge for
residents parking permits an annual basis.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The introduction of charging and increased management in the
nominated car parks will incur initial capital cost however it is
predicted that revenue will cover these costs in year 1 and provide
£382k of the projected £400k income level projected in the 2015-16
Business Planning proposals. (Appendix 9).

The removal of Caergwrle and Hawarden car parks from the previous
proposals will reduce income levels by approximately £18k per annum

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

None as a direct result of this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

Enhanced parking controls throughout the authority should promote
proximity spaces for short stay users and where practical encourage

Page 41



8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01
11.02
11.03
11.04
11.05

12.00

12.01
12.02

12.03

12.04
12.05
12.06
12.07

the use of public transport or car sharing, thereby resulting in a
positive environmental impact.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

The proposed strategy will reduce the present inequality in the parking
provision throughout the individual towns in the County. There are no
plans to introduce charges for disabled car users at Council car parks
in designated disabled parking bays.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

The business case includes the provision of Enforcement Officers as
proposals will increases the number of sites requiring enforcement.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

Statutory consultation will be required prior to the introduction of local
TRO'’s and resident parking schemes

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

Trade Unions regarding workplace and visitor charging

Cabinet Member for Environment.

All Member workshops which included representatives from Town and
Community Councils

Public consultation exercise (9 March to 29 March).

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 — Countywide Parking Strategy

Appendix 2 — Council wide summary document listing the County wide
charging bands

Appendix 3,4 and 5 - Individual Parking strategy for each Town or
Community area

Appendix 6 — Programme of introduction

Appendix 7 - Feedback from workshops

Appendix 8 — Feedback from public consultation exercise

Appendix 9 — Financial Model and projected income from individual
car parks

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer: Stephen Jones
Telephone: 01352 704700
Email: Stephen.o.jones@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 42



FLINTSHIRE
Parking Strategy
2015

H u
ddddd
pa 5

CYNGOR

s i Y Filint
Fllntshlre

COUNTY COUNCIL
Page 43




r Sir y Fflint
AT .
Flintshire

CONTENTS:
Overview Pages 3 -4
Current Developments Page 5
List of sites where it is proposed to Pages 6 -7
further expand charging
Parking Strategy Page 8
Main Principals Page 9

Off Street public parking

On Street parking

Parking charges

Short stay parking Page 10
Long stay parking

Disabled parking provision

Parking enforcement Page 11
Residents Parking

Off Street Car Parks Page 12
Work Place Charging

Permits Page 13 - 14

Seasonal Permits

Specified Permits

Off Street Residential Permits
Workplace Permits

2|Page

Page 44



r Sir y Fflint
AT .
Flintshire

OVERVIEW

Civil Parking Enforcement was introduced in Flintshire in October 2013, and through
effective enforcement many vehicles have been displaced to off street car parks, in order
to maintain the vibrancy and vitality of a community/town it is essential to effectively
manage off street parking usage.

Parking measures and enforcement are key tools in managing an effective highway
network, in support of the effective movement of traffic. There are numerous conflicts
between town centre visitor and residential parking where previously ineffective
management of these areas has led to congestion. Pay and Display parking is a good
parking tool which, through the use of appropriate charging, encourages the commuters
to the car parks on the periphery of the centre, whilst promoting proximity spaces for
short stay.

The introduction of Civil Parking Enforcement has resulted in more effective
management of on-street parking, which has had a positive impact on the movement of
traffic in town centres.

Flintshire has 48 public off-street car parks which are subject to car park management, of
which 6 car parks are controlled through pay and display, 1 car park is a ‘permit holders
only’ car park, 1 car park is a free short stay car park and 40 car parks are free of
charge. All facilities are still subject to a Parking Order; vehicles must be parked wholly
in a lined bay and if parked in a disabled bay the vehicle must be displaying a valid
disability badge (all car parks are clearly signed with their conditions of use).

This project is designed to replicate the benefits already realised across more areas of
the authority, through introducing more effective management of on and off street
parking resources through the expansion of pay and display across numerous sites
throughout Flintshire, considering levels of demand and vibrancy of each area. The
concept would be adapted to suit the needs of all local communities at all viable car parks, for
example which offer a parking facility of 50 spaces or more.

This project will deliver;

e A summary of each parking facility and a contextual strategy for each area.

e Review existing Traffic Regulation / Parking Orders and determine the need to
introduce new ones.

e A pricing strategy which will need to reflect the attractiveness, vibrancy and needs of
the community / town.

e Strategies for each substantive area will also suggest the most appropriate areas
which should be considered for future residential parking schemes, specifically where

3|Page

Page 45



r Sir y Fflint
AT .
Flintshire

there is demand and a conflict with off street Pay and Display measures and on street
restrictions.
Introduction of a workplace charging scheme.

Each local strategy will look to;

prioritise the needs of disabled people, local residents, businesses and their
customers

promote more sustainable travel choices through the availability and effective costing
of car parking, where demand is identified in support of the highway network

where appropriate discourage the use of central parking spaces for long stay and
seek to maximise the availability of short stay spaces

retain long stay parking places and offer competitively priced permits

ensure all on and off street restrictions are effectively enforced and the impact on
surrounding residential areas minimised

identify areas where on-street restrictions need amendment or where new restrictions
are required to alleviate identified issues or risks

identify areas where residential parking schemes may be required in the future,
accounting from feedback of the initial pilot scheme.

The benefits of effective and efficient enforcement of both on and off street areas are
many and varied;

4|Page

a co-ordinated and locally accountable parking enforcement service across Flintshire
in support of an effective and efficient highway network

ability to keep roads clear of vehicles parked in contravention of a restriction, which
create safety and obstruction issues. In doing so, this can reduce traffic delays,
improve the reliability of bus services, enhance the environment for pedestrians and
cyclists and provide easier access for emergency vehicles

increased turnover of short-stay spaces and encouragement for the appropriate use
of long-stay spaces through better enforcement which can result in less circulating
traffic and help support the vitality and vibrancy of community / town centres

residents’ parking schemes are able to be introduced in the knowledge that they will
be effectively enforced

improved enforcement helps ‘Blue Badge’ holders by ensuring that dedicated spaces
are not used inappropriately

more reliable access to designated loading bays and facilities for deliveries, assisting
local businesses.

Page 46



r Sir y Fflint
AT .
Flintshire

CURRENT DEVELOPMENTS

A new car park has been designed and constructed in Talacre at Gamfa Wen Car Park,
management of this facility will take effect from April 2015. This car park is for seasonal
use only (April to September) and controlled through the use of a barrier (to be opened
and closed at the start of each day) and will be subject to charging through the use of
pay and display machines.

When Civil Parking Enforcement was introduced Mold was the only town which opted to
retain charging, and has recently undergone a 12 month review of processes and tariff
which has also incorporated options for the future.

All off street income generated from charging will be re-invested within the Streetscene
and Transportation budgets to enhance associated transport infrastructure.

This proposed strategy document will outline the overall policy in relation to operation
and detail the individual proposal for managing off street parking within each community /
town also considering any improvements to on-street parking and the identification of
areas that may be subject to residential parking going forward.

Currently in Mold, a Residential Parking Scheme is being consulted on with residents
residing in Gladstone Street, Water Street, Stanley Street and Chapel Street.

On the following page is a list of all areas where it is proposed to further expand
charging.

S|Page

Page 47



f" Sir y Fflint
AT .
Flintshire

Facilities where it is proposed to further expand charging;

Area Car Park Number of spaces (including
disabled provision)
Buckley Bistre Avenue 35
Precinct 140
Black Horse 22
Argoed Road 17
Brunswick Road 55
Connah’s Quay Maude Street 40
Somerfield / Council Offices 274
Flint Allt Goch 88
Bolingbroke Heights 41 (8 currently marked as
residential)
Feather Street 21
Pavillion Leisure Centre 92
Railway Station 70
Richard Heights 58 (6 currently marked as
residential)
Swan Street 68
Holywell Bevans Yard 17
Plas yn Dre 24
Somerfield 99
Leisure Centre 44
Station Road 5
Halkyn Street tbc
Continued overleaf.....
6|Page

Page 48




f" Sir y Fflint
AT .
Flintshire

Area Car Park Number of spaces (including
disabled provision)

Mold County Hall 1014
Queensferry Station Road 76
Pierce Street 23
Shotton Alexandra Street (P&R) 26
Ash Grove 59
King George Street 46
Charmleys Lane 46
Plymouth Street 19
TOTAL SPACES 2519
T|Page

Page 49




r Sir y Fflint
AT .
Flintshire

PARKING STRATEGY

Fundamental to any parking strategy is the need for efficient parking enforcement. This
is to ensure that on-street parking supply is managed effectively, to prevent inappropriate
parking that could cause congestion and increase dangers for other road users, and to
ensure proper management of off-street car parks and time limited on-street parking.

e Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984

o Provides powers under which Councils are able to provide and manage off
street car parks. The use of the Council’s car parks is regulated by orders
permissible under the Act. It also provides powers for the Highway Authority to
make Traffic Regulation Orders for the control and regulation of traffic and
parking on the highway.

e Road Traffic Act 1991 (Decriminalised Parking Enforcement)

o Introduced to address the increase in illegal parking (growing car ownership
and use) and fears that police resources would not be able to accommodate
the increased demand for enforcement.

e Traffic Management Act 2004 (Civil Parking Enforcement)

o Imposes a Statutory duty on Local Authorities to reduce the cause of
congestion and disruption by controlling parking and the highway network as a
whole.

o Part 6 of the Traffic Management Act provides a single framework to make
regulations for the civil enforcement of parking and waiting restrictions, bus
lanes (where appropriate) and some moving traffic offences.

Parking enforcement is a highly emotive and contentious subject. The Council has
committed to provide a service which is consistent, fair and equitable, and one which
operates in a transparent manner.

Flintshire County Council is one of 10 authorities that utilises the resources of the Wales
Penalty Processing Partnership in administrating all standard payments, representations
and challenges arising from Penalty Charge Notices issued by the authority.

8|Page

Page 50



r Sir y Fflint
AT .
Flintshire

MAIN PRINCIPLES

Off-street public parking:

Short-stay parking (up to two hours) will be prioritised on sites within an acceptable
walking distance of shopping and commercial centres to ensure adequate
accessibility

Short stay only parking will have a 1 hour prohibited return from the expiry of the
parking ticket.

Longer-stay parking will be prioritised on sites further away from shopping and
commercial centres

Long stay commuter parking will be reduced where good sustainable transport
alternatives exist

Disabled bay misuse and abuse will not be tolerated, all bays will be enforced outside
of any charging period set.

‘Out of bay’ parking will not be tolerated, all car parks will be enforced outside of any
charging period set.

On-street parking

e The Authority will provide on street, limited waiting parking facilities where it is
considered safe to do so without undue interference with moving traffic, residents,
businesses and other urban objectives.

e On residential roads, priority will be given to meeting residents’ parking needs

Parking charges

Recommended parking charges (on and off-street) will be set for each community / town
taking account of the following factors:

9|Page

e the service role and popularity of the centre / demand for parking
e the utilisation of existing parking spaces

e the availability of sustainable transport modes

e parking charges in neighbouring areas

« the convenience and quality of parking locations

Page 51



r Sir y Fflint
AT .
Flintshire

Short Stay Parking

The Authority will give priority to and manage the provision of short stay parking where
viable, as:

Short stay visitors to the town centre are less likely to travel at peak periods i.e.
contributing to reduced congestion; improved performance of the road network.

Short stay parking generates a high turnover of spaces allowing more visitors to be
accommodated per space.

Availability of short stay spaces is essential to maintaining the commercial viability of
the town and community centres.

Long Stay Parking

The Authority will manage the provision of long stay parking in the town centres through
effective pricing to encourage the use of more sustainable transport. Also by a system of
differential charging to promote the use of peripheral car parks where such parking is to
be accommodated:

Commuters travel at peak periods and are a major contributor to congestion of the
highway network.

Commuter parking monopolises parking spaces for the entire working day.

Transport objectives may be achieved more easily through parking policy
interventions aimed at the commuter. It is more practical, for example, for the
commuter to change their travel patterns than it is to continually expand the road
network and parking stock.

Long stay parking provision in connection with bus or rail commuter travel is
supported in order to reduce the level of dependency on the motorcar as a means of
commuting to work.

Contract parking: contracts will be made available on selected car parks for regular
long stay customers, made available at competitive rates.

Support the reallocation of long-stay parking either by redevelopment for other uses
or reallocation to short or variable stay, where justified by provision of park and ride
sites or improvements in public transport accessibility (where applicable).

Disabled Parking Provision

This Authority will prioritise the needs of those people who have no choice but to use the
car to access essential services:

10|Page

Page 52



r Sir y Fflint
AT .
Flintshire

e Improve the quality and provision of disabled parking in off street car parks in
accordance with Equality Act requirements. Local conditions and demand are also
considered in determining the volume and location of spaces to be provided.

e Free parking will be offered to Blue Badge holders when parking in a disabled bay
only, on the condition that a valid Blue Badge is exhibited. Parking in non disabled
bays will require a valid ticket to be purchased and displayed

Parking Enforcement

The council employs teams of enforcement officers to patrol the streets and car parks.
These officers have the responsibility for issuing Penalty Charge Notices to vehicles
which have been observed parked in contravention of the Order in place. All officers
have clear guidelines to work to and are committed to provide a service which is
consistent, fair and equitable and one which operates in a transparent manner.

Income from the payment of PCNs is used to finance the operational costs of the
council’s parking service.

Residents Parking

Flintshire will prioritise the parking needs of residents in areas, which are affected by
non-residential parking, or are likely to be affected as a result of this strategy. Potential
sites will be identified and considered as possible residents’ on-street parking schemes
going forward, all will aim to:

e balance the conflicting demands for kerb space.
e manage the displacement of parking.

e develop robust and fair policies as the available kerb space in many areas will not be
sufficient to cater for all demands from residents and other users.

These residential parking schemes will offer a permit which covers the full 24 hour
period, including Saturdays and Sundays.

The Councils Residents Parking Policy is available on the Councils website
www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/PDFFiles/Roads-and-Travel/Policy-for-resident-parking-

schemes.pdf.

Off Street Car Parks

All off street car parks where Pay and Display charging is in place, will be clearly signed
within the car park and detailed on the Council’s website.

11|Page

Page 53


http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/PDFFiles/Roads-and-Travel/Policy-for-resident-parking-schemes.pdf
http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/PDFFiles/Roads-and-Travel/Policy-for-resident-parking-schemes.pdf

r Sir y Fflint
AT .
Flintshire

It is the motorist’s responsibility when entering the parking place to adhere to the
regulations in place, failure to do so may result in a Penalty Charge Notice being issued.

The authority is not responsible for any damage to or theft from cars whilst parked in the
car parks; all users park at the own risk.

Where possible, the authority also intends to turn off all lights in car parks, between the
hours of 24:00 to 05:00.

Workplace Charging

The introduction of effective parking management; workplace and visitor charging, will
clarify the restrictions in place for all employees, visitors and contractors to adhere. In
turn this should encourage the use of public transport and/or car sharing, where
possible.

All employees would be expected to use an affordable permit system (chargeable per
year, pro rata). Visitors will be expected to pay through the use of Pay and Display
machines

Permits

Flintshire will offer at a cost a number of different permits, these permits will be car park
specific (non transferable amongst other car parks or vehicles);

Seasonal Permits — will be offered in long stay car parks only, they will be chargeable
per year pro rata per vehicle, the cost will calculated at 200 days of the long stay tariff.
The permit is valid for one vehicle only and would not guarantee that a space will be
available for use. Should the car park be full or the permit holder used a different car
park, the conditions of that car park would have to be adhered and the appropriate fee
paid.

Only 20% of bays in each long stay car park will be available for the issuing of permits;
permits will be issued on a first come, first served basis. All other requests will be held
on a waiting list.

Specified Permits — will be offered in permit holders only car parks. This permit
purchases a bay, and is only valid for that specific bay, it would not be acceptable to park
in an alternative bay and vehicles observed doing so would be subject to a Penalty
Charge Notice if observed.

Off Street Residential Permits — will be offered to residents living within the immediate
vicinity of the car park; who do not have adequate on street parking provision. The cost
of this permit will be the same as the cost of the on street residential permit. All permit

12|Page

Page 54



r Sir y Fflint
AT .
Flintshire

requests must provide proof of residency at the address and that of the vehicle; utility bill
and log book.

Only 20% of bays in each long stay car park will be available for the issuing of permits;
permits will be issued on a first come, first served basis. All other requests will be held
on a waiting list.

Workplace Permits — will be offered to all staff and Councillors working or regularly
visiting specific sites where associated staff and visitor parking forms part of the local
strategy. These permits will be chargeable per year pro rata per vehicle. The permit is
valid for one vehicle only and would not guarantee that a space will be available for use.

The cost of a parking permit will be equivalent to that provided to non Council staff at the
public commuter car parks with a zero permit charge applying to those staff employed on
salaries at or below the nationally recognised living wage and to any modern apprentices
employed by the Council. Senior staff would continue to be offered designated spaces at
a premium rate and in line with current arrangements.

Misuse of any of the aforementioned permits could result in the permit being recalled
(non refundable).

All users parking if observed parked in contravention of the permit or car park would be
subject to Penalty Charge Notice.

13|Page

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



Town CURRENT Tariff Car Parks Structure NEW Tariff Hours of Operation
Buckley No charge Black Horse Short Stay ONLY 20p for up to 2hrs Monday to Saturday
Brunswick Road 1 hour prohibited return from expiry of parking 08:00to 17:00
ticket
No charge Argoed Road Long Stay 20p for up to 2hrs Monday to Saturday
Precinct Way 50p for up to 4hrs 08:00to 17:00
Bistre Avenue £1.00 for all day
No charge Lane End n/a No charge n/a
Coppa View
Connah's Quay No Charge Maude Street Long Stay 20p for up to 2hrs Monday to Saturday
Somerfield 50p for up to 4hrs 08:00t0 17:00
£1.00 All day
No charge Millennium Cycleway n/a No charge Monday to Saturday
Dock Road 08:00to 17:00
Dock Road Layby
Flint No charge Pavilion Leisure Centre Long Stay 20p for up to 2hrs Monday to Saturday
Allt Goch 50p for up to 4hrs 08:00to 17:00
Bolingbroke Heights £1.00 for all ay
Richard Heights
No charge Feather Street Short Stay ONLY 20p for up to 2hrs Monday to Saturday
1 hour prohibited return from expiry of parking 08:00 to 17:00
ticket
No charge Swan Street Short to Medium Stay 20p for up to 2hrs Monday to Saturday
50p for up to 4hrs 08:00to 17:00
No charge Railway Station ONE OFF CHARGE £2.00 for all day Monday to Sunday (including
Bank Holidays)
08:00 to 17:00
No charge Castle Street n/a No charge n/a
Holywell No charge Leisure Centre Short to Medium Stay 20p for up to 2hrs Monday to Saturday
50p for up to 4 hrs 08:00 to 17:00
No charge Somerfield Short Stay ONLY 20p for up to 2hrs Monday to Saturday
1 hour prohibited return from expiry of parking 08:00 to 17:00
ticket
No charge Plas yn Dre Long Stay 20p for up to 2hrs Monday to Saturday
Bevans Yard 50p for up to 4hrs 08:00t0 17:00
Tower Gardens £1.00 for all day
Halkyn Road
Mold 20p forupto 1 hr New Street, Long Stay 50p for up to 2hrs Monday to Saturday
40p for up to 2 hrs Griffiths Square. DESIGNATED LONG and 80p for up to 4hrs 08:00 to 17:00
60p for up to 3hrs SHORT STAY AREAS £1.00 All day
£1.00 All day in NEW STREET CP
50p All day Love Lane. Long Stay COMMUTERS 50p All day Monday to Saturday
08:00 to 17:00
20p forupto 1 hr King Street, Short Stay ONLY 50p for up to 2hrs Monday to Saturday
40p for up to 2 hrs Grosvenor Street, 1 hour prohibited return from expiry of 08:00 to 17:00
60p for up to 3hrs Meadow Place. parking ticket
£1.00 All day
No charge County Hall Campus Long Stay 20p for up to 2hrs Monday to Saturday
50p for up to 4hrs 08:00t0 17:00
£1.00 All day
Queensferry No Charge Pierce Street Long Stay 20p for up to 2hrs Monday to Saturday
Station Road 50p for up to 4hrs 08:00to 17:00
£1.00 All day Monday to Saturday
Shotton No charge Plymouth Street Long Stay 20p for up to 2hrs Monday to Saturday
Charmleys Lane 50p for up to 4hrs 08:00t0 17:00
King George Street £1.00 All day
Ash Grove
No charge Alexandra Street (P&R) ONE OFF CHARGE £1.00 for all day Monday to Sunday (including
Bank Holidays)
08:00 to 17:00
No charge Bridge Street n/a No charge n/a
Talacre No charge Gamfa Wen ONE OFF CHARGE £2.00 for up to 2hrs Monday to Sunday (including

£4.00 for all day

Bank Holidays)

Car Park will be open and closed, times

to be confirmed.

Permit Prices

Long Stay Commuter Car Parks
Long Stay Car Parks

Permit Holders ONLY Car Parks
Off Street Residential Permits

Page 57

£100.00 per year pro rata, per vehicle
£200.00 per year pro rata, per vehicle

£300.00 per year pro rata, per bay

£25.00 per year pro rata, per vehicle




This page is intentionally left blank



Buckley
Parking Strategy
2015

Have you
paid and
displayed ?
Ydych chi L.
wedi talu ac [ [

arddangos ?

CYNGOR

P it y Filint
“* Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

Page 59




Sir y Fflint
(" Flintshire

Contents

Outline of local strategy

Location Plan of Buckley Car Parks

Capacity of all Buckley Car Parks

Plan outlining the area of Argoed Road Car Park
Plan outlining the area of Bistre Avenue Car Park
Plan outlining the area of Black Horse Car Park
Plan outlining the area of Brunswick Road Car Park
Plan outlining the area of Precinct Car Park
PROPOSED charging tariffs for Pay & Display Car Parks;
Proposed Improvements to car parks

Traffic Regulation Orders (TRO) REVIEW

Residential Parking Areas

Page 2

Page 60

Page 3
Page 4
Page 5
Page 6
Page 7
Page 8
Page 9
Page 10
Page 11
Page 12
Page 13

Page 14



CSlclfy Fflint
"" Flintshire

This town / community specific parking strategy builds on the principals of
the countywide strategy. It makes specific reference to facilities, capacities
and tariff structure.

Page 3

Page 61



7 T
Council Car Park Locations
Buckley Town Centre

Key

1. Argoed Road
2. Bistre Avenue
3. Black Horse
4. Brunswick Road
5. Precinct Way N

) "@@-.:
el =1
¥y M"'I

i
= I|
= (| ===
H T !!—}')Q-- ! “
s H T o — Il e
- M “‘M’“"“"ﬁ" 5 NG

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material A a
o with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the P'?nnﬂ:\g & Enwronment: Scale 1:2000 @ A2

Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office. © Crown Copyright. Flintshire County Council,

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and .

may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. C'?umy_ Hall, Mold, 0S Map: SJ 2764

Licence number 100023386. F|IntShII’e. CH7 6NF. N
COUNTY COUNCTL Flintshire County Counciiﬁlia ge 6 2 Chief Officer: Mr. Andrew Farrow | Plotted 25/02/2015

~J

Paga



Sir y Fflint
“' Flintshire

Capacity of all Buckley Car Parks

The below table outlines the current number of spaces within each car park where
charging is proposed;

Total Spaces Disabled Spaces
Bistre Avenue 35 3
Precinct 140 14
Black Horse _ 22 2
Argoed Road 17 | 0 :
Brunswick Road 55 8
Total Spaces for the area 269 27 )
Page 5

Page 63



s ‘0L0Z '110UNn09 AIUNoD au1ysiullJ “98EEZO00) JAQUINN S0uSd S
A SWeN “sBuipaasolid jIA19 10 uojnoasold o} pes| Aew pue Jybukdon aaysjul}y
EQ q =g m €102/S/0€ 8ieq umou9 sabuiyur uononpoidal pasuoneun buAdod umold "o . 1
4‘\ LR LGS e Aiauonels s,Asalely JaH JO Jajjou0D ay) JO JBY3q U ASAIRG SOUBUPIQ JO g A TN
Zgijpsioncg N 00S/L €3S | 0 1ssiwiad oy ypm Buiddew Aoaing adueupiO woy pasonpoidal s) dew siyL g

BOYINAD

o) soqueqJirT  — ] = =
g 75 Bas ~~
j S IPUNCY || |

e | 1od | /A

eleo)

Aapjong ‘peoy paobiy




s ‘01L0g ‘IPunod Aunod aliysiulld "'98€£2000) 12qUInN 8ousoi JONNIOD ALNNO
A aweN ‘sBuipasoo.d JIAID Jo uolnaasoid o) pea| Aew pue Jybuido) 3 .___._m“—:__ u_
EQ q = mvomﬁm\.ow._mhmo umoin sabuujul uoonpoidal pasuoyineun JyBuAdod umoid “8oWO . 1 1
. v N POOVOE 3 BLOLEE = 2 eoa | Assuonels s Aisalepy JoH o 1910U0D 8u} 4O JBYSQ UO ASAINS SOUEUDIQ JO JUlji4 A AIS
Ag paiamod N uoissiwiad ayy yym buiddew AsAing soueupiQ woly paonpoidas si dew siyl WINAD
T ] _ T T 1 TIJJ“ .

u__(=aL _I_!

.I |
i [
.
’
™ d
e

/

dl

Page 65
(Zauﬁfl ~7

Kapjong ‘anuaay aisig




"010Z ‘ounod Aunog alysiulld "98€£Z000 ]| JaquinN 30uadi 1IN0 AINTG)
sweN "sbuipasdold A0 Jo uopnoasold o) pes| Aew pue JybuAdod u._:._mw_.___n_ F
o B N umoJ9 sabuuyu uonnonpoidal pasuouyneun ybuidon umoid “a0wo . .
N 950V9E 3 EL042E = 2SO | £,5u0pe)g S Asaley JSH JO J9]I0UOD SU} JO JIBUS] UO ASAING SOUBUPIO 4O iy A ng
EETG Q 005/1 31ess uoissiuad ay} yum buiddew Asaing aoueupsQ woly paonposdal si dew sy . BN
(dewoyu( Im | |
> o o
< ]
3.“ i e |
! nTEls
I S i s iy i, .~__ IP
O© o
o b
%JF
P ©
e .\\\\\\ P
..\\ : o
- \.\.. .
e .__..\. ..~ j
3 . Ay p mq. / ..,..
..__ ._
- - P ” .___. ...
G0 s [oSHOHN [N
.J...J.rr.. _ \ - . . S . | Y
/ e T o O ) ?mﬁm 5 mo | |
o o || | i)
” _ | __. | _
TR |
2 | w3
Aapjong ‘asioH )yoe|g

BISdnS 3. S




'01L0g ‘11Puno) Auno) anysiuljd4 "98££Z000) JaqunN 32U NGO AINNG
s aweN ‘sbuipaaoo.d jIAI0 10 uoinoasold 0} pes| Aew pue JybuAdo) m.___._muc__n_
EQ my,, €L02/9/c) sied umoin sabuujul uononpoidal pasuoyineun JyBuAdoD umoId 8O g |
| \_..,Ag. A | N 8S6EYE I 906.2E = 2IWa) fiauone)s s fisalely JaH JO Jajo5U0T) BU} JO J|BYSq UO ASAINS SOUBUPIQ JO Juipd A AI§
Ag patamog N 00S/L 3IE9S uoissiwiad ay) yim Buiddew Aaaing aoueupiQ woly paonposdal st dew siy | BN

Aapjong ‘peoy yoimsunig




Leigh

e

Council Car Park at
Precinct Way, Buckley

Central
Precinct

El
Sub Sta

= Heatheffield

‘ Arosfa

(i}
Evers eld
ne

W

®
] 8

fiar &

i) Car Park
Royal

T British
Legion

I cub

L]

Potters
Wheel

PH)

Thea map is reproduced from Ordnanca Survay material

i
F Sir 'y Filint | S mo e s o

Unauthonised reproduction infringes Crown Copynght and

Flintshire |merimmmssres

COUNTY COuNCaL Fhntshire County Councd 2015

Planning & Environment,
Flintshire County Council,
County Hall, Mold,
Flintshire, CH7 6NF.

Clplag:e @8drew Farrow

Scale 1:1000 @ A4
OS Map SJ 2763
Plotted 26/02/2015

ase O



PROPOSED char

r" Sir y Fflint
fonssg A .
Flintshire

ing tariffs for Pay & Display Car Parks:

This proposed change to tariff clearly defines short and long stay parking areas and fees
applicable for all users (including motorcycle bays);

CURRENT Tariff Car Parks NEW Tariff Hours of Operation
No charge Black Horse 20p for up to 2hrs Monday to Saturday
Brunswick Road | 1 hour prohibited return 08:00 to 17:00
from expiry of parking
ticket
No charge Argoed Road 20p for up to 2hrs Monday to Saturday
Precinct Way 50p for up to 4hrs 08:00 to 17:00
Bistre Avenue £1.00 for all day
No charge Lane End No charge n/a
Coppa View

Due to the location of Coppa View and Lane End Car Parks, it has been decided that
charging will not be introduced at these sites, at this stage.

Page 11

Page 69



r' Sir y Fflint
Ay e
Flintshire

PROPOSED improvements to car parks;

As part of this review and in line with the change to the parking tariff it is also
proposed to introduce the folliowing improvements to the car parks, the timescales for
introduction are also detailed;

Proposed Improvement Timescale

Pay & Display signage to be erected near each machine, 1 August 2015
identifying charges, appeals processes, etc.

Pay & Display signage to be erected near each machine, 1 August 2015
identifying charges, appeals processes, etc.

Motorbike parking spaces designated in a number of car 1 August 2015
parks

Page 12

Page 70



P Oir Y Filint
Flintshire

Traffic Regulation Orders (TRO) REVIEW

As part of this process, no proposals to alter the on-street restrictions have been
identified.

Other proposals received from Buckley Town Council prior to CPE are currently being
considered and placed in to a Matrix for delivery; dependant on importance.

The cost of a simple Traffic Regulation Order restriction is around £2,000 to £2,500
(without the legal cost for creating the Order), see below;

e £1,500 advertising

e £500 for simple works; i.e. lining

e £500 signage
The timescale for this process is a minimum 3 months (assuming available resource)

Page 13

Page 71



Sir y Fflint
(" Flintshire

Residential Parking Areas

As part of the parking review residential parking areas have also been considered, and a
pilot Residential Parking Scheme in Mold is currently being consulted on (with residents)
residing in Gladstone Street, Water Street, Stanley Street and Chapel Street.

Currently it is not considered that residential parking schemes will be required in the
immediate vicinity of these sites.

Policy available on website: www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/PDFFiles/Roads-and-Travel/Policy-
for-resident-parking-schemes.pdf.

Page 14

Page 72



Connah’s Quay
Parking Strategy
2015

Have you
paid and
displayed ?

Ydych chi =
wedi talu ac [BEE s aaty

CYNGOR

P i1 y Filint
Flmtshlre

COUNTY COUNCIL

Page 73




Sir y Fflint
“' Flintshire

Contents

Outline of local strategy

Location Plan of Connah'’s Quay Car Parks

Capacity of all Connah’s Quay Car Parks

Plan outlining the area of Maude Street Car Park

Plan outlining the area of Somerfield Car Park
PROPOSED charging tariffs for Pay & Display Car Parks;
Proposed Improvements to car parks

Traffic Regulation Orders (TRO) REVIEW

Residential Parking Areas

Location plan outlining the car parks and proposed TRO's

Page 2

Page 74

Page 3
Page 4
Page 5
Page 6
Page 7
Page 8
Page 9
Page 10
Page 11

Page 12



Sir y Flint
(" Flintshire

This town / community specific parking strategy builds on the principals of
the countywide strategy. It makes specific reference to facilities, capacities
and tariff structure.

Page 3

Page 75



T

Council Car Park Locations
Connah's Quay Town Centre

Key

Dock Road - layby
Old Dock Road
Fron Road
Maude Street

S

Somerfield / Council Offices
Millennium Cycle Way

oUAwWN =

7= ) &/{ %:\%\. ;A',
/2
»*}”,
\ V%
(AN

£

o .
) '—" |--‘“ /'/. ‘
N 0

B This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material B q
Abses . with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Er)wropment Dlrecmrate" Scale 1:2500 @ A2
S“" y Ffllnt Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office. © Crown Copyright. Fiintshire County Council,
. N Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and County Hall, Mold 0S Map: SJ 2969
may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. " 4 ' ' N
FIIntShlre Uicance number 100023986, © 9 Flintshire, CH7 6NF. N
COUNTY COUNCIL Flintshire County Council, ﬁs. Director: Mr. Carl Longland Plotted 25/02/2015
Page 76

fos:



SI;?Y Fflint
(" Flintshire

Capacity of all Connah’s Quay Car Parks

The below table outlines the current number of spaces within each car park;

Total Spaces Disabled Spaces
Maude Street 40 3
Somerfield 274 12
Total Spaces for the area 314 15
Page 5

Page 77




€ d3ngvsid
0¥ S30VvdS V10l

ALIDVdVI ONDRV

s _— "0L0g '11ounod Aunod auysiulld '98££2000) JequinN 80uadi RRGIALRA
i weN ‘sBuipagao.d 1112 Jo uonndasoid o} pes| Aew pue jybuAdod aysjuil4
E q iy M m_‘oNB\uom_ umo umoi) sabulyul uoonpoldal pasuoyineun JybuAdos umold 8oYO g o\~ oy
...!. A N €0¥69¢€ 3 omwmmmmﬁ mu_muw fusuoness s.Aisalely JaH Jo J8jjonuo) ayj Jo Jjeyaq uo AsAINg adUBUpPIQ 4O ~=__..T._ % .__m
Ag paiamog N uoissiwiad ay} yym Buiddew Aaaing aoueupiQ wols paonpoidal si dew siyy * BTN
1 b = T T
.00,

. 2, N Y 4 ealy feld

Page 78
feuge b

Aenp s,yeuuod ‘}931}s apnep




aweN
LL02/E/g 3ed
N 0£069€ 3 ¥220EE = dQU3D
00vL/l 8BS

‘0102 ‘I1IPuno) Ajuno? alysjull4 "9REEZ000 ] JAQUINN 39U
‘sBurpasooid 1Mo 10 uognoasold o} peaj Aew pue JybuAdo)
umo1g) sabuuiul uoijonpolidal pasuoyineun WbuAdod umoid "8aIyO
fuauonels s Aisalepy JayH 10 18)j053uU0D 843 J0 Jjeyaq uo AaAns sdoueuplQ jo
uoissiwiad ay} ypm buiddew Aaning soueupiQ wolj psonpoidal si dew syl

WYL ANNOT

auysjulld
Jutjyd A 11

Lo Th]

r

Aenpd s,yeuuos ‘sadyjo [19unoH/plaiHawWos

fagg: 79



PROPOSED charging tariffs for Pay & Display Car Parks:

Sir y Fflint
“' Flintshire

This proposed change to tariff clearly defines short and long stay parking areas and fees
applicable for all users (including motorcycle bays);

CURRENT Tariff Car Parks NEW Tariff Hours of Operation
No Charge Maude Street 20p for up to 2hrs | Monday to Saturday
Somerfield 50p for up to 4hrs 08:00 to 17:00
£1.00 for all day
No charge Millennium Cycleway No charge Monday to Saturday

Dock Road
Dock Road Layby

08:00 to 17:00

Due to the location of Millennium Cycleway, Old Dock Road and Dock Road Layby Car
Parks, it has been decided that charging will not be introduced at these sites, at this

stage.

Page 8

Page 80




Siry Fflint
Ay .
( Flintshire

PROPOSED improvements to car parks:

As part of this review and in line with the change to the parking tariff it is also

proposed to introduce the following improvements to the car parks, the timescales for
introduction are also detailed;

Proposed Improvement Timescale

Pay & Display signage to be erected near each machine, 1 October 2015
identifying charges, appeals processes, etc.

Pay & Display signage to be erected near each machine, 1 October 2015
identifying charges, appeals processes, etc.

Motorbike parking spaces designated in a number of car 1 October 2015
parks

Page 12

Page 81



Sir y Fflint
(" Flintshire

Traffic Regulation Orders (TRO) REVIEW

Below is a list of proposed Traffic Regulation Orders that have been considered for
charge as part of this process and the timescale for each dependant on their importance;

Location Description Implementation | Appendix
timescale No
PenyLlan Consultation by Licencing team is Under -
being carried out to assess the consideration at
requirement of the hackney present
carriage bay

Other proposals received from Local Councillors prior to CPE are currently being
considered and placed in to a Matrix for delivery; dependant on importance.

The cost of a simple Traffic Regulation Order restriction is around £2,000 to £2,500
(without the legal cost for creating the Order), see below;

e £1,500 advertising

e £500 for simple works; i.e. lining

o £500 signage
The timescale for this process is a minimum 3 months (assuming available resource)

Page 10

Page 82




r Sir y Fflint
Ay .
Flintshire

Residential Parking Areas

As part of the parking review residential parking areas have also been considered, and a
pilot Residential Parking Scheme in Mold is currently being consulted on (with residents)
residing in Gladstone Street, Water Street, Stanley Street and Chapel Street.

Currently it is not considered that residential parking schemes will be required in the
immediate vicinity of these sites.

Policy available on website: www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/PDFFiles/Roads-and-Travel/Policy-
for-resident-parking-schemes.pdf.

Page 11

Page 83



5102/20/52 Panold
6962 'S ‘e SO

MoLIB MBIPUY “JW OO JBIYD
‘N9 LHD ‘anusiul4

&

B

< w@x%%%,%\\ PENEEE

‘PO ‘llieH Aunod pue 6L

‘lounog Aunod aamsiuly

2v @ o0se L 318 '818J0}08.1C] JUBWILOJIAUT

q
*G10Z ‘Iounod Ajunog eaysiug UINNOD ANNOD ==l Ey
‘9BEEZ000| s89WNU 83uBdIT T f
‘s6ujpeaaosd (1A Jo uoynaesoid o) pes) Aew Qh_F—mﬁ—.—_—m ﬂﬂ_.ﬂﬂww -" 05Z1:L 8jess,/
3 UMOID uju) uoy deJ pasL y y 4 - L -IJ-.&H.I
‘WbuAdon umoi) @ ‘330 Alauoge)s s,Asalew 3 Jo 13jj05u0) ~=— —%n_ y| —m "1’! 5
ay} Jo J{eyeq uo ABAINS BDUBUPIQ JO LTISSILLBD BY) YIm . o l a _
(eusjew ABAING B83UBUPIQ W0y pednpasdel s deuws siyyL AODNAT =i ) &

ﬁ@ '\ 98
ya i@
4 \gb\ N S

o

/i

—T

Aepp 81940 wniuusiy
S840 |1DUNOY / plaIUBWOS
184S apnep

peoy uoi4

peoy %o0Q PIO

Aqfe| - peoy ¥ooQ

s)ied ien

N6 o

l

19pJO uone|nbay oyjes] pasdoid
Koy

aljuan umo] Aenp s,yeuuon
SUoI}E207 OYL pue jied Jed |19uno)

Aeg ixe] jo jeaoway

/4 NEZAN S S/ N

7
2




Flint
Parking Strategy
2015

Have you
paid and
displayed ?

Ydych chi

CYNGOR

T it y Filint
Fllntsh|re

COUNTY COUNCIL

Page 85




(SIGI?Y Fflint
g . o
' Flintshire

Contents

Outline of local strategy

Location Plan of Flint Car Parks

Capacity of all Flint Car Parks

Plan outlining the area of Allt Goch Car Parks

Plan outlining the area of Bolingbroke Heights Car Park
Plan outlining the area of Feather Street Car Park

Plan outlining the area of Pavilion Leisure Centre Car Park
Plan outlining the area of Railway Station Car Park

Plan outlining the area of Richard Heights Car Park

Plan outlining the area of Swan Street Car Park
PROPOSED charging tariffs for Pay & Display Car Parks;
Proposed Improvements to car parks

Traffic Regulation Orders (TRO) REVIEW

Residential Parking Areas

Location plan outlining the car parks and proposed TRO's

Appendices
Appendix 1 - Traffic Regulation Order currently with legal
(Feather Street)
Appendix 2 - Traffic Regulation Order proposed amendment

(Lon yu Becws and Allt Goch)

Page 2

Page 86

Page 3
Page 4
Page 5
Page 6
Page 7
Page 8
Page 9
Page 10
Page 11
Page 12
Page 13
Page 14
Page 15
Page 16

Page 17



Sir Ry Fflint
"' Flintshire

This town / community specific parking strategy builds on the principals of
the countywide strategy. It makes specific reference to facilities, capacities
and tariff structure.

Page 3

Page 87



\\w%%ﬁ/ AN

Council Car Park Locations
Flint Town Centre

Key

Allt Goch Large

Allt Goch Smali
Bollingbroke Heights
Feather Street

Pavillion Leisure Centre
Railway Station

Richard Heights

Swan Street

PN LN =

YR This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material n q
. » with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Planning & Environment, Scale 1:2000 @ A2
Slr y Ffllnt Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office. © Crown Copyright. Flintshire County Council,
Unautharised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and c Hall. Mold OS Map: SJ 2473
FI‘ t h' may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. ounty Hall, Mold, ap:
inwsnire Licence number 100023386, Flintshire, CH7 6NF. RO N
COUNTY COUNCIL Flintshire County Council, 2015. Chief Officer: Mr. Andrew Farrow otte
Pace 88

L] \Au\-‘ I

fes &



r Sir y Fflint
Ay N
Flintshire

Capacity of all Flint Car Parks

The below table outlines the current number of spaces within each car park where
charging is proposed;

Total Spaces Disabled Spaces
Alit Goch (both areas) 88 4
Bolingbroke Heights 41 2
Feather Street 21 2
Pavilion Leisure Centre 92 5
i
Railway Station (both areas) 70 5
Richard Heights 58 5
Swan Street 68 9
Total Spaces for the area 438 32
L -
Page 5

Page 89



S '010g ‘I1ounogd Alunod alysiul4 "98EEZ000} JSqQUINN 80U8d1 IR
\ SWeN -sbuipaasoid jia15 1o uonnaasosd oy pes| Aew pue Jybukdo) AIYSuI}
dew oju Q E O gy LLoz/ rwmw hwmo umou) sabuiyul uoonpousdal pesuouneun JYbuAdo) umol) 80 . .
_ ,.a! - N 8282.¢ 3 GZZPIE = s muo fusuoneg s,fisale|y JoH 40 19)|01u0D 8y} JO jleyaq uo Aaang aoueuplQ 40 w:__wn_ > ,__m
A paismoL N 0SZHL BB | oissiuuad oyy yum Buiddewws Aeaing adueups Woy peonpoidal st dew sty | : Hon

MIVM QUTIHINIMS

. g

BlS gns i
13
& .
3 .\..
s\..v !
§

[

| /
\ Rk
W8 ¢

9'\
%

=

P?)gg 20

susapig

(dHed 1e) Joj[ews pue Jabie) Julld ‘Y209 IV

@ O



s e ‘0102 ‘IPunod Aunod aysiulld "g8EEZ000) JOGUINN S0UB0IT S
\ a mz "sbuipeaooud JIA19 10 uopnaasold o) pes| Aew pue JbuAdo) 3 .‘__—._mu:__ 1
E q -y M A S umoJl9) sabuLyul uonanpoidal pasuowneun buAdoD UMD “0WO H 1
- N6OLELE S wmnvmmml: m_mum fisuonelg s.Aisalely JaH JO J2JI0AU0D U} JO J|BYaq Uo ASAINS S0UBUPIQ JO T A A
Ag peiamod N uoissiwiad ay) ypm buiddew Aaaing soueuplQ woly paonpoidal si dew syl * e
i 5 ¢ #MG\ N :
> °
Z a318vsId o\ -
Iy S39VdS V.10L 2 T, 8

ALIOVdVI ONIMYVd

sjybieH o
axolqbulog | &
iy R g __/
(| ,||

jull4 ‘syybiay ajoiqbuljog




(dewoyu(

g paiamog

aweN
€102/9/S aleq

N 800€.€ 3 L9Z¥2€E = ajuad
00S/1 9leds

"0L0g 'fPunog Aunod alysjuli4 "g8EEZ000) JaGWNN 83Ul

“sBuipaaso.d [IA10 Jo uonnoasoid o) pea) Aew pue yybuidod

umos9 sabuiyul uononpoidas pasuouineun JBuAdoD umor) WO
fiauonels s,Asale JoH o 1ajjonuod au) jo jleyaq uo AAINg eoueuplQ Jo
uoissiwiad ay) ypm buiddew Aaaing eoueuplQ woly paonpoidas st dew siy)

o
i A i

WOIONAD

=

<

Cd 7%

=0V

I 7

LA

G

Page 92
foy- ¢



(Gewe(D

AF paieea0g

sweN
LL0Z/L/LZ @ed

N 080£.¢€ 3 6YLYZE = 84USD
0GZL/) 8Ie0S

"0L0Z ‘Iounod Aunog anysiuli4 "98ecz000) 4oquINN 83uaolT WINA0 ) IS
‘sBuipaanosd |IAD JO uonnoasold o} pes| Aew pue jybuAdo) 3 L_—_mw:__ i

umosq sabutyul uoonpoudsas pasuoyineun WYBuAdoD umols) BP0 . A
Kiauonels sA1sele|y JoH J0 19||01u0) 841 Jo jleyaq uo ASANG adueuplQ Jo u:__u—n_ > .__m
uoissiwsad sy} ypm buiddew Asaung soueuplQ woJy paonpaidal st dew siyl ° *0oND

TEETR)
Buimog

uesso
Bugmog

(equad eunsieT)
(umiiged A)
uoljined ayj

Juljd ‘eljuan ainsia uol|iAed

Page 93

fosg



(Sewon®

Ag paiemod

s swepn
A 1 L0Z/L/bZ ded
N LBOELE I ¥HGHZE = 84UaD
Al 0S2ZL/L 21eas

‘0102 ‘Iounod Aunod anysiull4 "98e¢Z0001 J8gquINN 82usdlT

-sBuipeasoid iAo 10 uonnoasoud o} pes| Aew pue WbuUAdo)

umol9 sabuuyun uononpoidal pasuoyineun YBuAdoD umolaD ‘aoYo
Asauone)s s Aiselepy JoH Jo 4a)joQuo) ayj JO JlByaq uo ABAING 9OUBUPIQ 4O
uoissiulad ay yum Buiddew Aaaing 8ouBUPIO WYY peanpoidal st dew siy g

BINTHIPAINNOT

ysjuil
Wi A diS

=

B AT AT
R R ]
..-rﬂ\u‘p}\rm'&%\\\l!l
e
NI
;iolo.no'\.\.

OO
3 S .n\
oA

X

(djaed 1e9 Jajjewg pue iabieT) juil4 ‘uonels Aemjiey

Page 94

fheg ©



s Sui "010g '11ouUnoD AJUNoY aAySiull4 "98EEZ000) Joquiny 20usdi] A
i . 5 mz ‘sbulpae0.d |1A19 10 uonnoasosd o} pes) Aew pue JybuAdo) 0‘:—._3:__ 4

dewoju Q DT L0e :mwéw s umosQ sabuujul uononpoidal pasuoyneun JYbuAdoD UMOID "0 . D
Y N8sLELE 3 mwmwmm . m_mum Kisuonels s,A1safejy JOH JO JBJj0AU0D ay] JO JIBUSG U0 ABAINS @OUBUPIQ JO T TK | A 1S
g paietogt N uoissiwiad sy} ypm burddew AaAing aoueupiO woy paonposdal st dew siy L * et

s)ybisy
avjouqbuiog

Page 95
fage 1

€15 ans {3

vd

jull4 ‘syybisH pieyory

®



5 alep '010g ‘1ounod Aunod anysiuljd '98e€Z000| JOGUWNN 80Usal]

. .mmc_ummooa__>_o..oco_u:ommoa8umm;mEucmEm_;aoo _.z:a:_z?

EQ ml.mr.‘ m Qom\m\mhmwmn_ EsEOmmm:Ec_co_ﬁ:uoam_vmm:ocu:mcj.Em_;aoosseo.mo_to u‘__r_mwc__u_ l
r 4 NEloese3 ﬁvvmmmu\r m_muw Kauonelg s,Asalely JoH JO J9J|01uU0D 8y JO jieyaq uo AaaIng aoUBuplIQ O i A BT

/g paiamod N uoissiwsad ayy ypm Buiddew Aeaing @oueupl wosy peonpoidal si dew siy) ) :

BTTIMA D

S

@eeAN

>

JuIld J991)S ueMg

Page 96
Va% (2



ey 11 Y F1
Flintshire
COUNTY COUNCIL

Fflint

PROPOSED charaing tariffs for Pay & Display Car Parks:

This proposed change to tariff clearly defines short and long stay parking areas and fees
applicable for all users (including motorcycle bays);

CURRENT Tariff Car Parks NEW Tariff Hours of Operation
No charge Pavilion Leisure 20p for up to 2hrs Monday to Saturday
Allt Goch 50p for up to 4hrs 08:00to 17:00
Bolingbroke Heights £1.00 for all ay
Richard Heights
No charge Feather Street 20p for up to 2hrs Monday to Saturday
1 hour prohibited return 08:00 to 17:00
from expiry of parking
ticket
No charge Swan Street 20p for up to 2hrs Monday to Saturday
50p for up to 4hrs 08:00to 17:00
No charge Railway Station £2.00 for all day Monday to Sunday
(including Bank
Holidays)
08:00 to 17:00
No charge Castle Street No charge n/a

Due to the location of Castle Street Car Park, it has been decided that charging will not
be introduced at this site, at this stage.

Page 13

Page 97




r Sir y Filint
-y A
Flintshire

PROPOSED improvements to car parks:

As part of this review and in line with the change to the parking tariff it is also
proposed to introduce the following improvements to the car parks, the timescales for
introduction are also detailed;

Proposed Improvement Timescale

Entrance signage where necessary identifying its purpose, 1 September 2015
and remove all unnecessary signage

Pay & Display signage to be erected near each machine, 1 September 2015
identifying charges, appeals processes, etc.

Motorbike parking spaces designated in a number of car 1 September 2015
parks

Page 14

Page 98



Sir Ry Fflint
foncd o N
' Flintshire

Traffic Regulation Orders (TRO) REVIEW

Below is a list of proposed Traffic Regulation Orders that have been considered for
charge as part of this process and the timescale for each dependant on their importance;

Location Description Implementation | Appendix
timescale No
Feather Street Where possible on a specified Before April 2016 1

area, place 1hr limited waiting bays
(one side only) and no waiting 8-5
or DYL everywhere else

Lon y Becws FCC land though not adopted Before April 2016 2
highway, place no waiting 7am to
7pm on both sides

Bottom of Allt Continuation of no waiting 7am to | Before April 2016 2
Goch 7pm on both sides from junction of
Lon y Becws

Other proposals received from Connah’s Quay Town Council prior to CPE are currently
being considered and placed in to a Matrix for delivery; dependant on importance.

The cost of a simple Traffic Regulation Order restriction is around £2,000 to £2,500
(without the legal cost for creating the Order), see below;

e £1,500 advertising

e £500 for simple works; i.e. lining

e £500 signage
The timescale for this process is a minimum 3 months (assuming available resource)

Page 15

Page 99




Sir y Fflint
"' Flintshire

Residential Parking Areas

As part of the parking review residential parking areas have also been considered, and a
pilot Residential Parking Scheme in Mold is currently being consulted on (with residents)
residing in Gladstone Street, Water Street, Stanley Street and Chapel Street.

In Flint, the following streets will be considered for residential parking subject to the
required consultations and criteria contained within the policy;

Earl Street

Castle Street
Corporation Street
New Roskell Square
Salisbury Street
Thomas Street
Lloyd Street

Priority of delivery throughout the authority will be assessed and where it is considered
necessary consulted on before charging is implemented.

Policy available on website: www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/PDFFiles/Roads-and-Travel/Policy-
for-resident-parking-schemes.pdf.

Page 16

Page 100



27 I

v\\ﬁ%—‘::“”"

Council Car Park and TRO Locations
Flint Town Centre

Proposed Traffic Regulation Orders

nia

Key

Removal of No Waiting
Limited Waiting
No Waiting at Any Time

Residential Parking Permits

Car Parks

DN D LN

Allt Goch Large

Alit Goch Smali
Bollingbroke Heights
Feather Street

Pavillion Leisure Centre
Railway Station
Richard Heights

Swan Street

Sir y Filint
Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCRL

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material

with the pemmission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the
Controller of Her Malesty's Stationery Office. © Crown Copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Capyright and

may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Licence number 100023386,

Flintshire County Council, 2015,

Planning & Environment,
Flintshire County Council,
County Hall, Mold,

Flintshire, CH7 6NF.

Chief Officer: Mr. Andrew Farrow

0OS Map: SJ 2473

Scale 1:2000 @ A2 m
N

Plotted 09/04/2015

Page 101
?01.8(. 17



‘0L0Z ‘founc? Aunog anysiulld ‘98EEZ000L JSqWINN 83U RN
SWeN *sBuipaaooid A Jo uonnaasoud o) pes| Aew pue Jybuidon daIysjuily
SLOZErL g umos9 sabuuyur uonanpoidas pasuoyineun bukdon umor 8O g -y
N 860€LE 3 PYEYZE = BNUAD | £ o,qnm1c 5 Aysalely JaH JO J8j0U0) 8u} JO Jeyaq Uo AeANg SoUeUpIQ JO Julpd A IS
296/L HEIS | | ossiunad aip yum Buiddew Aaaing soueupIQ woy paonposdas s1 dew sy ° NG

lf\wl){
s Y IS AN

S M : MBI e /
sy, AWWQJI 5 ) &

5, LRI v o

¥w\\ | spybieH W_

sybiaH
ayoiqbuijog

Sl a0l

L

|

pIeyoRy

O

20 TLYIIV Lo

> 01...54.6& - 6

Page 102



o~
"0L0Z ‘pounod Aunog anysiully ‘98c£Z000]) J2qNN 83U301 TN
) w, S o%mz ‘sBuipaasold pald Jo uoyndasold o} pesd Aew pue ybuAdon b} .___._mu_.:_ n_
<3 E@ 3 1V A Sl umo19 sabuwyu uononpoidas pasuoyneun Wybukdon umosd 3940 d oy
. lr_m\. Niigze32aeezE =SR2 | Aeuoners s Aisafep s 40 aljonuad By} JO Jieysq uo ASang s3uBupIQ Jo Juiji4 Aag
W Ag parawog N c96/1L o uoissiuuad sy yum buddew Aaang saueupiQ woy paonpoidas s1 dew syt * v
%ﬁ W
siapenbpeaH
Vu.n.vvmu Auny
D m &U
o
<9
Wﬁ:\vo% E ~
w@& Jebalg

)/
1

Page 103



This page is intentionally left blank



Holywell
Parking Strategy
2015

B

Have you
aid and
dlsplay ed ?

Ydych chi Cose =

CYNGOR

P i1 Y Filint
Flmtshlre

COUNTY COUNCIL

Page 105




Slcl?y Fflint
"' Flintshire

Contents
Outline of local strategy Page 3
Location Plan of Holywell Car Parks Page 4
Capacity of all Holywell Car Parks Page 5
Plan outlining the area of Station Road Car Park Page 6
Plan outlining the area of Halkyn Street Car Park Page 7
Plan outlining the area of Bevans Yard Car Park Page 8
Plan outlining the area of Somerfield Car Park Page 9
Plan outlining the area of Leisure Centre Car Park Page 10
Plan outlining the area of Tower Gardens Car Park Page 11
Plan outlining the area of Plas yn Dre Car Park Page 12
PROPOSED charging tariffs for Pay & Display Car Parks Page 13
Proposed Improvements to car parks Page 14
Traffic Regulation Orders (TRO) REVIEW Page 15 -16
Residential Parking Areas Page 16
Location plan outlining the car parks and proposed TRO's Page 17
Appendices

Appendix 1 - Traffic Regulation Order currently with legal

(Inner Ring Road)
Appendix 2 - Traffic Regulation Order proposed amendment
(Fron Road)
Appendix 3 - Traffic Regulation Order proposed amendment

(Whitford Street)

Page 2

Page 106



Sir y Fflint
"' Flintshire

This town / community specific parking strategy builds on the principals of
the countywide strategy. It makes specific reference to facilities, capacities
and tariff structure.

Page 3

Page 107



S T, / N

Council Car Park Locations
Holywell Town Centre

Key -
Station Road
Halkyn Street
Bevans Yard
Gateway
Leisure Centre
Tower Gardens upper
Plas yn Dre

Noohwh =

G o o=l
[ T O —sr
g — S T

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material

0 R )
‘ A\ P! R
N 3
cv.’:(‘.()u . with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Pllannir.‘g & Environment., Scale 1:2500 @ A2
S|r y Fﬂ|nt Confroller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office. © Crown Capyright. Flintshire County Council,
Ol YT e e County Hal, Mold, 05 Map: 511875
FIIntSh“'e Licence number 100023366. Flintshire, CH7 6NF. N

1c
COUNTY COUNTIL Flintshire County Council, 2015. Chief Officer: Mr Andrew Famrow | Plotted 08/02/2015




CYNGOR

Py Oir Y Fflint

Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

Capacity of all Car Parks were charging is proposed

The below table outlines the current number of spaces within each car park;

[ Total Spaces Disabled Spaces
Bevans Yard 17 6
Plas yn Dre 24 =
' Somerfield 99 8
t;:sure Centre 44 2
Station Road 0 5
_Tower Gardens 13 5
Halkyn Road tbc tbc
Total Spaces for the area 294 26

Page 5

Page 109




S sweN "01L0g '11ounog Aunod auysiulld "98EEZ000} JqINN 80UsdI]

!—5#)58«
.mmc_nmmooa__>_ohoco_«:ommoaouumm;m:_ucmEm_;aoo __
Eé q L_mr. " EL0gu sz mhwo Eso_ommmcEc_co_ao:uoam_vwm:oﬁzmc:.Em_;aooc\soho.moEo m:_—_muc__u_ -
4‘\ N Zv6S.E 3 moommmml w_muw fiauonels s,Ajsalepy JaH 1o Jaj[0u0d) 8y} JO Jleyaq uo ASAINS SIUBUPIQ JO i A A
/g paiawog N h uoissiwiad ay) yum Buiddew Aening eoueupiQ woy peanpaidal s| dew sy : A

=~

Pa%: 6%190




s "010g ‘tuno) Aunog allysjulid "98EEZ000 | J8gquinN 8oUddn WINAGH A0

awen -sBuipaasoud 1A Jo uonnoasold o} pes| Aew pue JybuidoD @.:—.—m.—:__ n_
A ¢ioe/z/ol siea umol9 sabuigul uononpoidal pasuoyneun BUAdoD umol) “eol0 . H
Eé <%~ | npLvese 3go6aLE = 20u8D e T o Bt fo Itina o -~

0 Jjeyaq uo ASAINS 8oURUPIQ JO ul %.__
pEy— Y 0521/l 8180S Aisuonels sAisafey JoH J0 J8jj0QU0Y 8yl JO Jeyaq u S pIO § Juij A IS

N voissiulad ay) yum Buiddew Asaing asueupsiQ wody paonpoidal st dew sy it

\\\l” =

MO [[oMAIOH)

o ukseH

Awebing N\
o
uaMopog-~

llemAjoH ‘}eans uhyjeH

Page,111



(dewosu(@

Ag patamod

aweN
€102/L/€2 @eq

N G¥8G.€ 3 L698LE = |uUaD
006/1 8|eIs

"01L0Z '11ounod Aunog aiysiull{ ‘98EE€Z000) JequInN 8ouson

TN AINNG S
‘sBuipaaso.d |IAID 1o uoinoasold o) pes| Aew pue JybuAdo) anysjulgy

umoln sabuuul uononpoidal pasuoyineun Y6uAdoD umos) "8o0 ..._ ._ o
Asuonelg sAisalepy JaH 1o Jajjonuod ey} Jo Jeyaq uo AsAIng 8auBupIQ JO wc__mu_ > S
uoissiwsad ay) yum Buiddew Asaing a@dueupiQ wioy paeanposdal si dew sy B BTN

[IoMA|oH ‘pleA sueaag

it



01,0g 'IouNog AUN0Y auIySIUl4 "98EEZO00) JoquinN 8ousor] o 0

S aweN “b

P 1 d Ino 10 uoinoasoud o) pes| Aew pue JybuAdo)

A £102/L192 ®1eQ AN 4 . i : adlysjuil4
Eé 4 L_mu_\.s N 9£8G6.E 3 8LG8LE = 2AUBD umos9 sebuliu! uononpoidal pesoLgneun JybUAdod umoid WO : 1 oy

T PO 05171 ofeas fusuonels s fselepy 18 JO J8jjo]uo) auy) 4O Jleyaq uo ASAINS oUBLPIQ JO i >.n“_d_zm

N uoissiuad sy yym buiddew Aeaing soueupsQ Woly peanpoidal si dew syl

lloMA|OH “Jaed Jed pjayawog

%%56113



(dewo(@

Ag patamod

aweN
€£10¢/./9¢ e

N 9816/€ 3 LGG8LE = 3JU3D
06//\ 9leds

0102 'llbunod Aunod aaysiulld '98€€£2000) JequinN 8ouson

‘sBulpaanoJd |IA19 Jo uoinoasoud o} pes| Aew pue JybuAdod

umol sabuwul uononpoudal pasioyineun JYbuAdod umoi) "800
Aisuone)g s.Aisalely Jay 10 J9|jonuo) 8y} Jo Jeyaq uo AsAINg 8suBUPIO JO
uoissiwiad ay) yum Buiddew Asaing aoueupsQ woly peanpoidal si dew sy

i
Juipd A Jig

BOITINATD

T

dled Jed

a

IIoMA|OH ‘a43ud9 ainsia]




aweN '0L0Z '[1PuNnod Aunog aiysiull4 "ggEEZ000] JagquINN 8auaor IO ALNROD

m
.mmc_ummooa__>_ohoco_u:ommoao;mm;m:_vcmEm_;aoo
Eé a er M m_‘oNEmNmﬁo c>>80mmmcEc_:o:o:voam_vmmco&:mca.Em_;aooc\soho.wo_to mu.__—._mw_.___n_ -
A-\ N AR s Kisuoness s,A1salep JaH 10 JaJ0AU0D B} JO JBYSG U0 ABAING SOUBUPIQ JO i A g
#g paiamog N 005/ 31298 | 0 sqiunad oy yum Buiddew Aeaing eoueupiQ woy paonpoida st dew siyL e

[IoMA|OH ‘suapies) J1amo]|

Page 115

ag I



- '01L0g 'I1Punog) Aunod anysiulld "98e£z000 | Jaquny 92usdi S —
N ‘sbuipaado.d |IA10 1o uonnaasosd o) pes| Aew pue JybuAdod o} ‘__—._mw:__ u_

s
A £102/4/92 ®ed . )

A -p—M | N8£8SLE T 6//8LE = 0USD umo.) sabuuyul uonanpoidal pastioyineun JybuAdod umosd “2u0 -~
A\‘ L€ = eaue0 Aiauone;s s,A1salepy JoH O J9]|0nuoD au) JO JjBLaq Uuo ASAINS adUBUPIQ JO jun 4 A ,.“_uu_m

Ag paiamog N uoissiwad sy} yym Buiddew Aaaing adueupsQ woly paonpoudal s dew siy)

e aam—==t

EYS

N
~
N4

II9MAJOH ‘a@1q UA seld

Pageﬂ%g&q?/



o

PROPOSED charging tariffs for Pay & Display Car Parks:

CYNGOR

Sir y Fflint
Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

This proposed change to tariff clearly defines short and long stay parking areas and fees
applicable for all users (including motorcycle bays);

CURRENT Tariff Car Parks NEW Tariff Hours of Operation

No charge Leisure Centre 20p for up to 2hrs Monday to Saturday
50p for up to 4hrs 08:00 to 17:00

No charge Somerfield 20p for up to 2hrs Monday to Saturday
50p for up to 4hrs 08:00to 17:00

No charge Plas yn Dre 20p for up to 2hrs Monday to Saturday

Bevans Yard
Tower Gardens
Halkyn Road

50p for up to 4hrs
£1.00 for all day

08:00 to 17:00

Page 13

Page 117




Sufy Fflint
"" Flintshire

PROPOSED improvements to car parks;

As part of this review and in line with the change to the parking tariff it is also
proposed to introduce the following improvements to the car parks, the timescales for
introduction are also detailed;

Proposed Improvement Timescale

Pay & Display signage to be erected near each machine, 1 September 2015
| identifying charges, appeals processes, etc.

Entrance signage where necessary identifying its purpose, 1 September 2015
and remove all unnecessary signage

Motorbike parking spaces designated in a number of car 1 September 2015
parks

Page 14

Page 118



Traffic Regulation

Sir y Fflint
(" Flintshire

Orders (TRO) REVIEW

The following Traffic Regulation Order request is to be advertised shortly, and subject to
objections received arrangements will be made to implement as soon as practical;

|

Location ; Description Appendix
' No
Inner Ring Road 2 laying over bays (for buses) 1

Below is a list of proposed Traffic Regulation Orders and/or highway improvements that
have been considered for charge as part of this process and the timescale for each
dependant on their importance;

Location

Description

Implementation
timescale

Appendix
No

|
| Fron Road

Create a lay-by within the
carriageway, with a fixed start/end
point (kerbed), moving the centre
line across to compensate. (one

side only) (provision for 20+
vehicles)
Reduce the speed limit from
40mph to 30mph

Before April 2016

Whitford Street

Where possible on a specified
area, place 30 minute limited
waiting bays (one side only) and
DYL everywhere else

Before April 2016

Other proposals received from Holywell Town Council prior to Civil Parking Enforcement
are currently being considered and placed in to a Matrix for delivery; dependant on

importance.

Page 15

Page 119




Sir y Fflint
Ay L
' Flintshire

The cost of a simple Traffic Regulation Order restriction is around £2,000 to £2,500
(without the legal cost for creating the Order), see below;

e £1,500 advertising

e £500 for simple works; i.e. lining

e £500 signage
The timescale for this process is a minimum 3 months (assuming available resource)

Residential Parking Areas

As part of the parking review residential parking areas have also been considered, and a
pilot Residential Parking Scheme in Mold is currently being consulted on (with residents)
residing in Gladstone Street, Water Street, Stanley Street and Chapel Street.

In Holywell, the following streets will be considered for residential parking subject to the
required consultations and criteria contained within the policy;

¢ Drew Avenue
e Gwenffryd Road

Priority of delivery throughout the authority will be assessed and where it is considered
necessary consulted on before charging is implemented.

Policy available on website: www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/PDFFiles/Roads-and-Travel/Policy-
for-resident-parking-schemes. pdf.

Page 16

Page 120



=\ A/ /

Council Car Park and TRO Locations
Holywell Town Centre

Key o

Proposed Traffic Regulation Orders 7
Propsed Layby (25+ Vehicles)

Residential Parking Permits

Bus Layby - Limited Waiting

Limited Waiting

Car Parks
Station Road

Halkyn Street

Bevans Yard
Gateway

Leisure Centre
Tower Gardens upper
Plas yn Dre

Noorwh=2

T oY
S,

N
Ly
%

(3 >
L7y & e Ny 25
NS4 , %S R
*‘h. -" 4 % S 5~0°' 4

‘0 @ NS AN 7 ¥, >Nt 2

g e 43 3
e AN 3
NS

?'Z:’*:‘ %

sy
20

¢

Sir y Fflint
Flintshire

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material

with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the
Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office. © Crown Copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and

may lead to prosecution ar civil proceedings

Licence number 100023386.

Flintshire County Council, 2015.

Planning & Environment,
Flintshire County Council,
County Hall, Mold,

Flintshire, CH7 6NF.

Chief Officer: Mr Andrew Farrow

Scale 1:2500 @ A2
OS Map: SJ 1875

z=>

Plotted 13/02/2015

Page 121



Arpeciio 1.

"01L0Z 'Iounod Aunog anysiulld ‘98EEZ0001 JSGWINN 32U

s JAWeN -sbul BN NN
1paa20.d {1A19 JO uoNJasosd o) ped| Aew pue buAdon
E@ - S umarg sabuujul uonoNpoidas pasoyIneun WBuAdeD UMOID 30O SAuSI
- 4 N OBESLE 3 LILBLE =3NURD | 4,0 nimc 5 A1salepy JOH JO JBH0AUOT) BU) JO JiBYeq U0 ASANS 22UBUPIQ JO 4 A i1y
N =

/g paiamod 0SZHL 3BIS | |0 issiunad sy ymm Guiddew Asang @dueupio woy paonposdas sidewsiyy | © " L

3D WAMAN QoA Ly e




APPENDIX 2-

BEISLE
bd[ 00] 0000/SHIH] oo o 43 0D I oL
(110 L 198ug) Ev® Sini Ryl ot oo g o ol i
ELLON A VT H3aWR SN
sbuppey Aemabeusey pue Ag-Aeq pasodold d9 Mﬂﬁﬁmﬁﬂ_ wa B.ﬂwmmm_hﬂwqhu N AINICO GNVIONGT VD
[lomAloH aivg ‘SININGNINY ‘A8 @INOIHO 9__-__5..-._&-
PEOY ied Uoi4 ANVNINMY3d MON g A sis
‘A8 NMwHa TOOND
‘UIpIM peO) Mau o) paisnipe aq o} Bupuepy Aemabeliied %
aum Jsan des) wg aus wy pasodold —
N
¢ (0 <, Buppep (0]
Buppiepy o} \m\ Aemabele) BuiyoyeH pasodoid (@))
Aemabeusen BuyojeH pasodold /VO» /V > Qumv @®©
o o
T —
Th—
F (NBY3ET T
Bupjepy Aemsbense)
S Jo 96pa auy w| deb w) pssodoid
mp— ‘pay papeys s Ag-Ae") pasodoid _ .v._m__om
T 1IM JNO pjing JO uopeso] pasodol
YIM INO pling Jo uofeso] pasodold /v\w O ! P’ eop d
O
5
,w/v b} > 0%
Rt 5.9
» |
u,O = ? L4W
27 o 5
2 N M
il ; v




awepn

S10Z/vi6 3eQ
N LbESLE 3 99¥8LE = aNued
L1G/L 8edg

APCENDIX 5
& o
(3+]
|
o
c
. S
!

0102 "hounoD Aunog anysiull4 ‘gBEEZ000L SSqWINN S0ua01]
‘sbuipasnoid |1A19 10 uonnaasad o) pes| Aew pue Jybuhdod
umos9) sabiuujun uonanpoida: pasuotjineun Jybuidod umos) 210

LE JuNwy)
adysjully

Asuoneigs s Ajsalely JaH §0 13(j0AU0YD 3Y) JO JlBySq uo ABAINS 3dUBUPIO JO uc._t > .__m

uaissiuuad ay) yim Guiddew Aaang asueups) wWolj paanpoidas s1 dew sy * wriv

&P

Gestpors \rasymy

Vv

o
%

>
&

(J

9

2 X\awvzpgy

Page 124



Mold
Parking Strategy
2015

Have you
paid and
displayed ?

Ydych chi e

CYNGOR

P it Y Filint
“* Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

Page 125




Contents

Outline of local strategy

Sir y Fflint
“' Flintshire

Location Plan of Mold Car Parks

Capacity of all Mold Car Parks

Plan outlining the area of Love Lane Car Park

Plan outlining the area of Grosvenor Street Car Park

Plan outlining the area of King Street Car Park

Plan outlining the area of Meadow Place Car Park

Plan outlining the area of Griffiths Square Car Park

Plan outlining the area of New Street Car Park

Plan outlining the area of County Hall Car Park

PROPOSED charging tariffs for Pay & Display Car Parks;

Proposed Improvements to car parks

Traffic Regulation Orders (TRO) REVIEW

Residential Parking Areas

Location plan outlining the car parks and proposed TRO's

Appendices

Appendix 1 -

Appendix 2 -

Appendix 3 -

Appendix 4 -

Traffic Regulation Order currently with legal

Page 3
Page 4
Page 5
Page 6
Page 7
Page 8
Page 9
Page 10
Page 11
Page 12
Page 13
Page 14
Page 15-16
Page 17

Page 18

(Earl Road, Upper and Lower High Street)

Traffic Regulation Order proposed amendment
(Grosvenor Road and Victoria Street)

Traffic Regulation Order proposed amendment
(Maes Bod Lonfa)

Traffic Regulation Order proposed amendment
(Wrexham Street)

Page 2

Page 126



Sir y Fflint
("’ Flintshire

This town / community specific parking strategy builds on the principals of
the countywide strategy. It makes specific reference to facilities, capacities
and tariff structure.

Page 3

Page 127



] /I

Council Car Park Locations
Mold Town Centre

- Key

: Car Parks

Love Lane

Town Hall - Permit holders
Grosvenor Street

King Street

Meadow Place

Griffiths Square

New Street

E County Hall Campus

NooALN =2

oy

Ll e

=

%

& A%
SN
N
¢

,Q:\\

s \/" D 2 ';;Z'
L2 Sl /5 _4~‘.7~"L~!$'t'
WS iﬂu’ o @" Js0% PRIl
WY 05 A omes Sl N Ess
G, T eb B I T ] IO,
s Dy, s o
X3 "44’-'."":"05"1/’3 ALY
IS @ ~aelo/Chlg
@(i‘:*'t'.‘il,},."'&“ '-i',‘:.ﬁ#, <L
.3({;.'!:!:;'.‘.«.':7 R

LRL 7
S

- prr S = 3
Gy S
> .'i*\;‘;;};""y —
S NOSSe PV S e
TR SOL Wl NEN o
S il SO SAVIY, SN
»

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material

k’ 0 R 7 »
"‘E\r“‘ﬁ\‘\ o 5 with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Planning & Envurogment.,I Scale 1:4000 @ AZ *
\ “"‘-"‘} Slr y Ffllnt Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office. © Crown Copyright. Flintshire County Council,

>
0

= Unauthorised reproduction Infringes Crown Copyright and .
“1‘ — “=” Fl. t h' may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Cpunty' Hall, Mold, OS Map: §J 2363
NS inisnire Licence number 100023386, Flintshire, CH7 6NF. N
FYS ‘»’.“‘\*‘":r J o COUNTY COUNCIL Flintshire County Council, 2015. Chief Officer: Mr Andrew Farrow Plotted 25/02/2015
KOO WK, et/ =7

Darta 190
Faytc 1Z0

pug



r' Sir y Flint
-y -, .
Flintshire

Capacity of all Mold Car Parks

The below table outlines the current number of spaces within each car park;

Total Spaces

Disabled Spaces

Griffiths Square (+1 Loading bay to the rear 126 8

of Bevans)

Grosvenor Street ‘ 30 2
F King Street 68 2
| Love Lane 253 8

Meadow Place 31 5

New Street (+2 coach bays + 2 M/C bays 439 21

(motorcycle))

County Hall | 1014 21

Total Spaces for the area 1961 65

Page 5

Page 129




"0L0Z '1PUN0) Auno) allysiull{ "98e€Z000]) J8qUINN asusal HONGIOD AINNOD

S awep ¢
! sbuipaasoid [1A10 Jo uonnoasoid o) pes| Aew pue buAdoD
E@ a er " €L0z/9/¢ 81ed umoin sebuiul uononpoidal pasuoyineun BuAdos umoid “@ou0 adiysjuily pras
ﬁ\ N 861¥9€ 3 9Z6ECE = aNIUSY fiauonels s.Aisslely Jay 4o Jajjonuo) ay) Jo Jeyeq uo AsAng adueuplQ jo uc__wu_ > .—_m
N

#g paiamog 00S2/L 21€3S | 0 1ssiuiad ay) Ypm Buiddew Asaing soueupiQ woly paonposdal si dew sy ol

8 d3navsid
€6¢ S30VdS 1v10l
ALIDVdVI ONIMYVd

PIOIN ‘@ue] aAo0T]

Page 130
Page ©



g - 0102 '11Puno) Aunod aliysiull4 '98E€EZ000 | JquUINN 80uUadIT T
i = mz "sBuipssocid [1A12 Jo uondasoud o) pes| Aew pue JybuAdo) 3 ».:mw:__ 4

E a5 | Neigces 3 mvmmmm\m\mzhmw umoin) saburyul uononpoidas pesuoyneun JYBUAdoD umolD SO0 . L
v A\ o/l o fiauonels s,Msele JaH Jo 18||0uod U} JO Jleyaq uo ASAINg eoueupIQ JO Juljd A A
g poIMOd N uoissiwiad ayy yum Buiddew Aeaing aoueupiQ woy peonpoidal st dew siy : s

¢ a3angavsid
0€ S3JvdS 1v10l
ALIQVdVYI ONIMYVd

\.. \
_/.

e%eld
-~ I0URAS0ID

S X ewopIin 0 Ty
M// il L)/%u

PIOIN }931}S IOUDASOID

Page 131
et

ag

P



(dewosu(@

Ag paiamod

awen
€10¢/9/¢ ajeq

a Aﬂn.\? N Z80¥9€ 3 POSEZE = 2AUdD

00G/1 Sleds

‘0L0g '1Punod Aunod anysiulld "98e€Z000) JBqUINN 8oUsdIn
‘sBuipeasold [IA1D Jo uonnoasold o) pes| Aew pue Jybuidod

umoun sebuyur uononpoidas pasuoyineun JBuAdod umolrd @O
fisuonelg s fsalely JaH Jo Ja[jonuod 8y} Jo Jeyaq uo AeAng sdueuplQ Jo
uoissiuad sy} yum Buiddew £aang edueuplO woly paonpoudas si dew syl

US4
juljd A i ..._-&

HOONAD

o

¢ @3ngvsid

89 S3J3VvdS 1viOl

ALIQVdVYI ONIMHVd

A

PIO “}92438 Buny|

Page 132



Ag paiemod

S

A
Eé a JA!\B N Z68€9€ 3 £29€2€ = anuad
N

awepn
€10¢/9/€ 9eq

00G/1 3eds

"0L0Z 'IPUNoD Auno) anysiulld "98e€Z000]) JSqWINN 8ouUadn NG ANRO
-sBuipaasoud |IA1D 10 uonnoasoid o) pes| Aew pue JybuAdo) Aysjull

umos sabuuyut uononpoidai pasuoyineun WybBukdod umold "aoWo .—._ ._ -
fusuonelsg s,Aisalepy JayH Jo Jajjonucd ay) Jo Jleyaq uo ASAINS aoUBuUPIQ JO ue___w“_ % .__m

uoissiwiad ay) yum Buiddew Asaing asueupiQ woy paonpoidal si dew sy BN

¢ @3navsia
L€ S30VdS V1Ol

ALIDVdVJ ONIMYVd

)

S

5, &M\Q
O

PIOIN ‘@2e|d MOpe3a|N

Page 133

Page 9



Ag paiamod

e ‘0102 '[oune) Aunod alysiull4 "98ceZ000L J8qUINN 82U8arT IONPODAINNG

s mz "sBuipaaooud [1A10 10 uonnaasoud o) pes| Aew pue JbuAdod adiysjuigy
€102/9/€ 91EQ umoun sabuiyul uononpoidal pasuoneun WBUAdoD umold "eoWo 1ysuij o

05271 91e9s fisuonels sAisalejy Ja Jo Jajjonuog ayl Jo Jleyaq uo AsAng aoueuplQ Jo uc__ t % S

uoissiwiad ay) yum Buiddew Asaing asueupiQ woly peonposdal st dew siy | B O

s
(dewosu(@ | s
a Amu\? N bL0vSE 3 06GEZE = 2JU8D

pieyeW|oH

8 d3ngvsia
9¢1 S30VdS V10l

ALIDVdVYI ONIMYVd

sed 18D

Be1S dns I

unon) ab

(yioepeyei] sA|7)

ejlsH

\©

PIOIN ‘@1enbg sypLo

Page 134

fge o



Ag patamog

s
cmo I
V| 3<8—M | neezzeoc 3 L69E2E = 2aUBD

aweN
€£102/6/¥ 8leq

00PL/L 9jeds

"010g ‘I1Punod Aunod alysiulj4 '98e££2000) J2quINN S0UsdI R
"sbuipaaooJd JIAID 1o uonndasold o) pes| Aew pue jybuAdo) adIysjul ¥

umoJ9 sabuuyul uoionpolidal pastioyineun WBukdos umold "8alo ._._ ._ 7
fiauone)s s.Aisele|y JoH 40 J3]josuo) auy Jo Jjeyaq uo AeAing aduBeupIQ JO ~=__ t > ‘__m

uoissiwiad syl ypm Buiddew Aaaing soueupiQ woly paonpoidal st dew siyg BOINAD

R YL

¢ a3anavsid
9¢y S30VdS V10l

ALIQVdVI ONIMYVd

apuen
aneay]

,Lh

&

A ~ =5 - 7 S N

il = el

X "~ e ._____

ausD v
4l

pAo|7 esolquy )
uejjoue)

S

&
Q, O .
1opa A sAn %mv. .w X

Page 135
Paf)e, [\

PIOIN “lied JeDd }931)s MaN

D



~
Couty Hall Car Parking

Legend

Theatr Clwyd: (rear of}

Permit holders only

Theatr Clwyd

Visitor & Permit parking
D County Hall: Tier 1

Visitor parking
: County Hall: Tiers 2to 5

Permit holders only
D Liwyengrin Hall

Visitors parking only

County Hall: Parking Bays
D Limited Waiting: 30 mins max,

no return within an hour

County Hall: Raikes Lane
: Parking for Visitors, Councillors,
Designated & Permit holders

Clwyd Theatre
(Theatr Clwyd}

County Library
(Llyfrege!l y Sir)

Law Courts
{Llysoedd Bamn)

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material . .
. . with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Pllann'ng & Env'm"memj Scale 1:777? @ A2
Slr Y Ffl'nt Cantroller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office. © Crown Copyright. Flintshire County Council,
- Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and County Hall, Mald, 0S Map: SJ 7277?
FI' t h' may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings Flintshire, CH7 6NF ap: fent
mntsnire Licence number 100023386 B - y N
COUNTY COUNCH Flintshire County Council, 2015. ChisiCHiceelMySndiew/Baman Plotted 25/02/2014
D 190Q
| S0

page (.



PROPOSED charging tariffs for Pay & Display Car Parks;

Slry Fflint
-y .
' Flintshire

This proposed change to tariff clearly defines short and long stay parking areas and fees
applicable for all users (including motorcycle bays);

CURRENT Tariff Car Parks NEW Tariff Hours of Operation
20p forupto 1 hr New Street, 50p for up to 2hrs | Monday to Saturday
40p forup to 2 hrs Griffiths Square. 80p for up to 4hrs 08:00 to 17:00

60p for up to 3hrs (New Street has £1.00 for all day
£1.00 All day designated short and
long stay areas)
50p All day Love Lane. 50p for all day Monday to Saturday
08:00 to 17:00
20p forupto 1 hr King Street, 50p for up to 2hrs | Monday to Saturday

40p forup to 2 hrs
60p for up to 3hrs

Grosvenor Street,
Meadow Place.

1 hour prohibited
return from expiry of

08:00 to 17:00

£1.00 All day parking ticket
No charge County Hall 20p for up to 2hrs | Monday to Saturday
Campus 50p for up to 4hrs 08:00to 17:00

£1.00 for all day

The County Hall campus includes parking for the following sites; County Hall, Liwynegrin
Hall, Theatre Clwyd, Library Headquarters and the law courts.

Page 13

Page 137




CSICI?Y Fflint
"" Flintshire

POPOSED improvements to car parks:

As part of this review and in line with the change to the parking tariff it is also proposed
to introduce the following improvements to the car parks, the timescales for introduction
are also detailed;

Proposed Improvement Timescale

Three car parks to be reverted to short stay parking only 1 August 2015
o Meadow Place
o Grosvenor Street
o King Street

| Reinstate the short stay area within New Street Car Park 1 August 2015
(using the old signs which were never removed)

Pay & Display signage to be erected near each machine, 1 August 2015
identifying charges, appeals process, etc.

' Entrance signage where necessary identifying its purpose, | 1 August 2015
and remove all unnecessary signage

Motorbike parking spaces designated in a number of car 1 August 2015
parks
Improvements to drainage in Love Lane Car Park, drains Currently in progress
| have been jetted and a scheme has been drawn up to install |
soakaways;
Page 14

Page 138



Sir Ry Fflint
"' Flintshire

Traffic Regulation Orders (TRO) REVIEW

The following Traffic Regulation Order requests are to be advertised shortly, and subject
to objections received arrangements will be made to implement as soon as practical;

disabled bays

| Location Description Appendix
No
Earl Road (Mococo side) small length of no loading blips 1
Upper High Street (by church) limited waiting bays 30mins 1
Lower High Street (by WHSmith) | limited waiting bays changed to two 1

Below is a list of proposed Traffic Regulation Orders that have been considered for
charge as part of this process and the timescale for each dependant on their importance;

access / lollipop lady (possibly time
restricted)

Location Description Implementation | Appendix
timescale No
Grosvenor Street Within a specified area, place 1hr On or before 2
limited waiting bays (one side only) 1 September
and relaxing the existing 07:00 to 2015
19:00 (one side only) restriction to
08:00 to 17:00 Mon-Sat
|
Victoria Road Place 1hr limited waiting bays (one On or before 2
side only) and relaxing the existing 1 September
07:00 to 19:00 restriction (one side 2015
only) to 08:00 to 17:00 Mon-Sat
Maes Bod Lonfa Relax the existing 07:00 to 19:00 On or before 3
restriction to 08:00 to 17:00 Mon-Sat 1 September
2015
Wrexham Street Consider school entrance markings Under 4
Opposite Bryn Coch pedestrian consideration

Page 15

Page 139




Sir xy Fflint
Ay .
' Flintshire

Other proposals received from Mold Town Council prior to CPE are currently being
considered and placed in to a Matrix for delivery; dependant on importance.

The cost of a simple Traffic Regulation Order restriction is around £2,000 to £2,500
(without the legal cost for creating the Order), see below;

e £1,500 advertising

e £500 for simple works; i.e. lining

e £500 signage
The timescale for this process is a minimum 3 months (assuming available resource)

Residential Parking Areas

As part of the Mold review residential parking areas have also been considered, and a
pilot Residential Parking Scheme is currently being consulted on (with residents) residing
in Gladstone Street, Water Street, Stanley Street and Chapel Street.

In Mold, the following streets will be considered for residential parking subject to the
required consultations and criteria contained within the policy;

e Bedford Way

e Bryn Noddfa

e Millford Street
e Harrowby Road
e Byrn Awelon

Priority of delivery throughout the authority will be assessed and where it is considered
necessary consulted on before charging is implemented.

Policy available on website: www. flintshire.gov.uk/en/PDFFiles/Roads-and-Travel/Policy-
for-resident-parking-schemes.pdf.

Page 16

Page 140



'. /AN

Council Car Park and TRO Locations
Mold Town Centre

Key

Proposed Traffic Regulation Orders

l‘r\‘\q_

No Waiting at Any Time
Limited Waiting
School - Keep Clear Marking

Residential Parking Permits

i

Car Parks

. Lovelane

. Town Hall - Permit holders
. Grosvenor Street

King Street

Meadow Place

Griffiths Square

New Street

E County Hall Campus ~

Nooswno

SO N\ i A.: .. . I‘.‘” x X
22\ 7N e RS
,» = / ' ;%-:i%':aaaaa‘t\’

:’*3-“‘%;}:— ‘ NE & igﬂg’ﬁl“ﬁ]
L NAAL
4

NS L
o) —eS
o v B 3 This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material 5 q
,;'l\'.‘“‘\‘ W JJEI e . with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the PI?"“":‘Q & Enwrunment.. Scale 1:4000 @ A2
) Y = S|r Fﬂ |nt Caontroller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office. © Crown Copyright. Flintshire County Council,
‘\\\‘ v'\ IE' . . Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and County Hall, Mold S Map: $J 2363
i FI t h may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. ) A ¥ ' &
nags® vf 0 insnire Licence number 100023386 Flintshire, CH7 6NF. N
“-‘/ % COUNTY COUNCIL Flintshire County Counci, 2015. Chief Officer: Mr Andrew Farrow | Plotted 08/04/2015
i)

2 rP,age 141
0-8c



Append,fm i

1
[ GPEEQE
29/62E JlAdVdL
?.n__ SN_ oooo\v_.\._,_.__ HIGNNN ONIMYED . 434 Q9 IWN - e
“Brabpphm 14 ' “ppoUd|ABurY 1K Lupp; =]
(140 | 198YS) - Ev® oszi 't : : e iow e fina esoneaud o s
e = -3W3IS TTON TTVH ALNNOD "TINRDD|
skeq Bunyed pue o —— - ey e L aNvIoNo v
suonoLsay Buipeo ‘Buniep pasodoldg d9 NI SIMHId THL HLM SSVIW ASANNS JINVNOXO SNOIMVA KON GIEVE
31va SININONINY AS_QINIIHD
PION
19215 ybiH AUYNINIMTd MIN
AB NMYYQ — S ~
— ——— T - = SETRE S
\m&,wvﬂ\nﬂ‘ \ P AN AR\ = ﬂV\ 7 ),/ oy yxv,\ g
\&w«\;\ow/ s \\ s 25 P> \ AL R N N L
2N\ >/\«\\ G o : NN 2 - \v/v TR
N N p 1 A = AT s e
S < / - w7 . Bupwng 2 en TN
WX \/ N S : G WS.RA0d 3 LI NN M« A
N . - a / \&O.G\ ~ \O// N q.ww. .
; . - NoH 78 VOB N

UMD |
L

015 NS 13 /

Adr20pog 3.l sAD L / / b
L. 1uno) afvyidan / h?\p/ o
> T a\gvonbs S
ﬂ_.\ash:ﬁtco o/ £ 7 [

2 » -, ; rd I
AR A M
- ” - 8 T NN !
AR ./G/Ao ‘w.u S P

AN = T
ooz Au%\« ;
Z pé

\h \ ..Ja.\ Bag co(...:N:\\/,/.ﬂ;u.\.
aBouooiA V.f/// ﬂ\w\\urrrrrifll N
'sheg Bunyied pajqesig omL g ..,,,.,.,/,x. JF a6po Y 95
S =3 aupuag |
wd, - wey Buipeojun ; Buipeo oN —— \}fffﬂ/,durhw.h... _,
a5MoY
. younyg skuoy 1S P.__oc ¢ 3693307
SUILL g Ul LN} ON 'SulW Og _ H / i OF A
d;z - wey Buiepp payw —— \ f |
wdy - wez Buiem paywi / | W i

— \ _ - N_

Al N = R T e TS




} £08E9E
Ld| L0L] 0000/SL/IH S96EZE Jvy,
d o] | HIEWNN ONIMVSD 43 QO IYN i
(oS e e g
nul_<um AINNOD IHHEINIT I9ELE20008 ¥ BIENNN 3ENIDN 0IAUISIY
ANVIONOT THvD
! Bulpunolng speoy r e Aol A SavoNEAI GOy NN EITVe THDAND
PIOW ‘AB_03%93HD MysyuI-
_ ki Voo f
i 100y 49 yoon ulug joBsA MON Ul A XIS
i . A8 NMYHQ
M\,, TR,
S
e \\/ ol

b
A
o
11
RS
&

o |

:’ 1

!

\

4

\
ONIASOUD

Pl
w
—
e
m
m
-

m——




Apperdis 3

4NS ZHD €L0¢ A=£t0=m>mﬁ>_._0 e ji)IsS __uOtOva 9BETZ000} PIRPAMA HUY

4418 S0yR nau pRIuAPE Jr ujemIE uky yeb B uosop A lujesmey

m m L, *uoo

i (019484 neuuey © oylimi] e sosy nBulyAy9 e ppieyemo) ot pment ao i s u__hsﬁu_uﬁm.m

ﬂﬂmo.“ﬂ”wﬂ%:—ﬁus.vvgmiu ﬁ—.__—hu > 4 _m h°m=>o =>E>P_Uhow epAB Aamins aaueupiq 1A ppAunspp o umy dew A JyaAyuibiy
88EEZ000L "ON 82uad)] P d |1A19 40 UOf;

a0 142 €102 19p40 (UOHEPIIOSUOD PUE JUBLIBIOJUT JIAID) s Buide e s naoas sl

8 J8H Jo J8]|aaju0Y D o uo AaAng adusuy| 0 UOIES|HLD
i Aunos (seoeld Bunjied pue Buipeo] pue Buiiep Jo uo1o1ISaY pue uoliqiyold) 4 A L ASALTS SURUPIQ o PAOMOR) B deud 8L
©)240]204)Q JUIULOIAUT

i3UN0D AIUNOD eASILNL [1ouno9) AJuno) aliysulld ayj o} :eippei0

B spno
H(VIVE) puod
piaykd Bomnat sunod

sua)

°

uaai9 Bujmog

o LYo, g N\
apy mAgiun iy soly wigy]
puit), Auy 1y Duniepm ONj

\ o

N
N %

o
__eady feld

n iy soay E_DV
Buiss S3P3 4 Jap

un
\u:_:. Auy 1y Buiiem o‘“

opy MAUILN 1y SOLy Wi
PRIGIHID SME BJS0IY :mﬁ“
3\\

d 10N
@ ptetd Buike|d

i Auy 3y Bunieps oN
\G AN,

9,

oW Auy 1y Builiean oN

e ans 3 L% ¢ Na N\
1 wd, - wey soty wig
era1ea|7) dolg sng Japu

wdy - wey Buniegy ONQW
SpIegIS AN

3Py mALIUN 1Y S04y L
1)) Aty 1y buiiepy on|

\._)‘9

M
S .
e & N o N\ A\ ~uanaEn

€102 J2IPpAH | :0 jopaipiem uk usjeq ey
€102 1990100 |} :Woly SARDE J98YS JAIYSul]§
| :usjepq A pelblopy Juy Junjid A Mg
| 1ON uolsiAsy jasys ) 300N

\ A
\\

(ONHOAAAM ¥,

¥6rv:3009 YUV
V- 4 y6rv:1vadyv aood

Page 144



'010Z 'IPunog Aunog ailysiull4 "98E£Z0001 JogqunN 89usdr R

aweN

05Z1/1 91e9s fsuonels s,fisaley JaH 10 J8jj0uU0) 8y} Jo Jleyaq uo AsAing adueuplQ Jo ~=__ mu_ A AS
N uoissiuuad sy} yym buiddew Asning soueupsQ woyy pasnpoidal st dew siyj * N

g paranog

s
‘sBuipaasoud {119 10 uonoasold o} pes| Aew pue JybuAdo) JHUSIUL
QNEOH—C @ 1 \.\'1‘ s | Nezosoc 3 ¢mmmwmm\uwwthm umoi9 sebuuur uononpoidal pastioyneun BUAdOD umol) "ol 1ysjuif4 pus
. L

- (ny, ~/ N
asnoKH
0& uofy-1A-uels
0 udielue|s

NO4VHANVAO

& .bﬂ:@//ﬂ% my : o
ﬁ\v USRS Maqq“/ 8 oW &

8O Ty 3
<
&
@ £ m
Alaveg/ ™

/
5
Buikeld [0040S 4O RN
Y20 ukig jobs A Ov\v/
D Y
2 &

——

plel 02>

Page 145



This page is intentionally left blank



SHOTTON
Parking Strategy
2015

)
Have you
paid and

displayed ?

Ydych chi el
wedi talu ac [EEEam i

CYNGOR

P it y Filint
Fllntshlre

COUNTY COUNCIL

Page 147




Sir y Fflint
"' Flintshire

Contents

Outline of local strategy

Location Plan of Shotton Car Parks

Capacity of all Shotton Car Parks

Plan outlining the area of Alexandra Street (P&R) Car Park
Plan outlining the area of Ash Grove Car Park

Plan outlining the area of Charmleys Lane Car Park

Plan outlining the area of King George Street Car Park
Plan outlining the area of Plymouth Street Car Park
PROPOSED charging tariffs for Pay & Display Car Parks
Proposed Improvements to car parks

Traffic Regulation Orders (TRO) REVIEW

Residential Parking Areas

Location plan outlining the car parks and proposed TRO's

Appendices
Appendix 1 Traffic Regulation Order currently with legal
(Various revocations)
Appendix 2 Traffic Regulation Order currently with legal

(Plymouth Street)

Page 2

Page 148

Page 3
Page 4
Page 5
Page 6
Page 7
Page 8
Page 9
Page 10
Page 11
Page 12
Page 13-14
Page 15

Page 16



Sir y Fflint
"" Flintshire

This town / community specific parking strategy builds on the principals of
the countywide strategy. It makes specific reference to facilities, capacities
and tariff structure.

Page 3

Page 149



N\VANW//SR"

Key
Alexandra Street P&R

Ash Grove

2

Council Car Park Locations
Shotton Town Centre

()
N

Bridge Street
Charmleys Lane
King George Street
Plymouth Street

3
4
)
6

M o© 45|
® 8 §
L]
8 =5 o
0N N G5
N =]
- B p
o = 2
8 » ©
w O o
2
]
E
<
. e
€o 2
g5 o
ER uB
OCd.NA
E>25 .
S 206
nnM7M
ST 7
w8=o s
B30T~ O
0T O
EE2e0
CHmEOY
ce3SEQ
S=0==C
anLouno

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material

Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office. © Crown Copyright.
Unautharised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and

may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the
Licence number 100023386,

Fiintshire County Council, 2015,

Sir y Fflint
Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

CYNGOR

i
/4

Page 150
fogge L




Sir y Fflint
(" Flintshire

Capacity of all Shotton Car Parks

The below table outlines the current number of spaces within each car park where
charging is proposed,;

. Total Spaces Disabled Spaces
Alexandra Street (P&R) 26 | 3
Ash Grove 59 2
King George Street 46 1
Charmleys Lane 46 6
Plymouth Street 19 2
Total Spaces for the area i 196 14
Page 5

Page 151



'01L0g '11Punog Aunog anysiuild "9gEEZ000 | JaqWNN 80udoI]

TOINIHII AINNO D

€ @3ngvsid
9¢ S30VdS V101
ALIQVdVYD ONIMYVd

Ad 10

YO [IdUN0Y |

< aweN g
sbuipaasoid [1AID 10 uonnoasold o) pee| Aew pue ybuAdod
Eé q me.‘ m Qom\m\whmumo umoin) sabuiyul uoionpoudal pasuoyineun ybuAdod umold 8O u.__—._mwc__u_ =
y; T N 16889€ 3 &memﬁ m.ﬁom Kisuonelg s fysale|y JaH jo Jajjonuo) au) Jo Jleyaq uo A8aIng aoueuplo Jo nc__ mu_ % ‘__m
g poISNO N uoissiwiad ay) yum buiddew Aaaing eoueupio woy paonpoudal si dew siy) . s
o ~
//,. 4

AN

Pl

uonoys ‘(¥'gd) 19343 eipuEXI|Y

PagF &61L5£



< '010g 'I"Punod Aunog anysiuli4 "98e€z000) JoquINN 3dusor WO AN
sweN ‘sbuipaaoold [IA1D Jo uopnoasoid o) pes| Aew pue Jybukdo) 3 .___._mwc__ 4
Eé q er_ €102/9/9 aed umol9 sebuiyur uononpoidal pasuoneun WBuAdoD umol) "eoWo : H
N Nl 4550 et ) fiauonelg s,Asalely 19H 0 Jajjonuo) au) Jo Jeyaq uo ASAINg aoueuplQ Jo
Ag pasamod N 008/} SIS uoissiwiad ay} ypm Buiddew Aaning @oueupiQ woJ) paonpoidal st dew siy |

Juipd A IS o

o

8jI8ys

uonels Buidwnd

Mled Jed

Bls gns |4

uojjoys ‘aAols) ysy

age 153

“9°



Ag paiamoy

S aweN
Chly’ N 26/89¢ 3 £¥90€€ = aljuad

\ 00Z/1 3[e3s

'0L0g ‘founc) Aunod alysiul4 "98€££2000]) JaquinN 8ouso

“sBuipaao.d jIA0 10 uonnaasoud o) pes| Aew pue JybuAdod

umoln sabulyul uononpoidal pasuoyineun YBuAdo umol) 'eyo
Kieuone)s s.Aisalely JaH Jo Jajjouo) ay} o Jleysq uo AeAIng adueuplQ jo
uoissiwiad ay) ypm Buiddew Aaaing soueupsQ woJ) paonpoidal st dew siy |

TONTHITIALNNO T

aysuf
Jund A 1S o

BOONAD

.

9 d@3ngvsid
9 S3IJVdS V1Ol
ALIJVdVYJ ONIMYVd

15T < 7

ied Jed

0

uojoys ‘aueT s,Aajuieyd




Ag pasamo

(dewosu(@ | -

aweN
£102/9/9 @A
~—M | Ngzggoe 3 ZE90EE = anuan
005/1 9[e3S

Zg

'0L0g 'I1Punod Aunog auysiull4 "98e£z000L JoquInN 8ouadi IEETORAGH
-sBuipaaoold a1 10 uonnoasold o} pes| Aew pue JybuAdon aysyul u_

umosn sabuiyul uononpoidal pasuoyineun YBuAdoH umold B0 .r_ ._ -
fusuoneis s,Aisalepy JaH 10 19)j01U0D 8y} 0 jleyaq uo AsAing aoueupIQO JO ==_ t > .__m
uoissiuuad sy} yym buiddew Asaing soueupiQ wouy paonpoidas s dew siy) ° el

T

| a318vSI
9y SI0VdS VIOL | &
5

ALIOVdYD ONIMHVd

™~

uopoys ‘j0a43s abioas Hury

P%%eﬁl%



S

A
(dewosu(@ | s-4-a
4_

Ag patamog

N

aweN
€102/9/9 aleq

"0L0Z ‘IPunog Aunog aaysiull4 "g8EEZ000]) JaqWINN 83udol]
"sbuipaaoo.d 10 10 uonnoasoud 0} pesj Aew pue JybuAdo)
umoun) saebulyul uononpoidal pasuoyineun YbuAdod umol) 80O

N £/889€ 3 00SOEE = a1lUa9 Aisuonels s.A1saleyy JaH Jo Jajjonuod 8y JO Jeyeq uo Aenns aoueuplQ JO

006/l 8jeds

uoissiuiad sy} yum Buiddew Aaming soueupiQ woy paonpoidal st dew siy|

ALy
i A h_m_.-.-&

BOTINAD

~0 ~7
ﬁ Qo.o m.omb

¢ d3ngvsida

6/ S3IJVdS V1Ol

A
/ @0@

ALIJVdVYI ONIMYVd

ajjuan
A WIWLO0D

NS

uopoys ‘9948 YynowAid




PROPOSED charging tariffs for Pay & Display Car Parks:

r' Sir y Fflint
Ay .
Flintshire

This proposed change to tariff clearly defines short and long stay parking areas and fees
applicable for all users (including motorcycle bays);

CURRENT Tariff Car Parks NEW Tariff Hours of Operation
No charge Plymouth Street 20p for up to 2hrs Monday to Saturday

Charmleys Lane 50p for up to 4hrs 08:00 to 17:00

King George Street £1.00 for all day
Ash Grove
No charge Alexandra Street (P&R) £1.00 for all day Monday to Sunday
(including Bank Holidays)
08:00 to 17:00
No charge Bridge Street No charge n/a

Due to the location of Bridge Street Car Park, it has been decided that charging will not
be introduced at this site, at this stage.

Page 11

Page

157




‘S|C|?y Fflint
"' Flintshire

PROPOSED Improvements to car parks;

As part of this review and in line with the change to the parking tariff it is also
proposed to introduce the following improvements to the car parks, the timescales for
introduction are also detailed,;

Proposed Improvement Timescale

Pay & Display signage to be erected near each machine, 1 October 2015
identifying charges, appeals processes, etc. -

Entrance signage where necessary identifying its purpose, 1 October 2015
and removal all unnecessary signage

Motorbike parking spaces designated in a number of car 1 October 2015
parks

Page 12

Page 158



Sir y Fflint
(" Flintshire

Traffic Regulation Orders (TRO) REVIEW

Below is a list of Traffic Regulation Orders that where received prior to Civil Parking
Enforcement and in conjunction with this process are being considered for charge, these
requests will be advertised shortly and subject to objections received, arrangements will
be made to implement them as soon as practical;

Location Description Implementation | Appendix
timescale No

Wellington Street (south | Revocation of small length of Before 1
easterly side) waiting restriction December 2015
Ryeland Street (both Revocation of small length of Before 1
sides) waiting restriction December 2015
Bridge Street (both Revocation of small length of Before 1
sides) waiting restriction December 2015

| Bridge Street (access Revocation of small length of Before 1
road at rear of No's 3- waiting restriction December 2015
19) (both sides)
Rowden Street (south Revocation of small length of Before 1
easterly side) waiting restriction December 2015
Beaconsfield Road Revocation of small length of Before 1
(north easterly side) waiting restriction December 2015
Beaconsfield Road Revocation of small length of Before 1
(both sides) waiting restriction December 2015

Page 13

Page 159

Continued overleaf.....



r' Sir y Fflint
Sy . -
Flintshire

Location Description Implementation | Appendix
timescale No
Victoria Road (north Revocation of small length of Before 1
westerly side) waiting restriction December 2015
Plymouth Street (north Revocation of small length of Before 2
westerly side) waiting restriction December 2015

The cost of a simple Traffic Regulation Order restriction is around £2,000 to £2,500
(without the legal cost for creating the Order), see below;

e £1,500 advertising

e £500 for simple works; i.e. lining

e £500 signage
The timescale for this process is a minimum 3 months (assuming available resource)

Page 14

Page 160




Sir y Fflint
(" Flintshire

Residential Parking Areas

As part of the parking review residential parking areas have also been considered, and a
pilot Residential Parking Scheme in Mold is currently being consulted on (with residents)
residing in Gladstone Street, Water Street, Stanley Street and Chapel Street.

In Shotton, the following streets will be considered for residential parking subject to the
required consultations and criteria contained within the policy;

Bridge Street
Ryeland Street
Salisbury Street
King Edward Street
Alexandra Street

Priority of delivery throughout the authority will be assessed and where it is considered
necessary consulted on before charging is implemented.

Policy available on website: www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/PDFFiles/Roads-and-Travel/Policy-
for-resident-parking-schemes.pdf.

Page 15

Page 161



ey

N ALz

Snope.

Council Car Park and TRO Locations

Shotton Town Centre

Key
Proposed Traffic Regulation Orders

» o o » Revocation of Existing Restrictions

Residential Parking Permits

Car Parks

Alexandra Street P&R
Ash Grove

Bridge Street
Charmleys Lane

King George Street
Plymouth Street

.‘-”F":‘“.‘-"’!\’.—‘D D

T NI

/ [ /7

Shotton

F

Sir y Flint
Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material

with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the
Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office. © Crown Copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and

may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Licence number 100023386.

Flintshire County Councii, 2015.

a4

Planning & Environment,
Flintshire County Council,
County Hall, Mold,

Flintshire, CH7 6NF.

Chief Officer: Mr Andrew Farrow

Scale 1:2500 @ A2

OS Map: SJ 3068
Plotted 13/02/2015

()
N

Page 162
pase lo



= ) - Z0BB9E
Ld| LOE| 0000/SL/LH 9EPOEE OlLAVaL
_ _ _ HIGANN ONIMVET 3y M9 CIWN
. “BruBppAM 14 “RS A pRENS; yosABiry 1K smpRAMITIA
(z Jo | 198YS) Ev® oszt s Tt ot me oo B e et
3VIS ALNIOD THHSLNTTS TISEEZD00L Y1 HIBWNN Sonaon aanagean
D TH0 H 40 NI TIOMAI HL 3 ANVIONOT TV
suofouisay Buniem jo uopesonay Mo NOISSIHId FHL HEM SJVIV AZAHNS IONVNONO SMOIYA NOen 025v8 N0 AND
alva ‘SINIWANIWY ‘A8 _G3X33HD 2-
Specy snouen ¥ .»_ H o

uopoysg NIRLHR RS o MON na A i

‘AE_NMVYO

| ArpenDiX 1

..___F ¥E o] 9€ 3_ _
|
:_5_ R ___m“ ]
| | [— ; 8 :
Hikl= : e = e |
1 = NG e\ | P e e, e e
__ _ %H .\.% — S It jl_ | Ujg 3 “.._ U _r "
e Gl =11 @ 1
T e e = e = |
[ g = | L i,__m_. R — U al | ___Im
[ ir_m .\s_.;_w" ||_ , [15] — s ._ A
_ |3 PR 18 p— | | Vo o ]
N _m_ s _m_ o A A T
I _ _n__w Lﬂ“ 13y — e 2 n_ e g
3 . e | Hi
___ __m_ = :;.I}l__ i .___arfl
| | L] = 5 | 1| = 1 H—3
! [ T L ...H_Ir. _|_.ﬂ|.JJr | __ m_l_\l._lr
. — s [
| i O =1t [
S e e =i e
suopouysay Buprem | JZ
S w5 P e S
o = | == | [ W R |




APPENDIX Z

Ld[L0€ | 0000/G4/LH|

Y3IBANN INIMVIQ

£0889€
9EYOEE
43y 09 IWN

(z 30 Z 198YS)

suonousay Buniep jo uoneoorsy

Py © 005 ‘L
‘SAWOS

OlJIVAL

speoy snouep

‘SINFWONIHWY

M9
‘A9 (3XI33HI

"O0M TIVH ALNNOJ “WONNDD

ALNNOD SUINEINNA T98EEZ000L WV YIAWNN ISNIDN 03ANISAY
1HORADOD NMONRD 321440 AUVYNOLLYLS WH 30 HITI0UINOD JHL SO
JHL HLIM SAVN AFANNS JINVNOND SNOINVA NOdN O3SvE

uopous

ARIRERLS] AUV NINMId

MON

o~

suo}ousay buniepm
Bunsixg a)oaay

‘A NMYYd

4N9 LHD ‘BriBppAm JA 1S & ppEneN
4N ZHD ‘PioW ‘lieH Kunod

ALy
wayd A i

‘ppoydjABury 1A imppinueiin
JUBWUAKAUT JO 10}3aK0

ONVIONOT THVI

=
Y




Queensferry
Parking Strategy
2015

Have you
paid and
displayed ?

Ydych chi asm
wedi talu ac == =
arddangos ?

CYNGOR

P it y Filint
Flmtshlre

COUNTY COUNCIL

Page 165




Sir y Fflint
-y, .
' Flintshire

Contents

Outline of local strategy

Location Plan of Queensferry Car Parks

Capacity of all Queensferry Car Parks

Plan outlining the area of Pierce Street Car Park

Plan outlining the area of Station Road Car Park
PROPOSED charging tariffs for Pay & Display Car Parks;
Proposed Improvements to car parks

Traffic Regulation Orders (TRO) REVIEW

Residential Parking Areas

Location plan outlining the car parks and proposed TRO's

Page 2

Page 166

Page 3
Page 4
Page 5
Page 6
Page 7
Page 8
Page 9
Page 10
Page 11

Page 12



r Sir y Fflint
Ay 3
Flintshire

This town / community specific parking strategy builds on the principals of
the countywide strategy. It makes specific reference to facilities, capacities
and tariff structure.

Page 3

Page 167



m N
(7))
c 9 9 -
= ® & §
= 5 g 29
g 2 g 43
00 < & 3
o] o 2 8
c S v 8
-3 fagr
4 ol
» O %m 3
= E
%T V.SDnn i H
= &8s R
| . 4 ey o S @
© o o4 E 3 et
oL 1o 50552
- 0 - geSp=
2 “438=08
o (] o3 © . O
[ opI 9F
O £ 20
3 3 €22y
r...wQ EEoEb
5
2288
55§z Q
- E
EO o
ENefsie <

Page 168

™

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Si
with the permission of Ordnance Survey
may lead to proseculion or civil proceedings.

Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Offi
Licence number 100023386.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crow:

Flintshire County Council, 2015.

Sir y Fflint
Flintshire

LINGOR

()fcgc ¢



r Sir y Fflint
-y | .
Flintshire

Capacity of all Queensferry Car Parks

The below table outlines the current number of spaces within each car park;

Total Spaces Disabled Spaces

Pierce Street 23 0
(includes a dedicated space for child; bollard
operated and chargeable; £80pa)

Station Road 76 5

Total Spaces for the area 99 5

Page 5

Page 169




aweN

ZL02/L/0l 8eg
N 12289¢ 3 00LLEE = aIUdD
0GZL/L 8|eas

"010g ‘fPounod Ajunod anysiulld "98EEZ000) 3qUUINN 8oUBdIT TR
“sbuipaasosd paio Jo uonnoasosd o) pes| Aew pue Jubukdo) o.___._mu—.:_ 4

umouD sebuiyul uogonpoidal pasuoyineun WYBuAdog umoid “aa0 H 4 o
fuauonels s Aisale|p 1o Jo Ja)|0nuoD 8yl 4o Jjeysq uo Asaing soueupiQ JO w—.:_t > ‘:m
uoissiuLiad ayy yum Buiddew Aeaing adueupiQ woy pasnposdals s dew sy * )

Auaysuasnp ‘J9943S 92.1dld




sweN
2102/L/01 8e@

N £Z€89¢€ 3 L6LLEE = 8AUSY
00./| 81edS

"0102 ‘|1ounod Aluno) aaysiulld "98E€E€C000) JOqUINN 80UadI7
-sbuipaasoud |IAD 4o uonodasoud o} pes| Aew pue JybuAdod
umos?) sebuuyul uononpoidas pasuoyineun JybuAdod umoi) ‘820
fisuonels s,Aiselel 1aH 4O 19(j01uoD ay} JO Jeyaq uo Aeaing adueupl Jo
voissiwiad ayy yim Buiddew Asaing soueupsQ woy peonpoidal st dew sy |

i
juigyd A 1§

HOONAD

oy

Auaysusand ‘peoy uonjeisg

f.Bage 171



Sir y Fflint
"' Flintshire

PROPOSED charging tariffs for Pay & Display Car Parks:

This proposed change to tariff clearly defines short and long stay parking areas and fees
applicable for all users (including motorcycle bays);

CURRENT Tariff Car Parks NEW Tariff Hours of Operation
No Charge Pierce Street 20p for up to 2hrs Monday to Saturday
Station Road 50p for up to 4hrs 08:00 to 17:00

£1.00 for all day

Page 8

Page 172




Sir y Fflint
(" Flintshire

PROPOSED improvements to car parks;

As part of this review and in line with the change to the parking tariff it is also

proposed to introduce the following improvements to the car parks, the timescales for
introduction are also detailed;

Proposed Improvement Timescale

Entrance signage where necessary identifying its purpose, 1 October 2015
and remove all unnecessary signage

Pay & Display signage to be erected near each machine, 1 October 2015
identifying charges, appeals processes, efc.

Motorbike parking spaces designated in a number of car 1 October 2015
parks

Page 9

Page 173




Sir y Fflint
"' Flintshire

Traffic Regulation Orders (TRO) REVIEW

As part of this process, no proposals to alter the on-street restrictions have been
identified.

Proposals to amend or implement Traffic Regulation Orders received prior to Civil
Parking Enforcement are currently being considered and placed in to a Matrix for
delivery; dependant on importance.

The cost of a simple Traffic Regulation Order restriction is around £2,000 to £2,500
(without the legal cost for creating the Order), see below;

e £1,500 advertising

e £500 for simple works; i.e. lining

e £500 signage
The timescale for this process is a minimum 3 months (assuming available resource)

Page 10

Page 174



CSlcli)y Fflint
Ay .
. Flintshire

Residential Parking Areas

As part of the parking review residential parking areas have also been considered, and a
pilot Residential Parking Scheme in Mold is currently being consulted on (with residents)
residing in Gladstone Street, Water Street, Stanley Street and Chapel Street.

In Queensferry, the following streets will be considered for residential parking subject to
the required consultations and criteria contained within the policy;

e Fairfield Road
e Pierce Street
e Gladstone Street

Priority of delivery throughout the authority will be assessed and where it is considered
necessary consulted on before charging is implemented.

Policy available on website: www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/PDFFiles/Roads-and-Travel/Policy-
for-resident-parking-schemes.pdf.

Page 11

Page 175



Council Car Park Locations
Queensferry Town Centre

Key

Proposed Traffic Regulation Orders

: Residential Parking Permits

Car Parks

1. Pierce Street
2. Station Road

/4
4

S\ 5

N This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material . .
- . with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Pl.ann".‘g & Enwronment., Scale 1:2000 @ A2
Sir y Fﬂ|nt Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office. © Crown Capyright. | Flintshire County Council,
- Unauthorised repreduction infringes Crown Copyright and .
Fl' t h' may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Cgunt\( Hall, Mold, OS Map: SJ 3168
insnire Licence num ber 100023386, Flintshire, CH7 6NF.
COUNTY COUNCHL Flintshire County Council, 2015. Chief Officer: Mr Andrew Farrow | Plotted 13/02/2015

Page 1/6
frge 11



Programme for Parking Strategy delivery

The programme of delivery for the individual parking strategies is as follows:

June 2015 Talacre - Introduction of charging and enforcement

August 2015 Mold — Changes to the structure and tariff and alterations to enforcement to ensure
consistency across Flintshire

Buckley - Introduction of charging and enforcement

Sept 2015 Holywell- Introduction of charging and enforcement
Flint- Introduction of charging and enforcement

Oct 2015 Connah’s Quay — - Introduction of charging and enforcement
Shotton — - Introduction of charging and enforcement
Queensferry - - Introduction of charging and enforcement

Nov 2015 County Hall - - Introduction of charging, workplace permit scheme and enforcement

All of the above timescales will be subject to consequential impact assessments as a direct result of
the introduction of charging. The impact assessment will address whether further TRO’s will be
required in addition to those already identified, it will look at residential areas where residential
parking schemes may be required and detail the projected timescales for each, making particular
reference to those that will be required before charging can be introduced.

Page 177



This page is intentionally left blank



6.1 abed

Su?y Fflint
Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

Streetscene & Transportation Portfolio — Feedback from Policy Development Workshop (March 2015)

Policy FLINTSHIRE PARKING STRATEGIES

Suggestion / Challenge / Question

Response / Action

Question asked: Would you prefer the proposed hours of operation to be?
8am to 5pm, 8am to 6pm, 9am to 5pm or 9am to 6pm

8am to 5pm in all areas except at Talacre and at railway station car parks in Flint and
Shotton

Each local strategy will outline the charging period

Question asked: Should we charge for parking on Sundays and / or Bank
Holidays?

Agreed in all areas with the exception of Talacre and the railway station car parks in
Flint and Shotton

Each local strategy will outline the charging period

Question asked: Should motorcycles be required to pay for parking?

Agreed, dedicated bays will be provided in each town / community

To be included in strategy

Question asked: Should short stay car parks have a 1 hour prohibited return?

Agreed by workshop

Recommend a change to Parking Strategy:

Appendix 1, County Parking Strategy

Off-street public parking:

Short stay parking will have a 1 hour prohibited return from the
expiry of the parking ticket.

Question asked: Should short stay only car parks have a higher charge imposed?

Agreed by workshop

Agreed where there is a requirement. Mold has requested higher short
stay charges.

Question asked: Currently we enforce ‘out of bay’ and misuse of ‘disabled bays’
in all off street car parks on Sundays and Bank Holidays, should this continue?

Agreed by workshop

Recommend a change to Parking Strategy:

Appendix 1, County Parking Strategy
Off-street public parking:
Disabled bay misuse and abuse will not be tolerated, all bays will




08T abed

be enforced outside of any charging period set.

‘Out of bay’ parking will not be tolerated, all car parks will be
enforced outside of any charging period set.

Question asked: Do you support the principle of residents parking schemes?

Agreed by workshop

Agreed for inclusion in strategy

Question asked: Should resident’s parking include Saturday and Sundays?

Agreed by workshop

Recommend a change to Parking Strategy:

Appendix 1, County Parking Strategy will cover all of the above
Residential parking:

These residential parking schemes will offer a permit which
covers the full 24 hour period, including Saturdays and Sundays.

Supplementary Question raised: How can this be enforced?

The structure currently allows for 7 officers to enforce Civil Parking
Enforcement and environmental crimes, the officers will work 7 days a
week, between 7am and 7pm, they will work via rota, and staff will be
given specific guidance on their duties for the day. Currently Parking
Services operates with 5 officers covering the same area and car parks,
whilst it is accepted that the expansion of pay and display and workplace
charging will increase their workload, this will be monitored carefully to
ensure that adequate cover is available. It is also acknowledged that
once users adapt to the changes imposed enforcement levels required do
drop.

Recommend to remove the evening charge at County Hall from the
parking strategy, the resource for its enforcement would be too costly

Supplementary Question raised: How many motorcycles have been fined in last
year in Flintshire?

19 motorbikes have received Penalty Charge Notices since 1 October
2013 to present.

Supplementary Question raised: There should be an awareness of the number of
cars parking on village car parks and commuting into other areas.

Many complaints have been received about car sharing from certain car
parks. Will continue to review

Supplementary Question raised: Reference was made to the car parks currently
included in the Buckley area strategy and whether the boundary should be
extended to incorporate the Lane End area.

Lane End and Copper View car parks are not within the town centre.
These areas will be reviewed as part of the local area review after 12
months of operation.

Supplementary Question raised: Car sharing — can we discount the permit to

No. Due to difficulties in enforcement




T8T abed

encourage car sharing.

Supplementary Question: There was a request for consideration of paint on
tarmac ‘Residents Only Parking’ to be supplied in areas of Talacre even though it
was not enforceable in order to discourage indiscriminate visitor parking.

If the area marked up was only for advisory reasons, users would soon
become aware of this and try to flout other restrictions citing them as
inequitable.

Supplementary Suggestion raised: Charging should be introduced for disabled
parking

A decision has been taken not to charge disabled users when parking in a
disabled bay whilst displaying a valid disabled badge. A disabled user if
parking in a normal bay would be required to purchase a valid parking
ticket.

Supplementary Suggestion: During the workshops it was accepted that
residential parking schemes are key to the delivery of these charges in certain
areas.

Recommend that the implementation date for residential parking schemes
be brought forward, where necessary

Supplementary Suggestion: Whilst it was generally agreed that charging at
County Hall should be introduced, the permit banding and parking tariff received
mixed opinion, the main principles debated were around the differential permit
charge;

Recommend that workplace permits do not have a differential charge
imposed, but operate in the same way as all other car parks (internal
workforce may not be required to pay the VAT). Dedicated bays would be
available at a higher charge, and a pay and display option would still be
available to all those who chose to not to purchase a permit.

Supplementary Suggestions:

The tariff for those parking in one area of the authority should be the same for all, it was
accepted that a few exceptions would exist.

A consistent tariff across the authority, excluding car parks that cater for tourism or rail
infrastructure,

To include Halkyn Road, Holywell in the local strategy as a long stay car park.

Recommend that as Alexandra P&R Car Park, Shotton is not excessively used, and
searching for a space is not an issue, the charge to be imposed at this station should be
set at a lower level to that of Flint where the car park is generally full from early morning
to late evening; £1.00 one off charge.

That High Street Car Park, Caergwrle be removed from the parking strategy, as this
area has only one car park with a residual capacity of 20 spaces for visitors, weighting
up the cost of infrastructure with the projected income it would not be viable to consider
charging in this car park presently.

That as Gamfa Wen Car Park, Talacre is the only viable car park in Talacre, a short stay
charge should also be applied; £2.00 for up to 2hrs.

A comprehensive list of all car parks including the proposed tariffs will be
included in cabinet report

All other suggestion will be taken into account before the report is
presented to Cabinet




28T abed

Supplementary Questions asked:

Should a level of income be passed back to the Town or Community Council for them to
decide where to reinvest within the town/community?

Split decision in workshops, however, this above recommendation for a consistent
parking structure and tariff could also adapt more easily in setting a level of income to be
passed back to the town or community councils. This recommendation could be
considered as the base level and those who had a higher charges imposed could
receive a %.of the gross from the base level of projected income to the actual received

To be incorporated in policy

Challenge raised: Concerns raised over planning, where developers have gained Advice to be sought from Planning dept

planning permission because residents would have FREE public parking available.

In addition, feedback was also received from the following:

Miss C Harmer
Ms D Kenton
Mr JG Lewis

Ms C Johnson
Anonymous - Tony
Anonymous — Sue
Mr B Harrison

Anonymous — Neil
Mold Town Council

Councillor R Jones

Holywell Town Council

Buckley Town Council

Could we consider a medium stay tariff in Somerfield Car Park, Holywell.

Does not believe charging should apply at Theatre Clwyd, Mold

General feedback on the proposed tariff; it should be more attractive, additional parking areas are required in Mold and general
comments in respect of residential permit schemes

Pleased to see the hourly charges will no longer exist, but would prefer short stay to be 3 hours rather than the proposed 2 hours
Would prefer a revised tariff of 50p for 3 hours and £1.00 for all day

Traders would prefer short stay charging in Mold to be 50p for 3 hours not the proposed 2 hours

The proposed charging for County Hall, Mold is not equitable with the rest of the strategies

Retail trade in Shotton has already fallen, and believe parking charges will be detrimental to the town

Request a 4 hour charge be considered in Somerfield Car Park, Holywell

Response to questions asked at the Overview and Scrutiny workshops, and general comments;

Permits scheme in off street car parks should be reviewed

Does not support charging for Theatre Clwyd users, or the proposed evening tariff at County Hall

Current financial arrange with Mold should continue until the new arrangements are introduced

Charges should be proportional to the retail offer available in towns, does not agree with the consistency approach discussed at the
workshops

For equity, the charging at County Hall should be equitable with the towns and not discounted

Would expect a lot of shops in Buckley to close if parking is introduced

Recommends Bevans Yard, Tower Gardens and Somerfield Car Parks be for short stay use only and that the long stay charge for Plas
yn Dre and Halkyn Road be £2.00

1 hours prohibited return should apply to all car parks

Requests that on event days free parking be permitted in all car parks

Would support the provision of parent and child spaces

Response given from feedback on the proposals for Buckley and general comments;




Alan Rushton
Ms N Holden
Ms N Elwin

€8T abed

Buckley has a weak retail trade, concern that the town would not sustain parking charges

The strategies at preset are not consistent or equitable in approach

Unsure as to why Coppa View and Lane End Car Parks are not included within the proposals

Bistre Avenue and Argoed Car Parks are utilised by residents why should they be charged to park
Charging within the community of Caergwrle would have a detrimental effect of the retail trade

General concern and comment on the proposed charges at Cergwrle and a signed petition (55 signatures)
General concern and comment on the proposed charges at Cergwrle and a signed petition (417 signatures)



This page is intentionally left blank



Flintshire County Council

Draft Car Parking Strategy

Consultation Summary Report

March 2015

¥ Gir v Filint




Background

During the summer of 2014 the Council, in response to a further significant cut in
Welsh Government funding, began its Big Budget Consultation. Aiming to raise
awareness of the size and scale of the budget challenges the Council asked a
series of questions designed to gauge levels of support for some of the difficult
decisions ahead.

The responses provided at that time identified 68% of people would support the
Council if it needed to make ‘some changes’ to the way it delivers some of its
services and 75% supported an affordable increase in charges for services.

On the 17 February 2015 the County Council approved a set of proposals
designed to bridge the 2015/16 budget gap. One of the proposals related to the
revision of the Council’s Car Parking Strategy and the introduction of parking
charges across the County. The proposal would see an increase in income of
£400,000.

In order to develop the framework of the Strategy for consideration and final
approval by the Council’s Cabinet in April, a period of public consultation took
place.

The purpose of the consultation:

¢ To seek views and opinions on a range of options that would help to
develop the framework of the Strategy.

The period of consultation:

e Monday 9 March 2015 — Sunday 29 March 2015

How people could feedback:

A bi-lingual, on-line consultation accessible via the Council’ website.
Consultation Responses:
e A total of 173 forms were completed on-line

e Also during the period of consultation there were 481 unique page visits to
the English draft parking strategy page of the Council’s website and 10
unique page visits to the Welsh.

What people told us

The strategy predominantly proposed that car parking charges would be applied
six days a week, Monday to Saturday. Views were sought as to whether this
should be extended to include Sundays and Bank Holidays.

Where people agreed that charges should be applied on Sundays and/or bank
holidays they were asked to identify their preferences against each of the ten town
strategies.

Page 186 2



24% of people who took part agreed that charges should be applied over these
periods and identified their preferences for each area strategy as follows:

Table 1: Sunday and Bank Holiday charging

Total number of
. eople
Sundays Bank Holidays P p
responding for
each area

Buckley
Actual no. responding to each option 10 12 12
% of responses against overall
number of people taking part 5.78 6.94 6.94
Caergwrle
Actual no. responding to each option 8 10 10
% of responses against overall
number of people taking part 4.62 5.78 5.78
Connah's Quay
Actual no. responding to each option 12 14 14
% of responses against overall
number of people taking part 6.94 8.09 8.09
Flint
Actual no. responding to each option 11 12 13
% of responses against overall
number of people taking part 6.36 6.94 7.51
Hawarden
Actual no. responding to each option 11 13 13
% of responses against overall
number of people taking part 6.36 7.51 7.51
Holywell
Actual no. responding to each option 12 14 14
% of responses against overall
number of people taking part 6.94 8.09 8.09
Mold
Actual no. responding to each option 11 14 14
% of responses against overall
number of people taking part 6.36 8.09 8.09

Page 187




Total number of
. eople
Sundays Bank Holidays P p
responding for
each area

Queensferry
Actual no. responding to each option 11 13 13
% of responses against overall
number of people taking part 6.36 7.51 7.51
Shotton
Actual no. responding to each option 11 13 13
% of responses against overall
number of people taking part 6.36 7.51 7.51
Talacre
Actual no. responding to each option 26 28 29
% of responses against overall
number of people taking part 15.03 16.18 16.76

When asked about the times between which parking charges should be applied
56% of the total number of people who took part responded. Table 2 identifies
the preferences for each area strategy.

Table 2: Charging bandwidth preferences

8am- | 8am- |9am- |9am- | Total number of
responding for
each area
Buckley
Actual no. responding to each 24 16 35 1 76
option
% of responses against overall 13.87 9.25 20.23 0.58 43.93
number of people taking part
Caergwrle
Actual no. responding to each 28 14 16 1 79
option
% of responses against overall 16.18 8.09 9.25 0.58 45.66
number of people taking part
4

Page 188




8am- | 8am- |9am- |9am- | Total number of
5pm 6pm 5pm 6pm people
responding for
each area
Connahs Quay
Actual no. responding to each 25 17 32 1 78
option
% of responses against overall 14.45 9.83 18.50 0.58 45.09
number of people taking part
Flint
Actual no. responding to each 25 19 33 1 78
option
% of responses against overall 14.45 10.98 19.08 0.58 45.09
number of people taking part
Hawarden
Actual no. responding to each 25 14 34 2 75
option
% of responses against overall 14.45 8.09 19.65 1.16 43.35
number of people taking part
Holywell
Actual no. responding to each 24 15 35 1 75
option
% of responses against overall 13.87 8.67 20.23 0.58 43.35
number of people taking part
Mold
Actual no. responding to each 23 18 37 1 79
option
% of responses against overall 13.29 10.40 21.39 0.58 45.66
number of people taking part
Queensferry
Actual no. responding to each 24 15 32 3 74
option
% of responses against overall 13.87 8.67 18.50 1.73 42.77
number of people taking part
Shotton
Actual no. responding to each 25 14 33 2 74
option
14.45 8.09 19.08 1.16 42.77

% of responses against overall
number of people taking part

Page 189




8am- | 8am - 9am - 9am - Total number of

5pm 6pm 5pm 6pm people
responding for
each area

Talacre

Actual no. responding to each 23 18 32 5 78

option

% of responses against overall 13.29 10.40 18.50 2.89 45.09

number of people taking part

To ensure the free flow of traffic and to protect access routes for pedestrians, we
asked whether people agreed with the provision of dedicated motorcycle parking
bays in larger Council car parks. 54% of those people who responded to this
question agreed that dedicated bays should be provided, whilst 29% had no view
and 17% disagreed.

To maximising the turnover of spaces in short stay car parks the proposal aims to
restrict parking to two hours at a charge of 20p. A question was asked to gauge
the level of support for an affordable higher rate to be charged of no more than
50p for two hours. Of the people who responded to this question there was a
clear majority (72%) who did not support a higher rate charge. A lower figure of
26% supported an affordable increase whilst 2% did not have a view.

Agreement was sought on the proposal to prohibit returns to short stay car parks
within one hour of the expiry of a purchased ticket. The level of agreement with
this proposal was fairly equal, 45% agreed and 49% disagreed. The remaining
6% didn’t have a view.

57% of people responding to Q6 agreed that the misuse of parking bays outside of
the hours of charging should be managed through enforcement. 38% disagreed
and 5% had no view.

Only 26% of those who responded were against the provision of resident only
parking schemes, with the majority (69%) agreeing that the needs of residents
likely to be affected by the introduction of the car parking strategy should be
addressed through residents only parking. When asked to determine their
preference for the hours of operation of such a scheme, of those who responded,
76% favoured 24 hours whilst 24% preferred 8am to 6pm. The majority of those
who expressed a view did not agree with including a charge for Saturdays,
Sundays and bank holidays.

Page 190



Table 3: Charging for Saturdays, Sundays and bank holidays

Saturday Sunday Bank Holiday
Yes No | have Yes No I have Yes No | have

no view no view no view
Actual no. 32 104 15 24 109 12 24 108 12
responding to each
option
% of those 21 69 10 17 75 8 17 75 8
responding to each
option

Finally people were asked to indicate their support for a percentage of the money

raised being given to Town and Community Councils to fund local projects/

services. 55% agreed that this contribution should be made whilst 34% did not
agree. 11% had no view.

Demographic Information

How people best described themselves

Answer Choices

| live in Flintshire / Bwy'n byw yn Sir y Fflint

I 'work in Flintshire § Bwy'n gweithio yn Sir y Flint

| live and work in Flintshire / Rwy'n byw ac yn gweithio yn Sir y Fflint

| represent a Flintshire business / Bwy'n cynrychicli busnes yn Sir y Fflint

| represent a Flintshire organisation / Bwy'n cynrychioli sefydiad yn Sir y Fflint

| am a visitor to Flintshire / Rwy'n ymweld a Sir y Fflint

I represent a Town or Community Council / Bwy'n cynrychioli Cyngor Tref a Chymuned

Cther 7 Arall

Total

Those people who selected either option 2 or 3 above were asked a

Responses

2140

11.90%

47.02%

1.79%

0.60%

1.19%

2.98%

1.79%

pu b}

Fd

[43]

168

supplementary question ‘Are you an employee of Flintshire County Council?’
Overall 39% of all those people who took part in the survey work for the Council

Page 191




Preferred Language
Answer Choices
English / Saesneg
Welsh [ Cymraeg
Cther ! Arall
Total
Age
Answer Choices
under / dan 16
17-24
25-44
45-54
63-74

75+

Total
Disability
Answer Choices

Yes | Ydw

Mo Mac Ydw

Prefer not to say /Well gen i beidio & dweud

Total

Gender
Answer Choices
Male § Gwryw

Female / Benyw

Prefer not to say /Well gen i beidio & dweud

Total

Responses

98.66%
0.67%

0.67%

Responses

0.00%
1.39%
38.19%
48.61%
9.03%

2.78%

Page 192

Responses

9.03%

81.94%

9.03%

Responses

40.69%

48.28%

11.03%

147

149

Fd

13

144

13

118

13

144

a8

16

145



Sexuality

Answer Choices

Bisexual ! Deurywiol
Gay man ! Dyn Hoyw
Cther § Arall
Gay woman /leshian / Merch Hoyw [ Leshiad
Heterozexual / straight / Heterorywial § Strét
Prefer not to say /\Well gen i beidio & dweud
Total
Do you consider yourself transgender

Answer Choices

Yes | Ydw
Mo Mac Ydw

Prefer not to say /Well gen i beidio & dweud

Total

Ethnicity
Answer Choices
White [ Gwyn
Mixed / Cymysg
Cther § Arall
Agian, Asian British [/ Asiaidd, Asiaidd Prydeinig
Elack, Black British § Du, Du Prycleinig

Prefer not to say /Well gen i beidio & dweud

Total

Page 193

Responses

0.00%

2.36%

2.36%

0.00%

T0.08%

25.20%

Responses

0.00%

83.82%

16.18%

Responses

75.95%

0.00%

2.53%

0.00%

0.00%

21.52%

114

]
%]

136

120

34

158



Cultural background

Answer Choices Responses
British / Prycleinig 45.38% 54
English / Seisnig 12.61% 15
Cther § Arall 0.84% 1
Scottish / Albanaidd 0.84% 1
Welsh / Cymreig 39.50% 47
Prefer not to say /\Well gen i beidio & dweud 0.84% 1
Irish § Guwyddelig 0.00% 0
Gypsy or Irish Traveler ! Sipsi neu Deithiwr Gwyddelig 0.00% 0

Total 119

Religion

Answer Choices Responses
Buddhist / Bwdhyeel 0.00% ]
Christian / Cristion 52.55% 72
Hirelu § Hindw 0.00% i}
Jewish [ lddew 0.00% i}
Muslirm § Mwslim 0.00% ]
Sikh § Sikh 0.00% u]
Atheism [ Anffyddiasth 9.49% 13
Prefer not to say /Well gen i beidio & dweud 29.20% 40
Cther (please specify / nodwch) B.T6% 12

Total 137

Page 194



Car Park Income Projections 2015/16 — Based on proposed charging

arrangements

Car Park Annual | 2015-16
Net Net

Income Income

Buckley £46,592

Connah’s Quay £53,040

Flint £98,940

Holywell £43,768

Mold £283,841

Queensferry £16,640

Shotton £40,924

Talacre £15,000

Total £598,745

PCN Income £103,257

Total Car Parking Charges & PCN Car Park Income £702,002

Charges applicable from 1 April - Mold £263,000

New Estimated Car Parking & PCN Charges £439,000

7 months in 2015/16 — 1% September 2015 £256,000

Implementation

Total Estimated Car Park & PCN Charges 2015/16 £519,000

Additional Costs

Ticket Machines (net of contribution from CPE Fund) £32,000

Additional Printer £17,380

Cash Collection Costs £36,192

Anticipated contribution to T&CC’s £9,000

Increased PCN Issue £27,750

Business Rates Increase £15,000

Total Additional Costs (£137,322)

Estimated Net Efficiency (with an averaged 1%t Sept 2015 £381,678

Implementation)

Page 195




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 6

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY 21 APRIL 2015

REPORT BY: CHIEF OFFICER (STREETSCENE AND
TRANSPORTATION)

SUBJECT: WASTE COLLECTION POLICY

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01 To seek Cabinet approval for the revised Waste Collections Policy
following the 2015-16 Business Planning process.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01  In June 2010 the Council adopted its Municipal Waste Strategy. The
Strategy contains a number of key actions which were needed to meet
the challenging recycling targets set out in the all Wales National
Waste Strategy "Towards Zero Waste'

2.02 On 15" March 2011 the Council’'s Executive formally approved its
Household Waste Collection Policy which supported the introduction
of a Managed Weekly Collection (MWC) service, fundamentally
changing the way the Council collected all domestic waste in the
County. The new MWC service was designed to increase participation
in recycling and reduce the Council’s reliance on landfill in order meet
the challenging targets set out in the Strategy. Revisions to the Policy
were approved by Cabinet in December 2013.

2.03 Failure to meet the WG National Strategy landfill targets could result
in infraction charges being levied against the Council totalling £200 for
each tonne of waste land filled above the defined allowance. This
would result in a relatively minor failure to meet the target of (say)
1,000 tonnes or the equivalent of just 1% of the Council’s current
Municipal Waste arising, resulting in a financial penalty of £200,000
for that year alone. In addition, a further £200/tonne infraction charge
could be levied if the Council fails to achieve the Statutory Waste
Recycling target in a same period.

2.04 Since the introduction of the Policy and the new collection
arrangements, recycling levels across all areas of the County have
increased, allowing the Council to achieve the 2012 — 13 statutory
target and to be well on track to achieve the subsequent targets -
which are shown below:

Page 197



2.05

2.06

3.00

3.01

3.02

3.03

3.04

Table 1 - Summary of municipal waste targets

TARGET FOR EACH INDIVIDUAL | TARGETS FOR

LOCAL AUTHORITY: EACH TARGET

YEAR

12-13 | 15-16 | 19-20 24-25
Minimum levels of preparing for | 52% 58% 64% 70%
reuse and recycling / composting (or

AD)
Flintshire CC actual performance 55%
Minimum proportion of | 80% 80% 80% 80%

reuse/recycling/composting that must
come from source separation
(kerbside, bring and/or civic amenity
(CA) site

Flintshire CC actual performance 55%

The service is partly funded by WG though the Sustainable Waste
Management Grant (SWMG). The level of the Grant was reduced by
approximately 5% during the financial year 2013-14, 3% in 2014 — 15
and indications are that further reductions are to be expected in 2015
— 16 and beyond.

The new Policy has now been reviewed to reflect the 2015-16
Business Planning proposals.

CONSIDERATIONS

Summary of Changes to the existing Policy

Missed collections

The Council provide up to 264,000 collections every week and it is
inevitable that some missed collections will occur. Some are the fault
of the collection crews but many missed collections result from
residents not presenting their waste containers for collection on time
or presenting the wrong bin for collection.

Returning for these containers and bins creates a significant financial
burden for the service in terms of the vehicles and operatives which
are utilised on a daily basis to recover the collections.

From May 2015 it is intended to introduce a charge hands role to each
main waste collection round. The charge hand will be responsible for
all of the operations carried out by that round and ensuring all
containers presented for collection are emptied and returned to their
correct location and that the road or street is left in a clean and tidy
state. The charge hand will electronically sign off each street as it is
completed.

Following the introduction of the Charge Hands, the Council will not

Page 198



3.05

3.06

3.07

3.08

3.09

3.10

3.11

return to collect containers reported as missed once the street has
been signed off. Residents will be permitted to take their waste to their
local HRC site or it will be collected on the next collection day for that
material.

Residents on the Council’'s Assisted Collection register will be
unaffected by these changes

The new arrangements will take affect from 15t June 2015 following an
awareness raising campaign for residents and following the
introduction of the new charge hand roles in the service

Household Recycling Centres (HRC’s)

HRC’s manage approximately one third of the overall municipal waste
arising in the County and the Council currently operates 7 HRC'S at
the following locations:

Hope

Mold

Buckley
Sandycroft
Connah’s Quay
Flint

Greenfield

The current recycling performance level across all sites is 58%. Top
performing Authorities in Wales are achieving between 80% and 90%
recycling and the WG expected minimum requirement for all sites is
an 80% recycling level.

WG site guidelines clearly promote sites which are capable of housing
all of the recycling containers and provide space for engagement with
users to maximise recycling opportunity.

Considerations for the site in Hope when compared to national WG
guidelines include

e The site has the lowest footfall of all of the current HRC sites
with only 4.5% of all HRC users visiting the site

e The site has the highest cost per tonne for material handled

e The site is the worst performing site in terms of recycling with
the lowest recycling rate

e The site has the smallest footprint which restricts the amount of
available space for new recycling containers

An option to restrict the site at Hope to receiving recycled material

only has been considered but given the poor performance and
restrictions on space at the site the option is not affordable and the

Page 199



3.12

3.13

3.14

3.15

3.16

3.17

site will therefore close on 1st June 2015. In recognition that residents
will take their waste and recycling material to the Mold site,
improvements will be made to this site to provide greater capacity and
improve access arrangements. A review of ‘Bring Site’ recycling
facilities in the area will also be undertaken to provide a local option
for recycling glass and paper etc

On the basis of the higher visitor numbers, the facilities in Flint and
Connah’s Quay will open on Saturday, Sunday and Monday only from
1st June 2015 which reflects the higher footfalls at these sites on these
days. The sites will also open on the day following Bank Holidays.

The sites in Flint and Connah’s Quay will be monitored daily when
closed to deal with any fly tipping events and action will be taken
against any perpetrators. Anecdotal evidence from other Councils in
areas where HRC sites have closed does not show increased fly
tipping occurs in the wider community as a result of the closures.

Opening hours at all the sites will change to reflect the standard
working day of the service and the demand from the service users.
Opening hours will continue to vary from Summer to Winter as shown
in the Policy

The sites are currently operated by staff employed by the Council and
whilst the staff assist residents to recycle their waste, improvement is
clearly necessary if the Council are to achieve the future and more
challenging statutory targets set by WG. This will be achieved by
contracting the operations and management of the HRC sites in a
performance based contract which will guarantee the recycling levels
at all sites.

Because of the timescales required to develop the tender and move
through the necessary procurement process, the contract award
cannot be achieved until September 2015 and a number of interim
operational changes are required at the sites in order to achieve the
2015-16 recycling target.

They include:

o Introducing a Charge hand role to supervise and operate
each site

Provision of an additional recycling operative at each site
Bag splitting to be undertaken at every site

Application of stricter van permit rules

Meet and greet with a greater emphasis on recycling
education

e  Weekly performance reporting for each site

Page 200



3.18

3.19

3.20

3.21

3.22

3.23

3.24

3.25

Garden Waste Collections (Brown bins)

Charging for additional brown bins:

There is no statutory duty on the Council to collect garden waste
however garden waste collections contribute significantly to our
overall recycling performance through the brown bin collection service
and the service is widely valued by residents.

Many Local Authorities in Wales have taken the decision to charge for
the collection of all garden waste but given the given the popularity of
the service, the collection of the first garden waste container for each
resident will continue although this position may reviewed in future
years.

A large number of properties in the County do however present
additional brown bins for collection, with some residents having up to
6 garden waste containers at their property. These have been
obtained through payment for a second or subsequent bin or by
utilising a container from a neighbour who does not require the
service.

As from 18t June 2015 the Council will continue to collect one garden
waste bin from each property however residents who wish to have a
second or subsequent bin collected will be required to pay a additional
charge for collection. The charge for 2015 — 16 is proposed to be £24
and this rate will be reviewed annually in the Standard Fee’s and
Charges

Each property requiring additional collections will be issued with a
sticker for each additional bin that will make it easily identifiable to the
collection crew as a bin that has been paid for.

Cessation of Collections between December and March:

Garden waste tonnages are seasonal with the majority of garden
waste collected between March and the end of November. Tonnages
collected between December and February represent less than 10 %
of the total garden waste collected per annum. Many residents do not
present their brown bin during this period.

By stopping collections over this period operational savings will be
made in both staffing levels (agency) and vehicles costs. Smaller
vehicles with reduced operative numbers will be used to collect food
only on the alternate week to the fortnightly black bin collections.

This will be introduced from the 1St December 2015 following a

publicity campaign informing residents of our intention to withdraw the
service over this period.

Page 201



3.26

3.27

3.28

3.29

3.30

3.31

3.32

3.33

HRC sites will continue to accept all garden waste during this period

Delivery of New Waste Containers

The Council currently delivers (direct to the door) all requests for
replacement receptacles such as wheeled bins, recycling boxes,
recycling bags etc. This is done following a phone call by the resident
to our Contact Centre. Given the number of requests received each
year and the high cost in terms of labour, vehicles and the cost of
providing this service in future is unsustainable.

From 1st May 2015, the Council will no longer deliver recycling boxes,
or non-food bags (for paper, plastic, tins and glass — food bags
unaffected). Instead, on receiving a request we will provide the
resident with a unique reference number and they will be directed to
the nearest Council facility to collect the items. Facilities will include
HRC’s Housing Offices, Council Buildings etc.

On arrival they will also be required to present a household bill
containing their home address along with their designated reference
number to receive their items.

Replacement requests for wheel bins will continue to be delivered due
to their size and weight. We will also continue to provide deliveries of
all items to those residents registered on our Assisted Collection
register.

Bulky Waste Collections

The Council currently provides a bulky waste collection service for
large items householders wish to dispose of. This is a chargeable
service with a current rate of £15 for 1 to 5 items. Extra items, up to a
maximum of 5, are also collected at an additional charge of £5 item.

Typical examples of bulky waste that are collected include
mattress’s, bed frames, chairs, tables, TV’s, carpets, hifi’s,
cupboards, standard cookers, sideboards, lamps, children’s toys,
computers, bookcases etc. A three piece suite will count as three
items.

Householders in receipt of Income Support, Unemployment Benefit,
Disability Living Allowance, State Pension or Guaranteed Pension
Credits are allowed up to 2 free of charge collections per year and the
majority of service requests come from those who receive the service
free of charge.

Collections are carried out both by in house teams and by a local
social enterprise organisation who collect all electrical goods and
other items that have a potential for reuse, such as good quality
furniture.

Page 202



3.34

3.35

3.36

3.37

3.38

3.39

3.40

3.41

The new arrangement will introduce a revised charging arrangement
which will more accurately reflect the cost of delivering the service. A
reduced level charge will also apply to residents receiving benefits (As
detailed in para 3.32). The charging arrangements will be listed within
the Councils Fee’s and Charges schedule and will be review annually.
From 1st May 2015 the charge for 2015 — 16 will be £30 and £10 for
those residents receiving the benefits listed in para 3.32 and the
charge will rise to £40 and £20 respectively in 2016 - 17

Cessation of Trade Waste Collection Service

The Council is required to ensure a suitable and effective Trade
Waste service is available to all businesses in all areas of the County
however it is not obliged to deliver the service itself. Whilst the Council
provides the service to approximately 800 businesses, the local
commercial service area arrangements are well developed and rates
need to be extremely competitive to maintain the contracts. Payment
defaults are common and the service requires a high level of back
office support to manage the invoicing or billing

The service will no longer be offered and a list of suitable suppliers will
be provided to businesses if required.

A normal residential collection service will be provided free of charge
to all places of worship in the County and collections from schools
remain unaffected by the proposals

Introduction of 7 day Working with no Christmas or New Year
catch up.

The waste collection service currently operates over 6 days with the
majority of collections taking place on Monday to Friday and 4,500
properties receiving their collections on a Saturday. The introduction
of Saturday collections in 2011 has provided significant savings in
fleet costs and although there were some initial concerns from
residents, the new service is now well received.

The new proposals will extend Saturday collections to a further 5,000
properties mainly in the North West of the County, with a small
number of around 1,450 or 2% of the total properties (mainly rural
properties) receiving a Sunday collection.

The roll out of 7 day working will begin in the summer of 2015
following a full round review to ensure all of the rounds are optimised
taking into account the increasing number of developments and the
new collection day arrangements.

The introduction of Sunday collections and extension of Saturday

working will increase the capacity of the existing rounds and reduce
the vehicle requirements by the equivalent of two front line waste

Page 203



3.42

3.43

3.44

3.45

3.46

3.47

3.48

4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

5.02

collection vehicles.

Residents whose collection falls on Christmas Day and New Years
Day will receive just one catch up collection during the festive period
(on a changed collection day) Food will be collected on both
occasions (also on a changed collection day). Other waste material
will be collected on the next scheduled collection day

Residents whose collection falls on Boxing Day will not receive a
collection, other than for food (on a changed collection day). Other
waste material will be collected on the next scheduled collection day.

HRC sites are available to receive all waste types during the festive
period and weekly collections of black bins and recycling will also be
provided in the run up to and the week after the Christmas period.

Two all Member Workshops have been held to discuss and provide
comments on the content of the new Waste Collection Policy and
some of the changes have been included in the new Policy following
the sessions. Detailed responses to the queries raised at the
workshops together with the outcomes/actions are detailed in -
Appendix 1.

The Workshop made recommendations on the following aspects of the
service witch have been reflected in the final policy

e HRC opening hours

e Charge for bulky collections for those on benefits

e Charging levels for second and subsequent garden waste containers

e Sunday collection times

The Environment and Overview Scrutiny Committee considered the
new Policy at its meeting on 19" March 2015. The Committee
recommended approval of the Policy to Cabinet.

A copy of the revised Waste Collection Policy is attached to this report
— Appendix 2.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That Cabinet approves the new Waste Collection Policy.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The service is part funded by the Welsh Government through the
Sustainable Waste Management Grant. The grant has been reduced
over the past 2 years and further reduction is expected in future years.

The remaining service is budgeted within the Streetscene and
Transportation budget.

Page 204



5.03

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

9.02

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

The proposed changes to the Policy will deliver the 2015 — 16 budget
savings — HRC at Hope remaining open (receiving recycled material
only) removes approx £125k from overall savings or £80k weekends
only

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

Impact Assessments has been completed.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

Achieving the recycling targets will reduce landfill and also reduce the
Council carbon footprint.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

A desktop EIA has been carried out on the individual proposals.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

Operational staff will be redeployed to other roles within the service.
Staffing cost reductions will be achieved through the staffing review.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

With Cabinet Member regarding the roll out of the new weekend
collections

CONSULTATION CARRIED OUT

e Cabinet Member
e Member and T&CC Workshops
e Environment and Overview Scrutiny Committee

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 — Comments/Actions from Workshops
Appendix 2 - Waste Collection Policy March 2015

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer: Stephen O Jones
Telephone: 01352 704700
Email: stephen.o.jones@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 205



This page is intentionally left blank



Su?y Fflint
“* Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

10z abed

Streetscene & Transportation Portfolio — Feedback from Policy Development Workshop (March 2015)

Policy on Household Waste collection, Household Recycling Centre operations and Council’s bring site service

Suggestion / Challenge / Question

Response / Action

Household Recycling Centres

Closing of Hope HRC Would prefer 3 days than complete loss of site

This wont deliver level of savings, site footprint is to small to deliver
required level of recycling of plus 80%

Agree with the opening times 9 — 5 in the winter
Agree with the opening times 9 — 7 in the summer.

Agreed, policy will reflect these opening times

Full agreement with the proposal with a suggestion that opening hours should
accommodate working hours.

As above

Suggestion put forward where reducing to part time opening at sites which are fairly
close to one another e.g. Flint and Connah’s Quay that they open on alternate
consecutive days so that residents can travel to either site dependent upon the day of
the week.

The footfall survey indicated that residents prefer to use the site Sat to
Mon. The footfall levels in the week will not be sufficient to justify it being
open.

Leave the number of van permits at 12.

Agreed this will be reflected in the revised policy

Concerns that the van ban will promote fly tipping.

The van permit scheme has been in place since 2005. When introduced
there was no increase in fly tipping incidents. Introducing stricter rules will
discourage traders who use the sites as free disposal currently.

Agree need to get tougher on the sixe of trailers. Information required on the trailer size
and how this would be manager.

The policy will state that the maximum size trailer that does not require a
permit will by 2m x 1.2 (6’ x4’)

Don’t agree with the reduction on the number of van permits as can’t see a reason to
reduce them.

The number of van permits will be left at 12.

Request that in communications/policy we are clear that the decisions arrived at
regarding opening times etc. are based on statistical information

Agreed, future communications will explain reasons for site closure and or
reduction in days open.

Concern was expressed about the potential for increased fly tipping around the Flint
HRC which had been a problem in the past

Incidents of fly tipping will be monitored. Experience from other LA’s is
that fly tipping does not increase as the majority of residents are law
abiding and will use alternative sites.

Rather than reduce the number of van ban visits why not apply a small charge for it.

There is the potential to apply a charge in the future but by controlling the
number of visits lessens the potential of traders using the scheme to tip
trade waste.

A permit scheme should be introduced that dictates only Flintshire residents can use
Flintshire HRC'’s.

This has been introduced in some LA’s in England but requires a high
level of administration. Reducing trade waste input and Increasing
recycling performance at the sites is the main priority at this time.

Garden Waste




80¢ abed

Charge for additional bin

£24 for 2nd bin £20 for 3rd bin

The general view from the workshop was to keep the same level of charge
for both 2" and 3™ bins

Agree that a 3rd bin charge should be £24, the same as the 2nd bin charge

As above

It would be wrong to charge for second bin as residents are recycling

The charge for a 2™ bin is to provide income to subsidise the service

Where people have 3 bins the charges above should be applied regardless of whether
only 1 of the 2 extra bins are presented for collection in any given week.

Agree, payment is annual for both 2" and 3 bins regardless of whether
they are presented or not.

There was a question of how the charge would be collected to which the response was
people would pay annually by telephone and should they move house then they would
take the bin with them

Payment will be collected by phone annually. If a resident moves house
then they can take the bin with them but must inform us of the move.

Cessation of service between December and February

No comments received workshops in support of this.

Charges for Bowling clubs

No charge should apply The view was that anything that provides a social benefit should
be free

Bowling clubs charge for the use of the facility and the charge for
additional bins could be reflected in the charge for using the site.

Why just bowling clubs, there should be a charge across the board for all brown bins
collected.

The policy will reflect this and charges will apply to other local
organisations

Greenfield bowling club has an agreement with FCC to cut and remove the grass— if
bowling clubs are to be charged then will they need to pay for the removal of the grass
in the future.

Greenfield Bowling club is cut by FCC as part of the current amenity grass
cutting contract.

Argoed bowling club — if charges are to be applied will arrangements be made to collect
the grass from the premises rather than the existing arrangement where the bins have to
be taken some distance to the kerbside.

All bins will need to be placed at the kerbside of the nearest adopted
highway.

Seven day working

9am start suggested on Sunday.

This would result in the rounds completing between 6pm and 7pm. An 8
am start is more appropriate for a reasonable finish time.

12 noon was suggested with the time from 7am till 12 noon used for other activities
such as litter picking etc.

See above, 12 noon will not be appropriate as finish times on a 10 hour
working day would result in collections taking place up to 9am at night.

Is a Sunday collection absolutely necessary

Re-ordering of the rounds to cover 7 day working provides savings in
Fleet numbers that contribute to the overall savings put forward by
Streetscene and Transdportation.

General agreement reached for an 8am start on Sundays with selective areas of
collection.

Agreed

No working on Sunday — day of rest

For many people Sunday is a working day. Partial Sunday working
delivers savings in Fleet numbers.

Members would like a map of which areas will be included for a Sunday

Once completed those Members whose areas are affected by Sunday
collections will be advised.

Bulky Collection Charges

Charges should cover cost of service

Agreed




60¢ abed

Agree should be a basic standard charge across the board for pensioners and benefit
claimants.

Revised policy removes the FOC service but has a reduced charge for
pensioners and benefit claimants.

It was felt it was not possible to increases charges to an acceptable level and that
would cover the cost of the service. If 90% of requests are currently FOC and the
subsidy is not removed for pensions and benefit claimants then the charge to cover the
cost of the service would be prohibitive

Agreed, see above. A review of the income levels will be undertaken after
6 months to assess the affect of the charging regime.

General agreement was reached that the subsidy should not be removed.

See above

How much less recycling do you expect to receive if Hope is closed.

We expect to see recycling performance improve across all of our
remaining sites when the proposals are adopted.




This page is intentionally left blank



CYNGOR

T i1 Y Filint
“* Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

Flintshire County Council
HOUSEHOLD WASTE COLLECTION
POLICY

HOUSEHOLD RECYCLING CENTRE
OPERATIONS

AND

THE COUNCIL’S BRING SITE SERVICE

April 2015

@ recycle for Flintshire
ailgylchu dros Sir y Fflint

Page 211



1.0

1.1

2.0

21

2.2

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

POLICY FOR HOUSEHOLD WASTE COLLECTION
Legislation

Under the terms of the Environmental Protection Act, 1990, Flintshire
County Council (the “Council”’) is classed as a Waste Collection and
Disposal Authority, and as such has a statutory duty to collect household
waste from all domestic properties in the County. Under Section 46(4) of
the Act, the Council has specific powers to stipulate:

The size and type of the collection receptacle(s);

Where the receptacle(s) must be placed for the purpose of collecting and
emptying;

The waste types which may or may not be placed within each of the
receptacle(s).

Household Waste Collection Eligibility

Each household in Flintshire registered for Council Tax will be entitled to
receive a waste collection service.

Places of religious worship, registered charities (where no business
activity takes place for profit) may be entitled to the standard waste
collection service offered to householders.

Collection Frequency and working week

The Council operates a Managed Weekly Collection (MWC) service
offering the following:

A weekly collection of all recyclable material which should be cleaned and

separated by the residents. This includes — Glass, Plastics, Card/Paper

and Cans

A weekly collection of food waste

A fortnightly collection of a 180 litre general domestic waste container
Alternating with:

A fortnightly collection of 140 litre green/garden waste container (1St

March to 30t November)

*Garden Waste collections are suspended from 15t December to the 15t March.

The MWC service will operate over 7 days with the majority of collections
taking place Monday to Saturday with a smaller number on Sunday.

Residents whose collection falls on Christmas Day, Boxing Day and New
Year's Day will not receive a collection. Alternative arrangements to collect
the food from these properties will be communicated at the time. Their
remaining waste will be collected on the next scheduled collection day. This is
mitigated over Christmas as we move to weekly collections of black bins and

Page 212



4.0

41

4.2

4.3

431

4.3.2

43.3

43.4

4.3.5

4.4

recycling during this period and HRC sites are available on all days except
Christmas day.

Containers for the Storage of Waste Materials

Where operationally possible all households have been included in the
MWOC service and the properties will receive curtilage collections. However
in some locations specific collection points have been identified by the
Council and in some locations (particularly flats) local collections will be
provided from communal wheeled bin(s) which are provided for the
purpose of storing waste materials prior to collection.

All containers supplied to householders for the purpose of the
waste/recycling collection service shall remain in the ownership of the
Council. When householders move home they will be required to leave all
wheeled bins and recycling boxes at the property for the new occupant to
use. The only exemptions are additional garden waste bins (Brown Bins)
that have been purchased by the householder from the Council.

Householders are responsible for the storage, safe keeping and cleaning
of waste containers provided by the Council.

Each householder in the scheme shall be provided with the following
containers free of charge in which to store their waste: 1 x 180 litre black
wheeled bin for non recyclable waste. Only waste produced by a
household on a normal day to day basis should be placed in this wheeled
bin (i.e. it should not contain non standard items such as bulky waste,
commercial waste or recyclable waste).

1 x 55 litre blue recycling box (for plastic bottles, mixed cans and mixed
glass which must be separated). Households requesting additional
recycling capacity shall be provided with reusable weighted woven sacks
for separating plastic bottles and mixed cans (the box will then be used for
glass only). Recycling products placed in these receptacles should be
rinsed and be free of the material originally stored in them.

1 x 60 litre blue reusable plastic sack (for paper and cardboard). Additional
sacks will be available on request, See paragraph 4.7.

1 x 25 litre caddy for the storage of food waste and a smaller 7 litre caddy
for use in the kitchen. Householders will also be supplied with a roll of 52
bags for food waste, and will be supplied with additional bags by the
collection crew (free of charge). Residents should notify the crew by
attaching a bag to the handle of their caddy on collection day.

1 x 140 litre brown wheeled bin for garden waste. If an additional bin is
required please see paragraph 4.13

All containers supplied by the Council should only be used for the storage

of items as prescribed by the Council. Failure to do so may result in the
Council retrieving the container(s) from the households.

Page 213



4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

410

4.11

412

413

414

415

Households must separate their waste items into the appropriate
containers as per the advice provided by the Council. If the householder
fails to correctly segregate their waste materials into the prescribed
containers as required, the waste may not be collected and this shall not
be classed as a missed collection, see paragraph 8.0 for missed collection
exemptions.

Any request to provide a replacement recycling sack, recycling box, food
caddy or food bags (e.g. due to damage or if a new property has been built
etc) shall be made by initially contacting the Streetscene service through the
Streetscene Contact Centre (01352 701234) or through the Council’'s web-
site.

Residents will be supplied with a reference number and will be directed to the
nearest Council facility that will hold a stock of these items. On arriving at the
Council facility the resident must present proof of address along with their
designated reference number to receive their items.

Direct to home deliveries of these items will only be made to residents who
are registered on the Council’s assisted collection register.

Any request for a replacement wheel bin either black or brown will be
delivered by the Council (e.g. due to damage or if a new property has been
built etc). Wheel bins will only be replaced if, when collecting, the bin is
damaged by the collection crew. All other replacement requests will be
charged. The charge for additional bins will be reviewed annually and details
of current charges are available on the Council’'s Fees & Charges listing.

Where a household has 6 or more permanent occupants, they may make
a request for a larger, 240 litre wheeled bin for the storage of non
recyclable waste. This service shall be subject to annual review and the
240 litre wheeled bin will be exchanged for a standard 180 litre wheeled
bin once the number of permanent occupants reduces below 6.

Where a household with fewer than 6 permanent occupants believe they
have a need for a larger bin (240 litres) than the standard 180 litre
wheeled bin supplied, applications can be made to the Council for
consideration.

Only 1 wheeled bin for non recyclable waste will be supplied and emptied
per property.

Where a household produces large quantities of garden waste, they may
purchase up to 2 additional 140 litre wheeled bins for the storage of this
material. This additional bin/s will be subject to an annual charge for
collection and can be presented on collection day with the first bin.

No garden side waste will be collected.
Any additional bin/s paid for by the resident will be issued with a coloured

sticker so it is easily identifiable to the collection crew. The charge for
additional brown bins will also apply to bowling clubs and will be reviewed

Page 214



5.0

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

6.0

6.1

6.2

annually and details of current charges are available on the Council’s
Fees & Charges listing.

Collection Points

All wheeled bins, food containers and recycling boxes/bags must be
placed on the drive or footway within one metre of the curtilage or
boundary of the property and be easily accessible to the crews without the
need to open gates etc. Where this is not possible the containers should
be placed on the footway/verge outside the property, at a point causing
minimal obstruction to the highway users

The collection point for householders with long private drives will be the
point where their drive meets the adopted highway.

Where appropriate, collection vehicles will travel along un-adopted roads
allowing residents to present their waste containers at the same point on
their property as though the road were adopted (5.1). This does not mean
that the Council will maintain the road and should the road be deemed
unsuitable for the vehicles involved or if the owner of the road refuses to
allow the venhicle to use the road, the residents will be required to bring
their containers to the nearest adopted highway.

Where required, site specific arrangements will be made for collections at
flats or properties with narrow or difficult access arrangements. These
specific collection arrangements will be advised to the householder by the
Council.

Wheeled bins and recycling containers will be returned to their point of
origin by the collection crews immediately after collection with the lid of the
container closed.

The householder must collect their wheeled bins/recycling boxes after they
have been emptied and return them to within the boundary of their property
on the day of collection. Containers are not to be permanently stored on the
public highway.

Collection Day and Time

Wheeled bin and recycling collections will generally take place on the
same day each week

Wheeled bins, food containers and recycling boxes/bags should be
presented for collection by 7.00 am on the day of collection Monday to
Saturday (Sunday 8am) and removed after collections have taken place
(which could be up until 5pm). Containers may be placed at their collection
point on the evening before collection however the Council will not accept
liability for any injury or damage to third parties as a result of any incidents
occurring with a container left on the public highway outside of these
periods unless caused by the acts or omissions of its employees,
contractors or agents.

Page 215



6.3

6.4

6.5

7.0

71

7.2

7.3

8.0

8.1

It may be necessary for the Council to change collection days from time to
time e.g. over the Christmas and New Year period and on some occasions
the waste collection service will have to be suspended due to a service
disruption (e.g. during heavy snow, fuel shortage etc). The Council will
make every effort to minimise the level of disruption to householders
during these periods and will try to rectify any missed collections as soon
as the cause of the disruption comes to an end. Notification of changed
collection days in these instances will be available on the Council’s
website and from the Council’s Streetscene Contact Centre.

Where the Council is unable to collect any missed waste collections due to
a service disruption, householders should retain their waste materials until
the next scheduled collection when the all of the material will be collected.
The Council would encourage residents to use their nearest HRC for the
disposal of all waste types in these instances.

CCTV is in operation on all Council waste vehicles for the purpose of
health and safety of employees and members of the public. It may be
used for investigations of accidents and incidents.

Presentation

All waste must be presented in Council supplied containers to ensure its
safe collection. Lids on wheeled bins must be shut when the waste is
collected in order to ensure the health and safety of the collection crews
and prevent damage to the containers and the vehicle lifting equipment.
All recycling bags must be presented in a manner that keeps the material
dry, this is especially important for paper/card.

Any waste jammed in a wheeled bin that does not fall out following the
normal mechanical emptying process on the waste collection vehicles will
not be taken. In these cases householders will have to loosen the
materials themselves ready for the next scheduled collection.

All non-recyclable waste must be contained within the Council supplied
black wheeled bin. Properties presenting excess side waste will be noted
by the crews and staff from the service will then call on the resident to
investigate the level of waste being produced at the property. If the
resident continues to present side waste and refuses to reduce their waste
by recycling, a formal notification process will be followed to ensure the
resident is aware of the collection arrangements and the need to recycle.
Continued failure to follow the advice issued during this process may
result in action being taken under the powers within the Environmental
Protection Act 1990. The side waste will however be collected to reduce
littering in the locality.

Assisted Collections
Where, through frailty or incapacity, a householder cannot present their
180 litre wheeled bin or recycling boxes at the curtilage, and subject to

there being no other able-bodied adult person living at the property, the
householder may make a formal request to the Council for an Assisted

Page 216



8.2

9.0

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

10.0

10.1

10.2

10.3

11.0

11.1

11.2

Collection. If an Assisted Collection is approved a suitable collection point
on the property shall be agreed with the householder and collections will
then take place from this point. All containers will be returned to the
collection point by the waste teams once they have been emptied.

Assisted Collections will be restricted to those households who are in
genuine need following approval of an application to the Council. The
Council will review every individual case every two years.

Missed Kerbside Collections

All waste and recycling must be placed out for collection at a collection
point as specified in section 5 on the correct collection date and time.

Each collection round will have a designated charge hand, part of whose role
is to check that all waste presented is collected by the collection crew and
sign each road as completed when all collections are made. As a result the
Council will not return for reported missed collections other than for those
residents registered as requiring an assisted collection.

Assisted missed collections can be reported through the Streetscene
Contact Centre or through the Councils web-site

Residents not registered for an Assisted Collection who report a missed
collection will be asked to place the waste out again on the next scheduled
collection date or alternatively to use their nearest HRC for the disposal of
the waste.

Clinical Household Waste Collection

The Council provides a collection service for clinical household waste from
householders upon request from the relevant Health Care provider, via a
prescribed application form.

The Council shall provide a suitable container for the householder to store
their clinical waste. Yellow bags will be provided for all infectious waste
and pink bags provided for all non-infectious clinical waste.

An agreed collection point, day of collection, frequency of collection and
any other specific instructions regarding this service, will be agreed
between the Council and the householder.

Bulky Household Waste Collection

The Council provides a bulky waste collection service for householders.
This is a chargeable service .The cost for each of these services will be
shown in the Council’s Fees & Charges listing which is reviewed each
year. Fridges and freezers are collected free of charge.

Householders in receipt of Income Support, Unemployment Benefit,

Disability Living Allowance, State Pension or Guaranteed Pension Credits
will receive a reduction in the charge for this service and these will be

Page 217



11.3

11.4

11.5

11.6

11.7

11.8

11.9

12.0

121

12.2

reviewed annually and details of current charges are available on the
Council’s Fees & Charges listing

Following a request for a bulky household waste collection service, the
collection shall take place within the prescribed Streetscene standard
period.

Typical examples of bulky waste that will be accepted include the following
- mattresses, bed frames, chairs, tables, TV’s, carpets, hi-fi’'s, cupboards,
standard cookers, sideboards, lamps, children’s toys, computers,
bookcases etc. A three piece suite will count as three items.

Small waste objects should be placed into a box, sack or suitable
container and this will then be counted as one item. Only the items listed
during the original request to the Council will be collected and additional
items will not be collected.

No commercial or industrial waste will be collected.

All items must be presented for collection in the front of the nominated
property and clearly visible from the highway. They should be presented in
a safe fashion which does not cause any obstruction or danger to the
public. The Council will not enter houses to collect waste items. The
collection point for properties with difficult access e.g. flats shall be agreed
with the Council at the point of request and before collections are made.

The Council reserves the right to refuse the collection of any waste items
that may cause harm or may have an affect on the health and safety of
waste collection staff.

Home improvements including kitchen/bathroom renewals, fitted
wardrobes and any soils & rubble from landscaping works will not be
collected as part of a bulky waste collection and households should make
the appropriate arrangements with their contractor to ensure they comply
with their own duty of care for the safe disposal of the material.

Household Recycling Centres (HRC’s)

Flintshire County Council operates six HRC sites at the following locations
across the County:

- Greenfield

- Flint (Saturday, Sunday, Monday plus the day after Bank Holidays
only)

- Mold

- Connahs Quay (Saturday, Sunday, Monday plus the day after Bank
Holidays only)

- Sandycroft

- Buckley

In addition to the HRC sites the Council also operates a number of

strategically placed Bring Sites which allow residents to recycle locally. The
site locations can be found on the Council’s website.

Page 218



12.3

12.4

12.5

12.6

12.7

12.8

In recent years and in line with the Council's Waste Management
Strategy, the emphasis at the sites has changed from a simple tipping
facility to one which allows the Council to recycle the majority of material
that residents take to the sites. This change has been driven by the
targets set by Welsh Government (WG) for the amount of municipal waste
recycled by each Council in Wales.

Approximately 30% of the total domestic waste currently produced in
Flintshire is deposited at the HRC sites and the average recycling rate
achieved at the sites is approximately 58%. All residents using the
facilities will be met by a member of the staff on the site and provided with
guidance on the disposal of their material. The intention will be to ensure
that as much of the waste as possible is recycled. All bagged waste will be
opened on the sites by the staff and any recyclable product removed from
the bag and then placed in the appropriate recycling container.

Space at the sites limits the number of waste types that can be recycled
however every attempt is made to maximise the number of waste types
that can be recycled at each site.

Asbestos products will only be accepted at Greenfield HRC site. The
material should be presented in sealed plastic bags (which are supplied at
the HRC sites if required) and place in the designated skip for storage
prior to disposal. Flintshire County Council recommends that specialist
advice on handling asbestos should be sort before handling this material.

Building rubble and soil can only be accepted at Buckley, Mold,
Sandycroft and Greenfield.

The opening hours for the facilities will be as follows:

Monday to Sunday for Greenfied, Sandycroft, Mold and Buckley
Saturday to Monday for Connahs Quay and Flint

Summer (April* — Sept) Opens 09.00 hours
Closes 19.00 hours
Winter (Oct — Feb) Opens 09.00 hours
Closes 17.00 hours

*Summer hours will be extended if Easter falls in March

Residents with privately owned vans wishing to dispose of their household
waste at HRC’s will only be accepted at the Greenfield and Mold facilities
and will be required to obtain a permit in order to do so, reference
paragraph 12.10 This is in order to reduce conflict with staff at other sites
and compliance will be monitored using CCTV cameras which are situated
on all of the sites and ANPR CCTV which is situated at both Greenfield
and Mold.

Page 219



12.9

12.10

12.11

12.12

12.13

CCTV is in operation at all of the Council's HRC’s for the purpose of
health and safety of employees and members of the public. It may be
used for investigations of accidents and incidents.

Trade or commercial waste will not be accepted at any HRC. See
paragraph 12.16 for details on tipping commercial waste.

Resident Van Permits at HRC’s

In order to prevent trade waste being disposed of at the HRC’s a van
permit scheme will be in operation.

Residents owning the following vehicles must be in possession of a permit
to dispose of their waste at a designated HRC site. The permit will allow a
maximum of 12 visits per annum. This restriction applies to company
vehicles, hired vehicles and borrowed vehicles and includes:

e Vans
e Pick-ups/crew cabs

e Trailers (maximum dimensions of than 1.8m long x 1.2 wide x 1m
deep) This must only be towed by a car whose registration will be
on the permit

e Mini-buses
Any other vehicle that might be seen as ‘commercial’

What types of vehicles are restricted?
Vehicles that are not permitted to use the sites are:
e Lorries and LGV’s
e Tipper vans
e Luton box vans
e Trailers with ‘greedy boards’
e Vans towing trailers

Criteria for issuing permits

In order to be approved for a permit the applicant must satisfy the
following criteria:

e The vehicle must be registered to the resident, not a business or
other organisation.

e The vehicle must be registered to an address in Flintshire. (One
permit per household)

e The vehicle must not be sign-written or display advertising
¢ The vehicle must not have flashing beacon/s

If the resident cannot satisfy the above conditions, they will not be
permitted to bring the vehicle into the nominated HRC

Page 220



12.14

12.15

12.16

13.0

13.1

13.2

Permits are issued to the resident to dispose of waste from the household
registered to the permit. Permits must not be used to dispose of waste
from any other household or property. If the permit holder is found to be in
contravention to this then the permit will be revoked.

How to apply for a Residents Van Permit

Permits will be approved at either Greenfield or Mold by a site charge
hand who will inspect the application and associated paperwork and the
vehicle/trailer before issuing the permit.

Residents who want to apply for a permit can obtain an application form in
the following 3 ways:

¢ Download from the Council’s website
o Email at Streetscene@flintshire.gov.uk
e Visit either Greenfield or Mold HRC

Hired Van ‘One Off’ Permits

If the van is hired or borrowed and taking household waste to a Flintshire
County Council HRC a “one off” permit will be required. ‘One off’ permits
will be issued directly from either the Greenfield and Mold HRC sites. Hire
documents and proof of address (through utility bill) will be required and
this information will be checked by site staff when the vehicle visits the
site. Hired or borrowed vans will only be accepted at the Greenfield and
Mold HRC sites and for three visits only over a two week period.
Vehicles should not display any commercial markings other than that of
the Hire Company.

Commercial Waste

The Council maintains a list of approved waste tipping facilities for
commercial waste that will be provided with on request.

The Council will provide permits for small traders to dispose of commercial
garden waste at Greenfield HRC site only

For details of commercial disposal arrangements please contact
Flintshire County Council Streetscene Contact Centre 01352 701234 or
visit the Councils web-site.

The Council’s ‘Bring Sites’

In addition to the HRC sites the Council also operates a number of
strategically placed bring sites which allow residents to recycle locally. The
site locations can be found on the Council’s website.

The provision of bring sites are subject to review and provided subject to
the level of demand in a particular area.

Page 221



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY 21 APRIL 2015

REPORT BY: CHIEF OFFICER (STREETSCENE AND
TRANSPORTATION)

SUBJECT: STREETLIGHTING POLICY

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01 To seek Cabinet approval for the Council’s revised Street Lighting
Policy.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 There is no statutory requirement on the Council to provide Street
Lighting at any location other than those defined in the Highways Act
1980 however, where lighting is provided the Council has a statutory
obligation to maintain the system in a safe state of repair. The Council
also has a duty under Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998
to exercise its lighting function with due regard to their effect on crime
and disorder in an area.

2.02 The Council owns and maintains approximately 20,500 street lights
and 3,250 illuminated signs across the County and in addition the
Council maintains the Trunk Road Street Lighting on behalf of Welsh
Government.

2.03 The annual consumption of electricity for these units is 8 million
kilowatt hours (kwh) at an annual cost of approximately £864,000 per
annum, based on a unit cost of 10.8p/kwh. This gives an annual cost
per lamp of £36.38 (10 pence per illuminated asset per night).

2.04 Road lighting (illumination) encompasses the lighting of all types of
highway and public thoroughfares, assisting traffic safety and ease of
passage for all users. It has a wider social role, helping to reduce
crime and the fear of crime, can contribute to commercial and social
use at night of town centres, shopping areas and tourist locations.

2.05 The Council is responsible for the structural integrity of the street
lighting columns as well as the electrical apparatus within them. Any
faults which may occur with this equipment are repaired by the
Council, utilising the Council’s in-house Street Lighting service within
Streetscene.

Page 223



2.06

2.07

2.08

3.00

3.01

3.02

3.03

3.04

Some Town and Community Councils (T&CC’s) own and maintain
their own footway lighting columns which total approximately 3,500
units. Approximately half of the T&CC’s subsequently contract the
Council to carry out the necessary repairs and maintenance on their
behalf with the remaining Councils contracting the work to private
contractor’s or organisations.

Options to change how street lighting is managed and delivered in a
more sustainable manner are now available with the new technical
advancements within the industry. These new advancements allows a
compromise position to be reached between the Councils aim to
reduce energy consumption, carbon footprint and wasted illumination
set against the wider implications of simply turning the street lights off.

The Council’s current Street Lighting Policy was approved by Cabinet

in March 2013 and the content is now reviewed to include the 2015-16
Business Planning proposals.

CONSIDERATIONS

Summary of changes to existing policy
1. Extension of Part Night Lighting

The part night lighting option delivers a more cost effective solution
than dimming alone and it is proposed that the Council’s Policy will be
to turn off selected Street Lights in defined areas, during the period
00.00 hrs — 05.00 hrs in line with the protocol within the new Policy.

In line with the Policy, each location will be subjected to a strict Risk
Assessment before any light is subjected to the proposed part night
lighting arrangements. Consultation will take place with NW Police
and the local member and other interested parties in line with the Risk
Assessment process detailed in the Policy.

By extending the part-night lighting a financial saving of approximately
£12k per 1000 lanterns will be delivered. This will be achieved by
replacing the photocells on the lanterns installed at locations defined
within the policy.

The proposal will also increase the life expectancy of the lamp (bulb)
because of the shorter period of operation There is no evidence that
the performance of any other components within the light are reduced
by the introduction of the part night lighting options.

Page 224



3.05

3.06

3.07

3.08

3.09

3.10

2. Changes to Fault Repair Standard

The current standard for repairing Street Lighting faults (within the
control of the County Council) is 3 days. The standard was set at the
formation of Streetscene in 2012 and is applied to all lighting units
across the Council, irrespective of location. The operational resource
required by the service is clearly dependant on this standard and a
reduction in the response time will reduce the level of resource
required.

A high portion of lights are situated on main routes and in some cases
on dual carriageways. On a purely risk based approach the cost and
impact of the traffic management required to allow the repair of a
single light cannot be justified and a review of the standard is
therefore necessary. It is proposed that in future the new standard will
not be the same for all lights in every location but will be risk based as
follows:

e Lights adjacent to Sheltered Housing Centres — 3 days
e Lightsin CCTV and other defined critical sites — 3 days
¢ Residential areas and all other locations - 10 days

The resource required to deliver the above revised standard is 4 FTE
electricians — a reduction in one post from current levels.

3. Reduced Night time Inspection Regime

The Council currently carries out evening inspections to identify faults
on a 14 day cycle with all street lighting units being inspected during
the hours of darkness within this period. The new policy will extend
this period to 28 days and consider the most cost effective option to
provide this service in future. Dependant on cost and overall value for
money considerations, this may include utilising an outsourced
provision

Member Workshops

Two workshops have taken place to allow members and T&CC
representatives the opportunity to discuss and make comments on the
revisions to the policy. The feedback from the Workshops have been
incorporated into the new policy and a full record of the comments
received during the workshops is attached (Appendix 1)

The specific areas of feedback from the workshop were as follows and the
feedback has been included in the revised Policy:

e County wide consistency for part night operating hours

e Requirement to consider some level of residual lighting level in
residential areas where part night lighting is adopted

e Input into the scope to define locations for new repair standards

Page 225



3.11

3.12

4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

The Environment Overview and Scrutiny considered the new Policy at
its meeting on 19" March 2015 and recommended acceptance of the
new Policy to Cabinet

A copy of the new Street Lighting Policy is attached to this report
(Appendix 2)

RECOMMENDATIONS

That Cabinet approves the Council’s revised Street Lighting Policy
moves.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The proposals will deliver the saving identified in 2015-16 Business
Planning proposals with a limited rollout during the year. Additional
benefits in future years will be accrued as the rollout of part night
lighting arrangements are completed.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

Not applicable.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

As well as reducing CO, levels, light pollution is another environmental
issue that should be considered. The use of appropriate new lanterns
and technologies with high performance optics, electronic control
gear, shielding etc. can show reductions in energy consumption and
also reductions in lighting pollution with the light distributed
downwards at the target area which reduces in intensity at suitable
locations.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

An EIA has been completed and concluded that the new Policy will
not impact on any individual or group disproportionately. Each location
considered will be Risk Assessed to take into account any location
specific equality issues

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

The reduced standard for repairing faults will reduce the number of
electricians by one post. This will be achieved through the surrender
of a vacant electricians posts currently within the service.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

Full Risk Assessment in accordance with the Policy for each site

Page 226



11.00

11.01

11.02

12.00

considered

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

At two Member and T&CC workshops
Environment Overview & Scrutiny Committee.

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 — Comments received at workshop
Appendix 2 - The Council’s revised Street Lighting Policy.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer: Stephen O Jones
Telephone: 01352 704700
Email: stephen.o.jones@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 227



This page is intentionally left blank



6¢¢ abed

(Appendix 1)

("' Sir y Fflint
Ay - .
Flintshire

Streetscene & Transportation Portfolio — Feedback from Policy Development Workshop (March 2015)

Policy — Street Lighting

Suggestion / Challenge / Question

Response / Action

Part Night Timings

1. Can the lights be switched off Intermittently or every second to third light.

This can be investigated and looked into in certain locations.

2. Some lighting is needed in residential areas, nowhere to be totally out as
in question 1.

This can be investigated and looked into and assessed in line
with the current proposal.

3. Lighting needs to remain on at O.A.P complexes.

Agreed.

4. Dimming lights rather than turning the lights off should be considered

Already in the current policy. All new lighting units installed have
the capability to be dimmed or do dim by up to 35%.

5. Concerns raised over people falling over when the lights are off.

Lighting units will only be switch off from 2400 hrs until 0500 hrs.

6. Residential timings should be midnight to 5am (subject to risk | Agreed.
assessment and discussion with partners.)
7. Industrial timings should be midnight to 5am (subject to risk assessment | Agreed.

and discussion with partners.)

8. Midnight too soon, Should start at 1am and not beyond 5am was
suggested.

Agreed on the end / switching on time but common consensus is
Midnight.

9. If a Town or Community Council offers to pay or subsidise the savings
can the lighting units be left on.

This could be discussed with an option to agree.

10. Attention was drawn to streets in the vicinity of Flint Castle where the
lights are so bright one light could illuminate an entire street. It was
suggested that there should be a review of the installations of similar lights
to these across the county in order to reduce energy costs during normal

Possibility of the units being reduced in wattage after an
assessment is undertaken.




0gg abed

lighting hours as well as through the night.

11. Concerns were generally related to community safety in residential
areas. The vulnerability of industrial areas and the impact of burglaries on
business growth and local economy was raised. It was acknowledged that
turning the lights off may encourage local companies to install their own
security lighting systems.

Noted, this will be monitored as required.

12. The su%gestion of a pilot scheme which would see 1in 2 or 1 in 3 lights
switched off.

Discussed in question 1 and 2.

13. General concern against turning street lights off in either residential or
industrial areas

Noted, this will be monitored and addressed accordingly. All
areas will be assessed for suitability of installation in line with the
policy recommendation.

14. Concerns were generally related to community safety in residential
areas

As in question 13.

Suggestion / Challenge / Question

Response / Action

Risk Assessment & selection for installations

1. Risk Assessment and selection process is vital.

Agreed.

2. Important to liaise with local Members, blue light services etc. local
intelligence and knowledge.

Agreed. Consolation will take place with all relevant stakeholders.

3. Important to liaise with Town and Community Councils as they may know
of ‘hot spots’.

Agreed.

Suggestion / Challenge / Question

Response / Action

Repair/Attendance

1. Frustration expressed with Scottish Power regarding length of time taken
to undertake repairs. Need to strengthen contractual arrangements with
Scottish Power.

Discussed and answered at meetings.




T¢e abed

2. Needs to be a standard not a target or average repair time

Agreed, we will endeavour to repair all lights within the time
frame within the policy.

undertaken

3. There was a current perception that repairs were not bein
issatisfaction

unless someone rings in to report it and there was a general
with response times to reports.

Certain faults are only known if a member of the public calls them
in due to location of lamps or intermittent faults. Some lamps are
noted on night inspections but are or have also been reported via
the Streetscene phone line.

4. There was an opinion that steps should be taken to make it easier to
rep(t)rt a light out rather than having to go through the street scene contact
centre.

The current procedure to report a fault is though the call centre or
via the various internet methods.

Suggestion / Challenge / Question

Response / Action

Night time regime, an increase to 28 days from 14 days

1. Agree with relaxing this to 21 days and if working well, look at reviewing it
and extending it to 28 days.

Due to the part night installations the inspection time frame in
hours for night inspection is reduced during summer months due
to switch on and off of the lantern. Will be considered if 28 days
inspections become ineffective.

2. Extend night inspections to include town and community councils

This can be done in agreement with the relevant Town and
Community Council.

3. 28 day inspection reverting back to either 21 days or 14 days if not
working effectively.

This will be monitored to ensure that all lamps where practical will
be included within the inspection.

Suggestion / Challenge / Question

Response / Action

Additional Comments

1. Introduction of LED lights for greater savings.

Pilot schemes are currently underway with all new signs and
bollards being LED.




This page is intentionally left blank



Sir y Fflint
-Flintshire

COLSTY DO

Flintshire County Council

Street Lighting Policy — April 2015 (Ref 1a)

Contents:
1. Introduction
2. Legislative Powers
3. Main Aims
4. Benefits of a Well Maintained Street Lighting Network
5. Maintenance and management
6. Lighting Column Replacement
7. Lighting standard and improvements to the inventory
8. Inspection and Testing regimes
9. Town and Community Council Owned Lighting
10. Festive lllumination
11. Adoptions to the Street Lighting inventory

For further information, advice or guidance with regards to this document or
Flintshire County Council Street Lighting please contact:

Mr Darell Jones

Street Lighting Team Leader
Alltami Depot

Mold Road

Alltami

Flintshire

CH76 LG

Tele: 01352 701234

01352 701290
e-mail: darell.jones@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 233



1. Introduction

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

2.1

2.2

This Policy outlines the basic principles and standards applied to the
maintenance of Street Lighting and llluminated Street Furniture within the
administrative area of Flintshire County Council, setting out the aims of the
authority with respect to maintenance regimes and the procedures put in
place to achieve those aims.

The overall objective is to manage and maintain a safe, effective and
efficient network that ensures the safety of all road users, pedestrians and
cyclists.

The policy will apply to:
1. Flintshire County Council owned Highway and Amenity Lighting

2. Flintshire County Council owned llluminated and Electrical Street
Furniture

3. Town and Community Council owned Lighting maintained by the
County Council on their behalf

The street lighting policies have been developed to support the aims and
objectives of other County Council strategies and initiatives by recognising
that street lighting and illuminated street furniture plays a major part in
helping to reduce crime, improving driver behaviour, pedestrian’s visibility
distances and promoting a safer community and reducing the fear of
crime. (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)

Flintshire County Council’s street lighting department will endeavour to
improve the environment by reducing upward wasted light and reducing
the carbon foot print of the service.

Legislative Powers

Flintshire County Council is not required by law to provide street lighting,
however, under the highways act 1980, S97 -

“Every local highway authority may provide lighting for the purposes of any
highway or proposed highway for which they are or will be the highway
authority”

However Flintshire County Council is required to maintain any street
lighting it does provide in a safe condition for the benefit of the community
it serves.

On the 1st April 1967, under the provisions of the Local Government
Act1966, the County Council assumed responsibility for the maintenance
and operation of highway lighting throughout the county generally,
including the provision of new installations.

Page 234



23

24

3

Roadway lighting is falls into one of two categories:
e Group A, columns of a height of 10m and above
e Group B, columns of a height of between 5m and 8m

Standard for both groups are as laid down in the British Standard Code of
Practice for Street Lighting.

Some Town and Community Councils in Flintshire retained the
responsibility for footway lighting only.

Footway lighting is defined as a system of lighting provided for the
highway, in which either:

a. No lamp is mounted more than 4m (13ft) above ground level

b. No lamp is mounted more than 6m (20ft) above ground level
and there is at least one interval of more than 46m (50yds)
between adjacent lamps in the system.

The North and Mid Wales Trunk Road Agency (NMWTRA) is the highway

authority for road lighting on trunk roads and will have it's own polices and
practices for maintenance of those installations. The maintenance of these
lights is carried out by Flintshire County Council on behalf of NMWTRA

Main Aims

Flintshire County Council Street Lighting Team’s aims are as follows:

1. To manage our current Street Lighting and illuminated street
furniture network in a safe and fit for purpose condition and in
accordance with the HAMP.

2. To manage the reaction time to rectify and respond to reported
faults

3 To provide the highest quality of service providing excellent value
for money.

4. Reduce the Carbon footprint and environmental impact of the
service

The Aims will be achieved by the following

1. Ensure that a high proportion of Street Lighting and illuminated
Street Furniture is functioning correctly at all times.

2. Ensure faulty llluminated Street Furniture is wherever possible
repaired within the timescales specified within this policy.

3. Visit all llluminated Street Furniture on a regular basis in
accordance with the timescale specified within this policy to
undertake planned preventative maintenance and to verify their
structural and electrical condition.

Page 235



4.1

4.2

4.3

4. Ensure the appropriate quality of light is being provided by
replacing all lamps (where applicable) on a regular basis in
accordance with the timescale specified within this policy.

5. Develop a risk management strategy to undertake an effective
planned renewal programme for the replacement of obsolete and
life expired columns utilising the available budgets.

6. Ensure compliance with the Electricity at Work Regulations 1989 is
met by periodically tested and inspecting all llluminated Street
lighting units and rectifying identified defects.

7. Continue to develop further the management information system in
order to effectively manage the inventory.

8. The service will endeavour to reduce the carbon footprint of the
service in the following ways:

a. The purchase of low energy lighting units for all replacements

b. Installation of new energy saving equipment when necessary

C. Installation of dimming equipment in accordance with the
policy

d. Installation of part night equipment in accordance with the
policy

e. Installation of tried and tested equipment to reduce waste

f. Employ appropriate recycling of life expired components

g. Carry out timely repairs and maintenance

h. Bulk light source change (certain areas) on a four year cycle

i. Employ monitoring systems and night time inspections
Benefits of a Well Maintained Street Lighting Network

Lighting makes an important contribution to highway safety for both drivers
and pedestrians and enhances both the appearance and vitality of the
community. The introduction of the 1998 Crime and Disorder Act placed
an obligation on Flintshire County Council to develop and implement safer
community strategies.

The provision of modern highway lighting is one of the ways in which
Flintshire County Council can demonstrate its commitment to a safer and
more attractive community.

Analysis of highway lighting schemes indicate that they are a cost effective
solution to assisting in reducing night time road traffic accidents.

Page 236



5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

Maintenance and Management

The Highways Act 1980 defines Highway Authorities as responsible for the
road lighting on adopted highways or potentially adopted highways within its
administrative area.

This legislation does not require the provision of road lighting in every
location. However, where road lighting is provided, the highway authority has
a duty of care with respect to maintaining that lighting in a safe condition.

Maintenance standards are a matter for the authority to determine. The
two possible approaches for maintaining Street lighting are:

a. Planned Preventative Maintenance approach (PPM). This approach
involves regularly visiting assets to undertake routine maintenance
activities and replace key components (such as the lamp) even if
they are still in good working order

b. Reactive Maintenance. This approach involves visiting assets only
when they are known to have failed i.e. following notification of a fault

There are economic consequences with either option, however the
Council will adopt the following

a. ‘A’ Roads and other roads with a requirement for complex traffic
management arrangements to carry out street lighting repair work
e.g. dual carriageways - Planned Preventative Maintenance Approach

b. All other locations - Reactive Maintenance Approach

The policy when replacing life expired equipment and components is to
specify well engineered quality products so that the assets reliability is
improved thus reducing long term maintenance costs.

Faults will be identified by undertaking night inspections, during other
inspections and reports. The frequency of these inspections shall be every 28
days.

The standard for repairing faults within the control of the Council will be
defined into three groups

1. 3 working days for locations assessed as vulnerable, CCTV sensitive,
traffic calming, traffic sensitive or (speed) illuminated traffic signs

2. 10 working days for all other locations

3. Units owned by the Council but subjected to mains supply faults (i.e.
those not the responsibility of the Council) are governed by OFGEM
standards

This information along with reports made directly by members of the public
to the street lighting section is entered into the street lighting management
information system (Mayrise) and actioned

Page 237



5.8

5.9

6.1

7.1

8.1

All installations within Flintshire shall adopt a white light (low energy)
approach (where practical) and shall incorporate a dimming arrangement
by 35% from 2200 hrs to 0600 hrs each day.

Exceptions will be

o Known accident sites
CCTV Sites

e Sites where dimming the lighting results in the lighting level falling
below the level specified in the guidance notes for roads of that
category between those hours

Part night installations shall be installed at the following

Residential Estates

On rural and non-residential ‘A’ roads

On rural and non-residential strategic routes
On Industrial estates

The lights will be electronically timed to turn of between midnight and 0500
hrs each day location dependant. A residual lighting level will remain on each
road, based on the risk assessment

A risk assessment will be completed and the following groups or individual will
be consulted

N W Police

Local Member

T&CC Council

Internal FCC stakeholders

The service will take a proactive approach to managing the lighting
infrastructure, investigating new opportunities for improving the energy
efficiency and carbon footprint of the service.

Lighting Column Replacement

The backlog of replacements will be monitored through the inspection
process shown in 7.1 to ensure the inventory remains in a safe state of repair.
Any funds made available will be utilised to carry out replacement work
Lighting standard and improvements to the inventory

The Council cannot specify a particular or consistent standard of lighting on
any road or footway. However on new developments and regeneration
schemes the Flintshire County Council Street Lighting Specifications and
required standard of lighting shall be adhered to.

Inspection and Testing regimes

The Council will carry out a robust inspection and testing regime in
accordance including the following:

Page 238



9.1

9.2

9.3

10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

1. Evening driven inspections to identify faults — These will carried out
by the Streetscene out of hours teams on a rota which ensures that
every light is inspected every 28 days

2. Maintenance visit — These maintenance visits will be carried out
every three years by the area electricians. During the visits the
electrician will carry out a visual inspection of the components of the
light and clean / grease the unit

3. Electrical Test visit — These maintenance visits will be carried out
every six years by the area electricians. The tests will be in
accordance with the statutory requirements and the outcome recorded
and retained

4, Structural Test — Structural tests will be carried out by specialist
contractors. The columns will be identified following the maintenance
visit or by a programmed inspection regime of columns which have
exceeded their expected life expectancy

Town and Community Council Owned Lighting

There are variations in the way T&CC owned footway lighting is maintained
i.e. either via the County Council or through independent contractors. Where
the T&CC requests the Council to carry out the work, the lighting is
maintained to same standard as Council owned lighting. The lights will be
included on the Councils inventory and complaints regarding faults received
directly into the Streetscene Contact Centre.

Once an accurate assessment of each individual T&CC lighting network is
gathered, the Council would be in a position, if required, to procure energy
on behalf of the T&CC at the lower rate which is available to the Council.

Should T&CC'’s not currently utilising the Council to maintain their lights they
can request their energy procurement is made through this arrangements, a
full inventory gathering exercise by the councils electricians will be required.
The cost of this work will charged at cost to the appropriate T&CC. Once this
information is obtained, the Council Contact Centre can also take and pass
on fault requests to the appropriate T&CC on their behalf

Festive lllumination

Flintshire County Council will manage contractual arrangements for
Installations, maintenance and repairs on behalf of the Town and Community
Councils if asked.

Costs of the contractor and tender process will be bourne by the relevant
Town or Community Council with the aim of a reduction in cost due to
economy of scale. The actual cost including staff recharges will be passed

to the T&CC

All installations of festive illumination will require prior approval and inspection
upon installation from the Street Lighting Department.

Page 239



1. Adoptions to the Street Lighting inventory

The standard of lighting to be provided at any location will be required to
meet the Councils lighting specification and standard before it can be
considered for adoption into the Councils network.

The promoter will be required to submit their proposals to the Council for
approval before commencement of any work and will be subject to a final
site inspection prior to adoption.

In addition and prior to adopting any street lighting and illuminated street
furniture into the Councils inventory from any source a 10 year energy and
maintenance contribution from the scheme promoter, in the form of a
Commuted Sum, will be required.

The charge will based on the energy costs plus maintenance costs projected for the
10 year period.

Page 240



Agenda Iltem 8

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY 21 APRIL 2015

REPORT BY: CHIEF OFFICER (STREETSCENE AND
TRANSPORTATION)

SUBJECT: GRASS CUTTING POLICY

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01 To seek Cabinet approval for the County’s revised Grass Cutting
Policy.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 The County has a legal responsibility for managing the Highway
Network in terms of keeping the routes available and safe for the
passage of the highway user. It undertakes this duty in its role as the
Highway Authority.

2.02 “The Well Maintained Highway” - A Code of Practice for highway
maintenance and management dated July 2005, sets out
recommendations and good practice for the cutting of grassed verges
that adjoin the highway and for the maintenance of soft estate areas
owned by the Authority (Amenity Grass).

2.03 This Code of Practice recommends that Authorities should develop
local standards based on fitness for purpose to provide the level of
service required and maintain an assessment of the risk of this being
compromised by failure.

2.04 In December 2012 Cabinet agreed the current Council’s Grass Cutting
Policy and this revision includes the changes made necessary as a
result of the 2015-16 Business Planning proposals.

CONSIDERATIONS

Summary of changes to the current Policy are as follows:
Frequency of Cuts on Rural Highway Verges

3.01  The number of cuts on rural verges at non visibility locations will be
reduced from 2 cuts per year to one. The timing of this one cut is

variable depending upon weather conditions during the year but the
target date for the cut is June. The number of cuts at junctions and

Page 241



3.02

3.03

3.04

3.05

3.06

3.07

3.08

3.09

4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

visibility splays remains at 4 per year.

The current Policy requires a full boundary to boundary cut to be
undertaken once every three years to remove sapling growth etc. The
new Policy reduces this standard to one cut every four years.

The full Policy for grass cutting on rural verges is as follows:

Visibility splays at junctions 4 cuts per year

1 swathe widths on all principal roads 1 cut per year

1 swathe width on all non principal roads 1 cut per year

Full width verge cutting for weed and self sown sapling control
on all classifications of rural roads once every 4 years

All current standards for urban (within 30/40 mph boundaries) verges
will remain as the existing Policy.

Operational Arrangements

Currently the majority of grass cutting operations are carried out by in-
house Council teams, although some rural verges are cut by
contractors. This requires expensive plant and equipment to be hired
each year to enable the work to be carried out. In future all service
provisions will be market tested and procured from the most cost
effective source.

Two full Member and T&CC representative workshops were held in
March 2015 to provide feedback to Scrutiny on the new Policy. A full
record of all the issues raised at the workshops and the actions /
recommendations made as a result are shown in Appendix 1

The Workshop made recommendations on the following areas of the policy
which has been changed to reflect the comments:

e Providing a Single swathe width cut on principal roads
e Timing of the commencement of all grass cutting operations

The Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee reviewed the new
Policy at its meeting on 19" March 2015 and recommended
acceptance of the new Policy to Cabinet

A copy of the new Policy is attached to this report — Appendix 2

RECOMMENDATIONS

That Cabinet approves the County’s revised Grass Cutting Policy

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The reduction in service standard detailed in the new Policy will

Page 242



6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

11.02

11.03

12.00

12.01

deliver the savings detailed in the service Business Planning
proposals.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

No impact from this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

No impact from this report, although further work will be done to
assess if any areas of verge can be left to naturally grow to provide
habitat for wild flowers etc..

EQUALITIES IMPACT

No impact from this report.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None, although it is hoped to reduce the reliance on seasonal Agency
staff by extending the use of selected specialist and local sub-
contractors, some of whom are already being used on rural verge
grass cutting maintenance works.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

None.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

With Cabinet Member.
With Members and T&CC through Workshops
With Environment Overview & Scrutiny Committee.

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 — Feedback from workshop including comments received
Appendix 2 - The Councils Revised Grass Cutting Policy.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer: Stephen Jones
Telephone: 01352 704700
Email: Stephen.o.jones@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 243


mailto:Stephen.o.jones@flintshire

This page is intentionally left blank



Girg abed

cSwicrmy Fflint

Appendix 1 Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

Streetscene & Transportation Portfolio — Feedback from Policy Development Workshop (March 2015)

Policy - (Review of Grass Cutting Policy)

Suggestion / Challenge / Question

Response / Action

Principle roads — Views on reducing to 1 swathe width.

Grass cutting is important in rural areas as there are no footpaths and there’s
a danger of signs being obscured.

The single swathe width cut would be at least 1 metre and would constitute a safe
refuge for highway users; obscured signs will be identified and dealt with by the Area
Coordinator.

Important that areas are litter picked before and after each cut.

The new contract recommends that litter is picked prior to grass cutting and
stipulates that the area must be left free of any litter. This will be monitored by the
Area Coordinator.

The general view was that 1 swathe would be acceptable except in those
areas where the nature of the road presents a danger in terms of visibility e.g.
long straight roads would be ok but bends or winding roads could become a
danger.

These will be identified and risk assessed by the Area Coordinator and included on
the visibility cutting frequency.

The timing of the single full cut on rural verges.

June commencement acceptable, however flexibility is key dependant on the
type of season.

There’s a need to balance biodiversity and road safety and every effort will be made
to cut once the wild flowers have died away.

There were concerns that if all cuts begin at the same time, would the Council
have the resource to cope with it.

The use of external contractors would however remove this risk.

There was a view that rural roads are narrow to begin with, so less cuts or
delayed timing could make pull-ins less visible and potentially create a
danger.

Flexibility is key and the timing of this cut would be very much weather dependant.

Timing of the commencement of all grass cutting operations.

Debate around the need for contractors to be flexible and considerate of peak
traffic times.

The new contract included restrictions on traffic sensitive routes at peak times.

Full width verge cutting for weed and self sown sapling control on all
classifications of rural roads once every 6 years.

Generally it was felt that 6 years was too long between cuts as growth could

The new Policy will be amended and reduced to every 4 years.




9tr¢ abed

be fairly substantial during that time and volume of litter that would collect
behind this growth during such a significant period.

Has there been any liaison with Community and Town Councils regarding
cutting on two sides of road where FCC has cut one side and CC other

No however any suggested areas would be considered and if agreed included on the
contractors schedule.

Has there been any consultation with the in house conservation team.

Yes

Concern was raised that the likes of giant hogweed and ragwort would not be
controlled.

There is a requirement for noxious plants such as these to be controlled and
whenever collected will be disposed of safely.

Concerns around the volume of litter that would collect behind this growth
during such a significant period.

The initial proposal of a 6 year cycle has been amended and reduced to 4 years and
therefore this should have minimal impact. It is also the responsibility of the Area
Coordinator to monitor and deal with any litter related issues.

Utilise people on Community service.

This is being considered as part of the Alternative Delivery Model.

General comments not requiring an answer.

People need to change their views and get used to what is happening.

Complaints will increase but must work within constraints of limited budgets.

Important for County to look neat and tidy. Litter picking is an issue (A55
mentioned)

Comments passed to Trunk Rd Agency

Any cut needs to be a quality cut and as the client the Council would need to
have a good quality control and inspection process in place to ensure
compliance by contractors with the standards set by the Council.

Area Coordinators and Chargehands to monitor.

Destination management and implications on Tourism need to be monitored.




Page 247



This page is intentionally left blank



Flintshire County Council

1.00
1.01

1.02

2.00
2.01

2.02

2.03

2.04

2.05

2.06

BACKGROUND

The County has a legal responsibility for the highway
network in terms of keeping the routes available and
safe for the passage of the highway user. It undertakes
this duty in its role as the Highway Authority.

It is the duty of all Highway Authorities to reasonably
maintain and repair the highway and to keep the surface
of the road free from that which might otherwise obstruct
it or prevent its safe use.

CONSIDERATIONS

The “Well Maintained Highway - Code of Practice for
Highway Maintenance Management (July 2005)”, sets
out recommendations and good practice for the cutting
of grassed areas that adjoin the highway for grassed
verges and soft estate areas (amenity grass).

The Code of Practice recommends that Authorities
should develop local standards based on fithess for
purpose to provide the level of service required and
assessment of the risk of this being compromised by
failure.

The Code also recommends that Authorities should cut
the grass as follows on rural roads:

(a) on identified visibility areas

(b) to provide a pedestrian refuge by cutting 1 swathe
width (approx 1 metre) from the edge of
carriageway

(c) areas of highway verge should be cut back to
boundary every three years unless a positive
decision is taken to allow it to vegetate.

The code recommends that in urban areas, grass
cutting practice needs to involve a different balance of
highway safety, serviceability and sustainability.

The code states that using standards for rural roads
would deliver safe standards from a visibility
perspective, but length of grass, possible concealed
debris, and the potential for grass cuttings to block
gullies, suggests there is a need for a higher frequency
of cutting in urban areas. The frequency of cutting
needs to balance these priorities in contributing to
overall townscape management, taking into account the
needs of users and the Community.

On urban roads, litter picking is carried out before each
cut to reduce the risk of debris becoming potential
missiles thrown into the path of oncoming traffic, or
being left as unsightly shredded litter. On rural roads the
grass cutting is undertaken by contractors who are
responsible for ensuring that no litter is left after the
grass has been cut. This will generally be achieved by
undertaking a pre-cut litter pick, but, if necessary, the
contractor is required to collect any shredded litter
immediately after cutting.

Page 249

Grass Cutting Policy

GRASS CUTTING FREQUENCIES

3.01 Areas of grass will be classified into one of the following

categories
1. Roadside verges

2. Amenity Areas & grassed areas within the 30mph
Highway boundary

3. Public footpath standard

4. High Profile areas — adjacent to Civic Buildings etc.

3.02 The following grass cutting frequencies will apply:

1. Roadside verges Cut by tractor flail to a height of
approx 50mm —

Frequency:

Visibility splays at junctions
4 cuts per year in -
April
June
August
September/October
Remaining Verges
1 swathe widths on all principal roads
1 swathe width on all non-principal and unclassified
roads

1 cut per year in June (subject to weather
conditions)

Full width verge cutting for weed and self sown sapling
control on all classifications of rural roads once every 4
years in September/October

Additional cuts may be carried out on Health and Safety
grounds in specific locations if required

2. Amenity Areas & grassed areas within the 30mph
highway boundary

Minimum of 13 cuts per year as required
3. Public footpaths

A maximum of 4 cuts per year as required
4. High Profile areas

A maximum of 30 cuts per year as required

3.03 Removal of grass cuttings will only take place on

bowling greens and high profile areas if required.

4.00 HEDGES.

The majority of highway hedges are the responsibility of
the adjacent land owner. Where the hedge has grown to
an extent that it is causing an obstruction to the highway
user, notice will be served on the land owner to cut the
hedge accordingly. Highway hedges owned by the
Council will be cut once a year after the nesting season
has passed. All other hedges owned by the Council will
be cut as required.

Grass Cutting Policy: April 2015



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 9

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE:

TUESDAY, 21 APRIL 2015

REPORT BY: CHIEF OFFICER, EDUCATION AND YOUTH

SUBJECT: SCHOOL STANDARDS AND ORGANISATION ACT

1.00

1.01

2.00

2.01

2.02

2.03

2.04

2.05

2013

PURPOSE OF REPORT

The purpose of the report is to make Cabinet aware of the changes in respect
of school organisation decision making arising from the School Standards and
Organisation (Wales) Act 2013 (SSOWA) and for Cabinet to undertake the
executive functions as required from the changes contained in SSOWA.

BACKGROUND

Under previous legislation, namely the School Standards and Framework Act
1998, local authorities undertaking the process of published proposals and
giving anyone the opportunity to object to such proposals. If any objections
were received, the proposals would then be determined by Welsh Ministers.
The Welsh Ministers would then approve the proposals (with or without
modification) or reject them.

The school organisation procedure was reviewed by Welsh Government prior
to the 2013 Act. It was viewed by Welsh Government that the process took
too long and the involvement of Welsh Ministers in every proposal which had
received objections added an unnecessary level of bureaucracy, sometimes
causing significant delay.

It was found that most determinations made by Welsh Ministers took several
months, starting from the date on which the statutory notice relating to the
proposal was published, in some complex cases, proposals have taken over
6 months to determine.

The previous system allowed even a single objector without a direct interest
in a school to cause a referral to Welsh Ministers. This was considered
inappropriate by the Welsh Government. It was viewed that provision could
result in delays and uncertainty for local parents and children directly involved
with a school, whether or not they supported the proposed change.

The SSOWA repeals the various elements of existing legislation on school

organisation in Wales and replaces them with a single, comprehensive
legislative framework.

Page 251



2.06

2.07

2.08

2.09

2.10

2.11

2.12

2.13

New arrangements in the SSOWA are included which are designed to reflect
the impact of school organisation proposals in an area by ensuring that
decisions are taken at an appropriate level, in accordance with the level of
concern expressed by those most involved in the locality. The new
arrangements have been made to ensure that the vast majority of proposals
are determined at the local level resulting, in theory, for a swifter process.

Specifically, SSOWA provides for a statutory code, the School Organisation
Code (“the Code”), to deal with consultation and other arrangements,
modelled on best practice. Furthermore SSOWA removes the situation where
all proposals with objections are referred to the Welsh Ministers. Only those
proposals which receive an objection from a local authority or which are
connected solely with the removal or establishment of sixth form provision will
be referred to Welsh Ministers.

Local authorities, instead of Welsh Ministers, are required to approve or
determine most proposals which have received objections. Local authorities
are, despite the changes, still required to have consulted, published and set
objections periods as before.

The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Functions and
Responsibilities) (Wales)(Amendment) Regulations 2013 permit a local
authority’s executive to exercise this function of determining school
organisation proposals.

The Code states that, ‘Executives and/or Cabinets are already responsible for
overseeing school organisation planning, including decisions to consult on
and to publish school organisation proposals and will have a well developed
understanding of school organisation issues. This understanding combined
with more general experience of decision making and democratic
accountability to the local electorate makes executives well placed to decide
whether or not contested school organisation proposals should be approved’.

Under the Code the Cabinet could consider delegating its determination
function to locally agreed processes for taking such decisions. This might
include the formation of a local decision making committee potentially with
other local authorities in the region.

The recommendation is however that the function remains with the Cabinet
for the immediate future as the Executive is already well placed to make such
determinations. Currently no other Authority in Wales has delegated this
function to any other body.

Determination by Local Authorities places upon them the following
responsibilities:-

e That the determination process is fair and objective

e Objections are conscientiously considered alongside the arguments in
respect of the proposals and in the light of the factors to be taken into

Page 252



2.14

3.00

3.01

3.02

3.03

4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

account when developing and considering proposals

e Decisions must be issued in writing and published electronically,
setting out clearly the reasons for the decision

e Decisions made would be subject to potential challenge by way of
judicial review and consequently decision making has to be
procedurally correct, reasonable and rational, informed and robust

Decision making under SSOWA has received its first legal challenges. In
December 2014 a School Organisation decision undertaken by Bridgend
County Borough Council was set aside. Subsequently, the Minister failed to
support a proposal issued by Denbighshire County Council. The Bridgend
decision and subsequent Counsel advice to the Welsh Government have
effectively set clear expectations on documentation and evidence to underpin
decision making.

CONSIDERATIONS

The local authority’s constitutional structure and processes are already
appropriate in accommodating such decision making, with Cabinet identified
as decision maker for key school organisation decisions.

There would be no additional resource requirements if the decision making
function remains with Cabinet. There would however be financial implications
if the local authority were to delegate the function to a local decision making
committee. Such a body may require administrative costs, the services of a
clerk provided by the authority and there would be training requirements as
well as likely expenses for members of the committee.

The determination for school re-organisation, decision making will be less
onerous and time consuming than previous determination through the Welsh
Minister. However, developing evidence and consultation documentation to
support school organisational decision making may become more complex
and less accessible to communities following recent challenges.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That Cabinet note the changes concerning determination of school
organisation proposals.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Not applicable.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

School organisational change is part of our work to overcome the impact of
poverty.

Page 253



7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

11.02

12.00

12.01

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

School organisational change proposals are assessed fr environmental
impact.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

School modernisation:

= strives to provide equality of opportunity for all children to receive
the best possible education in Flintshire schools; and

= is focused on providing sustainable options for education in
Flintshire that meets the needs of children and young people now
and in the future.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

There are no personnel implications arising directly from this report.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

School organisational change requires statutory consultation with
communities.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

The decision making processes in this report have been discussed and
agreed with Flintshire County Council’'s Legal Services. The processes in
other Local Authorities have been recorded.

The Cabinet Portfolio Member for Lifelong Learning has considered the
requirements of the Act and supports the proposals within the Report.

APPENDICES
BACKGROUND | LOCATION | WEBSITE INFO.
PAPERS
All  documents | WG http://wales.gov.uk/docs/dcells/publications/130719-
pertaining to | website school-organisation-codes-en.pdf

this project are
available on the
Education web
pages.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer: Damian Hughes
Telephone: 01352 704135
Email: Damian.Hughes@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 254


http://wales.gov.uk/docs/dcells/publications/130719-school-organisation-codes-en.pdf
http://wales.gov.uk/docs/dcells/publications/130719-school-organisation-codes-en.pdf

1.00

1.01

1.02

2.00

2.01

Agenda Item 10

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY, 21 APRIL 2015

REPORT BY: CORPORATE FINANCE MANAGER

SUBJECT: 1R_(I)E)-VENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2014/15 (MONTH

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To provide Members with the latest revenue budget monitoring information for
2014/15 for the Council Fund and Housing Revenue Account based on actual
income and expenditure as at month 10 and projected forward to year-end based
on the most up to date information available.

INDEX OF CONTENTS

Section 2 Executive Summary

Section 3 Council Fund Latest In Year Forecast

Section 4 Carry Forward Requests

Section 5 Inflation

Section 6 Monitoring Budget Assumptions & Risks

Section 7 Unearmarked Reserves

Section 8 Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

Appendix 1 | Council Fund — Movement in Variances from Month 9
Appendix 2 | Council Fund Variance Summary

Appendix 3 | Efficiencies Summary

Appendix 4 | Movements on Council Fund Unearmarked Reserves
Appendix 5 | HRA Variance Summary

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The projected year end position, as estimated at Month 10 is as follows:
Council Fund

e Netin year expenditure forecast to be £1.716m lower than budget.
e Projected contingency reserve balance at 31 March 2015 of £4.657m

Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

e Netin year expenditure forecast to be £0.354m less than budget.
e Projected closing balance as at 31 March 2015 of £1.519m

Page 255



3.00

3.01

3.02

3.03

3.04

3.05

COUNCIL FUND LATEST FORECAST

The table below shows the projected position by portfolio which reflects the
Council’s new Operating Model which came into effect on 1 June 2014.

As previously reported, following the implementation of the Single Status agreement
in June 2014, extensive work has been undertaken to rebase all workforce budgets
to reflect the actual new costs arising from the new pay and grading structure. This
work is now complete and revised workforce budgets have now been allocated to
portfolio areas to meet the costs of their workforce establishment (base pay,
allowances and vacancies). The outcome of this work is now reflected in the
figures below.

The table below shows projected in year expenditure to be £1.716m less than
budget.

In-Year Over/
(Under) spend
TOTAL EXPENDITURE | Original | Revised | Projected
AND INCOME Budget | Budget | Outturn Month | Month
9 10
£m £m £m £m £m
Social Services 59.889 | 58.568 58.557 | 0.046 | (0.011)
Community & Enterprise 14.368 | 13.591 12.775 | (0.842) | (0.816)
Streetscene &
Transportation 28.381 29.485 29.619 | 0.158 0.134
Planning & Environment 6.394 5.806 5.596 | (0.165) | (0.210)
Education & Youth 97.167 | 96.539 96.811 | 0.046 0.272
People & Resources 5.395 4.901 4.895 | (0.008) | (0.006)
Governance 8.821 8.452 8.606 | 0.180 0.154
Organisational Change 9.738 | 10.027 10.174 | 0.109 0.147
Chief Executive 2.160 3.253 3.157 | (0.096) | (0.096)
Central & Corporate
Finance 22.863 | 24.554 23.270 | (1.406) | (1.284)
Total 255.176 | 255.176 | 253.460 | (1.978) | (1.716)

The reasons for all movements from Month 9 are summarised in appendix 1 with
the projected variances occurring for the year to date summarised within appendix
2.

Significant Budget Movement Between month 9 to month 10

Changes in revised budget from month 9 relate mainly to adjustments relating to the

Page 256



3.06

3.07

3.08

3.09

3.10

3.11

4.00

4.01

single status rebasing exercise and to workforce efficiency accounting adjustments.

The movement from Month 9 is mainly due to John Summers High School no
longer being progressed within the 215t Century Schools Programme as agreed at
Cabinet on 17t February 2015. Costs incurred on this scheme which would have
usually been classified as capital, as part of the overall delivery programme, will
now have to be met from revenue with the overall position that this has resulted in a
decrease in the overall revenue underspend by £0.250m in Month 10.

Programme of Efficiencies
Corporate and Functional Efficiencies

The 2014/15 budget contains £8.8m of specific efficiencies comprising Corporate
Value for Money (VFM) on Procurement and Back to Basics of £1.3m and specific
Functional VFM efficiencies of £7.5m.

The table below summarises the latest position for the achievement of these
specific efficiency programmes which includes a projected under achievement of
the VFM efficiency relating to the Review of Administrative Support.

The analysis shows that it is currently projected that £7.688m (87%) will be
achieved resulting in a net underachievement of £1.152m. Details for the current
year efficiencies currently projected to not be achieved in full are shown in appendix
3.

Value of | Value of
Status of Efficiency Budgeted | Projected | (Under) Over

Efficiency | Efficiency | Achievement

£m £m £m

Already Achieved 1.772 1.772 0.000
Expected to be Achieved in Full 4.917 4.917 0.000
Achievable in Part 2.101 0.999 (1.102)
Not Achievable 0.050 0.000 (0.050)
Total 8.840 7.688 (1.152)

Workforce Efficiencies

The 2014/15 budget also contains £3.1m of Workforce Efficiencies. The overall net
underachievement on all workforce related efficiencies (including admin support) is
£0.211m after taking into account lower than anticipated exit costs. This has
increased by £0.091m due to a decrease in efficiencies of £0.063m and an increase
in exit costs of £0.028m.

CARRY FORWARD REQUESTS

Governance — A carry forward for £0.019m is requested for software maintenance

Page 257



4.02

4.03

4.04

5.00

5.01

5.02

6.00

6.01

6.02

within ICT. The contract for Geographic Information System (GIS)/Mapping
products is to be renegotiated in 2015/16. The 2014/15 costs will not be invoiced
until a new contract is agreed. A number of options are being considered in April
2015 and the contract option chosen will affect the amount invoiced for 2014/15.

Previously agreed brought forward balances

Organisational Change — request to carry forward £0.049m in relation to online
payment for school meals. In 2013/14 funding of £0.083m was agreed for this
project, however due to capacity within ICT this has not yet been rolled out to all
schools. A balance of £0.049m remains from the initial agreed funding.

People & Resources — in 2013/14 a carry forward request of £0.010m was granted
for the purchase of Disclosure & Barring Service (DBS) software. The amount is no
longer required for DBS software however a change of use for this amount is being
requested as there is a development requirement for iTrent.

Governance — request to carry forward £0.046m for provision of Event and Log
Management solutions. In 2013/14 funding of £0.046m was agreed for the provision
of Event and Log Management solutions. Implementation has been delayed due to
ICT capacity.

INFLATION

Included within the 2014/15 budget are provisions for pay (£1.316m), targeted price
inflation (£0.590m), non-standard inflation (£0.670m) and income (£0.151m).

The amounts for non-standard inflation (NSI) (Fuel, Energy and Food) are held
centrally and allocated out to portfolio areas only where a funding need is
evidenced. Allocations of NSI have been made to departments where there has
been an evidenced need, this has resulted in an underspend of £0.156m on the
amount required for fuel, an underspend of £0.054m on the amount required for
food, together with an underspend of £0.065m on the amount required for Non-
Domestic Rates.

MONITORING BUDGET ASSUMPTIONS AND RISKS

Emerging Risks

e Recycling - The recycling market (paper in particular) is going through a
volatile period with fluctuating re-cycle sale values. This is likely to impact on
2015/16 recycling income levels for the Council. There is a risk of under
achieving 2015/16 income targets. Status: unstable/amber risk

e Contingency Budgets - £0.050m to £0.100m is potentially required to support
two sensitive multi-agency operations in child protection and adult social
care. One operation is concluding and the other is ongoing. Status:
unstable/amber risk.

Existing risks

Page 258



6.03

Out of County Placements — the risk is the volatility in demand and the
impacts on service costs which cannot be predicted. Service fluctuations are
being accommodated within the combined budgets of the Social Services
and Education Chief Officer portfolios in-year. Status: stable/amber risk

Former Euticals Site — the risks are the significant cost options for the
decommissioning, decontamination and clearance of the former chemical
site in Sandycroft and the cost burden for the Council. Monthly costs for
ongoing security and maintenance of the site are in the region of £0.030m
and are accumulating within the financial year. Costs incurred within 2014/15
for the phase 1 decontamination of the site are estimated at £0.800m. The
total projected cost for the whole operation, combining costs incurred to date,
phase 1 decontamination, and phase 2 site disposal, are in the region of
£1.7m. Negotiations with the Welsh Government have successfully led to
the award of a significant grant to co-fund the project costs. The Council can
now proceed with the two phase plan to close the risks to public health
through site clearance and disposal. A full report will be made to the April
meeting of Cabinet. Status: unstable/amber risk.

Schools ICT Infrastructure — the risk is the loss of schools income from
buying into the service due to a planned change to delivery of ICT in schools.
The new service model is at an advanced stage of planning with the full
involvement of schools and is to be adopted shortly with a good degree of
confidence. Status: stable/amber risk

Single Status — The rebasing of the workforce establishment budget is
substantially complete without any adverse impact on revenue budget
provision. Similarly the position of the single status reserve shows that it is
sufficient to meet any outstanding liabilities. Status: stable/green risk.

Council Tax — the risk is the volatility of the Council Tax Reduction Scheme
and collection rates as it is customer demand and compliance led. A budget
under-spend reported under Community Enterprise in appendix 2 and is
based on current usage patterns. Status: stable/green risk

Changes to previously reported risks (closed)

Workforce Efficiencies — the risk is the under achievements of workforce
financial efficiency targets. As reported to Cabinet in January the exercise to
review and readjust the targets, and build in the implications into the 2014/15
budget and the 2015/16 draft budget has been completed. The risk has been
mitigated.

Winter Maintenance — the risk is the additional cost of managing the
highways network should we experience a severe winter. At the year end the
winter can be classed as an average one which should mean that the budget
provision is sufficient. The number of planned salting turnouts exceeded that
required in an average year but this was cancelled out by the number of
snow affected days which was lower than an average year. The ring fenced
reserve will not be required and will need to be carried forward in to next

Page 259



7.00

7.01

7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.06

8.00

8.01

8.02

8.03

8.04

9.00

financial year. This seasonal risk has passed.

UNEARMARKED RESERVES

The 2013/14 final outturn reported to Cabinet on 15 July 2014 showed
unearmarked reserves at 31 March 2014 (above the base level of £5.834m) of
£5.328m.

This position reflected a contribution of £0.745m made from reserves as part of an
accounting adjustment for termination benefits arising from the workforce
efficiencies for the Senior Management Phase 1 programme. As budget provision
was made within the 2014/15 budget for this, this has now been transferred back
into reserves in the current financial year.

Section 6.05 of the 2014/15 budget report outlined the investment strategy required
to fund one off costs and transitional funding for efficiencies that could not be found
in full in 2014/15. This identified a potential £3.7m available to fund these from the
contingency reserve as well as utilising the Single Status/Equal Pay Reserve.

Currently it is estimated that £2.5m will be required from the Contingency Reserve
to fund the one off costs in 2014/15.

The Month 2 Monitoring report to Cabinet on 15" July also advised members of an
allocation of £0.696 from the contingency reserve to fund investment costs
approved under delegated powers.

Taking into account all of the above and the current projected outturn at month 10,

the projected balance on the contingency reserve at 31 March 2015 is £4.657m.
This is summarised in Appendix 4.

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

On 18t February 2014 the Council approved a Housing Revenue Account (HRA)
budget for 2014/15 of £29.886m. The budget provided for a closing balance of
£0.956m, which at 3.2% of total expenditure satisfies the prudent approach of
ensuring a minimum level of 3%.

The 2013/14 final outturn reported to Cabinet on 15 July 2014 showed a closing
balance at the end of 2013/14 of £1.662m.

The position at Month 10 is reporting an overall projected underspend of £0.354m
and a projected closing balance at month 10 of £1.519m, which at 5.06% of total
expenditure satisfies the prudent approach of ensuring a minimum level of 3%.

Appendix 5 details the reasons for significant variances.

RECOMENDATIONS

Page 260



9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

13.00

13.01

14.00

14.01

15.00

15.01

16.00

16.01

17.00

17.01

Members are recommended to :-

a) Note the overall report.

b) Note the projected Council Fund contingency sum as at 31st March 2015
(paragraph 7.06)

c) Note the projected final level of balances on the Housing Revenue Account
(paragraph 8.03)

d) Approve the carry forward requests as stated in paragraphs 4.01-4.04

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The financial implications are set out in Sections 3.00 — 8.00 of the report.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

The financial implications are set out in Sections 3.00 — 8.00 of the report.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

None

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

None

APPENDICES

Council Fund — Movement in Variances from Month 4 — Appendix 1
Council Fund — Budget variances — Appendix 2

Council Fund — Efficiencies not fully achieved — Appendix 3

Council Fund — Movements on unearmarked reserves — Appendix 4
Housing Revenue Account Variances — Appendix 5

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Page 261



Contact Officer: Sara Dulson
Telephone: 01352 702287
Email: sara.dulson@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 262



Appendix 1

COUNCIL FUND - REVENUE BUDGET 2014/15

cracos . FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
Fsllr y I;‘f.hnt
«Jﬂgm.!re Budget Monitoring (Month 10
Summary of Movement from Month 9
£m £m

Month 9
Portfolios (0.572)
Central and Corporate Finance (1.406)
Variance as per Cabinet Report (1.978)
Month 10
Portfolios (0.432)
Central and Carporate Finance (1.284)
Variance as per Directorate Returns (1.716)
Change Requiring Explanation 0.262

Social Services

Services For Adults
e Localities (Locality Teams) - Projected spend on purchased Domiciliary Care reduced by £0.011m. (0.027)
Projected costs in residential long term care reduced by £0.009m. Additional reduction in Nursing Long
term care cost projection of £0.020m. This reduction in costs is offset by increased projection of
Residential short term care costs of £0.005m. Plus net impact of increases in other minor variances of

£0.008m.
® Mental Health (Residential and Domiciliary Care) - Movement due to reduction in Residential Long (0.027)
Term care projected costs of £0.029m. Plus net impact of increases in other minor variances of
£0.002m.
e Other minor changes of less than £0.025m for Services for Aduits. 0.007
Subtotal: Services For Adults (0.047)

Development & Resources
e Other minor changes of less than £0.025m. 0.001

Subtotal: Development & Resources 0.001

Services For Children
¢ Family Placement - Movement to due to decrease in direct foster care support costs and Family

placement costs. (0.055)
e Out of County placements - increase of £0.060m due to changes to placement costs and new 0.060
placements. :
e Other minor changes of less than £0.025m. (0.016)
Subtotal: Services For Children (0.011)
Total: Social Services (0.057)
Community & Enterprise
Other minor changes of less than £0.025m.
e Customer & Housing Services (0.002)
® Regeneration 0.015
* Revenues & Benefits 0.016
e Customer Services (0.003)
Total minor variances of less than £0.025m 0.026
Total: Community & Enterprise 0.026

Page 263



Streetscene & Transportation Portfolio

Page 264

Appendix 1

Streetscene
Business Strategy - Commitment for Weir Consultants Service Review. 0.020
Other minor changes of less than £0.025m. 0.010
Subtotal: Streetscene 0.030
Highways Strategy & Traffic Services
Transportation - Commitment Challenge Budget reallocated back to service. (0.030)
Aggregate minor changes of less than £0.025m. (0.016)
Subtotal: Highways Strategy & Traffic Services (0.046)
School Transport
Other minor changes of less than £0.025m. (0.008)
Subtotal: School Transport (0.008)
Total: Streetscene & Transportation (0.024)
Planning & Environment Portfolio
Other minor changes of less than £0.025m.
Planning 0.008
Public Protection (0.017)
Highways Development Control (0.021)
Other Services (0.009)
Greenfield Valley Heritage Park (0.006)
Total minor variances of less than £0.025m (0.045)
Total: Planning & Environment (0.045)
Education & Youth
21st Century Schools
This cost represents charges and expenditure already incurred against the John Summers High School
replacement scheme within the 21st Century School programme. Expenditure would have been
* classed as capital however this scheme is no longer proceeding so expenditure is reflected within 0.250
revenue.
Subtotal: 21st Century Schools 0.250
Minor variances of less than £0.025m)
Secondary, 14-19 & Continuing Education (0.012)
Inclusion & Behaviour Support (0.022)
Out of County 0.005
School Planning 0.009
School Provision (0.004)
School Management Information - Minor Variances. 0.001
Youth & Community Service (0.001)
Total minor variances of less than £0.025m (0.024)
Total: Education & Youth 0.226



People & Resources

HR & OD
e Minor changes of less than £0.025m.
Subtotal: HR & OD

Corporate Finance
e Minor changes of less than £0.025m.
Subtotal: Corporate Finance

Total: People & Resources

Governance

Minor variances of less than £0.025m
e Legal Services.
+« Democratic Services.
e Internal Audit.
s Support Services.
Total minor variances of less than £0.025m

Total: Governance

Organisational Change

Leisure Services.

* Following February half term, the projected income anticipated to be received at Deeside Leisure
Centre for the Ice Rink was lower than envisaged.

Subtotal: Leisure Services

Valuations & Estates

£0.027m is due to an in house service relocated from third party accommodation to council building,

cost is due to the service meeting the insurance payment as this fell within the Council's excess.
Subtotal: Valuations & Estates
Property Design & Consultancy

o Reflects additional fee income identified.
Subtotal: Property Design & Consultancy

Facilities
o Increase in Catering income.
Subtotal: Facilities

Minor variances of less than £0.025m
e Engineering Services.

Total minor variances of less than £0.025m

Total: Organisational Change

Page 265

Appendix 1

this will result in an efficiency but this will not be realised this financial year. £0.034m relates to a roof
renewal following storm damage in connection with one of the Council's commercial units, the resultant

(0.007)
(0.007)
0.009
0.009
0.002
(0.007)
(0.023)
(0.001)
0.005
(0.026)
(0.026)
0.068
0.068
0.061
0.061
(0.037)
(0.037)
(0.048)
(0.048)
(0.006)
(0.006)
0.038



Appendix 1

Chief Executive

® Minor changes of less than £0.025m. 0.000
Total: Chief Executive 0.000

Central & Corporate Finance

® Pension Fund Contributions. 0.045
®  Workforce Costs. 0.026
*  Workforce Efficiencies. 0.066
® One-off Efficiencies. 0.030
® Non Standard Inflation. (0.158)
® Euticals - Phase 1 decontamination/Revised running costs 0.111
®  Other minor variances. 0.002
Total: Central & Corporate Finance 0.122
Total Changes 0.262

Page 266



(seo1nusg
Augesiq) saoniag

‘[oIAIBS Aungesiq - sinpy
‘malnal sapun daay|| sy o) pabieyd Bulaq sIasn 321AI9S MaU OM) 0) aNp si puadsisano ay | (2620 1€2°0 1902 0€8°L 10} S32IAIBS |BIDOS
(seo1nuag
‘WG.0°03 Aygesiq) seoines
Jo puadsiano pajosfoid |0} BU) JO WGGQ'0F 10} SJUNOISE SIy L Ayjgesiq pue
‘sjuawied joa1p Jo 10adsal Ul sjasapuad Aq papiacid syjuawabueue uoljisuel] - Synpy
"MaIAaI Japun daay voddns ay} Jo }s092 ay} 0} anp Ajulew s| puadsiano pajaafoid ay] [£60°0 5200 1190 9€5°0 10} S99IAIS [B120S
‘S39UBLIEA JOUIW 0} 8NP WZ00 03
J0 puadsiapun ue osje s| a1ay] "aJed Aep uo WZso 03 Jo puadsiapun
ue pue safjioe} aIedelX] U W9 03 Jo puadsiapun ue s|
alay] “(sabieyo Buuales Ajuiew) wggo 03 Jo SeInIBS @ salddng pue
(s1s09 sann Ajulew) w/90°03 JO SIS0 Sasiwald uo spuadsiono Aq (Juawajqeay
19s)j0 e spuadsiapun asay) ‘s}sod Aed uo w10 03 Jo puadsiapun 9 aye|)
pajoalosd e pue (w20 03 JO Swodul Juelb Yo-auo mau pue $32|118G pajeinbay
Wep |03 JO suonnquiuod Juald paseasdul Buieq) welg 03 Jo swodul Y S30IN0SAY - SYNPY
"M31AaJ Jopun dasy|(  [euolippe 0} anp WGE0 03 SO puadsiapun jau e sey aied |eRuapIsay|(z1z2°0) (012°0) 125°S LELS 10§ sadag [B1d0S
‘WEED 0F Jo puadsiapun
19U e 0} Junowe sasueueA JayyQ ‘Buisinu aaly J10) wgs| 03 Buipniou;
196pnq aAcqe BWwooU} U) S9SBaIdU| JayUny pue awoodu) pajelal Apadoid
1O |2AS)] BU} Ul 8seaudu| Ue 0} anp W zg 03 jo puadsiapun ue ‘siapinoid
awoy ases 0} syuawded uo w9l 0F Jo puadsiapun ue sapnjoul
yaiym ‘aled [enuapisal uo woy9 03 40 puadsiapun pajoafoxd e Aq
19syjo Bulaq s| a1ea Aue|jioiwop uo puadsiano pajaafoid Juesiubls ay |
‘eluawap yum ajdoad o siaquunu Buiseasoul pue pasu
Jo Ajixaidwon pasealdu ‘spyoid onessowsp buibueys ay) yuswasigeal
1sed |nyssaoans Buimol|o) ao1Auas ayy 0) Bujuinial sjua)a Ag pasuanjul (ssjes07) swea |
‘aje] AselIoILOQ UIYIM WYY 0F JO PUSASISAD JO [9A3] B|qRIS Aie) Ayeoo - synpy
"M3IAD) JBpUN daay||e sulewal a1aY) ‘JaAamOoy ‘Bale SIU) Ul Juswaaosdul [BIaA0 ue S| asdy L [pe1 0 1910 891 L0E VL 10} S2DIAIRS {BID0S
S3JAIDG [BI1D0S
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
Huon wnpno jebpng
pasnnbay uonoy asuepeA Jofel Jo asne) jseq adueMEA peysfoid posiey LI
aouelBA

¢ XIpusddy

AYVWIANS - 0L HLINOW

S35UBUEA puUnj [1IDUN0D

BUIGYUON 196pNg

Page 267



‘woeo03 jo
puadsiapun }au B 0} JUNOLWE S32UBLIBA JOUIW J3Y)0 SNOLBA "WEY | 0F
10 §HNOg WoJy awooul papuny juiol AQ 18S 4O WyOy'0 JO puadsianc

(seo1nuag

Angesiq) aoinisg
Auiqesiq pue syunpy
SlqeJaulnA - sjinpy

*M3IAR) Japun daa)|| a1e9 |efuapisal pue sabexoed aies pajosfoid Jualnd Jo SIS0 S)09|JoY| 2520 1€2°0 1902 0e8’L 10} S32IAISS |BIDOS
(a01nu9g asnsiy
aoueisqns g yyesy
*SUNO02 10 uosud wouy sanou jeyusiy) 18bpng
Hoys Je SpuewWwap pue s1aqunu Judy|d ul sabueys 2|SUBJ0- - S}NpY
0} anp A)|e|oA [enuajod - maiaal Japun daay| ‘G110z 10} sabexoed ated Juaund sjosyay|(zy L 0) (zv170) €210 GLE0 J0j SaIAIBS {BID0S
(@o1nuBg asnsipy
adueisqns g ylesHy
|Bjuapy) 8013
‘W00 0F JO PUSASISAO J8U B 0] JUNOWE S8oUBLBA Aejpiwoq pue
Joulw Jaylo snoueA "wge0 03 bul|elo) sisod abexyoed mau [euoiippe |enuapisay synpy
‘M3lAal Japun dasy apis Buoje sabeyoed Aejoiwog pue |enuapisay ul sabueyd | 6210 20L°0 G060 €080 10} SA2INIBS [BI00S
‘91/G10g wouy ainssaud 1eak jjn} panoidde {someoo)
Apuaoal ay) Jo yoedwi JeaA ped e sjoajial siyl (S70Q) Siuswssassy 10}euIpI0-00)
Buipsenbajeg salaq Jo uoneaudaq 4o} palinbal adiape |esipaw Buipsenbajes - synpy
‘malnal Japun dea)| pue yejs Aouabe Joj S)s0D pasealdul 0} NP S| dUBLEA 3SI9APE 9Y] [S90°0 1500 .20 1120 10} S92IAIBS |BID0S
‘WSSO 03 918 SPUadSIaA0 oUW SNP SSoUBLEA
‘syjuawaoeld papuny Julof WoJy awodu| [euolippe 0} anp AjUiew S| Ydiym
w el 03 jo puadsiapun pajasfoid e sey Buial pspoddns asnoy-u)
‘Bale SIY} Ul 91/G10¢ wouy Aouaioya 1abpngq mau ay)
analyoe 0} diay [iim gGHNDY WOJj PaAISdal SWOdUI MaU 8Y] "WLG003
10 puadsiapun Jau B 0} JUNOLWE SAdUBUEA JOUIW JBYI0D "W96Z 03
JO s]s09 yuawaoeld |eluapisal uo puadsiapun ue pue ‘sjuswase|d (seoinuag Alpigesiq)
papunj jutof paindsip Ajsnoiaald o yoadsas ul ‘'gHNDY Woly WEeZ 03 S92IAIaS pajenbay
J0 8wooU) jeuoippe jau Aq pasuanyul Ajutew s ydiym woy9 03 9 S82IN0S3Y - SYNPY
‘manal Japun daoy|| jo puadsiapun pajosioid e sey Buia] papoddng 10303 yuapuadapu|[(2€2°0) (912°0) 8v6 L +99°Gl 10j $301AJBG [B100S
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
gaon wnuno | jeBpng
patinbay uonosy asueuep Jofepy Jo asne) ise asueeA aoInIeg
aouepEA pejosfoid pasinay

Z Xipusddy

AYVANWNS - 0L HLNOW

SBOUBLEA pUNj 10UN0D)

BULIOHUOW 156pNng

Page 268



9v0'0  |(LL0'0)  |155°8S 895°85 S91Iag (21906 (€101
(s)ebaibbe)
SaoueUeA uaIpjiyd
‘JuaLINoal 8q 0} pajoadxa Jou INg MalA3J 0} BNUNUOD *S9OUBLIBA JOUIW SNOUBA|E0L°0 6100 9651 11571 10§ S30INIBS JBYID
*S)S00 yoddng g uojuanald
‘M3iAal Japun daay|| paiejal Juawabpnl }Jemyinos o} anp WESH 03 JO puadsiano payasloid|650°0 6500 2910 €0L'0 - S32IAIBG S,UaJpiIyD
sjuawaoeld
‘sabexoed aseo xa|dwod jo Auno) jo 1o
‘mainal Japun daay)| Jaquinu paseauoul ue Aq pasuanjyui Ajuiew s) puadsiano pajoaloid 8yl (6v2°0 0LE0 8€.°€ 8Zy'e - $90IAIBS S,UdIPIIYD
‘WG 03 4O PUSdSIONO 12U B 0} JUNOWE SSDUBLIEA JOUILL JBLJO SNOLEBA
(s@1D) seomuas Aujiqesiq pejelbaju| s,uaipiyd Joj wzol 03 Jo uoddng |euoissajold
‘maIAa) Japun dsay)| sjuswAed 10a11p paseasout 0} Ajulew anp si puadsiano pajoafosd sIy) (6L 0 8510 £8¢°G GZZ'S - S30IABS S,UdIPIYD
‘sJaled ay)
'$919uaI0IYa 3|qiIssod| Joj aouemo|e Bujobuo ue JoeiE AlELIBAUL YOIYM SISpI0 diysuelplens)
pue Bujuue|d ainyny WIOUI [|IM PUB PaISPISUCD je1oadg pue aouapisay Joj S1apJo UNoI Jo Jaquinu Buisealsul
Buiaq S YoIym JO BWODINO BY) USHEUSPUN [ay) O} NP OS[E S| SIY} JO Hed "82IAIas ay) Ulynm sjuawaoeld aied Jo)so) juswadeld Ajwe
u2aq sey Wea | Juswade|d Ajlwe ay} Jo MaIABI Y JO Jaquunu 8y} uj 8SEa10Ul UR JO }|NSal B S| pusdsiano w0z 03 8941|0920 5020 Eve leee - S80IAJBS S,UaIpliY)
(s1ebaibbe)
S90UBEBA S32IN0SaY
"Jualindal aq 0) pajoadxa Jou Jng MBIAB) 0} BNURUOYD *SSOUBLIBA JOU|W SNOUBA|220°0 0L00 19%°¢ ISY'Z 9 yuawdojanaq Jayl0
awoou|
- S90IAJ9G sSsauIsng
"yoam Jad GG3 0} yoam iad 063 woly des abieys wnwixew - $90IN0SaYy
‘M3IAS) PUE JOJUOLW O} anunuo [ay) Jo |oAS] By} ul Juswulano) Ys|apn Ag aseasoul ue jo joedw||(82Z0) (sLz2°0) (882°1) (e26°L) 9 juswdojanag
(a12621668)
Sa0UBLEA S)NpY
‘Jua.No3J 3q 0} Pajoadxa Jou JNg MBIABS 0} SNUNRUOD "S9OUBLIEA JOulW SNoueA [(Zot'0) (ZLy'0) 6ES°E 166°S 10} S80IAIBS JBUY)O
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
o wnuno | 1eBpng
pasinbay uonoy asueUe Jofep Jo asned ise aouBUBA aonIesg
aouepEA payoefoid PasiAay

ZXipusddy

AIVINNNS - 0L HLNOW

SBOUBLEA puny JoUN0D)

BULIOHUGH 196pNg

Page 269



asudiajug

(zvs0) |(o1g0) |siLzi L6S°ElL % Aunwwos |gjo)
‘WG 03 JO SIOUBLIBA JOUILW J3Y)0 0} anp Aouaioi3
‘WOG0'03 JO S108uu0)) anysiuld Jo 19adsal ul Aouaioyg awoodul

‘M3IAB) pue Jojluow 0) anujuos)|abieyoas uonesuel] ysan padnpal 0} anp aunssaid walLo03((2200) (080°0) G850 G990 S82IABS J3WOISNY)
*S9OUBLIBA JOUIW 0} anp Aouaioya W00 03 Jeak ay) ul
13)e| abueyd 0} Joafqns aq ued pue a|ejoA S| BaJE SiU) uo puadsiapun
ay] -|wayosg uononpay Xe] [Iouno) ay) Joj uoisiaoid payebpng
3y} uo WGz 03 Jo puadsiapun pajosfold "WESS 03 JO pund Uonda(|0D

"M3IAB) pue Jojuow 0} aNUUOD|Xe| [1PuUno) 3y} uo snidins pajediogue ue o) anp puadsiapuni(€e80) (218°0) 281L°01 66601 sjjauag g sanuanay
‘WO0 03 JO SBISUBIDIYS JOUIL JBYIQ "PION Ul SHIOM
J19)EA USI9M AQ paleqiaoexs ‘awooul JO SSO| Pue SJS0D [BAOWa)

*MBIASI PUB JOJUOW O} aNUiUoT)|alsem pasealoul 0} anp sia)Jew ul WIE0'03 JO |leloys payewns3|go0o €200 8050 S8Y°0 uonelauabay
‘Wz 003 Jo paynuspl
S3JUBLIBA JOUIW JAYIO "WZ.0°03 40 Juswdinba asessis | plulase)

"MBIAB] pUB Jo}uoW O} aNURUOD) J0 8duBUSUIEW puE aseydind ay} SPJEMO) S}SOD pasealoul|e£g80'o $80°0 1050 €Zv 0 a|doad Buipoddng
‘Sa2UBLEBA
JoulW JaYJo 0} anp WZpo 03 J0 puadsiano uy ‘w0 03 JO uawainooud
ddVHS Jo jo8dsas ul aunypuadxe MSN "WGZO'0F 4O Paynuspl
ssoussgwoH o0} uoddns |euopippy awodUl pund UONUBARI
ssajpuwloly pue suoposfoid uonepowwodde gwRg JO  uUolEN|eAD
-2J e Buipniou; UOHEPOWLLINDJY SS3|BWOH UO W|Z |03 Jo puadsiapun

pajewnsy "vyH 8y} woyj pund pounod) a3yl o) abieyosas yoddns jo S301M9S

"MBIABI PUE JOJIUOLW O} SNUNUOYD) [|9AS] JBMO| B 0) anp In220 o} pajaalosd sI wgzp 03 JO 1S02 [euoippe uy|(£20°0) (920°0) £66°0 6L0°L Buisnoy '@ Jawoisny

&m_unuv«:
_wQ::EEow
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
Lo wnyno jebpng
pasinbay uonosy asueueA Jolely jo asnen iseq ajueleA TV TS
soueLEA pajosfoid | pesiay

Z Xipusddy

AYVYANWNS - 0L HLINOW

S3oUELeA puny [19UN0Y)
BULIGHUOW 186png

Page 270



uonepodsues)

851L°0 vEL0 619°62 S8Y°6¢C '3 dUadS)BANS [BI0L

- alebyjw SIOUBLEA

0} 1dwaye 0} SJUSLUNWILLIOD ||B MIJABI O} anujuoD) ‘SaoueLeA JOUIN|[ZE0°0 1200 0911 6ELPL 13410 jo ajebalbby

‘pua JeaA jeioueuy Aq pajebiiw AjInj aq Ajnjadoy

|Im 2ouBLRA 0S uoyoaap aAlsod e ul Buinow os|e *saInso|d peol } (saiuedwos Ann Aq Jiedas jo spiepuels

S1 3WIOoU| "g pouad 1e aoue|jeg ol|ojuod %0Z3 Jo asn|Buraidun uo paseq) s,Ndd J0j awodu) Jo S|2As| pajedionue ueyl JoamoT{100°0 0000 1500 1$0°0 syJomeans
‘w0003
JO pPaylUSPI SEOUBLIBA JOUIW JBYIQ "PASIaA8) YOEF JO JUSWSBIIA
196pnq e | pouad 1y "S|aAs] Joeiuod Buiseasosp uo paseq paonpal

'91/510¢ 40} sjesodoud Buiuueld ssauisng jo yed Jauwwos ainypuadx] "siojesadQ sng o) siuswAed Apisans sng (€0 0) {(r20°0) Zre’L IR0 uofiepodsue. |
‘ainny ayy ojul 3509 Bujobuo *M3IADY DOIAIBS SJUBYNSUOD) JIDAN 40) Y0ZF JO JUBWWWO)

ajebiiw 0} 91/510z Ul paublieal aq 0 s1ebpng jodaq| jode( Iweyy je uoisircid AUNdag / wLely Jo 1s00 Aundag MO WBIUY | LED0 160°0 6L6°L 898°L ABajeng @ ssauisng
‘SL/F10C Ul §)S00 jany
‘uonedojje |SN ajelsodio) [e10} pajosfoud 1oy (Ajereiodiod pjay Apuaund 3/ /13 40 196png |ejo})

Aq pajebniw uaaq sey J0ELF Jo puadsianQ %0€ 1 3 JO uolejjul pJepue)ls UON Joj UOijedo||e 8y} sapnjoul WnunQ (0000 2000 (384 0.S'Vv S82IAI3gG 199(4
"WZ00 03 JO paynuap) saoueuea Joulw 1ayi0 “Buisealoul auuoy
"Jo8y§e JeaA (|ny 1o} Jad 109 3y} 0} anp %913 JO [esodsIp S)SBAA P00 JO 1S0D Pasealdu)
196pnq 91/510Z 40} paniwgns piq ainssald 186png ‘%983 Jo puadsiano pajosiosd e ul Buninsal

‘Pa|IY 39 M s)sod ay) asIMUBLIO ‘SBIJUBIBA si uoisiaoid 921as AleSSa95U BU) UIBJUIBL O} SBIDUBJEBA JO Jaquinu uonos}|0) ASEM

anowsal M g1/61.0z siesodoid Buluueld ssauisng| ybiy o) anp jpuuosiad Aouaby Jo asn pue SWIUSAC JO S)S0D [BUONIPPY|ZEL 0 $€1°0 G8S'/ \S¥'2 9 [esodsiq a1SeM

uopeyprodsuer]

Q auddIslPaNg

(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
it wnuno | 1eBpng
pasinbay uonoy asueLe Jolep Jo asnes) iset aJueUeA 9SS
soueLEp pajosfold | peswmay

¢ XIpuaddy

AYYWAINS - 0L HLNOW

S@OUBLIEA punj 1oUNOY)

BUNGYUON 196png

Page 271



JuswuoAug

(sar'o) |(orz'0) |965°S 908'S '8 Bujuueld ejoL
‘|losuo)

yuawdojaasq sAemybiH ui sjuauiwiwod Asueynsuo) Buiaowsas S3oUBLEA

‘Jua.INdai 8q 0} Pa}Oadxa JOU JNQ M3IASI 0} BNURUOD Ul |NySSa29NS Udaq sey abua||ey JuswWWwod J8yuny ‘gL pouad wv|0L0'0 (600°0) 9820 S62°0 12410 jo ajebalbby

‘uinyno pajoadxa ay) ul yed abejusH

"M3IAaI 0} nunuod| uojanpal e uj paynsal sey Buuoyuow ybnoiyy abusjjeyd Jusawyuwiwod| (10 0) (0z0°0) 6920 68¢°0 2 A3||eA playusal
‘AiBuipioooe palsjsuel) uaaq aney pue S}IoAA [ended

"Jua.4in2al 8Q 0} PaJoadxa JOU ING MBIABI 0} BNURUOD Se payluapl usaq aAey MOYd Uiyim ainjipusdxs Jo swas)l oy10ads|(200°0) (900°0) v.€°0 08€°0 Aepn Jo siybry olgngd

(uoneiauag

Aouoalg

pue sa)ig ||ypuen

'S)S02 |ejuay awdinb3 pue asueuajuiel g siieday buionpal paso|2 Buipnioul)

*SauIbug sec) 10} S|aA3T UOHBIBUSS) SWOU| JONUON Ul |NJssa22Ns uaaq sey abuajieys Juawwuwiod jayuny ‘0 pouad v|(610°0) (sz20'0) 1€0°0 2900 saoinag Abiaug

‘Buoyuow ‘ajep 0} sbuiaes yejs Jo aAIsnjoul aojuewiopsd 9

196pnq Aed Ajyjuow jo ped se pamairal aq |lIM uoneyuaws|dun snieys 9|6uig Buimojo) pajesojje 1abpng Aouesen |(640°0) (050°0) €620 80 yoddng juawabeuep

‘9oIAIBS BY)

ssouoe abuajjeys juswywwons uiejurew o} anURU0D uonejuswaldwi snieys ajbuis Buimojjo) payesojje syebpng|000°0 (210°0) 6v'e 605°¢C uoN99)0id 2qnd
‘paiojuow ‘0l pouad je paAiedal saa) ul

A[2s0|2 aq (|im S[ana) swoou| 884 Buluueld| uononpal Jubis B ym ‘sjqeLEA Ulewal awodu) 834 Buluueld Jo sieasT|(160°0) (£80°0) SpeL 8zZy’L Buiuue|q

JUBWUOIIAUT

w5 Buuuejd

{wr3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
tHuoW wnpno jabpng
pasinbay uopoy aoueLieA Joley jo asned isen 9oueHeA 99198
aoueLeA pajosfoid | pesmey

Z Xipusddy

AIVNNNS - 0L HINOW

SaouenenA punj 19Unoy

BunoyUG 15BpNg

Page 272



wnoA

9%0°0 [4241] 11896 6£5°96 g uogesnpy |ejo).
uoneuuo| 9
"M3IA3] Q) anuquo) “9ouBUBA JOUIN|(610°0) (810°0) S91°0 £81°0 awabeuep |ooyag
‘SaouBLEBA Joujw J3yjo snid ‘suonduasgns Jo ayeydn jo Buuayybi aouewsopad
*MBJARIJ O} anuiuo) "JJB1S |00YIS UM PAJBIDOSSE S)S00 B3] [euwss)xa ut uogonpay|(£90°0) (£90°0) 162°0 Y1E0 8 Bujuoissiwwo)
"M3IAB) 0) 3NURUOY ‘9ouBpeA Joul|(2000)  |(€000)  [8LY'L Lzr'L S92IABS UINOA
*aNUaA3L UIYIm pajoayal
st ainjipuadxa os Buipaasoid Jabuol ou s awsyds siy} Jaaamoy [ejded
Se passe|o uaaq aAey pjnom asnyipuadxy ‘awwelboid jooyos Aunuan
1S|Z dY1 UIyum awiayos juawade(dal jooyos ybiH siswwng uyor ay)
1surebe paunou; Apeadje ainjipuadxa pue sabieyd suasaidal 1s02 syl |000°0 0s2°0 ILE0 1900 sjooyos Anua ISz
(uoisinoid @ Buiuuelq
*M3IA3I 0} 3NUNRUOD) ‘aoueLep Jouln| L1000 900°0 22l 0 9120 JOOY2S) $S820Y
‘Aenuer Buunp pasieas alam ¥/ 13 jo sbuines Buiyels yge3
J0 1502 JayuUNy & pajeald sjuald g jo yoddns | o} | ul asealdsul ue siy)
0} uonippe u| “Jaquanop Buunp paalasal asam juswaoe|d Buibiawa
ue pue sjuawase|d mau g 1a6pnq Siy) pajoaye Ajasiape 1aqojoQ
‘anunuod |Im Buuoyuow pajeyag “1eak| ul sjuswadeld Auno Jo INO mau g suondalosd o) abueyd jueoyiubis
ay) noybnoiy) abueys Aew sjuswaseid uoneonpy B 9yew ued juawsaoe|d [euonippe auo pue }abpng s|nejoa e s siul|oLL'o €600 90E'EL €1LZEL S9OIAIRS UOISN|oU|
uoneonp3 Buinuguo)
“MalA3) Q) snuuo) ‘S3ueleA JOUINIGLO0 2000 9L9¢€ 6€4°9¢€ 2 61- ¥1 ‘Arepuodag
‘Bujobuo si yoddns Aiosiape Juswapnua Aues
10 swisiueysaw AIBAIIRP 8y} JO MBIASI JBYUNH "aLwf} Jayoesa) %0 ay} uoieonpy siea
"MBIABI 0] BnuNUOD| JBA0D O} Juswanug Ael o) Juelb aseyd uopepuno Jo uoiesoleay 0000 0000 988'ch 088t Aue3 g Aewud
Yino,A 'g uojjeanpg
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
puoy
pasinbay uopoy asueueA Jofe jo asnen Jsen asueUBA SATRIO, 19Bpng TV ETS
asueyep pepajold | pasiey

Z XIpusady

AIVYWANS - 0L HLNOW

SBJUBLIBA punj [I2UN0D

BUUOYUGH 18BpNng

Page 273



08L°0 $S1L°0 909°8 A4 32UBUIBAOE) |B)OL
"WQQ0’'03F JO SpUadsIaA0 Jouiw
0} anp sI asuefeq ayl '8z0"03F jo yuud [eyubip uo awosul snidins pue
wse L 03 Jo sbulaes Aouedea Aq jasyo Buiaq aue s)s0o asay] ‘w0z 03
‘Ajuo|jo s1s00 AousbBy Jo }s0D BY) pue wWggQ 03 Joj 1ebpng asemyos ay)
1eaA-ul SI MalARl BpoRIOQ By 0} anp ainssaid ayj (uo ainssaid e ‘WO 0F JO MBIASL 9SUDIT 9j9BIQ O} 3Np SI pUadsIBn0 (9900 990°0 €92y 6LV 101
yuawabeuepy
‘JualINJal aq 0} Pajoadxa JoU JNg MaIABL 0} SNURUOD) ‘SaoUBLIBA JOUIN|120°0 12070 68L°0 891°0 SpJ02aYy
"JualiNdaJ aq 0) Pajoadxa JoU JNg MBIAB] 0) BNURUOD) ‘saoueLBA JOUIN{(S20°0) (0z00) 9690 9120 saojnag poddng
"JUB1iN%a1 2q 0} Pa}Iadxa JoU NG MBIASI 0} BNUKUOD ‘saouBLEA JOUIN| 1000 1000 6120 8120 JUSWaIN20Id
"Jua.INd31 8q 0} Pajoadxa Jou NG MaIAB) 0} BNURUOD ‘saoueuep JouIN|(110°0) (zL0°0) 20t°0 AN A Ipny |eussiy)
*S3OUBLIBA JOUIW O} 8NP aJe w( L0 03 J0 spuadsiapun
-19)s162. |B10103])9 By} JO} SWOodUl WEON'0F JO JUSWSASIYIR JBAD pue
1ebpng Busules; sJaqwaw 8y} U0 wWOZO 03 JO puadsiapun ue ‘s}s0d
“JualIN2al aq 0} pajoadxa Jou NG MaIAal 0} anunuo) [Buisseaued uo wy/L0°03 JO puadsiapun ue 0) anp S| aoueueA 3yl |(Zeo'0) (s50°0) v26°L 6/6°L S92IAI9G JneIdowWa(q
‘wogo'03
“Jeak |etoueul sy} Joj 1500 BuLunNoal|jo $1S00 Aouaby "Wz 03 JO SSOUBLIBA JoUIW JBY)0 0} anp puadsianQ
-uou yjo-auo e s sabieyo pue| punose uoiebi|-sabieyo pue| [eoo) punote uonebiy 0} anp wigL0F Jo ainssaid v|09L'0 €51°0 €160 092°0 s301ag |eba
JULUIDACDH
S32IN0SY
(8000)  |(9000) [se8'¥ 106’V 3 aidoad |ejoy
"MBIAB 0) 2NURUOD "saouenep Joun((oe0'0)  [(120°0)  |2rve €9 aoueuld ajesodiod
"MBIABI 0} aNURUOD ‘SadUBLIBA JOUIN|Z220°0 SL00 £sv'e 8EV'C aoydH
sa2unosay 1 ajdoad
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
SHeon wnuno | 1eBpng
peainbay uopoy asueLep Jofepy Jo asned ise asueURA LTIV TS
aoueueA pejoalold | pesiay

Z XIpusddy

AYVINNNS - 0L HLNOW

S30UBLEA punj 19UN0Y

BUDGHUO 196pNg

Page 274



abueyn

60L°0 FA4 %] vLL0L 120°0) |euopesjuebiQ jejoL
's|o0yos Buluiewals 0y Ino INoj|os
3y} SNUNUOD 0} g1°G| 0} JaA0||01 0} pajsanbal WeH0'0
J0 @due|eq Jualnd ‘WEGN'0 JO 1 °¢ 1 10} Buipuny
paalby - sjeaw jooyds Joj Juawded asujjuo g 610 ‘30UBLEA ||BJBAO 3Y) 0} Buinguiuod awoou) buuaie) ul aseardu|{(120°0) (690°0) 1181 9881 S92IA18S saljioe
"M3IABI 0} BNUUOD "9ouBLIBA JOUIN([110°0 5000 {(280°0) (£80°0) saoinag Buussuibug
"aWodU] JO SSO| JasY0
0} payhuapl uaaq sey (WdD) @oueuajuiepy Auadold ajesodio) woly
-ainssaid Buuinoal uou e S| siy) 'ajgissod|  awooul 985 [RUOHIPPY * AJEPU0JSS SISLIWING UYOf O} Payul| SWwooul Aoueynsuo)
alaym Jeak-u| s)S0D 3oNpal 0} USYE) UBA] Sey Uonoy Jo sso| pajedionue o) sajejas WO 03 Jo puadsiano pajoafoud ayy|/zL 0 0600 ov6'e 0s8°'Z g ubisaq Auadoiyg
*S3OUBLIEA JOUIW
0} anp s| W g0 03 JO puadsiapun Uy "SSIDX3 §,|IoUNOD 3y} UIYIM
113} siyy se uawAhed soueinsul ay) bunaaw aoinas ay) 0) anp st }S0d
JUB)INS3J By} ‘SHUN [BIDJBUIWIOD S,[IDUNOY) SY} JO BUO L}IM UOHI3UU0D
ul abewep wuo)s Buimoljo) EMaUaI JOOI B 0} Sa)efal WyED 03 JO
puadsiano uy “ieak [eroueuly sy} pasieal aq Jou |Iim siy} Ing Aua1olys
ue ul ynsal jim siy} ‘Buipjing (1ounod o} uonepowwosde Aued payy
*ainssaid Bulunoal e jou si SiY] | Wwosy pajedojal adIAK9S aSNOY Ul UB 0) anp S| W/ Z0'03F Jo puadsiano uy|(1z0'0)  |ov00 (¥¥6°0) (¥86°0) saje)s3 %@ uolenea
‘9ouBUBA ON|000°0 0000 0900 0900 sjessy Ayunwwo)
*SQOUBLIEA J0UIW
0} sajejal WEEQ 03 JO aduejeq puadsiano ay] (wggQ 03) pabesiaua
UBY) JaMO| SEM YUIY 9] ay) 10} B1)UaD) 2INSIaT 9pISA( Je Panladal
"aWooul uo j|ejuoys o) se suoseal ajebnsanu||  3q 0) pajedionue awoou; pajaafoid ay) ‘uua) jley Aenigad Bumoo4|eco0 1010 €0Z'v FAV R % $321A19G 3INSIaT
‘MBIAR) O} BNURUOD ‘22uBLEA JOUIN|(500°0)  |(S00:0)  [6v20 LA saniyauy Aunod
‘M3lAa1 0} shuuo) "9oueleA JOUIN|((00°0)  [(#00°0)  [8S0°0 2900 3JIBG swnasniy
S)uang
R 24NN ‘sUy
"M8lABI 0} ahuRuo) “aoueleA Joul|(110°0) (Lo0)  |es8L ¥88°L '3 saueiqi 2lignd
abueys jeuonesiuebip
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
e wnyno jebpng
pasinbay uondy aouepeA Jofep Jo asned ise aoueHeA aonIes
souepEA pajosfold | pesiay

Z Xipusady

AYVAINNS - 0L HLNOW

S30UBLEA puny [1OUN0)

BULGYUON 195png

Page 275



‘S99) Jipne
JEOLIOISIY O} UOIB| Ul PaAISOal uaaq Sey wyg /0’03 JO sleqal JJo auo y
‘WSO 03 JO SUOHNLIIUOD punj LOISUSY

"WG/€£°03 J0 awooul |[ejpuim sjelodio] "WQGL Q3 JO suononpap ajuls
‘pasinbal Jou wg/Z 03 Jo uoneyul psepuels uoN “Buuopuow jebpng
$0 yed se soljofiiod ulyIM payRUIP! WOEY 03 4O SIIdUBIOIS Jo BuQ
'81/210Z 1un uibaq jou [|Im s|ooyas

AInusd 151z Uo YN ‘feuonelado au100aq S}9SSE au) Jaye Jeak au)
suibaq pue jasse aU) Jo aJl| ay) saA0 peauds s| Buimosog fenuapnid
Aq papuny sjasse uo gy 2ouepinb y44iD Him asueploooe

ul pamainal uaaq sey Aoljod Bununosoe dyy “siuawalinbal
Buimo.log pue saAlasal ainyny Jo [9A3] au) pue swweibod
jusWwIsaAul ainny jo joedw ‘Juswuoipodde jsalsiul Buipsebal
aonoeid Bugunoooe ‘wuojal Apisgns yyH Buipsebal sapuiepasun

se yons si0joej Auew Aq pajoaye aq ued siy} ‘JaAaMOH "W/ Gh 03 aosueulq
malnay Japun dasy 10 puadsiapun pua Jeak pajaalosd Juswisaul pue sueo |enuad |(90y°L) (¥8Z'1L) 042°€C vSSve ajeiodio) R |eU3D
ERDTE]
ajesodiog g jenua)
(960°0) |(960°0) |i51°€ £52°¢ S9AIN2aXT JAIYD |e10L
‘S9OUEBLIEA JOUIW 0} aNp S! W0 03 JO dduejeq ay |
‘SjUSWIWIWOD aInyipuadxa Jo [eaowal 3Y) 0} anp sI Wzy0 03 ‘papuny
JueiB aq mou {Im Yolym S)S02 JO uoljedojeal e 0} anp S| puadsiapun
"MBiABJ 0} BNURUOD[SIY} JO WELD'0F "WSS0 03F JO puadsuapun ue Bumoys st iun Aollod @yl |(9600)  [(960°0)  |/SL'E €52 SaMIN0aXJ JaIyQ
SIAINI9XT JOIY2)
(wy) (w3) (wz) (w3)
s wnuno 1ebpng
pasinbay uoyoy asueLieA Jofe jo asnes ise JdUBLIEBA LTV T
asuepeA pejosfold | pesiay

¢ XIpusddy

AYVNNNS - 0L HLNOW

Sa3UBHeA puny |FoUNoY)
BuLGHUOW 196png

Page 276



(86°L) (o1L'1) 09¥°€ST 9L1°55¢ IV10L
3oueul4 ajesodio)
(gov'1) |(v8Z'L) [oizez $SS've B [enuag |ejoL
‘WEO0'03F JO SpuadsIano Joulw 0} anp S| soue|eq
3y -ays Youohpues - Py S[ESNNT JSULIOY O} UOHE|BI Ul WO 03
JO S1S0D uojeulweuodap | aseyd Jau pue w103 4O S)sod Buiuuny
pajebpnqun ‘pajw) awly / Jo auQ "W L. 03 JO SIS0 JUSWISSAU|
uo daueleq pajedionue ue Aq J9syo Ajued S| SaIOUBIIYS BANBASIUIWPY
2y} JO JUBWIBABIYIE JAPUN BU] "MSIASI 3210)40M Jayuny pue
suonesydde Asuepunpay Auejunjop ybnoayy passiyoe aq o} pajedionue
‘Bupoyuow Ajyuow aJe s319uUsidIe 3NNy Ybnoy) Saj0) SANBASILILLPY JO MBIASI BY)
Buiob-uQ "swweiboid Aouepunpay Aejunjop| 10) WOBE 03 JO JUSLWIBABIYDRISPUN UB Yynm Jayiabol GL/pL Ul wiS0 03 (penunuoa) asueuq
8y} Jo aseyd Jayuny e uni 0} ssaJ601d Ul MOU SIIOAA|  JO JUSLLBASIYDEIBAD UE 03|13 MOU PBASIYOR SSIOUBIONYS S3I0IOA ajesodio) 9 [ehuUs)
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
RN wnpno | 3eBpng
pasinbay uopoy asueuep Jofey jo asne) iseq douepeA - LITN TS
soueep pajafoid | peswmey

Z Xipuaddy

AYYWNNS - 0L HLNOW

S@OUBLEA puUny JIoUNoy
BULIOHUG 18bpng

Page 277



Page 278



€ XIpusddy

Jzor

1 iesoL ]

*9AIaSal aY) Woyy
aibuig o) anp Agjep ayl ‘AN |nun pajsiep aq ou

8Q 0] 9|qe J0U SEM MIIASY 82IAIDS 3lY) asnedaq
ajgeAaiye aq o} A@xilun si Aouaiowa ay) Jo UizL/L

papuny uaaq sey (Aep g Jdy) uonejuswsidun snielg

pInoa sjsod jey) juesw sy AN pun pajuswaidun €200

‘sjuswabue.Lie JaA00 pue sejoi o} sabueyy - ainsia

| abuey) |euoyesiuebiQo

‘01 YIUOW Je woy0°03 0)

Jouiw ybBnoayy 1eak ayy Inoybnouy) Ajipes)s paonpal
sey |lejioys 8yl ‘w0 03 o} liepuoys Asusialye ay)

saseyd YA SNOUBA 8} WO SIBAES| JO Jaqunu ay)

ay) jo uonaidwiod o} 1oalqns Ajeniul asem sbuineg

WwOPp 1 03 feniul ue wouy oijojuod ayj SSOI0e S3OUBLIEA

Buionpal ui pajsisse aaey asay) ‘Jeak ay) noybnosyy

0} anp ‘1anamoH ‘G0z Aenuer | Aq mainay 8oiAIas

[=]

00

-salb1auls uo suoilepusWWOoIal jBLL [iM SEAJE
901AI3S OM] BU) Jo onsoubeip Bulobuo ay) - seoneg
pajejay sAemybiy - uoyepodsues| R ausas)eansg

uoepodsuel] 9 8usdsiaallg

‘91/510Z Wouj € seyd Jo Aianyap 1o)
wsiueysaw pasodosd ayy ym Jayyabo) lequisydag
ul JauIgeD) 0} pajuasaid Sem MaIAsY 1a3]4 ay)

10 g pue | aseyd Jo uonejuawaidw ay) uo podal v

000

(SL-7102) malral
198|4 WOJ4 S810UBDIYS JO BoUB(Rg )83l - BUBDS)eaANS

uonepodsuel| g 8usds)sallg

“Buizisiybing
ay) Jo Jed se pamainal Buiaq smainsy SYHO3

€20°0

‘sasnoy Buial papoddns ¢ Buizisiubry
- S32IMBS [enuapisay Ajunwiwo) pasueyus - Q1

$901A18G [2100S

'S8I0UBIDIYT MBINBY UILPY JO}) )as Jable) pasinal
B pUB passaippe uaaq SABY S3I0USIIYO I00M
paasiyoeun (e 386png 91/5102 8y} Jo Wed sy

986°0

‘ABojouyoa) panosdun
10 Jnsal e se $9558204d / S8|01 UILPY |18 JO MaIray

aoueuld ajeiodion g [enuad

(w3) panayse

WUNJ] Ay} JO 3INNy BY) 8J JUSLISIUNOUUE [BUISIUIN

paaajyae Bujaq Jou Aouajaya 1o} uoseay 1ou Asueio3 uonduaseq Aouaidy3 ojjojuod
1yvd
NI 3T19VAIIHOV AON3IDI433
| | oso0 | | resol]
“93foud ‘qnH peoy junil
2y} pa||els sey syuswabuene Juawabeueyy peoy  |0S0°0 S8jEAA 3N 84} YUM JUSWSAJOAU] WOJJ Jjauaq [Beloueuld uoneuodsues) g auadsiealls

UONEIJ0SSY PEOY YUNJ] SB[BA YUON - 8USDSI9alsg

panaiyoe Bujaq jou Aouso1}je 10} uOSEaY

(w3) pansyyoe
jou Aouadiysy

uopduasaq Aousydiyly

oljopiod

T9VAIIHOV LON AONIIOI443

SapushHI
BULCHUO 196png

Page 279



Page 280



APPENDIX 4

Movements on Council Fund Unearmarked Reserves

Total Reserves as at 1 April 2014

Less - Base Level (inclusive of reduction of
£0.065m agreed as part of the 2014/15
budget)

Total Reserves above base level

Less — estimate required from the amount
approved as part of Investment strategy as
per budget 2014/15 report

Add - Contribution from investment costs for
termination benefits accounted for in
2013/14

Less - Amount approved under delegated
powers reported in July 2014 monitoring
report

Amount available for delegation to Cabinet

Add projected underspend as at Month 10

Total projected Contingency Reserve as
at 315t March 2015

Page 281

£m £m

11.161

(5.769)

5.392

(2.500)

0.745

(0.696)

2.941

1.716

4.657



Page 282



(rog0)  [(¥se0) £VL0 160 :ejoL

(s1ebaib6e)

*MaIA3l Japun doay] *S9oUBLIBA Joulw snoueA|(Z10°0) (850°0) 16512 SSyLe S9IUBUEA JBUIO
‘Jeak ay} Jo Japulewsal ay} Jo}
Jsod ay) puny 0} pasn aq jjim 396pnq sy}
0} paynioas ase sjsod asuQ paj|y Buleq

*MaIAa) Japun daay) 194 10U sysod 0) anp sBuiaes Aouedea [(SeZ'0) (sez'0) 000°0 GE2°0 sbuineg Aoueoep
ebpnq
uey) alow ygeF buteq wnpno sieak
1se| Je Jseoalo} 238 sylj/sbuipiing vyH
|esauab uo s)S00 aoueusUIR B Slieday
‘M3IABS B0IAIBS By} 0] anp 4GGF Aq asu

*MaiABl 1apun daay 0] pa1oadxa aJe $)s0D adIAIBS UBPIRS) (2800 8/0°0 806°0 0£8°0 S30IAI2G pIojpue
‘Y963 JO awooul padnpai e ul buynsal
al0j218y) ‘sjueus) Aq peousuadxe sanss]
JUNO2J2E 0] Ul 8YE} 0} POPUSWE JORIJUOD

*MOIAB) JBpUN dav)|| pue pamaslAal usa(q Sey a2IAI8S Usples)|soL 0 SOL0 (609°0) r1L2°0) awWooU| |elauas)
‘19 SYdH
paonpal ue ul bupnsas a10j01ay| “ISIED
syywg ) Bumas 196pnq 1e pauodal ueyy
1amoj si Juawale |ended ay) Jey) sauiuapl

"M3IA8] JBpun daay uolssiwgns Apisgns jo uonenoed|(68L°0) (681°0) 512'9 ¥0¥'9 Apisang
"sajes ploA ybiy oy snp

‘Ma1na) Japun daesy)| psjedionue uey) semoj si swodul sbelen|(560°0)  [(550°0) (89/°22) (€12°22) sy

(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
YJuoy
palinbay uonoy 22UBHIBA JO asne) jseq asueleA bt ) 3ebpng ERITVETS
- : 2 SoLIB|EA y peojoafoid pasinay E

§ Xipuaddy

0l pouad - poday asueuep JoleiN VYH

Page 283



Page 284



Agenda Item 11

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY, 21 APRIL 2015

REPORT BY: CHIEF OFFICER (COMMUNITY AND ENTERPRISE)
SUBJECT: HOUSING BENEFIT OVERPAYMENT POLICY

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  The report seeks the approval and adoption of Flintshire County
Council’s Housing Benefit Overpayments Policy 2015.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01  An overpayment of housing benefit occurs when a payment of benefit
is made when there is no entitlement to this payment.

2.02 They can occur for many different reasons including:

e Failure or delay in reporting changes in circumstances

e Official error on the part of the authority or agency of the
Department for Work and Pensions (DWP), either through
mistakes or delays in processing

e Detection of fraudulent claims and payment irregularities

e Delayed receipt of income, such as an award of a state benefit
including initial lump payment of arrears

2.03 The Council must seek to maximise recovery of overpaid Housing
Benefit in accordance with the Authority’s legal responsibility and it's
duty to protect public funds in accordance with the Housing Benefit
Regulations 2006 and the Housing Benefit (State Pension Credit)
Regulations 2006.

2.04 Although the recovery of Housing Benefit Overpayments is included in
the Council’s Fair Debt policy, due to the specific nature of the debts
and the guidance from DWP around recovery options, it is important
that these are detailed in a separate policy.

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

3.01 It is a DWP requirement that Flintshire County Council demonstrates
that it carries out administration and recovery of Housing Benefit
overpayments efficiently and effectively.

By doing this, the Authority:
e Reduces the loss to public funds

Page 285



3.02

3.03

3.04

3.05

4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

5.02

Provides revenue for the Authority

Helps reduce subsidy loss from overpayments

Deters fraud and error

Demonstrates the Authority’s commitment to accuracy and
provision of a quality service to it's customers.

The Benefits Service is committed to reducing the levels of
overpayments by ensuring the accuracy of decisions and the
timeliness of actioning changes in circumstances, whilst also
promoting the requirement for customers to promptly advise the
Department of changes in their circumstances.

Although all efforts are made to minimise overpayment it is inevitable
that overpayments will occur. The Authority takes its role in protecting
the public purse very seriously and the overpayment recovery process
makes a significant contribution to this.

In developing this Policy, consideration has been given to the merits
of specific cases and the need to exercise discretion in a fair and
reasonable manner. The policy, or any aspect of the policy, should
not be viewed as a statement of intent in respect of all cases.

The aim of the policy is:

e To improve debt recovery and prevent debt from occurring

e To collect all recoverable overpayments where possible and
appropriate

e To set out a clear debt recovery strategy

e To act as a guide to the Council’'s administration of Housing
Benefit overpayment recovery and to set a framework within
which recovery decisions can be made

RECOMMENDATIONS

Cabinet adopts the Housing Benefit Overpayment Policy.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Taking a structured and pro-active approach to recovery of Housing
Benefit Overpayments will ensure that income is maximised and bad
debt is minimised.

Although the write-off provision is already covered by Financial
Procedure Rules, in the interests of transparency, protocols to support
the write-off of bad debts is also included in the Policy. This will
ensure that when it is deemed that a debt should not be recovered,
those debts are written off promptly so that resources are
concentrated where they can be most productive.

Page 286



6.00

6.01

6.02

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

The policy will ensure that recovery action will be taken against
deliberate non-payers or those who delay making payment without
genuine reason, while also working to identify and assist those who
genuinely can’t pay.

The recovery of Housing Benefit Overpayment is also covered in the
Authority’s Fair Debt Policy so the principles for providing a
commitment to work with people (and their representatives) who have
fallen or are likely to fall into arrears in order to set reasonable and
realistic payment levels that they can maintain, ensuring that payment
arrangements reflect their ability to pay as well as the level of debt
owed.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

The Policy is supported by guiding principles to ensure that in the
wider public interest recovery action is proportionate, consistent and
transparent.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

None.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

Corporate Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

APPENDICES

Draft Housing Benefit Overpayment Policy 2015.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Housing Benefit Regulations 2006

Housing Benefit (State Pension Credit) Regulation 2006
Flintshire County Council — Fair Debt Policy

Flintshire County Council — Financial Procedure Rules

Page 287



Contact Officer: Jen Griffiths
Telephone: 01352 702929
Email: jen.griffiths@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 288



FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Housing Benefit Overpayments Policy

2015

CYNGOR

sy D1 Y Filint
“* Elintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

1
Page 289



1.1

1.2

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.1

3.2

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

HOUSING BENEFIT OVERPAYMENTS POLICY AND STRATEGY 2015

Introduction

This document, in conjunction with Flintshire County Council’s Strategic Policies
sets out the Council’s commitment to ensure that every effort is made to recover
Housing Benefit Overpayments in accordance with the Housing Benefit Regulations
2006.

An overpayment is an amount of benefit that has been paid to, or in respect of, a
claimant to which he/she was not entitled and relates to Housing Benefit.

Overpayments Policy

The Council will seek to maximise recovery of overpaid Housing Benefit in
accordance with the authority’s legal responsibilities with respect to the decision-
making process and its duty to protect public funds. At the same time, account will
also be taken of the authority’s fair debt policy and anti-poverty strategy.

Consideration must always be given to the merits of specific cases and the need to
exercise discretion in a fair and reasonable manner. The policy, or any individual
aspect of the policy, should not be viewed as a statement of intent in respect to all
cases.

The authority takes it’s role in protecting the public purse very seriously and the
overpayment recovery process makes a significant contribution to this. This
commitment will be reflected in the firm recovery of any fraudulent overpayments as
identified by the Department for Work and Pensions.

Why do we need a Policy?

It is essential for Flintshire County Council to demonstrate that it carries out
administration and recovery of Housing Benefit overpayments efficiently and
effectively.

By doing so the Council:

a) Reduces losses to public funds.

b) Provides revenue for the Council.

c) Helps reduce subsidy loss from overpayments.

d) Deters fraud and error.

e) Demonstrates the Council’s commitment to accuracy and provision of a quality
service to its customers.

Page 290



4

4.1

4.2

5.1

5.2

6.1

Aim of the Policy

The aims of this policy are:
a) To improve debt recovery and help prevent debt occurring.

b) To collect recoverable overpayments where possible and appropriate.
c) To set out a clear debt recovery strategy.

d) To act as a guide to the Council’s administration of Housing Benefit overpayment
recovery and to set a framework within which recovery decisions can be made.

:I'he policy will be reviewed annually.

Overpayments Strategy

An overpayment is defined by Housing Benéefits legislation as being any payment by
way of benefit to which there was no entitlement.

Overpayments are caused by a number of factors, including:

Failure to report or delay in reporting a reportable change of circumstances, whether
accidental or fraudulent in nature.

Payment of benefit in advance.

Official error on the part of the authority or an agency of the Department for Work
and Pensions (DWP), either through mistakes or delays in processing.

Detection of fraudulent claims and payment irregularities.

Delayed receipt of income, such as an award of a state benefit including an initial
lump-sum payment of arrears.

Strategies for Preventing or Minimising Overpayments

Flintshire County Council recognises that its actions can influence the level of
overpayments, but accepts that some overpayments will inevitably occur. The

authority is committed to seeking ways to prevent overpayments and to keep
overpaid amounts to a minimum wherever possible. Current strategies include:

a) Providing claimants and landlords with clear information regarding their duty to

report changes of circumstances as quickly as possible, and the types of changes
that must be reported.

b) Seeking to action all notified changes of circumstances within 14 days of

notification.

Page 291



7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

f)

Seeking to prevent fraud and error entering the benefits scheme at the point of
initial application, by utilising the Risk Based Verification software process.

Providing staff with regular training and updates on legislative changes and work
procedures, with the aim of increasing skill and knowledge levels and thus reducing
local authority official error overpayments.

Undertaking a claim-checking routine to ensure that a selection of
claims/assessments processed are analysed for error. The results of this checking
will assist in informing the programme of staff training and contribute to continuous
improvements.

Using the authority’s powers of suspension and termination in cases where doubt
exists as to the claimant’s benefit entitlement.

Referring suspicions of Fraud to the Department for Work and Pensions.
Promptly identifying all recoverable overpayments.
Using all permitted methods of recovery.

Making payments of Housing Benefit in arrears to enable changes to be actioned
before the next payment is sent.

Identifying Overpayments

Accurate and prompt identification of overpayments is important to ensure that the
incorrect payment of benefit is discontinued, to maximise the chances of
successfully recovering the overpayment and reducing the number of complaints
and appeals.

In order to help identify overpayments promptly, the Council uses The DWP’s
Customer Information System (CIS). Details of ending entitlements and changes to
DWP benefits and HMRC Tax Credits downloaded on a daily basis.

Incoming work items are categorised and those identified that could potentially be a
change of circumstance which could lead to a reduction in benefit and a subsequent
overpayment are treated as a priority.

The Assessment Section identifies overpayments and establishes the cause of the
overpayment, whether it is recoverable and from whom it should be recovered.

The calculation of a recoverable overpayment is arrived at by deducting the amount
of benefit that should have been paid, over the period in question, from the amount
of benefit actually paid. Consideration is given to any uncashed or returned benefit
payments or underpayment of benefit and customers are given the opportunity to
provide evidence of any possible underlying entitlement which may be used to offset
against the overpayment.

Decisions on Recoverability

Page1 292



8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

b)

d)

e)

a)

The authority must make a number of decisions in the course of calculating
overpayments of benefit and undertaking recovery action. In making these decisions
the authority will have due regard to the circumstances of each case and will not
apply “blanket” policies that may constitute fettering of its discretion. Correct
decision making is essential because:

There are consequences and rights for the claimants and other affected persons.
The decision can affect the finances of the Authority if it is not recoverable.

Decisions made, and the reasons for them, can provide an indication of the levels of
fraud and error against inefficiency.

In all cases where benefit is overpaid, a decision will be made as to whether the
overpayment is recoverable, based on the criteria stated in the Housing Benefit
Regulations 2006, 100.

The authority specifically undertakes to ensure that:

No person is required to repay non-recoverable overpayments. A non recoverable
overpayment (as defined in the Benefit regulations) is one that has been caused by
official error, and the claimant or recipient of the benefit could not reasonably have
been expected to know that an overpayment was occurring at the time that payment
was made or at the time of notification.

In respect of recoverable overpayments, due consideration will be given to the
question of whether or not the authority should exercise its discretion to recover the
debt.

Wherever applicable, underlying entitlement to benefit during the overpayment
period will be taken into account and, if the necessary information for calculation of
underlying entitlement is not available, claimants will be given at least one
opportunity to provide that information.

No landlord/agent will be required to repay an overpayment where the conditions of
regulation 101(1) of the Housing Benefit Regulations 2006 as amended (HBGR) are
satisfied.

All affected persons are sent notification of relevant decisions within 14 days of the
decision being made and that these notifications comply with statutory
requirements.

When making decisions on recoverability, Benefit Assessors will consider the facts,
any supporting evidence and the Housing Benefit Regulations 2006.

In deciding whether to recover an overpayment, each case will be decided on its
own individual merits. The aim of the Council is to effectively and efficiently recover
any overpayment without causing unreasonable hardship to the claimant.

Factors that should be taken into account include:

The amount of the overpayment - it may not be economical to pursue recovery of a
small overpayment if the claimant has moved out of the area.

Page 293



8.6

9.1

9.2

9.3

b) If the claimant is vulnerable - medical/documentary evidence may be requested

c)

before deciding not to recover.
Maladministration / delays in processing.

The process map can be found at Appendix 1 which shows how to decide if an
overpayment is recoverable.

Notification of an Overpayment

The Housing Benefit regulations state that any person affected by a decision
relating to an overpayment must be notified in writing e.g. if recovery is to be from a
landlord, a notification letter must be sent to the claimant and the landlord. A
person affected is someone whose rights, duties or obligations are affected by a
decision.

A notification letter will be issued within 14 days of the decision and will comply fully
with Schedule 9 of the Housing Benefit Regulations. The letters will include:

a) The fact that there is a recoverable overpayment.

b) The reason for the recoverable overpayment.

c) The amount of the recoverable overpayment.

d) An explanation as to how the overpayment was calculated.

e) The period of the overpayment i.e. which benefit weeks it relates to.

f) The amount of any deduction to be made from ongoing entitlement to benefit and
when the deduction will be made.

g) The right to request a detailed statement.
h) The right of appeal and the time and manner in which to do so.

The notification issued to the landlord should contain all of the above. The landlord
should know the reason of the overpayment and given enough information to decide
whether or not they agree with the decision. Although this may mean disclosing
personal information to the landlord about the claimant, this can be done in broad
terms and only expanded upon if the landlord has decided to appeal.

If an overpayment notification does not comply with the above requirements, the
Council will decide if the claimant or landlord has been prejudiced by such a
defective notification. The Council will therefore decide if the omission within the
notification has meant that the claimant or landlord does not know the level of the
overpayment, how it occurred or what their appeal rights are. If this is the case then
a new notification will be issued as soon as possible. If the omission is minor, any
appeal can proceed.

Page 294



9.4 All notification letters are checked by the Benefits Assessors to ensure that they are
accurate prior to them being issued. Production of all system-generated letters
creates a diary entry on the notepad confirming the letter has been created, which
cannot be removed.

9.5

10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

11.

11.1

11.1.a

In the event of a request for a review or appeal, legal challenge, complaint or civil
proceedings, it is possible for a copy of the original notification to be obtained from
within the computer system.

Principles of Overpayment Recovery
Overpaid Housing Benefit may be recovered by several different methods.

The authority will seek to recover overpaid Housing Benefit in the most efficient and
cost-effective manner, having regard to its statutory obligation to protect public
funds.

The authority will have regard to the circumstances of the individual from whom
recovery is sought. The person from whom recovery is sought shall have the right
to request a revised repayment arrangement based on his financial circumstances.

A recoverable overpayment can be recovered from the claimant or from the person
who received the payment — e.g. a landlord who has been paid in respect of a
tenant. In coming to a decision as to from whom recovery will be sought, due
consideration will be given to HB Regulation 101 (2)

In the case of direct payments to a landlord or third party, consideration is given to
whether the payee could have reasonably known they were being overpaid at the
time of the payment.

In cases where the claimant caused the overpayment as a result of a fraudulent act,
recovery should usually be sought from the claimant, even in cases where the
payments were made to the landlord. If the landlord/agent is directly connected to
the fraud then recovery should be sought from the person to whom benefit was
paid.

Where an overpayment was the result of a fraudulent act by the claimant, and the
landlord reported the fraud to the Council, the overpayment should always be
recovered from the claimant, even though the landlord may have received
payments.

Specific Methods of Recovery

Instalment recovery / Recovery from ongoing benefit entitlement
Instalment recovery or recovery from ongoing benefit entittement may be
used by the authority where the debtor has continuing entitlement to Housing

Benefit. A portion of the weekly entitlement is withheld and offset from the
outstanding debt until it has been fully recovered.

Page 295



11.1.b

11.1.c

11.1.d

11.1.e

11.2

11.2.a

11.2.b

11.2.c

The provisions of regulation 102 of the HB Regulations limit the maximum
amount that may be recovered each week and the authority will not exceed
these maximum amounts without express written agreement from the debtor.
In any case, the authority will not reduce a person’s minimum weekly payable
benefit below 50 pence. Recovery at a higher rate than those prescribed in
the Regulations can only be done with the debtors consent and is voluntary.

At the outset of instalment recovery, the authority will decide on the level of
deduction to be made on the basis of the information available. The claimant
will be notified of the commencement of instalment recovery and informed of
their opportunity to request a revised repayment arrangement based on their
financial circumstances. The authority may request such reasonable
information as is necessary to decide on an amended level of recovery.

In cases where payment is being made direct to a third party, the authority
will inform that third party of any change to benefit payments as a result of
instalment recovery but will not divulge the reason for the reduction.

In cases where recovery of the overpayment causes severe hardship, an
arrangement will be made to reduce the weekly recovery rate. Risk of being
made homeless, multiple debts to the Authority and health problems are
examples of why a reduction in recovery may be considered. In such
instances it should be made clear that this decision will be reviewed and
possibly revised in the future.

Offset of Entitlement (netting off)

The authority may offset some or all of any amount of benefit owed to the
claimant to recover an overpayment in part or full (regulation 102(1) HB
Regulations).

When considering how much of any owed sum should be offset against
overpaid benefit, the authority will take due consideration of the claimant's
circumstances. Recovery by offset must not place the claimant's tenancy in
jeopardy by creating or aggravating an existing situation of high rent arrears.

In cases where there is an existing overpayment from an earlier period, it is
possible that there may be a substantial initial payment due in respect of the
start date of a new claim. In such cases, and depending on the size of the
outstanding overpayment, the authority will initiate instalment recovery from
ongoing entitlement and may offset an appropriate number of weekly
instalments from the initial payment.

11.2 Recovery from "Blameless Tenants"

11.3.a

Where an overpayment is recoverable from a third party, such as a landlord
or agent, and Housing Benefit continues to be paid to that third party, the
authority may recover the overpayment by deducting some or all of any due
payments to the third party. Recovery may be made in this manner even if
the third party is no longer receiving payment of benefit direct for the person

Page 296



11.3.b

in respect of whom the overpayment was made, in which case recovery is
said to be being made from the entitlement of the third party's "blameless
tenants".

When using this method of recovery, the authority will:

Give consideration to the circumstances of the third party when deciding how
much of any owed sum should be recovered from future payments to the third

party.

The authority will also undertake to inform the third party of their rights and
responsibilities in respect to this recovery action. In particular, the authority will
inform the third party of their obligation to credit the rent accounts of the
blameless tenants with the full amount of benefit that would have been paid had
recovery not been made.

11.4. Recovery from other Social Security Benefits

11.4.a

11.4.b

If recovery from ongoing entitlement to Housing Benefit is not available, the
authority may seek to recover overpaid benefit from another Social Security
benefit (as detailed in regulation 105(1) HB Regulations in payment to the
claimant.

The authority will seek to recover overpaid benefit in this manner in cases,
which it considers suitable and will fully co-operate with the Debt
Management Services of the DWP.

11.5. From a Credit on the Rent Account

11.5.a

In the case of Local Authority overpayments, recovery can be made by
recovering an amount from the claimant’s housing rent account.
Overpayments will not be recovered from a Council Tenant’s rent account
unless the account is in credit; the claimant was paying the correct level of
rent at the time of the overpayment; the claimant requests recovery be made
using this method; a payment has been made twice for the same period; or
the overpayment is due to vacation of property or death of the claimaint.

11.6 Recovery from Housing Benefit paid by another Authority

11.6.a

This method of recovery may be appropriate where the person has left our
authority area and it can be established that they are in receipt of Housing
Benefit in another authority's area. The debt may then be recovered by the
new authority making deductions from ongoing entitlement on behalf of our
Authority.

Page 297



11.6.b Flintshire undertakes to co-operate with all requests from other authorities to
recover overpaid benefit on their behalf. Flintshire retains the right to set the
level of weekly deduction that it considers appropriate in light of the person’s
circumstances.

11.6.c Flintshire will, however, seek to recover any Housing Benefit debt owed to
itself before seeking to recover for another authority.

11.7 Registration of Debts at County Court

11.7.a Where recovery by any of the methods outlined above is unavailable or
impracticable, the authority may seek to enforce recovery by registering the
debt at a County Court. This has the effect of enabling the authority to use
recovery methods that are otherwise unavailable without obtaining a County
Court Judgment (CCJ).

11.7.b When seeking registration of a debt, the authority must provide the Court with
a copy of the original overpayment notification letter, which for these
purposes constitutes a demand for payment. The authority will ensure that
all notifications that are issued are in full compliance with the statutory
requirements.

11.7.c The authority will not seek to register a debt at County Court before the
debtor has had the opportunity to dispute the overpayment decision (i.e. one
month), nor will it seek registration where a request for revision or appeal is
outstanding.

11.7.d The authority will incur costs when registering a debt and these will be added
to the total debt owed. In exceptional circumstances consideration may be
given to waiving any costs incurred.

11.7.e Wherever practicable, the authority will seek to use this method of recovery
enforcement in preference to taking a County Court small claims action. This
will mean that fewer people experience the negative effect that a CCJ has on
their credit record.

11.8 Direct Earnings Attachment
From April 2013 the Department for Work and Pensions introduced a process
whereby Local Authorities can apply a Direct Earnings Attachment as an
alternative to applying the debt to the County Court.
When this option is used the authority applies to the employer to make a

percentage deduction from the employees wages which is then offset against
the outstanding debt.

11.9 Sundry Debts

Pageo298



11.9.a

11.9.b

11.9.c

11.9.d

11.9.e

11.9.f

11.9.9

In all other cases, or where the authority considers it to be most appropriate,
recovery will be sought by issuing a sundry debtor invoice. This may lead,
ultimately, to County Court action and a CCJ being issued.

Where a request for revision or an appeal has been received, no invoice will
be issued until the dispute has been resolved.

Where an invoice has already been issued and the debtor disputes the case,
recovery action will be suspended until the dispute has been resolved.

If the debtor fails to make payment in full or an arrangement to pay within 14
days of the invoice being issued, a reminder notice will be sent. If no
payment in full or arrangement to pay is then made within a further 14 days,
the debtor will be sent a final notice to inform them that full payment or an
arrangement to pay must be made within a further 7 days of the date of that
notice, failing which the council will commence legal action.

Flintshire will not issue an invoice for less than £10.00. Where the claimant
is unable to repay the debt in full, the overpayment team shall negotiate a
suitable instalment arrangement.

The authority will incur costs when taking County Court small claims action
that will be added to the total debt owed. In exceptional circumstances
consideration may be given to waiving any costs incurred.

If the authority obtains a CCJ or registers the debt at County Court (ref. 15),
recovery may be enforced by a number of different methods. These include:

(i) Order to obtain Information - the debtor may be required to attend Court and give
evidence as to their income and expenditure, at which time an arrangement to pay
may be obtained.

(i) Court Enforcement Agent action - the authority may apply for the Court bailiff to
enforce the CCJ by distraining against the goods of the debtor.

(iii) Charging order - an application to the Land Registry for registration of a charge
on property or land owned by the debtor, the debt thus to be paid on sale of the
property or land.

(iv) Attachment of earnings - where the debtor is known to be in work and the
authority is able to obtain details of their employment, the debtor's employer may be
required to make statutory deductions from their employee's pay and forward these
deducted amounts to the authority.

(v) Third Party Debtor order - where the authority is able to obtain details of the
debtor’s bank account(s), application may be made for such an order. This will
have the effect of freezing the debtor's access to his account and the redirection of
funds to the authority.

Any costs incurred by the authority in pursuing any of these enforcement methods
will be added to the total debt owed. In exceptional circumstances consideration
may be given to waiving any costs incurred.

Page 299



12.

12.1

13.

13.1

13.2

13.3

13.4

13.5

13.6

13.7

Debt Management

Flintshire County Council Housing Benefit Overpayment Section undertakes to:

a) Monitor the level and age of debt regularly.

b) Prioritise recovery of overpayments caused by fraud.

c) Set relevant targets for the recovery and management of
overpayments, working towards improvements on current
performance

d) Produce relevant, accurate performance management information

e) Monitor and record the success of different recovery methods and

review working practices regularly to ensure continued efficiency.
Write Offs

In accordance with current Financial Regulations, all debt deemed bad and
irrecoverable must be reported to the Corporate Finance Manager.

Overpayments are only written off by an authorised officer in accordance with
Flintshire’s Corporate Debt Policy after all avenues of recovery which Flintshire
considers appropriate have been considered.

If an overpayment is deemed irrecoverable it will be written off, as this is a legal
requirement within the Regulation, this is not required to be authorised as above as
it is not legally allowed to recover debts which are classified as irrecoverable.

Individual write off requests in excess of £5000 must be authorised by the Executive
Member for Finance.

The Council recognises that with recovery of Housing Benefit overpayments it is
dealing with potentially some of the most financially vulnerable members of the
community and while an overpayment might be recoverable under the law, there is
always the separate decision as to whether recovery should be sought. This means
that some debts will have to be written off because, for example, the debtor has no
means to repay; it is not in the Council’s interests to request repayment; the debtor
has died; become bankrupt or absconded; recovery action is not cost effective or
the debt is time barred.

The decision to write off a debt as uneconomic or inappropriate to recover will not
be made without full consideration of available methods of recovery.

Team Leader reviews outstanding debtor overpayments to identify and record any

debts that should be considered for write off. Any debts subsequently identified will
be dealt with in accordance with the Council’s Corporate Debt Policy

Page2300



13.8

14.

14.1

14.2

14.3

14.4

14.5

14.6

15.

15.1

15.2

15.3

15.4

15.5

Where an overpayment is classed as irrecoverable the claim details will be recorded
to reflect this.

Roles and Responsibilities

All staff should be aware of the overall aim of preventing overpayments occurring,
keeping overpayments to a minimum once identified and ensuring efficient and
effective recovery without causing undue hardship.

Staff are trained to identify work items that may cause an overpayment and be able
to prioritise this work so it can be actioned immediately.

Staff responsible for creating new claims are responsible for identifying cases where
an overpayment exists on a previous claim or address and ensuring that recovery
action is reinstated or transferred.

Staff responsible for creating the overpayment will decide whether or not it is
recoverable and if it is they will issue the first invoice.

The Benefits Team Leader monitors and amends recovery of overpayments
recovering from ongoing benefit and the assessment team amends accordingly.

The Benefits Officer will recommend whether a local authority error overpayment is
recoverable. This is passed to the Benefits Team Leader to make the final decision.

Additional Information / Summary

The policy will be revised when there are changes to legislation and to improve its
effectiveness in preventing and recovering overpaid Housing Benefit.

The Council will not operate blanket recovery policies, with each case being
considered on its own individual merits.

All customers will be treated in a fair and equitable manner.

The Council will monitor, maintain and improve systems that seek to prevent
overpayments caused by official error and minimise overpayments caused by
misrepresentation or failure to report changes of circumstances. It will also monitor
the success rate for recovering all overpayments.

All staff should refer to the Department for Work and Pensions Housing Benefit
Overpayments Guidance Manual for greater detail in deciding discretionary issues
and the correct course of action.

Overpayment Recoverability Process Map

Page 301



Overpayment occurs

Was the original payment

Yes

made as a payment on
account?

No

v

Was the overpayment
caused by official error?

\ 4

No

The overpayment is
recoverable

Yes

Could the claimant, a
person acting on their
behalf or any other person
to whom the payment was
made, at the time of receipt
have reasonably been
expected to realise that it
was an overpayment.

Yes

\ 4

No

The overpayment is not
recoverable

Page4302




Agenda Item 12

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY, 21 APRIL 2015

REPORT BY: CHIEF OFFICER (COMMUNITY AND ENTERPRISE)
SUBJECT: DISCRETIONARY HOUSING PAYMENT POLICY

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  The report seeks the approval and adoption of Flintshire County
Council’s revised Discretionary Housing Payment (DHP) Policy 2015

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01  The Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) provides extra funding
to Local Authorities (LA) to provide claimants in receipt of Housing
Benefit (HB) or Universal Credit (UC) further financial assistance with
their housing costs in cases where there is a shortfall between the HB
entitlement and the rent payable.

2.02 There is provision within the regulations whereby the funding for DHP
can be “topped up” by the LA by 2.5 times the DWP funding.

2.03 Central Government’s Welfare Reform programme, designed to make
transition from Benefits into work easier, in some cases had a
negative financial impact on households and individuals, and the
Government has identified DHP as temporary support to enable
claimants during transition.

2.04 The administration and payment of DHP is at the discretion of each
LA, and therefore there can be wide variances in qualification for DHP
between LA’s. The current DHP policy in Flintshire was approved by
Cabinet in April 2013

2.05 Due to the high profile that DHP has received and criticism from
Welsh Government regarding a perceived inconsistency in the awards
process, a collaborative approach to produce a framework was
commenced with the appointment of the Welfare Reform Club to
produce an all Wales DHP policy framework in conjunction with
colleagues from 20 Authorities in Wales who joined the project. The
completed framework is unique to Wales and as such the Welfare
Reform Club have copyrighted the framework which cannot be
reproduced without their consent

Page 303



2.06

3.00

3.01

3.02

3.03

3.04

3.05

3.06

The developed framework is consistent with many elements of the
Flintshire policy that was approved in 2013, but has provided a more
detailed structure for deciding who should be awarded a DHP, to
achieve fairness and consistency within the Council and also across
the 20 Local Authorities in Wales who formed part of the project

group.

CONSIDERATIONS

DHPs are available to assist with meeting housing costs across all
tenure types, i.e. Social Housing and Private Rented Sector

Where it is needed this funding is designed to help in the short term.
It is subject to cash limited funding and each application for DHP is
assessed on financial need and personal circumstances with each
decision being made on a case by case basis.

Examples of where a DHP may help:

Where a restriction in rent has been applied

Where a spare room restriction has been applied

Where there is a deduction from benefit based on a non-
dependant in the household

Where benefit does not meet the rent payable due to the level
of a person’s income

e Assistance with removal costs

DHPs cannot be used for:
¢ Ineligible service charges
¢ Increases in rent due to outstanding rent arrears
e Certain sanctions and reductions in benefits including
recovering ongoing housing benefit overpayments
e Council Tax

In addition to contributing to the Wales framework, the Council has
undertaken detailed analysis of the DHP caseload in order to identify
the need for future budget commitments more easily and also to work
proactively with customers to identify issues and problems. By
providing advice and support, the aim is to ultimately remove the
reliance on DHP payment by assisting people to become more able to
manage their own affairs more effectively in the longer term.

The new policy enables us to apply a level of “conditionality” to the
DHP awards. This means that a DHP is awarded and will continue for
the agreed period if the customer demonstrates that they are
committed to working together with the Council and to helping
themselves.

Page 304



3.07

3.08

4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

This may involve a range of support options including:

e Working with a debt advisor

e Actively seeking ways to
accommodation

e Reviewing utility costs to identify better value options

e Reducing or eliminating non-essential expenditure, i.e mobile
phone contracts; satellite TV etc

¢ Increasing contribution from other household members

e Claiming other benefits they may be entitled to, i.e. free school
meals

move to more affordable

The type of support or advice will depend on the specific needs of the
customer and will be tailored to meet that need. It will be the
customer’s responsibility to demonstrate that they are making every
effort to make changes or access/accept support or advice; in order to
become more financially stable for the future.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Cabinet adopts the DHP Policy from April 2015

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The DWP funding for DHPs in Flintshire has been increasing over the
last three years, however, for 2015/2016 this funding has now
reduced. The Council has also been providing a budgeted “top up”.

Financial DHP Government | Flintshire Total Spend
Year Contribution “Top Up”

2012/2013+ £114,426 £0 £109,071
2013/2014 £242,119 £30,776 £272,895
2014/2015 £276,166 £36,834 £313,000
2015/2016 £208,883 £0 £208,883

*Pre Welfare Reform

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

There is a need for proactive work and support due to the impacts of
Welfare Reform on residents in order to mitigate them particularly for
vulnerable people.

Page 305



6.02

6.03

7.00

8.00

9.00

9.01

9.02

10.00

11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

Whilst the effects of Welfare Reform have impacted a significant
number of people and increased the need for DHP, it is important to
note that DHP is also payable to people who require further financial
assistance that have not been impacted by these changes.

The reduction in DHP funding from DWP in 2015/2016 will inevitably
have an impact on the level and duration of DHP awards, however, it
is intended that by working with customers in line with the new Policy
these impacts can be managed and mitigated with longer term
sustainable solutions.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

The increase in the administration of DHP payments due to welfare
reform has increased demands on the Benefits department which to
date have been absorbed within the current structure.

The support of customers for benefits / budgetary advice has been
provided by the Welfare Reform Response Team, which is now an
integral part of the Benefits Department. The availability of funding for
this team is currently under review.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

None

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

The draft Policy and was submitted to Corporate Resources Overview
and Scrutiny Committee on 16 April for their consideration.

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 — Draft Discretionary Housing Payment Policy 2015

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Page 306



Discretionary Financial Assistance Regulations (2001)

Contact Officer: Jen Griffiths
Telephone: 01352 702929
Email: jen.griffiths@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 307



This page is intentionally left blank



FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Discretionary Housing Payment Policy

2015

CYNGOR

sy O Y Filint
“* Elintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

Page 309



1. Purpose of the Policy

1.1 The purpose of this policy is to set out Flintshire County Council’'s (FCC)
approach to dealing with claims for Discretionary Housing Payment (DHP) with effect
from April 2015

1.2 In operating this policy we will have regard to the Discretionary Financial
Assistance Regulations (2001) (SI 2001/1167) and the guidance issued by the
Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) in its Discretionary Housing Payments
Guidance Manual (Guidance Manual). FCC have engaged with 19 other Local
Authorities in Wales to develop a Policy Framework.

1.3 The Policy covers decisions within the gift of the council and so provides a
platform for the exercise of discretion. In creating the DHP policy we have taken into
account the key objectives and overall strategy of the DHP policy framework.

1.5 It is not possible (and not the intention) to make an award in every case where
there is such a shortfall. So the policy framework is a way of helping to decide
priorities for payment when demand exceeds supply (as will usually be the case).

1.6 The Policy Framework has been created to make most effective use of the DHP
allocation, by making decisions that are designed to improve outcomes for people
rather than simply to park a problem.

2. Introduction

2.1 Discretionary Housing Payments (DHPs) are discretionary sums payable by the
Council to a person in receipt of Housing Benefit (HB) or Universal Credit (UC),
DHPs are paid from a fixed budget and are intended to help people meet housing
costs, usually where there is a shortfall between their Housing Benefit (or housing
element of Universal Credit) and their rent.

2.2 DHPs are regulated by the Discretionary Financial Assistance Regulations
2001(SI 2001 No 1167) within the regulations a Council is allowed much discretion.
FCC will administer the scheme with reference and regard to the contents of this

policy.

3. Statement of key objectives
3.1 Our objectives include:
1. To encourage and help keep people in employment;
To prevent homelessness and aid people to retain sustainable tenancies;
To help people who are trying to help themselves;
To help keep families together;
To support vulnerable people in the community;
To help people through times in which they are stressed and vulnerable;
To help to alleviate poverty;

To assist people that are particularly disadvantaged by Welfare Reforms;

© © N o o M 0D

To give all applicants as fair and consistent a decision as possible;

Page 310



10. Supporting domestic violence victims who are trying to move to a place of
safety;

11. Supporting the vulnerable or the elderly in the local community;

12. Helping customers through personal and difficult events ;

13. Supporting young people in the transition to adult life;

14. To give greater priority to those who are making efforts to help themselves;

15. To prevent outcomes such as homelessness which are likely to involve
further hardship for the household as well as additional and avoidable costs
for the council.

3.2 In the pursuit of these objectives FCC undertakes to consider each case on its
individual merits and to act fairly, reasonably and consistently.

3.3 In order to achieve these objectives FCC will have to apply some priorities in this
process, these are:

e The financial circumstances of the household

e The extent to which members of the household are able, and willing, to
manage the situation they are in

e The wider financial consequences of not making an award

4. How to apply for a DHP

4.1 Claims can be made in writing on the official claim form or in another format if it
contains suitable information on which a decision can be reached. Claims for DHP
can be submitted on line at our website http://www.flintshire.qov.uk/ or requested
by email to benefits@flintshire.gov.uk, by telephone (01352) 704848, or Connects
Offices based within the County.

5. Awarding a DHP

5.1 The award of a DHP may be for any duration and will usually be paid from the
Monday following the day the application form is received by the authority.

5.2 FCC has the discretion to backdate any claim for DHP; taking into account the
customer’s circumstances at that time and the funds available. The claimant has to
be in receipt of Housing Benefit or Universal Credit during the period covered by the
whole backdate request period.

5.3 For all applications, a financial assessment will be made, comparing income with
expenditure. No source of income is disregarded and all expenditure is taken into
consideration. If there are non-dependants in the household they may be expected
to contribute more. The principle is that help should go to those who have no other
means of meeting the need.

5.4 An assessment will then take place to establish if the household’s total outgoings
are equal to or exceed their income. If there is income available, or could be made
available, sufficient to meet the shortfall in rent, or other housing need, a DHP
application will not succeed, unless or until circumstances change.

Page 311


http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/
http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/
mailto:benefits@flintshire.gov.uk

5.5 If there is some income available, but this is not sufficient to meet the shortfall in
rent, if the application for DHP is successful, this amount will be deducted from the
award.

5.6 DHPs can often be most effectively used as a temporary measure whilst a
household seeks a more long-term solution to the situation they are in. Where this is
possible, higher priority will be given to those who are taking steps themselves, i.e.
those with a spare room who are taking steps to move to smaller accommodation.

5.7 There are some households who are not currently helping themselves and FCC
will be working to assist those who are willing to start doing so. In these cases, the
DHP may be conditional on certain action being taken, i.e. accepting a referral and
working with a debt advisor

5.8 There are, however, situations where DHP may be needed for a longer period,
ones who cannot realistically alleviate the situation they are in by taking action
themselves, these households will also be given high priority

6. Payment and Notification

6.1 FCC will pay a DHP by BACS in the same way that Housing Benefit is paid.
Notification of successful and unsuccessful awards will be accompanied by a
statement explaining the reason for the decision. The letter will include details of the
value of any award, how long the award will be for and to whom the DHP will be paid
to.

6.2 The letter will ensure that successful customers know when to report relevant
changes, for unsuccessful applications, it will also provide an explanation of the
reasons the claim has been unsuccessful so that the claimant may request a review
of this decision if they wish to do so.

7. Review of Decisions

7.1 DHPs are not payments of Housing Benefit and are therefore not subject to the
statutory appeals procedure, however, FCC does have a review process. FCC will
consider requests to review a decision for the following reasons:

e adecision not to award a DHP,

e adecision to award a reduced or lesser amount of DHP,
e adecision not to backdate a DHP or

e adecision that there has been an overpayment of a DHP.

This review will be dealt with by a senior officer to the original decision maker. In the
event of an affected person still being dissatisfied, the Benefits Manager will make a
final decision

7.2 A claimant (or their appointee or agent) should request a review, in writing, within
one calendar month of the written DHP decision.

8. When a DHP can not be paid

8.1 DHP is not available for the following purposes:

Page 312



-_—

To help with Council Tax costs;

2. To cover any shortfall in Housing Benefit that occurs due to the recovery of an
overpayment;

3. To cover any ineligible service charges such as meals, fuel charges, personal

care etc.

9. Other forms of assistance with Housing Costs

9.1 If a Council Tax payer cannot meet their council tax liability, then FCC may
consider writing off their debt in accordance with the Corporate Debt Policy.

9.2 If a customer requires assistance with Rent Deposits or Rent in advance then this
is available from other FCC departments.

10. Overpayments

10.1 If a DHP is found to have been overpaid, we will consider whether it is
appropriate to recover it. If we decide to recover any overpayment this may be in full
or in part.

10.2 If the overpayment occurred because of our mistake we would not normally
seek repayment, unless the customer contributed in some way to that mistake or
knowingly allowed a DHP to continue to be paid in error.

10.3 We will not recovery any DHP overpayment from a person’s on-going benefits.
A separate arrangement will be negotiated.

11. Conclusion

11.1 This policy is not intended to be completely rigid and should not be interpreted
as such. In a discretionary scheme, there will always be some cases with special or
unusual circumstances where a decision-maker will consider a DHP award justified.
The advantage of a discretionary scheme is that, whatever framework is used, such
awards can, and should be made.

11.2 However, this policy does provide a structure for deciding who should be

awarded a DHP. It is designed to achieve a reasonable amount of fairness and
consistency in decision making.

Page 313



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 13

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY, 21 APRIL 2015

REPORT BY: CHIEF OFFICER (PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT)
SUBJECT: MOBILE HOMES (WALES) ACT 2013

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  To provide details of the new legislation and to seek approval for the
delegation of powers and the setting of fees.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01  The Mobile Homes (Wales) Act came in to force on 15t October 2014.
The key aim of the Act is to better protect the rights of people living in
residential mobile homes as their primary residence.

2.02 The Act makes provision for how these sites should be managed and
maintained in Wales and gives residents improved rights.

2.03 The Act requires all residential mobile home parks to be relicensed by
the Local Authority. It also introduces changes to the procedures for
applying for a site licence, including a ‘fit and proper person’ test for
owners and managers, a range of enforcement provisions for the
Local Authority and a longer — five year licence.

2.04 The Act places a responsibility on the Local Authority to issue Site
Licenses (where appropriate) within 2 months of an application being
made, to have regard to the Model Standards for Caravan Sites in
Wales 2008 and to keep a register of site licenses issues within its
area.

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

3.01  As the new arrangements for Caravan Site Licensing include the
introduction of a “fit and proper person” test, it is felt that a Sub
Committee of the Licensing Committee would be ideally placed to
consider applications where such issues need to be considered.

3.02 The Act offers a range of powers to the Local Authority. This report
proposes that day to day enforcement powers be delegated to
appropriate officers, namely Environmental Health Officers and
Licensing Officers.

Page 315



3.03

4.00

4.01

4.02

4.03

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

The Act allows the Authority to recover costs incurred in the licensing
of Caravan Sites. Fees may also be charged to vary licenses. This
report proposes that the Chief Officer (Planning & Environment) in
consultation with the Cabinet Member for Waste Strategy, Public
Protection and Leisure be delegated the powers to set and review the
fees under this legislation.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That any application for a site licence where the fithess and propriety
of the applicant is questioned is referred to and determined by a
Licensing Sub Committee.

That enforcement powers are delegated to Environmental Health
Team Leaders and Environmental Health Officers, and to the
Licensing Team Leader and Licensing Officers.

That Members delegate the decision of the adoption of a fee level to
the Chief Officer (Planning & Environment) in consultation with the
Cabinet Member for Waste Strategy, Public Protection and Leisure.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

It is anticipated that fees will be higher than under the current regime,
however these costs will reflect the additional time spent on the
administration of the licenses and the additional compliance checks.
The fees will not exceed the cost of operating the new regime. The
fees will be reviewed after the initial five year period.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

None.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

Public Consultation.

Page 316



11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

Public consultation has been carried out by the Welsh Government.

APPENDICES

None.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer: Gemma Potter

Telephone: 01352 703371

Email: gemma.m.potter@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 317



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 14

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY 21 APRIL 2015

REPORT BY: CHIEF OFFICER (STREETSCENE AND
TRANSPORTATION)

SUBJECT: WASTE TRANSFER STATION AND BIOMASS

PRODUCTION/ STORAGE AREA IN GREENFIELD

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01 To seek Cabinet approval to progress proposals to develop a
proposed waste transfer station and biomass production/ storage
facility on land adjacent to the existing HRC site in Greenfield.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 The area of land is owned by the Council and currently designated a
‘Brown Field’ site and has recently been leased to an engineering
company to recycle the arisings from their work to lay the high voltage
cable along the A548.

2.02 The Council holds a NRW waste permit for the site and there are
currently a number of Council activities on going at the site.

1. HRC Site — The site is the location for the most modern,
effective and high performing HRC in the County

2. Composting facility — The open windrow composting facility
treats all of the County Councils residential garden waste and
also similar material imported from Denbighshire County
Council. Approximately 8,000 tonnes of PAS 100 compliant
compost is produced at the site each year.

3. Winter maintenance rock-salt storage. — Approximately 7,000
tonnes of rock-salt is stored at the site to supplement the
material held in the operational salt barns at Alltami depot

2.03 The Council were successful in bidding for Welsh Government funding
to construct a compliant dewatering system for its gully and sweeper
waste at the site. The material is currently disposed of in landfill. The
funding (£235k from the WG’s Waste Collaborative Change
Programme) will allow for the construction of a licensed and permitted
facility on the extended slab which is currently used to store the winter

Page 319



2.04

2.05

2.06

2.07

2.08

3.00

3.01

3.02

maintenance rock-salt.

A second bid to rationalise the Councils waste collection and disposal
arrangements has also been accepted by WG. The value of this bid is
£519k and can be used to develop the site in Greenfield further to
improve the effectiveness and efficiency of the waste service.

A third ‘Invest to Save’ Bid of £750k has been submitted to WG for
funding to complete the construction of the recycling facility. The bid
was unsuccessful during the first consideration however it will be
considered again by the WG panel in May 2015

All of the Councils waste and recycling vehicles currently use the
depot and transfer stations in Alltami or Buckley to off load the waste
material collected from kerbside. The material is then bulked up and
sent to landfill or in the case of the recycling material to the
appropriate merchant facility. The current tipping points are as follows:

Food waste — At Alltami depot (on receipt of permit)

Residual waste — At Brookhill Transfer Station

Recycling material — At the Materials Recycling Facility in Standard
Industrial Estate Buckley

Every vehicle is required to empty its contents at least twice a day and
in many cases three visits to the tipping off point are required by
vehicles. When vehicles are collecting in the North of the County it
can take as long as one hour to travel from the residential collection
points to the disposal point and back again. The delay has a financial
cost in terms of fuel and obviously reduces the capacity of the rounds
with the number of properties collected per day on rounds in the North
of the County being considerably less than those on rounds in the
South.

Each year approximately 8,000 tonnes of wood is brought to the HRC

sites in Flintshire. Currently the material is sent to local companies
who charge the authority for its ultimate disposal.

CONSIDERATIONS

A robust business case can be made to construct a second bulking up
facility in the North of the County, which would only be used when
vehicles are collecting in the local area. The business case has been
produced from the Councils route optimisation software which
calculates the fuel and time saved by utillising two ‘drop off points
rather than the current single facility.

The business case indicates two benefits

1. Direct financial benefit from fuel savings which will deliver the

Page 320



3.03

3.04

3.05

3.06

3.07

3.08

3.09

saving identified in the 2016- 17 Portfolio Business Plan.

2. The proposals will deliver additional capacity to the current
waste rounds, which will negate the need to introduce an
additional waste round to deal with the ever growing number of
properties being constructed in the County

In addition the facility would offer the opportunity for neighbouring
authorities to operate into the facility in a similar manner to ourselves
i.e. when collections take place in the area of their County which is
closest to the site.

The proposed facility would comprise of a Waste Transfer Building,
internally segregated to receive the following waste streams

¢ Residual waste
e All recycling types

The building would be operated only when collections take place in
the immediate area and during these periods the material would be
bulked up and transferred for treatment as follows:

Residual waste — Directly to treatment or landfill
Recycling material — Directly to the Councils Materials Recycling
Facility in Standard Industrial Estate, Buckley

The estimated cost to construct the facility is £1.0m which will funded
as follows:

e £235k from the initial successful Waste Collaborative Change
Programme bid

e £200k from previously approved Council Prudential Borrowing
for improving recycling facilities at HRC and other waste sites

e £519k From the second successful Waste Collaborative
Change Bid

In addition to the waste transfer station, the remaining area of the site
can be surface to provide a storage area for the timber material which
is currently brought to our HRC sites for disposal. The timber would
need to be covered to allow it to dry before being eventually chipped
or shredded to form Biomass.

The Biomass material would become available for use in an
appropriate boiler at a Council owned facility or sold directly to
merchants for use nationally.

The cost of the groundwork required to create the storage area is

estimated at £750k and forms the basis of the Invest to Save bid to
WG.

Page 321



3.10

4.00

4.01

4.02

4.03

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

The business case for constructing the Biomass treatment area is also
robust and provides the Council with a sustainable energy source into
the future

RECOMMENDATIONS

That Cabinet approves the continued development of the proposed
Waste Transfer Station proposals in Greenfield

That Cabinet approves the continued development of the proposed
Biomass storage and production facility in Greenfield

That Cabinet approves the use of the prudential borrowing funding
previously allocated to HRC and waste improvements to part fund the
scheme

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Business Cases for each proposal form the details of the portfolio
Business Planning proposals

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

Not applicable.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

Utilising Biomass would significantly reduce the Councils Carbon
Footprint.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

Not Applicable.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None — staff would transfer between the transfer stations as required.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

Prior to commencement with statutory bodies and local members.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

With Cabinet Member.

APPENDICES

None.

Page 322



LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer: Stephen O Jones
Telephone: 01352 704700
Email: stephen.o.jones@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 323



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 15

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: 21 APRIL 2015

REPORT BY: CHIEF OFFICER EDUCATION AND YOUTH
SUBJECT: NORTH WALES REGIONAL SCHOOL

IMPROVEMENT SERVICE (GWE) — CHANGES TO
CONSTITUTIONAL ARRANGEMENTS

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  To seek approval for changes to the membership of the GwE Joint
Committee in response to the adoption of the National Model for
Regional Working.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01  The guidance document — National Model for Regional Working was
published by the Welsh Government in February 2014. The 6 partner
Councils in North Wales resolved in the Spring of 2014 to:

e Approve the National Model for Regional Working in Wales in
relation to School Improvement.

e Adopt the National Model for Regional Working on School
Improvement and develop a business plan with the intention
that the additional services listed in the Model be incorporated
into the GwE regional model, in phases, subject to a
satisfactory business case for each and a supporting transition
plan to ensure service continuity and performance.

2.02 At its meeting of 6 November 2014, the Joint Committee gave detailed
consideration to a revised governance structure in response to the
National Model. The revised structure reflected the arrangements set
out in Appendix 1 to this report. The current delegated functions of the
Joint Committee are considered sufficient to address the requirements
of the National Model.

2.03 Appendix 2 sets out revisions to the membership of the Joint
Committee and establishment of an Advisory Board and Management
Board to support the Managing Director and Senior Management
Team in the management of GWE.

2.04  As part of the Joint Committee review it is suggested that Gwynedd

Standing Orders are adopted in relation to quorum which would mean,
in the case of the Joint Committee, that three voting members would

Page 325



3.00

3.01

3.02

3.03

3.04

3.05

4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

need to be present to effect a quorum. The current quorum of five
elected members is considered too high and practically difficult to
manage.

CONSIDERATIONS

The Advisory Board membership and functions reflect the “Executive
Board” concept in the National Model but with powers of
recommendation.

The Management Board will have decision making powers and the
apportionment and delegation of functions are set out in the Table in
Appendix 3. This approach was adopted as a result of independent
legal advice that there was sufficient uncertainty about delegating
decisions to the Advisory Board to favour an alternative model.

The model also formalises the supportive role which the Directors of
Education have provided in supporting the GwE management team
and provides a forum for providing input from the six authorities on
more operational matters which has facilitated decision making.

The Management Board can also act as an authorising body for
financial decisions at an intermediate level below the Joint Committee.

As a result it is recommended that the members of the Management
Board attend the Joint Committee in an officer function in future as
opposed to being members of the Committee.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That Cabinet approves the amended governance arrangements for
GwE, the North Wales Regional School Improvement Service in order
to comply with the requirements of the National Model for Regional
Working.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

None as a direct result of this report.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

None as a direct result of this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None as a direct result of this report.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None as a direct result of this report.

Page 326



9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None as a direct result of this report.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

None as a direct result of this report.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

These changes have been considered and approved by the Joint
Committee of North Wales regional school improvement service.

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 - Proposed Structure
Appendix 2 - Membership
Appendix 3 - Functions of Advisory and Management Board

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

National Model for Regional Working - Welsh Government Guidance
2014.

Report to GwE Joint Committee 29.9.2014 - “ GwE Governance
Arrangements”

Report to GwE Joint Committee 6 November 2014 - “GwE
Governance Arrangements”

Contact Officer: lan Budd
Telephone: 01352 704010
Email: ian.budd@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 327


mailto:ian.budd@flintshire.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1- Proposed Structure

Appendis 1 - Fropesed Sirueture

e e

o N

ELT Ciabint Exer )
Camnitissas 1
LEA i

r

Y y
\h F
- -

— e

" doint Com mltl&& |

Welsh o
Sow
H-"\.
P
g B managemant
Coard

\( \ f*—»ifn:

\1/

SehEGla and
Clievms

Page 37

Page 329



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 2 - MEMBERSHIP

Joint Committee Joint Committee | Advisory Board Management

(Existing) (Proposed) Board

Voting Members Officer Members | Voting Members

—non voting

6 x Education Portfolio |6 x Statutory | 6 x Education Portfolio |1 x Education |6 x Statutory

Members - one from | Chief Education | Members - one from | Portfolio Holder | Chief Education

each NW LA Officers — one | each NW LA (Lead for Region) | Officers — one

from each NW LA Lead CEdO from each NW LA

Managing Managing
Director Director
No more than 5 | Members of GwE
experts SLT as required
(individuals to be
appointed by
Joint Committee)
WG Nominee

Co-opted Non-Voting | Officers in | Co-opted Non-Voting

members attendance members

1xDiocese 1 X legal | 1xDiocese

Representative — Representative Representative —

nominated from across | 1 X S151 | nominated from across

the Wrexham, St. Asaph | Representative the Wrexham, St. Asaph

and Bangor Dioces ,on a | Other specialists | and Bangor Diocese, on

rotating two year term as required a rotating two year

term

1 x Primary Schools
representative
1 x Secondary Schools
representative

1 x Special Schools
representative
1 X Governor

representative

1 x Primary schools

headteacher
1 x Secondary schools
headteacher
1 x Special schools
headteacher
1 X Governor

representative

Officers in Attendance
(non-voting)

Lead Chief Executive

6 x Statutory Chief
Education officers — one
from each NW LA
1 X
Representative

1 x S151 Representative
Other specialists as
required

Legal

Page 331




This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 3 : FUNCTIONS OF ADVISORY AND MANAGEMENT BOARDS

Advisory Board

Management Board

Reporting regularly to the
committee, the Advisory Board will:

joint

Constructively challenge and contribute
to the development of strategy to enable
the organisation to achieve its goals;

Consider and make recommendations to
the joint committee in relation to the
annual Business Plan;

Monitor and review the performance of
management in meeting assigned goals
and objectives and monitor the reporting
of performance;

Reporting regularly to the joint
committee, the Management Board will:

Co-construct the annual Business Plan,
including the individual appendices to
identify  specific  requirements at
individual LA level;

Monitor progress against the priorities
and outcomes identified on the Business
Plan on a regular basis;

Have arrangements in place to make
sure that Gwek financial controls and
systems are robust;

Provide professional advice to the joint
committee  with regard to the
appointment of the Managing Director

Page 333




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 16

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY, 21 APRIL 2015

REPORT BY: CHIEF OFFICER (GOVERNANCE)
SUBJECT: COMMUNITY REVIEW - FLINT MOUNTAIN

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  For Cabinet to consider a report issued by the Local Democracy &
Boundary Commission for Wales (“Boundary Commission”) seeking
views on three options for community boundaries for the Flint
Mountain area.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01  Members will recollect that during 2013/14 the Council undertook a
community review and the last report to Council was at its meeting on
the 30 April 2014 followed by a report to Cabinet on the 13 May 2014.

2.02 The Flint Mountain area forms part of the Trelawny ward of the
Community of Flint. The Council’s review concluded that there should
be no change to this arrangement.

2.03 On the 27 June 2014 following publication of the Council’s final
proposals representations were made to Boundary Commission to
remove Flint Mountain from the Trelawny ward of Flint Town Council.
These representations have led the Boundary Commission to issue
the consultation document attached as Appendix 1.

2.04 The Boundary Commission is of the view that the electorate of Flint
Mountain is not of sufficient size to form an effective community area
by itself but it is consulting on three other options namely:

A)  Flint Mountain is retained within the Trelawny ward of the
Community of Flint (the existing arrangement);

B) Flint Mountain is created as a separate community ward of the
Community of Flint; or,

C) Flint Mountain is created as a new community ward and
transferred to the Community of Northop.

The default view of the Boundary Commission is to retain the existing

arrangement (Option A) if it does not receive sufficient evidence for
either option B or C.

Page 335



3.00

3.01

3.02

3.03

3.05

4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

CONSIDERATIONS

Technically the community review is an Executive function rather than
a Council function but throughout the process reports have been
submitted to both Council and the Cabinet. The consultation
document was considered by Council at its meeting on the 14 April
2015 when Council resolved to recommend to Cabinet Option A (no
change).

The last page of Appendix 1 summarises the representations that
were made to the Boundary Commission which led it to issue the
consultation document. Those representations should be taken into
consideration in making a recommendation as to which of the three
options should be the Cabinet response to consultation.

Of the three options, option C would have the most significant effect in
that the overall size of Flint Town Council would reduce by one
member and the size of Northop Community Council increase by one
member. Option A would maintain the existing arrangement and the
stance previously taken by the Council and Cabinet.

Both Flint Town Council and Northop Community Council have
considered this matter and are responding to indicate that they both
prefer Option A (no change).

RECOMMENDATIONS

To respond to the consultation document by supporting Option A as
insufficient evidence has been produced to alter the existing
arrangement.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

None as a result of this report.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

None as a result of this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None as a result of this report.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None as a result of this report.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None as a result of this report.

Page 336



10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

The Boundary Commission is required to consult interested parties
and consult the public. Flintshire has assisted in publicising the
report.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

The Boundary Commission is required to consult interested parties
and consult the public. Flintshire has assisted in publicising the
report.

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 — Boundary Commission Draft Proposals Report

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Report to and minute of Cabinet meeting of the 13 May 2014.

Contact Officer: Peter Evans
Telephone: 01352 702304
Email: peter.j.evans@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 337



This page is intentionally left blank



LOCAL DEMOCRACY AND BOUNDARY COMMISSION FOR WALES

APPENDIX 1
R 2. Comisiwn Ffiniau a
anti™ =™ Democratiaeth Leol
+ = Cymru
. e ==
aenBSEEEE Local Democracy and
.zEfSagse ... Boundary Commission
SSgees  esgasss s2. For Wales

REVIEW OF COMMUNITY BOUNDARIES OF THE
COUNTY OF FLINTSHIRE — FLINT MOUNTAIN

DRAFT PROPOSALS

Page 339



csdilms
Typewritten Text

csdilms_1
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX 1


Page 340



LOCAL DEMOCRACY AND BOUNDARY COMMISSION FOR WALES

REVIEW OF COMMUNITY BOUNDARIES OF THE COUNTY OF
FLINTSHIRE — FLINT MOUNTAIN

DRAFT PROPOSALS

1 INTRODUCTION
2 SUMMARY OF THE DRAFT PROPOSAL

3 REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED PRIOR TO THE DRAFT
PROPOSAL

4 PROPOSAL

5 CONSEQUENTIAL ARRANGEMENTS
6 ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

7 RESPONSES TO THIS REPORT

8 THE NEXT STEPS

APPENDIX A - SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED

The Local Democracy and Boundary Commission for Wales

. MIX H,f.ft”';gs ’g"“ﬁf ¢ ™, BUDDSODDWYR | INVESTORS
- I (Z; ;’Z) lFﬂ;:U Y, MEWN POBL |IN PEOPLE
FSC FSC®C010353 CF24 0BL

Tel Number: (029) 2046 4819
Fax Number: (029) 2046 4823
E-mail: Idbc.wales@wales.gsi.gov.uk
www.ldbc-wales.gov.uk

Page 341



1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

2.1.

INTRODUCTION

Flintshire County Council have conducted a review of the community boundaries
and community electoral arrangements under Section 55(2) and 57(4) of the Local
Government Act 1972 as amended by the Local Government (Wales) Act 1994 (the
Act). In accordance with Section 55(2) of the Act Flintshire County Council have
submitted a report to the Local Democracy and Boundary Commission for Wales
(the Commission) of their considerations for changes to a number of community
boundaries in their area.

The purpose of the Council’s review was to consider whether, in the interests of
effective and convenient local government, changes to the present community
boundaries should be proposed.

We have considered Flintshire County Council’s report and proposals in
accordance with Section 55(3) of the Act. As part of our considerations we have
identified an issue with a particular area that we do not consider to have been
satisfactorily addressed in the Council’s report and recommendations. We have
therefore given consideration to changes in respect of the Flint Mountain area of
the Community of Flint.

We are seeking views on the three options we have identified for Flint Mountain.
On receipt of these views we will consider the options and make final proposals.
These proposals will be included with all our proposals in respect of the community
changes suggested in the Flintshire County Council report.

Section 60 of the Act lays down procedural guidelines, which are to be followed in
carrying out a review. In line with that guidance we are writing to the Town and
Community Councils of Flint and Northop, the Member of Parliament for the local
constituency, the Assembly Members for the area and other interested parties to
inform them of our intention to conduct the review and to request their views. We
will ask the Councils to display public notices. Notification of the start of the review
and the 22 April 2015 closing date for representations to be made is to be placed
on the websites of both the Commission and Flintshire County Council.

SUMMARY OF THE DRAFT PROPOSAL

The Commission is seeking further evidence in respect of the area known locally as
Flint Mountain. A proposal has been made to separate Flint Mountain from the rest
of the Trelawny ward of the Community of Flint and a suggested boundary for this
area can be found on the map at page 4. The Commission is seeking views as to
whether one of the three following options is appropriate for the area:

A Flint Mountain is retained within the Trelawny ward of the Community of
Flint;

B Flint Mountain is created as a separate ward of the Community of Flint; or,

C Flint Mountain is created as a new ward and transferred to the Community of
Northop.

Page.342



2.2.

3.1.

3.2.

3.3.

3.4.

41.

4.2.

4.3.

4.4.

It is the view of the Commission that the electorate of Flint Mountain is not of
sufficient size to form an effective community area.

REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED PRIOR TO THE DRAFT
PROPOSAL

We received representations from Town Councillor Nigel Williams (Flint - Trelawny),
and a resident of Flint Mountain. We considered both of these representations
carefully before we formulated our proposals. Details of these representations can
be found at Appendix A.

The resident of Flint Mountain wrote asking the Commission to request that Flint
Mountain be removed from Flint Town. This resident described how the settlement
and surrounding area of Flint Mountain is of a rural character which has become
out of step with the demands and needs of the more urban Flint Town. This
disparity has led to a perceived erosion of democracy for the residents of Flint
Mountain.

The resident was of the opinion that Flint Mountain would be of sufficient size to
represent itself at community level and then would also be better fitted to join with
the more rural-aligned Northop Community.

Councillor Williams wrote in support of this argument citing that his observations
are that the needs of Flint Mountain are often overridden by those of the urban-
centred bias towards Flint Town.

PROPOSAL

The proposal from representations is that the settlement of Flint Mountain and the
surrounding area be transferred from Flint Town Council to Northop Community
Council. The Flint Mountain settlement in question comprises 286 properties and
540 electors.

The Community of Flint is currently divided, for community electoral purposes, into
the community wards of Castle, Coleshill, Oakenholt and Trelawny. The area
known as Flint Mountain presently resides in the Trelawny ward of Flint Town
Council.

The Community of Northop is currently divided, for community electoral purposes,
into the community wards of Northop and Sychdyn.

The Commission considered the representations and has looked in detail at the
area in question. It would appear to the Commission that there is some merit to the
argument that Flint Mountain is a distinct area within the Town of Flint, with a
separate, more rural character, than the more urban, town, wards of Castle and
Coleshill.

Page 343



4.5.

4.6.

4.7.

4.8.

4.9.

However, the Commission does not feel it has sufficient evidence from the local
community and town councils, interested parties and members of the public to
propose a change to the community arrangements. After deliberation, it was
agreed by the Commission that a limited public consultation be held covering the
Flint Mountain settlement on the question of whether existing arrangements should
continue, or whether Flint Mountain should become more accountable for its own
affairs by changing those arrangements.

As mentioned earlier, the Commission has identified three possible options which
seem appropriate and which would reflect our obligation to ensure effective and
convenient local government for community and town council arrangements:

A Flint Mountain is retained within the Trelawny ward of the Community of Flint
(the existing arrangement);

B Flint Mountain is created as a separate community ward of the Community of
Flint; or,

C Flint Mountain is created as a new community ward and transferred to the
Community of Northop.

It is the view of the Commission that the electorate of Flint Mountain is not of
sufficient size to form an effective community area.

The Commission is seeking views and evidence from those concerned as to
whether one of these options is appropriate for the Flint Mountain area only. The
default view of the Commission is to retain the existing arrangements (Option A) if it
does not receive sufficient evidence for either Option B or Option C as a preference
for the parties concerned.

The following three pages show maps of each Option under consideration.

Mapping key

A4 Flint Community Community
,}jijfj,/r‘,' Mountain boundary ward
o boundary

Page-344



Dee Estuary \ \
Nature Reserve | \ ~ .

Sewage
Works.

A\ Bagillt
N\

Sand and Mud

) ]
2

el J‘/ ~ \u‘//// LR
S

Hail— P

Ieskh‘

> White Sands
~_

Cornist
ot

~0a
=

P

/N Kelseeréon
SN )

e )\%
2%,

o]

sesugenon

untain " ;

W

heshi
Farim A

en-y-par

R Midiise 3\

it Coleg RS,

of Horticulture

N
>

orthabhall
g7

Smithy Lane

/) Jesea coln

Wared Woodeit.

\Pwlly-gasei
N1 Wood \
Solighe
House |

K7 M,
Y Bryny-

ffynnan _

“Mougt Pleasant,
WO A Farny
e

¥ Theatre

s TETiewx VA

S f10h .
ce Survey
(H) Hawlfraint y Goron a hawliau cronfa ddata [2015] Arolwg Ordnans [100047875]




Bagillt Bank

Dee Estuary

Nature Reserve

OPTION B - PROPOSED ARRANGEMENTS

~ NESTON CPY
& L

o ~ LA .
- NESTON'_"¢

relaw
ke

>\

B N N —7 7
[2015] Ordnance Survey [100047875]
(H) Hawlfraint y Goron a hawliau cronfa ddata [2015] Arolwg Ordnans [100047875]



| -

The Grove
2

Sand and Mud

BAGILLT C

»

Dee Estuary
Nature Reserve

lesh

A Fine |
Goltetb §i
eyt

elsh Colleg®A5!

Jof Horticulture,

Aachlog

7 Northop/

Mean’:f@;}’,;; /. Ny 4 \7 z
| %ﬁg\ﬂmz Sands ‘ \ = @T\Sands = '@)/;7 = \4)

/~Oakenholt \

fyn-Morgan.
Cotage<

o \
Leddbrook

Wood X ¢

Ltap-eurgair 5.
og e

i e
Wared Woodeit.

\Rwll-y-gaseg
1" Wood

£ Moug Pleasant |

oS

W Farmy
Mot

sV
Litdewood
Farm, 25

/ N\ \

e 5 2

-6 -

i\

pyright and database rights [2015] Ordnance Survey [100047875]
(H) Hawlfraint y Goron a hawliau cronfa ddata [2015] Arolwg Ordnans [100047875]



5. CONSEQUENTIAL ARRANGEMENTS

5.1.

In considering the change to the community boundaries it was also necessary for
us to take account of the consequential effects on the electoral arrangements for
community councils and the principal authority, which would result from these
changes. This section of our report details our proposals for consequential
changes to the electoral arrangements. We would also welcome comments on this
aspect of our report.

Community Council Electoral Arrangements

5.2.

5.3.

The present community arrangements (Option A) are shown in the table below:

. 2014 |Community|Electors per

Community |Ward Electors Councillor)s, Councillcf)r
Castle 1,518 4 380
. Coleshill 3,138 5 628
'(::'('):tnzﬁ""" Oakenholt | 2,191 4 548
Trelawny 2,823 5 565
Total 9,670 18 537
Northop Northop 1,038 6 173
Community |Sychdyn 1,464 7 209
Council Total 2,502 13 192

If it were determined that Option B were the preferred proposal, we are required to
consider the consequential changes to the community electoral arrangements.
Under this option, we would propose that the current total of 18 Flint Town
councillors is maintained with the revised Trelawny ward being represented by four
members instead of five and one member representing the new Flint Mountain
ward. The new arrangements would therefore be:

Current Proposed
Community{  Ward |00 | ot Cauneilor | Electors| Gouncilors| Goaneilor
Castle 1,518 4 380 1,518 4 380
Coleshill 3,138 5 628 3,138 5 628
Flint Town |Flint Mountain Not applicable 540 1 540
Council Oakenholt 2,191 4 548 2,191 4 548
Trelawny 2,823 5 565 2,283 4 571
Total 9,670 18 537 9,670 18 537
Northop  |Northop 1,038 6 173 1,038 6 173
Community|Sychdyn 1,464 7 209 1,464 7 209
Council  [total 2,502 13 192 2,502 13 192

Page.348



5.4. If it were determined that Option C were the preferred proposal, we are required to
consider the consequential changes to the community electoral arrangements.
Under this option, we would propose that the current total of 18 Flint Town
councillors is reduced to 17 with the reduction taking place in the Trelawny ward.

5.5. We would also propose that the current total of 13 Northop Community councillors
is increased to 14. The new Flint Mountain ward would have two community
councillors, with a reduction of one community councillor in the Northop ward.

5.6. These changes reflect the current arrangements by maintaining a broadly similar
ratio of electors per community councillor as possible within the communities
involved. We therefore propose the following arrangements:

Current Proposed
. 2014 |Community|Electors per] 2014 |[Community|Electors per
Community Ward Electors|Councillors| Councillor |Electors|Councillors| Councillor
Castle 1,518 4 380 1,518 4 380
. Coleshill 3,138 5 628 3,138 5 628
Flint Town
. Oakenholt 2,191 4 548 2,191 4 548
Council
Trelawny 2,823 5 565 2,283 4 571
Total 9,670 18 537 9,130 17 537
Flint Mountain Not applicable 540 2 270
Northop
.. [Northop 1,038 6 173 1,038 5 208
Community
Council Sychdyn 1,464 7 209 1,464 7 209
Total 2,502 13 192 3,042 14 217

County Council Electoral Arrangements
5.7. We do not propose any changes to County Council electoral arrangements. Any

changes to electoral arrangements that may be necessary will be considered at the
next electoral review for the County of Flintshire.

6. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

6.1. We wish to express our gratitude to Flintshire County Council for their assistance
and to all persons and bodies who made representations to us.

Page 349



7. RESPONSES TO THIS REPORT
7.1. All observations on this draft report should be sent to:
The Chief Executive
Local Democracy and Boundary Commission for Wales
Hastings House
Fitzalan Court
Cardiff
CF24 0BL

not later than 22 April 2015.

8. THE NEXT STEPS

8.1. When we have considered the comments made to us in response to this draft
report, we shall submit our recommendations to the Welsh Government in the form
of a report and proposals. It will then fall to the Welsh Government, if it thinks fit, to
implement our recommendations either with or without modifications.

Mr OWEN WATKIN OBE DL (Chair)

Mr CERI STRADLING (Deputy Chair)

Mr DAVID POWELL (Member)

Mr STEVE HALSALL (Chief Executive)

28 January 2015

Page.g50



1.

REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED FOLLOWING PUBLICATION OF

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL’S FINAL PROPOSALS.

Councillor Nigel Williams - Flint Town Council wrote on 27 June 2014 in support
of proposals from a resident of Flint Mountain that the settlement and surrounding
area of Flint Mountain be moved from the Trelawny ward of Flint Town Council.
Councillor Williams spoke of a democratic need that ought to be addressed and
also of the difference in character between the more urban Flint Town and the
generally rural Flint Mountain. Councillor Williams observed the clear and historic
links that Flint Mountain has with the neighbouring Community of Northop - which is
itself clearly a rural area.

. A resident of Flint Mountain wrote on 27 June 2014 asking the Commission to

accept her appeal that Flint Mountain be removed from the influence of Flint Town.

The resident provided statistical evidence from across Flintshire in support of their
proposal to be a separate community ward, citing other community wards with a
similar population to Flint Mountain. Further quotations are made from the recent
census returns for the area as well as proposed planning for a series of housing
projects which are set to increase the electorate in the future. The resident argues
that this increase would mean that the electorate of the Flint Mountain area
exceeds that of other areas which enjoy separate representation at community -
and even sometimes at county level.

The resident goes on to describe the Flint Mountain area’s facilities and amenities,
describing it as a rural village. The resident states that Flint Mountain has always
been part of the Northop Parish and also states that the local primary schools for
Flint Mountain, Northop, and Sychdyn hold an annual sports day together and have
no interaction with Flint Town’s primary schools. The resident then describes Flint
Town as an industrial town, describing its urban features and amenities.

The resident next describes their reasons for requesting Flint Mountain to be
separate from Flint Town:

e Concerns about adequate county councillor representation.

e Concerns about adequate representation on Flint Town Council with Flint
Mountain being one-fifth the population of the ward they are in, and 1/18"™ of
the population of Flint Town.

e As a village, they have more in common with the villages of Northop and
Sychdyn and would have a more equal representation on Northop
Community Council.

The resident then expresses their concerns in the process of Flintshire County
Council’'s community review itself and argues that it breached the review principles
in not considering their request for Flint Mountain to be separated from Flint Town.

The resident goes on to state that Flint Town Council should not object to the
change as it would have little consequence to them. The resident states the
remainder of Flint is growing and developing, with large new developments in other
wards. The resident argues that this is no place for a rural village to also be
represented.

Page 351



~ e~

(D) - N
This phg&Atntettibfally blank


handscombr
Text Box
This page left intentionally blank


Agenda Iltem 17

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY, 21 APRIL 2015

REPORT BY: CHIEF OFFICER (GOVERNANCE)
SUBJECT: WEBCASTING OF MEMBER MEETINGS

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  For Cabinet to consider a recommendation from the Constitution
Committee that Flintshire implements webcasting of those Member
meetings of most interest to the public with officers investigating ways
of doing so within available staffing resources.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 In the last financial year Flintshire and other principal Councils in
Wales received grant funding from the Welsh Government to enable
them to investigate the use of remote attendance and webcasting of
meetings. That resulted in remote attendance and webcasting being
trialled at the meetings of the Democratic Services and Constitution
Committees held on the 26 March 2014. In making its grant of £40K
to the Council the Welsh Government made clear that it was a one off
with no commitment to fund ongoing costs associated with either
remote attendance or webcasting.

2.02 On the 15 August 2014 the Welsh Local Government Association
(WLGA) published guidance for Members on webcasting which was
reported to the Constitution Committee and that guidance is attached
as Appendix 1. Flintshire is one of the 12 authorities whose webcast
is listed on page 9 of the guidance. Whilst most of those have used
the same commercial supplier as for the Flintshire trial, Public-i, a few
developed their own system. The guidance includes a list of what are
seen as the benefits of webcasting, together with the challenges
associated with it.

2.03  Whilst at the Constitution Committee meeting on the 15 October 2014
it was decided that no further action was to be taken at the present
time in pursuing remote attendance at meetings, the committee
decided that webcasting should continue to be explored. That led to a
further report to the committee’s meeting on the 28 January 2015.
The committee agreed the recommendation in the report that due to
the benefits of webcasting in terms of public engagement and
transparency a recommendation to Cabinet be recommended to
implement webcasting for those Member meetings of most interest to

Page 353



3.00

3.01

3.02

3.03

3.04

the public with officers investigating ways of doing so within available
staffing resources.

CONSIDERATIONS

With the exception of a few Councils who have devised their own
webcasting arrangements the remaining Councils in Wales who have
introduced webcasting have entered into contractual arrangements
with Public-i. The Council’s officers have made enquiries of the three
Welsh Councils who have devised their own systems but officers
believe the best option in Flintshire’s circumstances is to use the
Public-i system. Monmouthshire was one of the three authorities that
devised its own system but this was as a result of a major investment
in their Council Chamber through the installation of a new and up-to-
date audio visual system. Following enquiries of the other two
Councils that have devised their own systems officers believe the
Public-i system is easier for staff and public to use.

Officers have obtained from Public-i quotes for different options for
webcasting which have been sent to Cabinet members. In view of the
commercial sensitivities of this information Members are asked to
maintain the confidentiality of the figures quoted. The options include
for webcasting of just the Council Chamber or both the Council
Chamber and the Clwyd Room. The options also cover costs for
either a one year or three year contract. The upfront costs and
service costs for either type of contract could be met from the balance
of the Welsh Government grant.

The other main challenge associated with webcasting besides the
financial cost is the time required by staff to operate such equipment.
Officers have made enquiries of both Conwy and Wrexham Councils
of the staffing implications of webcasting those meetings of most
interest to the public. Both Councils have fixed cameras in the
Council Chambers but not in any other rooms. Without fixed cameras
the staffing implications are considered too onerous for introduction in
Flintshire.

Officers believe that for any webcast meeting there will be a need for
an extra member of staff to attend to operate the cameras and align
them to the microphones. In 2014 if meetings of the County Council,
Cabinet and Planning had been webcast it is estimated that the
staffing impact would have been an additional 152 hours of committee
officer time. At a time when the review of Democratic Services is
proposing to find budget savings through the loss of posts the
additional workload involved in webcasting such meetings represents
a significant challenge. It is considered that by confining webcasting
to those meetings where there is a significant public interest such as
meetings of the Planning and Development Control Committee and
some Cabinet and County Council meetings this could be
accommodated within available staffing resources. As indicated in the

Page 354



3.05

3.06

3.07

4.00

4.01

4.02

4.03

Democratic Services business plan considered by Corporate
Resources Overview & Scrutiny on the 22 January workload is to be
reduced by, for example, no longer supporting meetings of informal
bodies. The Chief Officer Governance in consultation with the Leader
and Deputy Leader will make recommendations on this to the
Democratic Services Committee.

As indicated in the WLGA guidance webcasting is nhow underway in
most authorities in Wales for those meetings which are judged to be of
most interest to the public. It also indicates that generally the number
of website hits suggests that there is ongoing public interest in these
broadcasts. Webcasting enables meetings to be viewed by more
people than can be physically accommodated in the meeting room
and for meetings to be viewed at a time convenient to individual
members of the public. In view of the benefits of webcasting in terms
of public engagement and transparency the Constitution Committee
decided to recommend its introduction to Cabinet.

The Constitution Committee did not make a recommendation in
relation to whether webcasting should be confined to meetings held in
the Council Chamber or also cover meetings held in the Clwyd Room.
It also did not make a recommendation as to whether the contract
should be for one year or three years duration. It is considered the
most cost effective option would be a 3 year contract to cover
meetings in the Council Chamber.

In order to ensure webcasting works well it is considered that Council
should be recommended to adopt the attached (Appendix 2)
webcasting protocol to cover the following:-

(a) The deemed consent of third parties and the public to webcasting
meetings they attend.

(b) How long webcasts are to be retained on the Council’'s website

(c) That the minutes once approved remain the official record of the
meeting

RECOMMENDATIONS

For Cabinet to agree to the introduction of webcasting of those
meetings of greatest public interest namely meetings of the Planning
and Development Control Committee and meetings of County
Council.

That the Chief Officer, Governance be authorised to enter into a
contract for 3 years for meetings held in the Council Chamber.

For the Chief Officer, Governance in consultation with the Leader and
Deputy Leader to make recommendations to the Democratic Services
Committee on how webcasting can be accommodated within available
staffing resources

Page 355



4.04

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

For the Chief Officer, Governance to recommend to Council the
attached protocol on webcasting of meetings.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The Council has previously received a one off grant from the Welsh
Government of £40K of which a balance of £37K remains. The
upfront cost and the service costs for either a year or a three year
contract could be met from the balance of the Welsh Government
grant.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

None as a result of this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None as a result of this report.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None as a result of this report.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

Each webcast meeting would require an extra officer to be in
attendance and this would represent a significant challenge at a time
of reducing staffing resources to find budget savings. The Chief
Officer, Governance will consult the Leader and Deputy Leader and
make recommendations on this to the Democratic Services
Committee.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

None as a result of this report.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

None as a result of this report.

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 — Guidance for Members
Appendix 2 — Webcasting Protocol

Page 356



LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Questionnaires on webcasting arrangements at Conwy and Wrexham
Councils.

Contact Officer: Peter Evans
Telephone: 01352 702304
Email: peter.j.evans@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 357


mailto:Peter.j.evans@flintshire.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Guidance for Members:
Webcasting

August 2014

WLGA-CLILC



csdilms_2
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX 1


e
Contact

Welsh Local Government Association

The WLGA's primary purposes are to promote a better local government, its reputation
and to support authorities in the development of policies and priorities which will improve
public service and democracy.

It represents the 22 local authorities in Wales with the 3 fire and rescue authorities and 3
national park authorities as associate members.

Welsh Local Government Association
Local Government House

Drake Walk

Cardiff

CF10 4LG

Tel: 029 2046 8600
Fax: 029 2046 8601

www.wlga.gov.uk

Published:  August 2013
Copyright:  Welsh Local Government Association

ISBN: 978-1-78286-014-3

We are indebted to the officers, members and professionals who have contributed to this
guide, in particular the network of member support officers and Lawyers in Local
Government (LLG). Also to Mel Doel, who provided training to elected members on behalf
of the WLGA and contributed to this guide, and Kevin O'Keefe of EXCELA INTERIM
MANAGEMENT AND CONSULTANCY LTD for his guidance on legal matters.

Page 360 2



Preface

I am extremely
pleased to present
this guidance from
the WLGA on the
webcasting of
council meetings. It
provides members
with a useful
overview of the
subject, and offers
some important tips
on how to make the most of an exciting
technological development that offers
huge potential for improving how councils
engage with their communities.

The webcasting of key council meetings
and decisions represents a significant
step forward in ensuring that the process
of local government is both transparent
and accessible to the public, and it is
already helping people to engage with
the decisions that affect their lives and
community on a daily basis. We know
that people trust their local council, more
than any other level of government, to
deliver on the issues that matter the most
to them. As we enter one of the most
challenging periods for local government
in Wales, the active broadcasting of how

Page 361

key decisions are made will play a vitally
important role in helping to ensure that
this level of public trust continues into the
future.

Alongside a rising use of social media, the
webcasting of council meetings is quickly
becoming a well-established part of local
government processes. This means that
communities can view the business of
their council as it happens, while also
taking an active role within decision
making through the use of social media
tools like Facebook and Twitter. I hope
that councils will continue to build on
these initiatives to foster further
transparency and encourage more people
to actively participate in the local
democratic process.

A

”

Councillor Peter Fox

Leader Monmouthshire County Council
WLGA spokesperson for ICT and Digital
Inclusion



What is a Webcast?

A webcast is a live or recorded transmission
of a video on the internet. It is not edited
prior to broadcast and can be viewed by
anyone with access to the Internet, both
during the live broadcast and for as long as
an authority makes it available on their
website.

Webcasting is now being introduced in
councils across Wales to broadcast a range
of council meetings to the public. This is
clearly of significance to councillors as there
is a potential for the public to be more
widely involved in the democratic process,
and for the business of local government to
be made more transparent. It also means
that the actions, opinions and positions
taken by local councillors may potentially be
more closely scrutinised by the public.

Why Wales is Webcasting

Councils in Wales are committed to
promoting local democracy and facilitating
public participation. The Welsh Government
has assisted councils to promote democracy
and engagement in local government by
providing £1,125,000 funding in 2013/14 to
broadcast council meetings, introduce
remote attendance and assist community
councils to establish websites. Although
there is currently no requirement on local
authorities to webcast their meetings, the
Minister for Local Government and
Government Business has encouraged
councils to webcast some or all of their
meetings in the interests of public
engagement and transparency. The White
Paper - Reforming Local Government. !
currently out for consultation, states that
the Welsh Government intends to introduce

1 http://wal es.gov.uk/consul tati ons/l ocal government/white-

paper-reforming-local -government/? ang=en

a mandatory requirement on all authorities
to broadcast their meetings.

The draft Revised Code of Recommended
Practice in Local Authority Publicity, ? says
that “Society now expects to have far
greater access to information than in the
past, in particular in relation to the decision-
making procedures of its elected bodies.
This should be embraced by political
representatives as providing an opportunity
to communicate directly with their
electorate. Local authorities are encouraged
to make arrangements for their proceedings
to be made more accessible to the public by
allowing them to be broadcast.”

Progress

Webcasting is now underway in most
authorities for those meetings which are
judged to be of most interest to the public,
particularly full Council, Cabinet and
Planning Committee meetings. Some
authorities are also broadcasting
proceedings from their scrutiny committees.

Most authorities have commissioned
commercial providers for this service,
however, some have developed their own
distinct approaches. For example
Monmouthshire uses Google Plus and
YouTube, Ceredigion uses Livestream to
broadcast bilingually and Bridgend has
developed a solution with Auditel and
Vimeo.

Viewing figures for council webcasts vary
according to the type of meeting and
authority, but generally the number of
website hits suggest that there is real and
growing public interest in these broadcasts.
Typically, there are more viewings of
archived webcasts than live meetings.

2

http://wales.gov.uk/docs/dsjlg/consultation/130322revised
codelapublicityen.pdf

Page 362 4



The Benefits of Webcasting

Webcasting has produced a wide range of
benefits which have been summarised
below. Some were intended and
anticipated, while others were unforeseen
and identified by authorities from their
webcasting experiences.

Engagement and Transparency

« More open and transparent governance
and accountability.

« Improved public engagement in and
understanding of decision making.

» Easier public access to meetings
minimising travel and allowing more
flexible viewing times.

«  Will facilitate the understanding of the
overview and scrutiny function by the
public in line with the Local Government
(Wales) Measure 2011.

* Can be used with social media to further
promote public engagement. This is
possible through a social media
conversation which can run alongside
the meeting when it is in progress.

« The public can access the papers and
presentations made at the meeting as
well as see the meeting footage.

» Provides good “PR"” for the council as
council meetings can be seen as more
constructive than, for example, Prime
Ministers question time.

Benefits for the Council

» A step towards remote attendance at
meetings - a requirement of the Local
Government (Wales) Measure 2011
which will allow members to attend
meetings from a location which is
convenient to them.

« Provides an incentive for high standards
of member attendance, engagement and
conduct at meetings.

» An effective means of communicating to
officers and other members key
information and decisions.

« A useful part of member and officer
induction and training.

» Opportunities for members to learn good
practice from peer observation and
inform potential candidates about their
role to encourage democratic renewal.

» Fewer press enquiries as journalists can
now watch broadcasts rather than ask
for quotes.

» A reduced need for space for the public
at popular or controversial meetings.

» Equipment and venues can be used for
purposes other than committees, such as
staff training and inter authority
meetings.

» Provides a true record of the meeting.
This helps to supplement minutes and to
counteract any misleading use of “edited
highlights” by anyone filming the
meeting.

Challenges Associated with
Webcasting

Some concerns have been expressed about
the costs of webcasting, particularly as it is
being introduced at a time when severe
reductions are being made to council
budgets. The main costs are that of
equipment, whether purchased or hired, and
also for the staff time required to operate
the equipment.

The major challenge for authorities now, is
to undertake cost benefit analyses to see if
outcomes from webcasting are worth the

expense. The Welsh Government is hoping

Page 363 5



to work with the WLGA and local authorities
to secure savings through a joint
procurement of webcasting providers. In the
future, webcasting may provide
opportunities for saving money and
generating income for example: minutes can
be shortened and used to record actions
rather the full debate; equipment may be
hired out, and there is some evidence to
suggest that there are fewer time
consuming Freedom of Information (FOI)
requests to councils when council meeting
records can be so easily viewed.

Blogging, Tweeting and
Filming During Meetings

About half of the Local Authorities in Wales
allow or encourage the use of social media
by members in meetings. Filming by the
public or journalists is less common, and
where it is allowed, usually requires
permission.

The Welsh Government is of the view that
the use of Social Media is useful as long as
members use it appropriately. Authorities
who restrict it do so on the grounds that
members might be accused of not
concentrating on the matter under
discussion. Members may wish to consider
how the public might perceive their using
social media in a meeting and their ability to
concentrate on the matter at hand if they
are blogging or tweeting during a debate, a
vote, or a planning decision.

See also the WLGA guidance for members
on using social media available at:
http://www.wlga.gov.uk/member-support-
and-development-publications1/social-
media-a-guide-for-councillors/

Page 364

The Law and Protocols
Relating to Webcasting

Data Protection

It is not likely that the Data Protection Act
will affect the broadcasting of council
meetings as sensitive information relating to
individuals should not be discussed at any
public meeting, broadcast or otherwise. In
the case of exempt items, where the public
and press are excluded, the broadcast is
switched off and replaced with a message
saying why the broadcast has been
temporarily suspended.

Freedom of Information

The Freedom of Information Act should also
not apply to broadcasts as it only applies to
information which is not already in the
public domain. If people request information
under the FOI act which has been broadcast
or is available on the website through the
meeting archive the council is under no
obligation to respond.

Copyright

The Council is the "author™ of the webcast
whether live or archived. As such, they own
copyright. If anyone, including individual
members or the public, wishes to use it they
should ask permission of the council.
However, it is unlikely that a council would
invoke the law if the broadcast is used for
legitimate and positive purposes such as
information or training. If a broadcast is
used inappropriately, for example for
political or satirical purposes the council
could take legal action. Video sharing
websites such as YouTube and Google Video
already actively state in their terms and
conditions that you must be the copyright
owner and have the permission of all those
involved in order to upload videos to their
sites.



Consent

In the early stages of webcasting it is
advisable to consult with any potential
meeting participants to ensure that they are
comfortable with being filmed. Some people
might wish to have opportunities for
development or coaching before appearing.

Participants at every meeting should be
informed that the meeting will be webcast
and should be given notice of this when the
meeting agenda is distributed. Meeting
participants will be deemed to have agreed
to consent to be filmed and to the future
use of the film if they are present.

At the start of each meeting to be filmed, an
announcement should also be made to the
effect that the meeting is being webcast live
and will also be available for future
viewings. No exempt or confidential agenda
items should be broadcast.

Voting

The process of voting is the same in a
broadcast as in any other public meeting.
Webcasting should simply be seen as an
extension of the ‘openness’ of meetings
which are already, by definition, in the
public domain. Voting will be undertaken
either by a show of hands or by using the
council’s electronic system. Depending on
the webcasting system used, the public may
be able to see how each councillor votes.

Terminating a Webcast

The Chair of the meeting has the discretion
to terminate or suspend the webcast if, in
his/her opinion, continuing to broadcast
would prejudice the proceedings of the
meeting. For example:

(i) If the meeting is suspended due to a
public disturbance.

(i) When it has been agreed that the public
and press are to be excluded.

(iii) When the Chair and committee agree
that webcasting would prejudice the
proceedings of the meeting.

Editing a Webcast

Clearly it is not possible to edit a live
broadcast. Evidence suggests that if a
member accidently says something
inappropriate, offensive or illegal the chair
should ask them to immediately apologise.
Editing an archived broadcast is possible,
because, once archived, the material is a
publicly accessible digital file and making
offensive material available such as
inadvertent racist comments may amount to
an offence. Making defamatory material
available carries a civil law risk. In the
circumstances, it is permissible to allow a
'bleep' to be inserted. In the undoubtedly
rare instance where editing is required - an
unedited copy of the recording should be
retained as evidence should it be required
for any future proceedings.

Personal Skills
Appearance

There are certain skills and behaviours that
are helpful to be aware of when you are
appearing in a webcast. You might find the
following useful:

e Don’t move too much! This can reduce
the picture quality and may be hard for
the camera to follow. Bending over to
speak into a microphone looks awkward
on screen, SO some councils are
considering changing their meeting
procedure so that members may remain
seated.

« When considering what to wear, bear in
mind all the possible camera angles and
watch out for clothing or jewellery which
might rub against the microphone and
stop what you are saying being heard.
Mayoral chains are particular culprits!

Page 365 7



Don’t watch the broadcast live on your
own equipment as this may create sound
interference.

Be aware of the range of the camera
view as talking with colleagues, eating,
adjusting clothing can also be distracting
if it is behind the member who is
speaking.

Watch your body language, slumping
can be misinterpreted as disengagement
and eye resting as sleeping.

Speaking

Although the general rules about public
speaking apply at all public meetings, there

are some behaviours that will help you come

over well in a broadcast and make the
meeting more interesting and useful to the
viewers. Above all be natural and be
yourself!

Be direct, to the point and as brief as
possible.

Don't speak too quickly, if you are
stumbling over words you may be
rushing too much.

Prepare your contributions in advance
(bullet points which enable you to speak
naturally rather than a prepared speech
which looks and sounds unnatural).

Be aware of how your messages could
be interpreted by the public, both what
you say and how you say it.

You may have to be more clear about
some of the information that you give so
that it is clear to a lay person what you
are doing and why you are doing it. A
good example of this is declaring
interests. It will be helpful to say not
only that you have an interest but what
the interest is whether it is personal or
prejudicial and also how you intend to
act as a result.

Page 366

» Avoid jargon and “council speak” - this
applies to officers too!

» Heckling doesn’t work well on a webcast
as usually it is only the chair and the
member who has the floor who can be
seen and heard. Other comments are
often unintelligible as they are off
microphone.

» Make sure that you are in range of the
microphone and keep your head turned
towards it. Don't speak until your light
comes on, or the first part of your
contribution will be lost! Make sure that
you turn your microphone off when you
have finished speaking.

e Be aware of how what you say could be
used by the media.

Chairing Skills

The chair of the meeting is vital to the
viewing experience of the public, just as if
there was a full public gallery. Here are
some tips for chairs to consider.

« Introduce the key players at the meeting
so that viewers know who they are
looking at. This might include the chair
themselves, officers, and witnesses. It is
important to say what their role is at the
meeting too.

» Be prepared to explain some meeting
procedures if these are not obvious to
viewers. For example, if the meeting is
going into recess, explain why this is and
when the meeting will reconvene.

» Be prepared to enforce time restraints on
speakers, either formal ones if they
apply or if someone’s contribution is long
and unproductive.

» Don't forget to remind everyone that the
meeting is being broadcast and will be
available in future on the internet.



* Make clear the different elements of the
agenda, such as what is for information
or a decision, or a vote. Also if the
Webcast is going to be suspended for
exempt or confidential items you'll need
to say when and why this will happen.

» As a chair you may be required to handle
the equipment, for example operating a
speaker queuing and permission system.
Make sure that you have guidance in
advance on how to do this.

Future Opportunities

As webcasting use and technology develops,
there is a potential to use webcasting
facilities to improve and broaden a number
of council activities.

These include:

e Live communication to officers and
members over the internet, this might
include briefings by the Leader or Chief
Executive.

« Live and recorded training sessions for
the home council and also potentially for
all councils in Wales.

» Greater interactivity with broadcasts
through social media which works
alongside it.

» Live links in meetings to community
groups and schools for debate and
reaction to plans and policies.

» Opportunities to ‘advertise’ council
services and provide public information
broadcasts.

The technology required for webcasting also
provides a foundation for councils
introducing remote attendance by
councillors at council meetings. By law,
councils are obliged to state in their
constitutions the circumstances under which
they will make remote attendance at council

meetings available. More information is
available on the following link.

http://wales.qov.uk/topics/localgovernment/publ
ications/statutory-guidance-section-4-remote-
attendance/?lang=en

Watch other Authorities’
Broadcasts

Blaenau Gwent
http://www.blaenau-gwent.public-i.tv/core/

Brecon Beacons
http://www.breconbeacons.public-i.tv/core/

Cardiff
http://www.cardiff.public-i.tv/core/

Carmarthenshire
http://www.carmarthenshire.public-

i.tv/core/

Ceredigion
http://new.livestream.com/ceredigion/event

s/2493787

Conwy
http://www.conwy.public-i.tv/core/

Denbighshire
http://www.denbighshire.public-i.tv/core/

Flintshire
http://www.flintshire.public-i.tv/core/

Newport
http://www.newport.public-
i.tv/core/portal/home

Pembrokeshire
http://www.pembrokeshire.public-i.tv/core/

Powys
http://www.Powys.public-
i.tv/core/portal/home

Torfaen
http://www.torfaen.public-i.tv/core/

Page 367 9



Examples of Use in Local
Authorities

Torfaen County Borough Council

Torfaen County Borough Council took a
decision to webcast meetings (starting with
Council and Cabinet) in the spring of 2013.
Following the usual contractual processes,
the equipment needed (supplied by public-i)
was installed in the Council Chamber during
August 2013. We saw the training of all
members and relevant officers (Democratic
Services staff and officers who regularly
present reports) as very important, and
sought the expertise of Melanie Doel (of
Brecon Beacons NPA) to provide training.
The training was provided over several
weeks and sessions, to small groups of
members and officers, who were able freely
and confidentially to share and discuss any
concerns or issues they had with Melanie
Doel (who, as a career journalist and
member of the NPA, which had been
webcasting for some time, was able to pass
on many useful tips and a large degree of
confidence).

We started webcasting Council and Cabinet
meetings in October 2013, as well as
webcasting a budget update from the
Cabinet Member for Resources and 3
members’ seminars which were deemed to
be of particular “public interest”. Our
Democratic and Members Services staff
operate the equipment, very successfully,
with remote support from public-i as
needed. To date there has been no failure
of the webcast system. Before a webcast
takes place, we promote it via our social
media channels, along with a link to the
agenda for that meeting, so that people are
alerted to it in advance of the meeting.

As at 10 June 2014, our 8 Cabinet meetings
which have been webcast attracted 6373
viewings (1641 live and 4732 via the
archive). This is an average of 797 per
meeting. Council (8 meetings) has attracted
9154 viewings (2987 live and 6167 archive);

an average of 1144 per meeting. The 3
seminars were viewed 1849 times (385 live
and 1464 via archive); an average of 616
per meeting (albeit the budget seminar
alone attracted 1097 viewings) and the
budget update attracted 519 (1 live and 518
via archive). In January 2014, we decided
also to webcast overview and scrutiny
committees of particular public interest, with
4 meetings webcast so far and 987 viewings
(156 live and 831 via archive); an average
per meeting of 247.

We know many Council staff watch the
meetings, to find out more about how
Council, Cabinet and other meetings work,
or because they are associated with or
impacted upon by decisions being made. We
also know that meetings are watched by the
public and other people in local government
across Wales and further afield. These
people could of course be anywhere. We are
unable to tell where or who our viewers are,
but the system records that we have had
8992 unique visitor addresses (i.e. IP
addresses) access the webcasts. Of those,
5358 people have watched once and 3634
people have watched several
times/meetings. An IP address could
represent an individual person, or a group of
people (e.g. a local business).

With a very small public gallery in the
Council Chamber (holding about 20 people)
it is very clear that the business of the
Council has reached thousands of people
which it would not otherwise have reached.
The Council believes webcasting to be a
significant improvement in promoting
openness, transparency and, as a result, the
working of local democracy. The Council on
24 June 2014 is consequently expected to
extend webcasting to all meetings of
Scrutiny Committees, as well as the
Planning and Licensing Committees.
Meetings and the decisions made/events
which occurred in them have been the result
of significant public debate in Torfaen, as
evidenced through our social media and
other communication channels — and the
initial concerns of many members and

Page 368 10



officers have been all but forgotten by most
people, as everyone concerned has got used
to webcasting and begun to accept it as the
norm. There is some perception that
meetings are more business-like since
webcasting was introduced (e.g. they are a
bit shorter in most cases, repetition has
reduced and they are more focussed), but
no evidence that anyone has been put off
speaking in any way. Otherwise, meetings
take place exactly as they did before (albeit
all meetings now have to take place in the
same room), but they have been viewed
nearly 19,000 more times than they would
otherwise have been viewed.

In conclusion, webcasting meetings in
Torfaen has been a huge success and has
very clearly reached the parts which
otherwise we didn’t reach. The engagement
of the public and staff has increased
substantially as a result of webcasting.
Leadership from the front, buy-in from all
members and officers (via Council), the
training and reassurance provided by others
who've gone through it already and our
determination to promote and open up
democracy were all essential elements.

Torfaen would thoroughly commend
webcasting and encourage others to take
the plunge.

Powys County Council

Webcasting in Powys developed following a
successful “broadcast” of a Council meeting
to approximately 2000 people outside the
Welshpool Livestock Market in 2011 where a
special meeting was held by the Council to
discuss wind farm developments in Powys.

Based on the significant probability that
future meetings considering wind farm
proposals, which would be held at County
Hall, would attract attendance by large
numbers of the public, the Council
investigated the possibility of webcasting as
a means of both of controlling the numbers
attending the venue and also of ensuring
that interested members of the public could

have easy access to the Council’s
proceedings. This has also assisted the
Council in planning these events which can
be undertaken far quicker now due to the
experience of the team of individuals
involved in the process.

Subsequently Welsh Government provided
the Council with £40,000 which was used
for webcasting, to stimulate an increased
use of webcasting by Councils in Wales and
to provide greater transparency and
accountability of the Council’s work.

Overall Powys has had 23395 views based
on 17 events. Some examples of total
viewing figures for events are listed below:

Major wind farm 2705
developments 2877
Planning Committee 1509
1301
1096
782
County Council 1878
County Council — 1804
budget meetings 3175
Cabinet 1731
1037
Have Your Say Day 1951
(Budget Consultation)
Scrutiny Committee 254

There have been 4 other meetings where
viewing figures range from 150 to 490.

Brecon Beacons National Park
Authority

The National Park Authority has been
webcasting the full Authority meetings,
Planning Committee and Audit and Scrutiny
Committee for just over two years now and
total views stand at 31,500. On average, the
National Park Authority meetings receive
671 views, Planning receives 556 and Audit
and Scrutiny 436. Both the total and
average views per meeting have continued
to rise steadily over the two years and the
cost per view has reduced from £2.40 to

81p.
Page 369 11




We have found the following benefits from
webcasting meetings.

o

Webcasting encourages good
governance and preparation for
meetings (by both members and
officers!)

An opportunity to get some messages
out into the public domain in the face of
criticism on any specific issue

An opportunity for members to give
reports on meetings they have attended
or events at which they have
represented the Authority demonstrating
the wider role of a member

The public can see the Wales Audit
Office presenting their Annual
Improvement Reports and the members’
responses (sometimes refuting the
conclusions of the WAQ!)

We can now hire our meeting facilities
complete with webcasting opportunities
(we can host this or direct to customer
sites)

We can respond to claims that issues
have not been considered or debated
properly by sending links to points in
meetings where items were debated.
We can also prove the accuracy of
minutes.

o

We have used webcasting to broadcast
presentations to meetings — recent
examples include: a presentation by the
Department of Culture Media and Sport,
Welsh Water and Costain.

Future plans include

o

Page 370

Using webcasting to deliver our
education programme

Recording interviews with female
members for the Welsh Government or
the WLGA to use to encourage more
women in public life

Recording interviews/discussion with
members on member development for
the Advanced level of the Wales Charter
for member support and development

Exploring options for the use of social
media to encourage interest in specific
items

Sharing our State of the Park Report
with a wider audience

Engaging more people in the strategic
planning for the Park through involving
the public in the review of the National
Park Management Plan

Webcasting seminars on topics such as
mobile phone coverage and masts.

12



APPENDIX 2

Flintshire County Council Webcasting Protocol

Introduction

The Council has agreed that certain meeting should be the subject of live web
transmission (‘webcasting’), or recorded for subsequent transmission. Fixed
cameras are located within the Council Chamber for this purpose.

The main purpose of webcasting is to give members of the public the chance to view
meetings as they happen without having to attend in person.

Webcasting does not replace the formal record of decisions made. The only formal
record of decisions of a Local Authority is its minutes and agendas which are
required to be maintained and retained for a number of years.

This protocol governs the conduct of Council meetings which are the subject of
webcasting and aims to ensure that the Council is compliant with its obligations
under the Data Protection Act 1998 and the Human Rights Act 1998.

Agenda Front Sheets

On the front of each relevant agenda there will be the following notice:-

WEBCASTING NOTICE

This meeting may be filmed for live and/or subsequent broadcast on the
Council’s website or may be used for training purposes within the Council. The
whole of the meeting will be filmed, except where there are confidential or
exempt items, and the footage will be on the website for 6 months.

Generally the public seating areas are not filmed. However, by entering the
Chamber you are consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those
images and sound recordings for webcasting and / or training purposes.

If you have any queries regarding this, please contact a member of the
Democratic Services Team on 01352 702345

Page 371



Signage at Meetings

The following signs will be displayed inside and outside of the meeting room:-

WEBCASTING NOTICE

PLEASE NOTE THAT FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL WILL BROADCAST
THIS MEETING LIVE ON ITS WEBSITE AND THE RECORD WILL BE
ARCHIVED FOR FUTURE VIEWING

AS YOUR PICTURE MAY BE INCLUDED IN THE BROADCAST, BY
ENTERING THE CHAMBER YOU ARE CONSENTING TO BE FILMED AND
TO THE POSSIBLE USE OF THOSE IMAGES AND ANY SOUND
RECORDINGS

Public Speakers

In any correspondence notifying public speakers of the meeting date at which
permission to speak has been granted, the following advice will be included if the
particular meeting is to be webcast:

Please note that this meeting will be filmed for live and/or subsequent broadcast on
the Council’s website. If you do not wish your public question/statement and
subsequent discussion to be filmed/recorded, please contact the Democratic
Services Team to discuss your concerns.

Conduct of meetings

1. At the start of each meeting to be filmed, an announcement will be made by
the Chair to the effect that the meeting is being webcast and that the Chair
may also terminate or suspend the webcasting of the meeting should the
Chair consider this desirable.

2. No part of any meeting held with the press and public excluded will be
webcast after Members have passed a resolution excluding the press and
public because there is likely to be disclosure of exempt or confidential
information. The Committee Officer will ensure that filming and/or recording
of the meeting has ceased and will confirm this to the Chair of the meeting
before any discussion of exempt or confidential matters is commenced.

3. Subject to paragraph 4 below all archived webcasts will be available to view
on the Council’s website for a period of six months.

Page 372



. Archived webcasts or parts of webcasts shall only be removed from the
Council’s website if the Monitoring Officer considers that it is necessary
because all or part of the content of the webcast is or is likely to be in breach
of any statutory or common law provision, for example Data Protection and
Human Rights legislation or provisions relating to confidential or exempt
information.

. The actual webcasts and archived material, and copyright therein, remain the
property of the Council, and the right to copy, issue, rent, perform,
communicate or adapt any of the webcast or archived material is restricted as
follows:

(i) Subject to (ii) and (iii) below, any person may copy and use
webcast material or part thereof provided that the facility is not used
in a way that otherwise breaks the law and that the whole agenda
item is displayed.

(i) The use of any webcast involving the alteration or editing of the
material which results in changing the message or context without
the prior written approval of the Democracy & Governance
Manager.

(i)  The use of webcast for commercial purposes involving re-use of the
material is not permitted unless the prior written approval of the
Democracy & Governance Manager is obtained in writing.

. Any elected Member who is concerned about any webcast or part thereof
should raise their concerns with the Monitoring Officer.

. There is a presumption that Members and officers give their consent to being
filmed and for images to be webcast, unless a specific request is made to the
Monitoring Officer for an exception to be made in advance of the meeting.
The Monitoring Officer will take a view on a case-by-case basis on whether
there is sufficient justification for making an exemption.

. If a technical fault develops, the Chair should agree a short adjournment to

see if the problem can be resolved. If after adjourning the problem still
persists, the meeting should continue irrespective of it not being recorded.

Page 373



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 18

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY, 21 APRIL 2015

REPORT BY: CHIEF OFFICER (GOVERNANCE)

SUBJECT: TWELFTH ANNUAL REPORT OF THE FLINTSHIRE LOCAL

ACCESS FORUM - 2013/14

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  For the Cabinet, on behalf of County Council, to note and approve the twelfth
report of the Flintshire Local Access Forum, prepared in accordance with
Regulation 16 of the Countryside Access (Local Access Forums) (Wales)
Regulations 2001.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 The Flintshire Local Access Forum was established in 2002 by the County
Council in accordance with the provisions of the above Regulations. The
membership of the Forum runs for three years, with the current term of
membership having begun on 2" February 2015. It is a requirement of
those Regulations that an annual report be prepared and approved by the
County Council which must include the following:-

(i) information relating to the Forum's functions during the twelve month
period ending on 31st March in each year, and

(i) a programme of works which has been agreed between the Forum and
the County Council which the Forum plans to undertake during the
twelve months commencing immediately after 31st March in each year.

2.02 Appended to this report is the draft report (excluding the minutes of the
Forum meetings which are at Appendix 4) for the period 1st April 2013 to
31st March 2014 as prepared by the Forum Secretary, David M. Davies,
who, until his retirement in May 2014, was a solicitor employed in my
Department. Copies of the draft report, with all the accompanying
appendices, are available in the Group Rooms. The format of the report
follows the advice issued by Natural Resources Wales (NRW). The draft
report has already been submitted to a meeting of the Forum on 23w
February 2015, when it was agreed that it should be submitted to the County
Council for approval.

2.03 The reason for the late submission of the report to Cabinet is owing to a

hiatus in the Forum’s work following Mr. Davies’s retirement (he
subsequently agreed to continue as the Forum Secretary), and NRW’s

Page 375



3.00

3.01

3.02

4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

failure to provide a programme of works for this year (2014/15) (see
paragraph 7 of the draft annual report).

CONSIDERATIONS

The Forum’s twelfth annual report follows the format of the previous annual
reports. It has been completed in accordance with the guidance issued by
NRW regarding the preparation of such reports.

NRW maintains a central record of annual reports of all the local access
forums in Wales. A copy of the appended report, once approved, will be
sent to NRW.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That the twelfth annual report of the Flintshire Local Access Forum, for
2013/2014, be noted and approved by the County Council, and be submitted
to NRW for their records.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are continuing costs associated with the administration of the Local
Access Forum, which is funded through the Planning and Environment
budget.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

None.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

Under the terms of the 2000 Act, the function of the Forum is to advise the
County Council, Welsh Government and NRW as to the improvement of
public access to land in the area for the purposes of open-air recreation and
the enjoyment of the area.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

None.

Page 376



11.00 CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

11.01 The report has already been submitted to the Local Access Forum.

12.00 APPENDICES

Draft twelfth annual report of the Flintshire Local Access Forum

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

None

Contact Officer: Sharon Thomas, Committee Services
Telephone: 01352 702324
Email: sharon.b.thomas@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 377


mailto:sharon.b.thomas@flintshire.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Flintshire
Local Access
Forum

Established under the Countryside & Rights of Way Act 2000
Sefydlwyd o dan y Ddeddf Cefn Gwlad a Hawliau Tramwy 2000

FLINTSHIRE LOCAL ACCESS FORUM

TWELFTH ANNUAL REPORT 2013/14

Prepared in accordance with
Regulation 16 of the Countryside Access (Local Access Forums)
(Wales) Regulations 2001

[as submitted to and agreed by
the Flintshire Local Access Forum on 23 February 2015]

Page 379



FLINTSHIRE LOCAL ACCESS FORUM
TWELFTH ANNUAL REPORT 2013/14
INTRODUCTION

1. The Flintshire Local Access Forum was established for the whole of the
geographical area of Flintshire on 14t October 2002. Flintshire County Council
had a statutory duty to establish the Forum as required by the Countryside and
Rights of Way Act 2000. The statutory function of the Forum is to advise the
County Council, Natural Resources Wales (formerly the Countryside Council for
Wales) and others as to the improvement of public access to land in the area for
the purposes of open air recreation and the enjoyment of the area. All meetings of

the Forum are open to the public.

2. The present Forum membership was appointed with effect from 16t January 2012

for a period of three years.

3. This is the twelfth annual report of the Forum.

Page 380



THE STATUTORY FUNCTIONS OF THE FORUM

3. The Forum was not consulted during the year in relation to any of its statutory

functions.

OTHER MATTERS CONSIDERED BY THE FORUM

4. The following matters were considered by the Forum during the year:-

Summary :

Topic Considered :
Dates Considered :

All Wales Coastal Path/Coastal Access.

15t April 2013.

The Forum was advised of progress on the Wales
Coastal Access Improvement Plan.

Summary :

Topic Considered :
Dates Considered :

Flintshire’s Rights of Way Improvement Plan (ROWIP).
15t April 2013, 8" July 2013, 30t September 2013 &
20t January 2014.

The Forum was advised of progress on the
implementation of the ROWIP.

Summary :

Topic Considered :

Dates Considered :

Natural Resources Wales’s (NRW) Evaluation of the
Implementation of ROWIPs and the role played by the
ROWIP Funding Programme.

8th July 2013.

The Forum considered the above and agreed to
establish a sub-group comprising members of the
ROWIP Working Group to respond to a Welsh
Government questionnaire.

Summary :

Topic Considered :
Dates Considered :

Cycling Provision in Flintshire.

15t April 2013, 8" July 2013, 30t September 2013 &
20" January 2014.

Updates were presented to the Forum.

Summary :

Topic Considered :
Dates Considered :

Flintshire County Council ROWIP Equine Sub-Group.
15t April 2013, 8" July 2013, 30t September 2013 &
20t January 2014.

The Forum was advised about the deliberations of the
above Group.

Page 381




Topic Considered :

Dates Considered :

Summary :

Involvement of Town and Community Councils in
Public Rights of Way Maintenance.

15t April 2013, 8" July 2013, & 30" September 2013.
The Forum received updates about progress on the
various projects arising from the above initiative.

Topic Considered :

Dates Considered :

Summary :

Statement of Priorities for definitive map modification
and public path orders.

7t April 2013.

The Forum endorsed the above statement prepared by
the Head of Assets and Transportation.

Topic Considered :
Dates Considered :

Summary :

Complaint Priorities.

7th April 2013.

The Forum endorsed the priorities set out in a report
prepared by the Head of Assets and Transportation,
subject to the inclusion of a reference to obstruction-
free walks as part of the proposed hierarchy.

Topic Considered :
Dates Considered :

Summary :

Maintenance Priorities.

7t April 2013.

Subject to a minor addition, the Forum endorsed the
list of priorities for maintenance work, as prepared by
the Head of Assets and Transportation, and subject to
the list being reviewed in 12 months’ time.

Topic Considered :
Dates Considered :

Summary :

Draft Code for Multi-User Routes.

8th July 2013.

The Forum considered the above draft Code. It was
agreed that, should any Forum member wish to
comment upon it, they should be sent to the Chair for
him to pass on to the author, Dennis Murphy of the
Brecon Beacons Local Access Forum.

Topic Considered :

Date Considered :
Summary :

Local Access Forum Annual Conference 2013.

8th July 2013.

The Chair provided a summary of the deliberations at
the above Conference, held on 17t June 2013.

Page 382




Topic Considered :
Dates Considered :

Summary :

Destination Management Group.

30t September 2013.

The Forum received a presentation from David Evans,
Flintshire County Council’s Tourism Manager, and
Adrian Barsby, Chairman of the Destination Flintshire
Partnership, and agreed to accept an invitation to be
represented at Partnership meetings.

Topic Considered :

Dates Considered :

Summary :

NRW Review of Local Access Forum Working
Practices.

30t September 2013.

The Forum agreed responses to a questionnaire
submitted by NRW concerning the above.

Topic Considered :

Date Considered :
Summary :

Approval of the Eleventh Annual Report of the Forum.
30t September 2013.

The Forum agreed the contents of the draft report for
submission to the County Council for approval.

Topic Considered :

Dates Considered :

Summary :

Consultation by Welsh Government on where the
Active Travel (Wales) Act will apply in Wales.

20" January 2014.

The above consultation was considered and it was
agreed that the Chair, Bryan Harrison and Neville
Howell would meet to prepare a response to the
consultation.

Page 383




PROGRAMME OF WORKS FOR THE COMING YEAR (2014/15)

5. Regulation 16(2)(b) of the Countryside Access (Local Access Forums) (Wales)
Regulations 2001 requires the annual report to include a programme of works
which has been agreed between the Forum and the County Council which the
Forum plans to undertake during the twelve months commencing after 31t March

in each year.

6. The County Council has advised the Forum that it will seek advice from the Forum
in relation to the following matters in the forthcoming year:-
e Rights of Way Improvement Plan
e cycling provision in Flintshire

e Linking Flintshire Communities project
7. The Forum is normally advised by Natural Resources Wales that it will be
consulted upon various matters. It has not done so this year.
FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL DETAILS

8. The details of the County Council are set out in Appendix 1 to this report, and

are substantially unchanged from the previous annual reports.

DETAILS OF MEETINGS OF THE FORUM

9. The date and venues of meetings of the Forum are set out in Appendix 2 to this

report.
MEMBERSHIP DETAILS

10. The present Forum consists of 15 Members, including the Chair and Deputy

Chair who were appointed with effect from 16" January 2012.

Page 384



11.

12.

During the last twelve months, by virtue of the operation of regulation 14(1)(g) of
The Countryside Access (Local Access Forums) (Wales) Regulations 2001
(failure to attend Forum meetings over a continuous period of 12 months), the

membership of one Forum member was terminated (see Appendix 3).

Brief details of all persons who have served as Members of the Forum during

2013/14 are set out in Appendix 3 to this report.

FORUM COMMITTEES

13.

13.

14.

At its meeting on 15" May 2006, the Forum established the Maintenance
Priorities Committee. Its purpose is to provide to Flintshire County Council a
prioritised list of public rights of way requiring maintenance works, in order to
inform the County Council’s budget preparations, based upon criteria agreed
with the appropriate Council officers. The Committee was reconstituted at the
Forum meeting on 26" January 2009. However, it was agreed at the Forum
meeting on 11t July 2011 that the work of the Committee be combined with the
County Council’s ROWIP Working Group.

At its meeting on 11" October 2010, the Forum established the Engagement
with Town and Community Councils Committee to enhance local awareness of

public rights of way, as more specifically set out in the minutes of that meeting.

Arising from meetings of that Committee, the initiative of involving town and
community councils in public rights of way maintenance and related matters

(see page 4 of this report) has evolved.

MINUTES OF THE FORUM

15.

Copies of the approved minutes of the four meetings of the Forum held during

the year are set out in Appendix 4 to this report.

Page 385



COSTS OF THE FORUM

16.  The costs of the Forum during the year are shown in summary below:-

Cost Heading Cost 2013/14

£
Officer time (estimated) 8,467.72
Room Hire, Refreshments and 66.00 (all refreshments)
lunches
Members’ and Secretary’s Travelling 82.40
Expenses
Printing, postage and sundries -
Translation 590.31

18. The above costs are paid for from the budget of the Planning and Environment

Department of the County Council.

Page 386



APPENDIX 1
FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL DETAILS

The appointing authority for the Flintshire Local Access Forum is Flintshire County

Council. The area covered by the Forum is the whole of the County of Flintshire.
The Secretary of the Forum is:-

David M. Davies
Principal Solicitor
Corporate Directorate
Flintshire County Council
County Hall

Mold

Flintshire CH7 6NR

Telephone: 01352 702325

Fax: 01352 700289
e-mail : david.m.davies@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 387



APPENDIX 2
DETAILS OF MEETINGS
Meetings of the Forum took place on the following dates, the venue on each occasion
being either the Clwyd or the Delyn Committee Room at County Hall, Mold:-
15t April 2013,
8th July 2013,
30t September 2013, and

20t January 2014.

Page 388



68¢ abed

APPENDIX 3

DETAILS OF MEMBERSHIP

The membership of the Forum during 2013/14 was as follows :-

Name Date Date LAF Date Brief Background Details
Appointed | Membership | Reappointed
to Terminated (if
LAF applicable)
Mrs. Alison Chamberlain 5.12.05 22.12.11 16.1.12 Stud owner and horse rider. British Horse Society
member.
Mrs. Vera Darby 16.1.12 N/A N/A Retired teacher. Owner of agricultural holding.
Access and bridleways officer for British Horse Society.
Councillor David Evans 16.1.12 7.5.12 11.6.12 Appointed by Flintshire County Council as its
representative.
Previously Parliamentary caseworker. Walker and cyclist.
Member and chair of several councils.
Mr. Bryan Harrison 5.12.05 22.12.11 16.1.12 Chairman, Flintshire Disability Forum and Flintshire
(Deputy Chair: Access Group. Member of Access Panel for Wales.
appointed 26.1.09 &
6.2.12)
Mr. Neville Howell 16.1.12 N/A N/A Retired systems and planning director for steel

processing company within British Steel. Volunteer walk
leader for Troedio Clwyd Walks. Past Acting Sec. of
Friends of Walkabout Flintshire.

Volunteer footpath worker for Ramblers’ Association.
Member of various groups.

11




06¢ abed

Name Date Date LAF Date Brief Background Details
Appointed | Membership | Reappointed
to Terminated (if
LAF applicable)

Mr. David M. Hytch 5.12.05 22.12.11 16.1.12 Retired teacher. Experienced mountain walker. Volunteer
ranger — SUSTRANS.
Volunteer warden — RSPB. Member of Deeside
Naturalists. Member of Friends of Rhydymwyn Valley.

Mr. Michael Moriarty 16.1.12 N/A N/A Retired police officer. Community councillor. Walker.

Mr. P. John Richards 22.12.08 22.12.11 16.1.12 Retired former Head of Flintshire CC Countryside
Service.

Dr. Jean Rosenfeld 5.12.05 22.12.11 16.1.12 Research Scientist (renewable energy, solar). Past Chair

(Chair from 16.1.06: of Clwyd/Flintshire branch of CPRW.

reappointed 26.1.09 &

6.2.12)

Mr. Barry Scragg 16.1.12 N/A N/A Retired trade union official. Walker. Member of Holywell
Town Council.

Mr. Howard White 14.10.02 22.12.11 16.1.12 Self-employed Planning Consultant, Member of the

Ramblers' Association, Open Spaces Society, North
Wales Wildlife Trust, National Trust, SUSTRANS and
Forestry and Timber Association.

12




T6E abed

Name Date Date LAF Date Brief Background Details
Appointed | Membership | Reappointed
to Terminated (if
LAF applicable)

Mr. E. Gareth Williams 22.12.08 22.12.11 16.1.12 Retired.
Member of Halkyn Graziers’ Association.
Nominated by the Association.

Miss Janet O. Williams 22.12.08 22.12.11 16.1.12 Retired.
British Driving Society Commissioner for NE Wales/N
Powys.
Chair of Coed Llandegla Carriage Driving & Horse Riding
Association.

Mr. John Woolley 16.1.12 9.7.13 N/A Geologist and environmentalist and engineer by training.

Member of Buckley Town Council.

13




APPENDIX 4

Copies of the approved minutes for the meetings on:-
15t April 2013 (Appendix 4A),
8th July 2013 (Appendix 4B),
30t September 2013 (Appendix 4C), and
20" January 2014 (Appendix 4D),

are enclosed.

Page 392



Agenda Iltem 19

FOR INFORMATION

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY, 21 APRIL 2015

REPORT BY: CHIEF EXECUTIVE

SUBJECT: EXERCISE OF DELEGATED POWERS

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01 To inform Members of action taken under delegated powers.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 At the Executive Meeting held on 31st October, 2000 it was agreed that one of
the standard agenda items at each Executive should be a report on the
“Exercise of Delegated Powers”.

3.00 RECOMMENDATION

3.01 Members note the details of actions taken under the “Exercise of Delegated
Powers”.

4.00 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 5.00 ANTI-POVERTY IMPACT

4.01 As detailed in each report. 5.01 As detailed in each report.

6.00 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 7.00 EQUALITIES IMPACT

6.01 As detailed in each report. 7.01 As detailed in each report.

8.00 PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

8.01 As detailed in each report

9.00 CONSULTATION REQUIRED

9.01 Not applicable

10.00 CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

10.01 Not applicable

Page 393



11.00 APPENDICES

11.01 Summary of Decisions taken under Delegated Powers.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985

Background documents:  See individual report.
Contact Officer: Detailed on the individual reports.

Page 394



APPENDIX 1

EXERCISE OF DELEGATED POWERS — DECISIONS TAKEN

Planning and Environment
e Public Protection Fees and Charges for 2015/16
New charges for various licences, registrations and the bereavement service
have been reviewed and took effect from 01.04.15 apart from the taxi licence
increase which would come into force from 01.05.15.

Community & Enterprise
e Business Rates — Write Offs
The write off of three business rate accounts where the overall debt for each
company is greater than £5,000, totalling £46,460.06.

e Council Tax — Write Offs
The write off of two council tax accounts where the overall debt for each is
greater than £5,000, totalling £17,533.70.

Copies of the Delegated Powers reports are on deposit in the Team Manager's
Room, Committee Services

Page 395



This page is intentionally left blank



FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME ITEMS

COUNCIL, CABINET, AUDIT AND OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY

DEVOLUTION, DEMOCRACY
AND DELIVERY -
REFORMING LOCAL
GOVERNMENT: POWER TO
THE PEOPLE

To invite a Council response to
the Welsh Government White
Paper.

APRIL 2015 TO AUGUST 2015
COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
April
Social & Health | 9 April 2015 Overview and Scrutiny | Betsi Cadwaladr University
Care Overview & Health Board
Bcrutiny Committee To receive an update from
o Betsi Cadwaladr University
[ Health Board
|98
QLlintshire County | 14 April 2015 Chief Executive's WELSH GOVERNMENT
"Council WHITE PAPER:

Xauuy epuaby



For Council to consider a report
issued by the Local Democracy
& Boundary Commission for
Wales seeking views on three
options for community
boundaries for the Flint
Mountain area.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Flintshire County | 14 April 2015 Chief Executive's ANNUAL IMPROVEMENT
Council REPORT AND THE
CORPORATE ASSESSMENT
REPORT OF THE AUDITOR
GENERAL FOR WALES FOR
FLINTSHIRE
To receive the
recommendations of the Wales
g-? Audit Office assessment and
Q endorse the action plan.
W@Wlintshire County | 14 April 2015 Governance Community Review - Flint
ouncil Mountain




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

CHIEF OFFICER
PORTFOLIO

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only)

Flintshire County
Council

14 April 2015

Governance

Appointments to Areas of
Outstanding Natural Beauty
Partnership

For Council to determine the
three Flintshire members to
serve on the Area of
Outstanding Natural Beauty
(AONB)Partnership.

lintshire County
ouncil

(0O
@D
w
(o)
©

14 April 2015

Governance

Officers' Code of Conduct
To consider a recommendation
from the Constitution
Committee to adopt a revised
Officers' Code of Conduct

Flintshire County
Council

14 April 2015

Governance

Review of Political Balance
To review the Council's political
balance calculations following a
Member joining the
Independent Alliance Group
from the Liberal Democrat
Group

Environment
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee

15 April 2015

Streetscene and
Transportation

Flintshire County Council's
Car Parking Strategy

To discuss further the
introduction of Parking
Strategies within Flintshire




Housing Payments Policy and
make appropriate
recommendations which will be
shared with Cabinet on 21st
April 2015.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Corporate 16 April 2015 People and Resources | Revenue Budget Monitoring
Resources Overview 2014/15 (Month 10)
& Scrutiny To provide Members with the
Committee Revenue Budget Monitoring
2014/15 report as at month 10.
Corporate 16 April 2015 Finance Budget Virement Process
Resources Overview To inform Members of the
R Scrutiny process and procedures in
g)ommittee place for the processing of
[0} budget virements
E Y
%orporate 16 April 2015 Chief Executive's Wales Audit Office Corporate
esources Overview Assessment
& Scrutiny To consider the Wales Audit
Committee Office Corporate Assessment
and the Council's response
thereto
Corporate 16 April 2015 Finance Discretionary Housing
Resources Overview Payment Policy
& Scrutiny For Members to consider the
Committee adoption of the Discretionary




Care Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

To receive an update on the
implementation of SPOA in
Flintshire

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Corporate 16 April 2015 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme
Resources Overview (Corporate Resources)
& Scrutiny To consider the Forward Work
Committee Programme of the Corporate
Resources Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.
Corporate 16 April 2015 Finance Housing Benefit
Resources Overview Overpayments Policy
Scrutiny For Members to consider the
éommittee adoption of the Housing Benefit
-8 Overpayment Policy and make
~ appropriate recommendations
o which will be shared with
= Cabinet on 21st April 2015
Social & Health | 16 April 2015 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme
Care Overview & To consider the Forward Work
Scrutiny Committee Programme of the Social &
Health Care Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.
Social & Health | 16 April 2015 Social Services Single Point of Access




Mountain

For Council to consider a report
issued by the Local Democracy
& Boundary Commission for
Wales seeking views on three
options for community
boundaries for the Flint
Mountain area.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Cabinet 21 April 2015 Chief Executive's FORMER EUTICALS SITE, Cabinet Member
SANDYCROFT for Waste
The report sets out a phased Strategy, Public
plan for the resolution of the Protection and
ongoing risk to public health Leisure
posed by the abandoned site at
Sandycroft formerly owned by
the company Euticals.
o
Q
%abinet 21 April 2015 People and Resources | Revenue Budget Monitoring | Operational Leader of the
N 2014/15 (Month 10) Council and
8 To provide Members with the Cabinet Member
most up to date revenue for Finance
budget monitoring information
(Month 10) for the Council
Fund and the Housing
Revenue Account in 2014/15.
Cabinet 21 April 2015 Governance Community Review - Flint Operational Cabinet Member

for Corporate
Management




officers investigating ways of
doing so within available
staffing resources.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Cabinet 21 April 2015 Community and New Customer Services Strategic Cabinet Member
Enterprise Policy for Corporate
Implementation of the new Management
Customer Services Policy for
the organisation.
Cabinet 21 April 2015 Governance Webcasting of Member Operational Cabinet Member
Meetings for Corporate
For Cabinet to consider a Management
o recommendation from the
Q Constitution Committee that the
Q Council implement webcasting
Q) .
~ of tho;e Member meetln.gs Qf
8 most interest to the public with




COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)

Cabinet 21 April 2015 Governance Twelfth Annual Report of the | Operational Leader of the
Flintshire Local Access Council and
Forum - 2013/14 Cabinet Member
For Cabinet, on behalf of the for Finance
County Council, to note and
approve the twelfth report of
the Flintshire Local Access
Forum, prepared in accordance

g-? with Regulation 16 of the

Q Countryside Access (Local

® Access Forums) (Wales)

) Regulations 2001.

%abinet 21 April 2015 Education and Youth GwE Constitutional Update Operational Cabinet Member
To seek member approval for for Education
changes to the constitutional
arrangements for the North
Wales Regional School
Improvement Service - GwWE

Cabinet 21 April 2015 Streetscene and Streetlighting Policy Strategic Deputy Leader of

Transportation

To seek approval for the policy
in line with the Business
Proposals

the Council and
Cabinet Member
for Environment




COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Cabinet 21 April 2015 Planning and Waste Collection Policy Strategic Cabinet Member
Development Control To see Member approval for for Waste
the policy in line with the new Strategy, Public
Business Proposals Protection and
Leisure
Cabinet 21 April 2015 Streetscene and Grass Cutting Policy Strategic Deputy Leader of
Transportation To seek Member approval for the Council and
the policy in line with the new Cabinet Member
- Business Proposals for Environment
g:abinet 21 April 2015 Streetscene and Waste Transfer Station and Operational Cabinet Member
@® Transportation Biomass Production/Storage for Waste
g Area in Greenfield Strategy, Public
ol To seek approval to develop a Protection and
waste transfer station and Leisure
biomass storage area in
Greenfield.
Cabinet 21 April 2015 Education and Youth School Standards & Strategic Cabinet Member

Organisation Act 2013

To inform members of the new
code in relation to changes in
process for school organisation

for Education




Environment

Renewable Schemes

To advise Members of the sites
identified as being potentially
suitable for development of
renewable energy systems,
and to provide for guidance,
the anticipated timeline for
these schemes

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Cabinet 21 April 2015 Community and Discretionary Housing Operational Cabinet Member
Enterprise Payment Policy for Corporate
For Members to approve and Management
adopt the Discretionary
Housing Payments Policy.
Cabinet 21 April 2015 Community and Housing Benefit Operational Cabinet Member
Enterprise Overpayment Policy for Corporate
U For Members to approve and Management
g adopt the Housing
[0 Overpayment Policy.
1=
gabinet 21 April 2015 Streetscene and Flintshire Parking Strategies | Strategic Deputy Leader of
Transportation To seek approval for the the Council and
introduction of parking Cabinet Member
strategies within Flintshire for Environment
County Council
Cabinet 21 April 2015 Planning and Proposed Large Scale Strategic Deputy Leader of

the Council and
Cabinet Member
for Environment




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

CHIEF OFFICER
PORTFOLIO

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only)

Cabinet

21 April 2015

Planning and
Environment

Regulated Mobile Homes Site
(Wales) Bill

For Members to consider the
new legislation, particularly with
regard to fees and delegated
powers.

Operational

Cabinet Member
for Waste
Strategy, Public
Protection and
Leisure

Environment
Overview & Scrutiny
_Bommittee
o))

L0t °b

23 April 2015

Streetscene and
Transportation

Bus Subsidy / DRT Review /
and Introduction of ITU

1. To advise Scrutiny of the
proposed policy for bus
subsidies.

2. To confirm revised proposals
for DRT/Deeside Shuttle

3. To confirm operation of the
ITU

Environment
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee

23 April 2015

Overview and Scrutiny

Forward Work Programme
(Environment)

To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the Environment
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee.




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

CHIEF OFFICER
PORTFOLIO

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only)

Housing Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

24 April 2015

Overview and Scrutiny

Work of Pennaf Housing
Association (Presentation)
To receive a presentation by
Mr Graham Worthington from
Pennaf Housing Association
and to meet with
representatives of Pennaf
Housing Association

8Iousing Overview &
®crutiny Committee

N
o
(00]

24 April 2015

Community and
Enterprise

Flintshire’s Strategic
Housing and Regeneration
Programme (SHARP)

To update the Committee on
Flintshire’s Strategic Housing
and Regeneration Programme
(SHARP)

Housing Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

24 April 2015

Overview and Scrutiny

Forward Work Programme
(Housing)

To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the Housing
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee.




COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Lifelong Learning | 30 April 2015 Education and Youth Regional School
Overview & Scrutiny Effectiveness and
Committee Improvement Service (GWE)
To receive an update on
progress with the development
of the regional school
effectiveness and improvement
service, to include a
presentation from the Chief
o Officer of GwE.
jo))
ifelong Learning | 30 April 2015 Organisational Change | Prudential Borrowing Update
verview & Scrutiny To discuss the options for
ommittee prudential borrowing and the
© implications, particularly in
relation to schools repairs and
maintenance.
Lifelong Learning | 30 April 2015 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme
Overview & Scrutiny (Lifelong Learning)
Committee To consider the Forward Work

Programme of the Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.

May




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

CHIEF OFFICER
PORTFOLIO

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only)

Flintshire
Council

County

12 May 2015

Governance

Schedule of Member
Remuneration

The purpose of the report is to
approve the Council's Schedule
of Member Remuneration for
2015/16

Plintshire
g)ouncil
@

County

12 May 2015

Governance

Constitutional Matters:
Committees and Outside
Bodies

To deal with those matters
which require decisions at the
Annual Meeting of the County
Council in accordance with
Council Procedure Rule
1.1(vii)-(xiv). Those matters are
set out in separate paragraphs.

Flintshire
Council

County

12 May 2015

Chief Executive's

County Council Diary of
Meetings 2015/16

To consider the draft diary of
meetings for 2015/16 as set out
in the appendix to this report.




MTFP to provide an update on
the development of the 2015-
16 MTFP

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Corporate 14 May 2015 People and Resources | Revenue Budget Monitoring
Resources Overview 2014/15 (Month 11)
& Scrutiny To provide Members with the
Committee Revenue Budget Monitoring
2014/15 report as at month 11.
Corporate 14 May 2015 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme
Resources Overview (Corporate Resources)
& Scrutiny To consider the Forward Work
_Bommittee Programme of the Corporate
Q Resources Overview &
-8 Scrutiny Committee.
N
=
N
Social & Health | 14 May 2015 Social Services Annual Council Reporting
Care Overview & Framework
Scrutiny Committee To consider the final draft of
the Flintshire County Council
Social Services Annual
Performance Report 2014/15.
Cabinet 19 May 2015 Chief Executive's Medium Term Financial Plan | Strategic




COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Cabinet 19 May 2015 People and Resources | Revenue Budget Monitoring | Operational Leader of the
2014/15 (Month 11) Council and
To provide Members with the Cabinet Member
most up to date revenue for Finance
budget monitoring information
(Month 11) for the Council
Fund and the Housing
_ Revenue Account in 2014/15.
g:abinet 19 May 2015 Streetscene and Bus Subsidy / DRT Review Strategic Deputy Leader of
[0 Transportation and Introduction of ITU the Council and
AN 1. To approve the Policy for Cabinet Member
B future bus subsidies for Environment
2. To confirm revised proposals
for DRT/Deeside Shuttle
3. To confirm operation of the
ITU
Cabinet 19 May 2015 Streetscene and Speed Limit Review Progress | Operational Deputy Leader of

Transportation

Report
To update progress on the
speed limit review

the Council and
Cabinet Member
for Environment




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

CHIEF OFFICER
PORTFOLIO

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only)

Cabinet

19 May 2015

Community and
Enterprise

Compulsory Purchase of
231-235 High Street,
Connah's Quay

Formal request of approval to
utilise Compulsory Purchase
Order Powers to acquire 231-
235 High Street, Connah's
Quay

Operational

Cabinet Member
for Housing

ousing Overview &
crutiny Committee
@

v

20 May 2015

Community and
Enterprise

Review of Strategic Housing
Partnership

To review the Strategic
Housing Partnership

H
(ousing Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

20 May 2015

Community and
Enterprise

Private Sector Housing
Renewal

To consider progress on the
delivery of Flintshire's first
Renewal Area, general service
development and county wide
projects.

Housing Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

20 May 2015

Community and
Enterprise

Update on Tenant
Involvement

To consider tenants
satisfaction results and the
involvement of tenants in
service improvements.




COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Housing Overview & | 20 May 2015 Community and Welfare Reform Update
Scrutiny Committee Enterprise To update Members on the
impact of Welfare Reform
Housing Overview & | 20 May 2015 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme
Scrutiny Committee (Housing)
To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the Housing
U Overview & Scrutiny
g Committee.
@
s
"Rudit Committee 3 June 2015 Internal Audit Protocol Internal and Operational
External Audit
To present to Members the
updated Protocol between
Internal Audit and the Wales
Audit Office
June
Audit Committee 3 June 2015 Governance Review of Whistleblowing

Arrangements

To present to the committee
the results of a review of the
whistleblowing policy by the
Wales Audit Office.




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

CHIEF OFFICER
PORTFOLIO

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only)

Audit Committee

3 June 2015

People and Resources

Financial Procedure Rules
1.1 To provide Audit
Committee with the proposed
updated Financial Procedure
Rules (FPR's)

1.2 To seek a recommendation
to the next available County
Council scheduled for 30
September 2015

udit Committee

GTv abed

3 June 2015

Governance

Audit Report on Mobile
'Phones

To update the Audit Committee
on progress with the action
plan.

Cabinet Member
for Corporate
Management

Environment
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee

4 June 2015

Streetscene and
Transportation

Highways Asset
Management Planning
(HAMP) and Local
Subsidence Schemes

To review the HAMP document
approved in 2012 and identify
sites within the County
experiencing subsidence
issues.




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

CHIEF OFFICER

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE

REPORT TYPE

PORTFOLIO

Overview & Scrutiny
Committee

Transportation

Performance Report
(Streetscene and
Transportation)

To note and consider the
2014/15 Year End
Performance Report produced
at the Chief Officer level under
the adopted business model of
the Council. The report covers
the period January - March
2015.

PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Environment 4 June 2015 Streetscene and Review of Winter
Overview & Scrutiny Transportation Maintenance
Committee To undertake a 2 yearly review
of the Winter Maintenance
Policy
Environment 4 June 2015 Streetscene and Streetscene Next Steps
Overview & Scrutiny Transportation To review the Streetscene
Tommittee standards (including drain
g cleaning policy & weeding
[0} policy, cycle path maintenance,
AN flytipping, recycling e.g.
'5 tetrapak, etc.)
Environment 4 June 2015 Streetscene and Year End Chief Officer




COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Environment 4 June 2015 Planning and Year End Chief Officer
Overview & Scrutiny Environment Performance Report
Committee (Planning and Environment)
To note and consider the
2014/15 Year End
Performance Report produced
at the Chief Officer level under
the adopted business model of
the Council. The report covers
o the period January - March
D 2015.
(@)
%nvironment 4 June 2015 Community and Year End Chief Officer
verview & Scrutiny Enterprise Performance Report
Yommittee (Community and Enterprise)

To note and consider the
2014/15 Year End
Performance Report produced
at the Chief Officer level under
the adopted business model of
the Council. The report covers
the period January - March
2015.




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

CHIEF OFFICER
PORTFOLIO

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only)

Environment
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee

4 June 2015

Overview and Scrutiny

Year End Improvement Plan
Monitoring Report

To note and consider elements
of the 2014/15 Year End
Improvement Plan Monitoring
Report. The report covers the
period January - March 2015.

Bnvironment
@verview & Scrutiny

4 June 2015

Overview and Scrutiny

Forward Work Programme
(Environment)

@ommittee To consider the Forward Work

RN Programme of the Environment

5 Overview & Scrutiny
Committee.

Corporate 11 June 2015 People and Resources | Revenue Budget Monitoring

Resources Overview 2014/15 (Month 12)

& Scrutiny To provide Members with the

Committee Revenue Budget Monitoring

2014/15 report as at month 12.




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

CHIEF OFFICER
PORTFOLIO

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only)

Corporate
Resources Overview
& Scrutiny
Committee

11 June 2015

People and Resources

Year End Chief Officer
Performance Report

To note and consider the
2014/15 Year End
Performance Report produced
at the Chief Officer level under
the adopted business model of
the Council. The report covers
the period January - March
2015.

o
jo))
orporate
esources Overview
Scrutiny
©e

ommittee

11 June 2015

Overview and Scrutiny

Year End Improvement Plan
Monitoring Report

To note and consider elements
of the 2014/15 Year End
Improvement Plan Monitoring
Report. The report covers the
period January - March 2015.

Corporate
Resources Overview
& Scrutiny
Committee

11 June 2015

Overview and Scrutiny

Forward Work Programme
(Corporate Resources)

To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the Corporate
Resources Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

CHIEF OFFICER

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE

REPORT TYPE

PORTFOLIO

To approve the draft
Improvement Plan 2015/16
prior to final publication in
June.

PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Community Profile & | 15 June 2015 Overview and Scrutiny | Year End Improvement Plan
Partnerships Monitoring Report
Overview & Scrutiny To note and consider elements
Committee of the 2014/15 Year End
Improvement Plan Monitoring
Report. The report covers the
period January - March 2015.
Vommunity Profile & | 15 June 2015 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme
8artnerships To consider the Forward Work
Mverview & Scrutiny Programme of the Community
JSommittee Profile & Partnerships
B Overview & Scrutiny
Committee.
Cabinet 16 June 2015 Chief Executive's Improvement Plan 2015/16 Strategic Cabinet Member

for Corporate
Management




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

CHIEF OFFICER
PORTFOLIO

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only)

Cabinet

16 June 2015

Chief Executive's

LSB & Strategic Partnerships
Performance - End of Year
2014/15

To note and endorse the end of
year assessments for:

- the progress of the Local
Service Board Priorities and its
key Strategic Partnerships and;
- the priorities for each of the
Strategic Partnerships for the
year ahead.

Strategic

Cabinet Member
for Corporate
Management

abinet

TZhPPbed

16 June 2015

Chief Executive's

Year End Improvement Plan
Monitoring Report (2014/15)
Provide an update of progress
against the Improvement Plan
as at year end

Strategic

Cabinet Member
for Corporate
Management

Cabinet

16 June 2015

People and Resources

Revenue Budget Monitoring
2014/15 (Month 12)

To provide Members with the
most up to date revenue
budget monitoring information
(Month 12) for the Council
Fund and the Housing
Revenue Account in 2014/15.

Operational

Leader of the
Council and
Cabinet Member
for Finance




Care Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

Performance Report (Social
Services)

To note and consider the
2014/15 Year End
Performance Report produced
at the Chief Officer level under
the adopted business model of
the Council. The report covers
the period January - March
2015.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Cabinet 16 June 2015 Streetscene and Review of Winter Strategic Deputy Leader of
Transportation Maintenance Policy the Council and
To undertake a 2 yearly review Cabinet Member
of the Winter Maintenance for Environment
Policy.
Cabinet 16 June 2015 Streetscene and Highways Asset Operational Deputy Leader of
Transportation Management Planning the Council and
U (HAMP) and Local Cabinet Member
g Subsidence Schemes for Environment
[0 To review the HAMP document
-b approved in 2012 and identify
B sites within the County
experiencing subsidence
issues.
Social & Health | 18 June 2015 Social Services Year End Chief Officer




Scrutiny Committee

Enterprise

Performance Report
(Housing)

To note and consider the
2014/15 Year End
Performance Report produced
at the Chief Officer level under
the adopted business model of
the Council. The report covers
the period January - March
2015.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Social & Health | 18 June 2015 Overview and Scrutiny | Year End Improvement Plan
Care Overview & Monitoring Report
Scrutiny Committee To note and consider elements
of the 2014/15 Year End
Improvement Plan Monitoring
Report. The report covers the
period January - March 2015.
Flintshire County | 23 June 2015 Chief Executive's Improvement Plan 2015/16
_Bouncil To approve the draft
Q Improvement Plan 2015/16 for
Q final publication.
(0]
Ny
w
Housing Overview & | 8 July 2015 Community and Year End Chief Officer




2014/15

To provide Members with
2014/15 (actual) Prudential
Indicator figures as required
under the Prudential Code for
Capital Finance in Local
Authorities (the Prudential
Code).

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Housing Overview & | 8 July 2015 Overview and Scrutiny | Year End Improvement Plan
Scrutiny Committee Monitoring Report
To note and consider elements
of the 2014/15 Year End
Improvement Plan Monitoring
Report. The report covers the
period January - March 2015.
UOabinet 14 July 2015 People and Resources | Capital Programme 2014/15 Operational Leader of the
g (Outturn) Council and
) To provide Members with the Cabinet Member
N outturn capital programme for Finance
IN information for 2014/15.
Cabinet 14 July 2015 Streetscene and Vehicle Tracking Policy Operational Deputy Leader of
Transportation To seek Cabinet approval of the Council and
the Council's Vehicle Tracking Cabinet Member
Policy for Environment
Cabinet 14 July 2015 People and Resources | Prudential Indicators - Actual | Operational Leader of the

Council and
Cabinet Member
for Finance




COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Lifelong Learning | 16 July 2015 Education and Youth Year End Chief Officer
Overview & Scrutiny Performance Report
Committee (Lifelong Learning)
To note and consider the
2014/15 Year End
Performance Report produced
at the Chief Officer level under
the adopted business model of
the Council. The report covers
o the period January - March
D 2015.
(@)
ifelong Learning | 16 July 2015 Overview and Scrutiny | Year End Improvement Plan
verview & Scrutiny Monitoring Report (Lifelong
@ommittee Learning)

To note and consider elements
of the 2014/15 Year End
Improvement Plan Monitoring
Report. The report covers the
period January - March 2015.




To note and consider the
2014/15 Year End
Performance Report produced
at the Chief Officer level under
the adopted business model of
the Council. The report covers
the period January - March
2015.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Lifelong Learning | 16 July 2015 Organisational Change | Year End Chief Officer
Overview & Scrutiny Performance Report
Committee (Organisational Change)




Agenda Item 20

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted - Not for Publication

Page 427



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted - Not for Publication

Page 433



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 New Customer Services Policy
	Enc. 1 for New Customer Services Policy

	5 Flintshire Parking Strategies
	Enc. 1 for Flintshire Parking Strategies
	Enc. 2 for Flintshire Parking Strategies
	Enc. 3 for Flintshire Parking Strategies
	Enc. 4 for Flintshire Parking Strategies
	Enc. 5 for Flintshire Parking Strategies
	Enc. 6 for Flintshire Parking Strategies
	Enc. 7 for Flintshire Parking Strategies
	Enc. 8 for Flintshire Parking Strategies
	Enc. 9 for Flintshire Parking Strategies

	6 Waste Collection Policy
	Enc. 1 for Waste Collection Policy
	Enc. 2 for Waste Collection Policy

	7 Streetlighting Policy
	Enc. 1 for Streetligting Policy
	Enc. 2 for Streetligting Policy

	8 Grass Cutting Policy
	Enc. 1 for Grass Cutting Policy
	Enc. 2 for Grass Cutting Policy

	9 School Standards & Organisation Act 2013
	10 Revenue Budget Monitoring 2014/15 (Month 10)
	Enc. 1 for Revenue Budget Monitoring 2014/15 (Month 10)

	11 Housing Benefit Overpayment Policy
	Enc. 1 for Housing Benefit Overpayment Policy

	12 Discretionary Housing Payment Policy
	Enc. 1 for Discretionary Housing Payment Policy

	13 Mobile Homes Site (Wales) Act 2013
	14 Waste Transfer Station and Biomass Production/Storage Area in Greenfield
	15 North Wales Regional School Improvement Service (GWE) - Changes to Constitutional Arrangements
	Enc. 1 for GwE Constitutional Update
	Enc. 2 for GwE Constitutional Update
	Enc. 3 for GwE Constitutional Update

	16 Community Review - Flint Mountain
	Appendix 1 - Boundary Commission Draft Proposals
	Untitled


	17 Webcasting of Member Meetings
	Appendix 1 - Guidance for Members on Webcasting
	Appendix 2 - Webcasting Protocol

	18 Twelfth Annual Report of the Flintshire Local Access Forum - 2013/14
	Enc. 1 for Twelfth Annual Report of the Flintshire Local Access Forum - 2013/14

	19 EXERCISE OF DELEGATED POWERS
	 FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME - COUNTY COUNCIL, CABINET, AUDIT AND OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY - FOR INFORMATION
	20 FORMER EUTICALS SITE, SANDYCROFT
	Enc. 1 for FORMER EUTICALS SITE, SANDYCROFT




